
ABABABAB    
ENVIRONMENT CAPITAL SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

THURSDAY 22 MARCH 2012 
7.00 PM 
 

Bourges/Viersen Room - Town Hall 
 
 
 

AGENDA  

 Page No 

 
1. Apologies for Absence 

 
 

2. Declarations of Interest and Whipping Declarations 
 

 

 At this point Members must declare whether they have an interest, whether 
personal or prejudicial, in any of the items on the agenda. Members must also 
declare if they are subject to their party group whip in relation to any items 
under consideration. 

 

 

3. Minutes of Meeting Held on 19 January 2012 
 

1 - 8 

4. Call In of any Cabinet, Cabinet Member or Key Officer Decisions 
 

 

 The decision notice for each decision will bear the date on which it is 
published and will specify that the decision may then be implemented on the 
expiry of 3 working days after the publication of the decision (not including 
the date of publication), unless a request for call-in of the decision is 
received from any two Members of a Scrutiny Committee or Scrutiny 
Commission. If a request for call-in of a decision is received, implementation 
of the decision remains suspended for consideration by the relevant 
Scrutiny Committee or Commission. 
 

 

5. The Delivery of Renewable Energy 
 

9 - 12 

6. Trees and Woodlands Strategy 
 

13 - 116 

7. Highway Maintenance Plan 
 

117 - 178 

8. Forward Plan of Key Decisions 
 

179 - 194 

 
 

 

There is an induction hearing loop system available in all meeting rooms.  Some of the 
systems are infra-red operated, if you wish to use this system then please contact 
Paulina Ford on 01733 452284 as soon as possible. 
 

 
 
 

Public Document Pack



Committee Members: 
 

Councillors: D Day (Chairman), N Arculus (Vice Chairman), N North, B Rush, J Peach, J A Fox 
and N Sandford 

 
Substitutes: Councillors: G Casey, C Ash and A Shaheed 

 
Further information about this meeting can be obtained from Paulina Ford on telephone 01733 
452284 or by email – paulina.ford@peterborough.gov.uk 

 
Emergency Evacuation Procedure – Outside Normal Office Hours 
 
In the event of the fire alarm sounding all persons should vacate the building by way of the nearest escape 
route and proceed directly to the assembly point in front of the Cathedral.  The duty Beadle will assume 
overall control during any evacuation, however in the unlikely event the Beadle is unavailable, this 
responsibility will be assumed by the Committee Chair. 

 



ABABABAB    
 
MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE ENVIRONMENT CAPITAL SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

HELD AT THE BOURGES/VIERSEN ROOM - TOWN HALL 
 ON 19 JANUARY 2012 

 
Present: Councillors D Day (Chairman), N Arculus, J Peach,  N North, B Rush, 

JA Fox and N Sandford 
 

Also Present: Councillor M Lee, Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Culture, 
Recreation and Strategic Commissioning 
 

Officers Present: Paul Phillipson, Executive Director for Operations 
Adrian Chapman, Head of Neighbourhood Services 
Peter Gell, Strategic Regulatory Services Manager 
Andy Tatt, Network Management Group Manager 
Mark Speed, Transport and Infrastructure Planning Manager 
Paulina Ford, Senior Governance Officer, Scrutiny 
Dania Castagliuolo, Governance Officer 
Israr Ahmed, Lawyer 

 
1. Apologies for Absence  

 
No apologies for absence were received. 
 

2. Declarations of Interest and Whipping Declarations  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

3. Minutes of the Meeting held on 8 September 2011 and 3 November 2011 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 8 September 2011 were approved as an accurate 
record. 
 
The Senior Governance Officer informed the Committee that following Councillor North’s 
query regarding the minutes from the 8 September 2011 meeting she had  checked the 
notes taken and question regarding when the Environment Capital status would be achieved 
and when it was achieved what it would look like had been covered in the minutes. 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 3 November 2011 were approved as an accurate record. 
 

4. Call In of any Cabinet, Cabinet Member or Key Officer Decisions  
 
There were no requests for call-in to consider. 
 

5. 2012/13 Local Transport Plan Capital Programme of Works (CPW) 
 
The report had been brought before the Committee to seek views on the draft Local 
Transport Plan Capital Programme 2012/13 and highways maintenance revenue schemes, 
prior to its consideration by the Cabinet Member for Housing, Neighbourhoods and Planning.  
The report included the following information: 
 

• 2012/13 Integrated Transport Capital Programme  

• 2012/13 Highways Capital and Revenue Maintenance Programme 

• 2012/13 Street Lighting Capital Maintenance Programme 

1



• 2012/13 Bridge Capital Maintenance Programme 
 
The Transport Planning Manager advised the Committee that the CPW had input from 
various areas: 
 

• Local Transport Plan 

• Neighbourhood Council Allocation 

• Project requests 

• Schemes  identified through monitoring regime 

• Strategic Importance in the Growth Strategy 

• Asset management Plan 
 
Methodologies were used in order to determine which schemes were prioritised for each 
area. 
 
Questions and observations were raised around the following areas: 
 

• What is a footway slurry seal?  It was a surface treatment that was put on footways over 
the existing black surface and therefore extended the life of the asset.  This was done 
instead of having to remove the existing surface.  It was the equivalent to the micro 
asphalt surface that was put on carriageways. 

• What does a footway slab replacement mean?  Slabs are taken up and replaced with a 
black surface.  The slabs are  then recycled and used within the sub-base construction of 
the new footway. 

• Members felt that residents would prefer to have slabs replaced with slabs within 
conservation areas so that the footway looked the same.   Small localised areas and 
conservations areas were replaced with like for like slabs.  For longer sections of works it 
was more cost effective to replace the section with the black surface coupled with the 
reduction in insurance claims for trips and falls on slabbed footways. 

• Does the council have a significant amount of natural slabs rather than the artificial ones 
and what was the difference in cost?  There were less natural slabs and they tended to 
be in the old imperial sizes.  It had been much more cost effective to replace slabs with 
black surface.  The cost of replacing slabs was £25 per square meter and much more 
labour intensive which meant it cost 20% to 30% more than using black surface. 

• Members felt it was important to keep conservation areas in keeping with the natural 
area. 

• The report had stated that under Innovative Travel there would be a contribution to a 
regional project to introduce charging points for electrical vehicles.  How many charging 
points will there be and where will they be placed.  It was a regional scheme and the 
council were working with partners to assess where and how many would be needed.  It 
was a match funded scheme and the Government were pushing to get electric vehicles in 
use. There were some charging points already in place but had not been connected up 
yet.  The Officer was unable to give specific details at this point.  It would be a staged 
implementation over the next five years and as the points became live the use of them 
would be monitored.   

• Street lighting capital maintenance programme.  A number of street lighting replacement 
schemes were in conservation areas.  Had the council considered looking at replacing 
the street lighting with ones that were more in keeping with the age of the column and the 
conservations area.  Members were advised that they were working within a budget and 
the cast iron style columns were much more expensive than the steel columns.  
Conservations areas would be looked at very carefully.  Black street furniture would be 
used in village conservation areas and the core city centre to ensure continuity. (note: 
excluding the public realm cathedral square area where street furniture has a stainless 
finish)  

• When looking at an area like Park Crescent could you look at replacing the street lighting 
with a type of designer street lighting in keeping with the area.  If there was a building 

2



within the area of a certain age and character that could be taken into account but it 
would be difficult within the budget to consider replacing a whole road.  The Officer noted 
the point made and it would be considered. 

• How genuine was the urgency of the five year column replacement programme.  
Members were informed that the issue was very serious.   The columns had been put in 
by the Development Corporation and were now beyond their shelf life.  Surveys were 
being conducted to assess which columns needed replacing first and then they would be 
replaced on a street by street basis in order of priority. 

• Are the street light adaptation programme and the street column replacement programme 
being done together?  The two projects in conjunction with the Energy Efficiency Invest to 
Save Programme were being planned and co-ordinated through the Transport Planning 
Managers team.   

• Where was the funding coming from for the water taxi infrastructure?  No public money 
would be put towards the scheme.  It would come from the section 106 planning 
conditions.  If external funding was not found then the scheme would not go ahead.   

• How will you spend the £100k on the Public Realm Scheme at Crescent Bridge?   It 
would be spent on and around the subway in particular the landscaping to open up the 
whole area and help prevent anti social behaviour.  This would help increase the footfall 
from the station into Cowgate and the city centre. 

• Members had noted that the land owned by National Rail along the route to the Station 
was not being maintained and was covered with litter.  Members were advised that the 
authority were seeking an agreement with Network Rail for the council to clean the area 
up. The area had since been targeted and once a month a group from probation services 
had been to clean the area. The site was being considered for a redesign as part of the 
public realm landscaping works and gateway approach to the city. 

• Why was £20K being spent on duel carriageway drainage improvements at the 
Stanground Bypass when the bypass had not been adopted?   The drainage work was 
being done as the original work had not been up to standard and additional work had 
been required.  The adoption of the road was an issue and the council were working with 
the developers to ensure the road was brought up to standard for adoption. 

• What was the £700K being spent on at Junction 5 Boongate capacity and safety 
improvement.   There had been an issue with tailbacks at the Junction onto the parkway 
and a scheme was being put in place to address this. The scheme was still undergoing 
design. 

• Members commented that more emphasis should be placed on public transport schemes 
in line with the Environment Capital Aspirations.   

• There had been significant concern from Members with regard to the timing of the bus 
station improvements which had taken place during the winter months.  Members were 
advised that the work that had been carried out had been more significant than had been 
expected.  The Transport Planning Manager would contact the Project Manager to 
provide more information to Members. 

• The original Local Transport Plan had stated that the Christmas Park and Ride would be 
extended over a longer period.  The current budget proposals state that the Park and 
Ride scheme which costs £34K per annum was to be scrapped but a Water Taxi park 
and ride scheme was to be put in place in the future costing £600K.  What was the 
rational behind this?   The Local Transport Plan had a caveat that stated it would not 
necessarily continue with a Christmas Park and Ride Scheme.  The Christmas Park and 
Ride Scheme had not been well used and therefore the decision had been made not to 
continue with it.  The scheme had cost the council £34K and in addition to that there had 
been a loss of income from car parks of £11K.  The Director of Operations informed 
Members that the council had tried putting in place a small charge for park and ride to try 
and cover costs but it had the worst take up that there had been. Currently Peterborough 
had been able to sustain the volume of traffic coming into the city within the current car 
parks but long term as the city grew there would need to be consideration for a 
permanent park and ride scheme.  This was being monitored.   

3



• Members commented that by using buses there would be a reduction of carbon output 
and that officers should look into this.  The Officer advised that this would be done when 
considering a park and ride scheme. 

• How do you set the criteria for highway and footpath resurfacing?  Do you survey the 
roads or do you wait for someone to report a problem.  A robust mechanism of scanner 
surveys and visual inspections were completed. 

• How will you involve Neighbourhood Committees in the Capital Programme for highways 
improvements?    Last year and the year before all the Neighbourhood Committees had 
an opportunity to see the Capital Programme and putting forward schemes.   The 
Development Capital Work Programme included Neighbourhood Committee allocations 
and project requests.  Officers were working closely with the Neighbourhood Committees 
and this would continue. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Committee noted the report and recommended to the Executive Director of Operations 
that: 
 
1. Special consideration should be given when replacing street lighting in conservation 

areas to ensure it was in keeping with the area. 
2. Consideration should be given when removing natural flag stones from footways and that 

every effort is made to replace them with natural flag stones in keeping with the area. 
 
ACTION AGREED 
 
The Committee requested that a report be brought back to the Committee at a future date on 
plans for Strategic Park and Ride sites when more substantial plans had been prepared. 
          

6.  Environmental Enforcement Performance 
   

The report provided the Committee with an overview of regulatory performance in the field of 
Environmental Enforcement.  In March 2011 Regulatory Services had been integrated into 
the Neighbourhoods Team allowing stronger engagement with communities providing 
increasingly aligned services to local community needs and priorities.  A presentation 
highlighted areas where Regulatory Services had been proactive in improving regulatory 
outcomes.  These included: 
 

• Fly tipping 

• Accumulations 

• Business Waste 

• Fly posting 

• Littering 

• Graffiti 

• Dog Fouling 

• Abandoned vehicles 

• Road side sales of cars 
 
Questions and observations were raised around the following areas: 
 

• The budget proposals state that there will be a reduction in Enforcement Officers from 
seven to four,  two of which will be based solely in the City Centre.  The Head of 
Neighbourhood Services informed members that there was a consultation being 
undertaken with staff with regard to a restructure in the Neighbourhoods team and there 
was a proposal to move Enforcement Officers into the city centre where there was more 
activity.  The Enforcement Officers through the consultation had been given the 
opportunity to come forward with ideas of ways of achieving the financial savings but 

4



retaining the level of commitment.  For example they had looked at heightening their 
enforcement activity to bring in more revenue and using a company called X4 a private 
sector business that mainly focused on littering offences.  

• What will be the amount saved from cutting the numbers of Enforcement Officers from 
seven to four. This would form part of a bigger package but it would be the region of 
£90K. 

• How will it be decided which of the seven would loose their jobs.  The Head of 
Neighbourhood Services was optimistic that jobs would be found for all of them but could 
not guarantee this. 

• How will it be decided who will work in the city centre?   Volunteers would be asked for 
first and then there would be a selection process. 

• Could money be taken from the Citizens Power Programme and used towards the 
Enforcement team.  Members were advised that there would be no any further 
investment in the Citizens Power Programme and therefore this would not be possible. 

• Members commented that the Enforcement Officers did an excellent job and 
neighbourhoods relied on the service that the Enforcement Officers provided and would 
not like to see the service diminish. 

• The report states that there had been 129 warning letters sent out for fly tipping but there 
had only been 7 prosecutions.  Why had there not been more prosecutions when you 
know who the people are.  It had been very difficult to identify the culprits.  Cases were 
looked at on an individual basis.  Householders sometimes paid people to dispose of 
their household items in the belief that they were legitimately licensed businesses but 
were not.  Unknown to the householder the items would then be fly tipped.  The fly tipped 
items would then be traced back to the householder who had no idea of what had 
happened and had been under the impression that it had been disposed off correctly. 

• A Member felt that as the majority of people did not reside in the City Centre the 
proposed change in policy to concentrate enforcement around the City Centre was not 
appropriate.  The Head of Neighbourhood Services was encouraged by the support of 
Members for the Enforcement Officers and would take note of that during the 
consultation.  He confirmed that the officers were actively involved in finding solutions 
and ways of saving money.  It had been proven that by making a city centre attractive 
and safe it encouraged economic growth and would have a positive effect on the city 
overall.  The type of crime within the city centre was more simplistic and had mainly been 
littering.  There had been discussions with the company X4 to negotiate a contract for 
them to come back and provide enforcement officers within the city centre.  If this proved 
to be a viable contract for X4 then it may be possible to provide enforcement officers to 
neighbourhoods to solve more complex problems and X4 in the city centre. 

• Members commented that many litter bins on lamp posts had disappeared but Enterprise 
have advised that there was not enough money in the budget to replace them.  Members 
were informed that litter bins had become a bit of a grey area between Enterprise and the 
council and a meeting had been scheduled between Enterprise and the council to 
discuss the issue and resolve who would be responsible for replacing the bins.  The 
Head of Neighbourhood Services would report back to the Committee with the outcome 
of the meeting. 

• Members wanted to know why the council were no longer using the CCTV pictures of 
people who dropped litter to name and shame them.  When used in the past this had 
proved successful.  The Head of Neighbourhood Services would look into why they were 
not being used and come back to the Committee. 

• Could the council look into getting some kind of civil recovery for those people littering.  
Fixed penalty notices were issued and if they were not paid they could be taken to court. 

• Can you explain what is happening with abandoned vehicles?   Previously the complete 
process relating to abandoned vehicles was provided by City Services.  When Enterprise 
took over it was established that they could not legally do part of the service as they were 
not the local authority.  Enterprise still provides the service to extract the vehicles and the 
council officers did the investigating regarding the ownership of the vehicles. 

5



• Councillor Sandford wished it recorded that he did not support the proposal to reduce the 
number of Environmental Enforcement Officers from seven to four and did not support 
the proposal to place two of the four remaining officers in the City Centre.  He felt that this 
would reduce the important service previously provided to the neighbourhoods. 

 
ACTIONS 

   
The Committee noted the report and supported the work of the Environmental Enforcement 
Team. 

 
The Committee requested that the Head of Neighbourhood Services: 
 
1. Report back to the Committee with the outcome of the meeting between Enterprise and 

the council regarding the responsibility of replacement litter bins. 
2. Report back to the Committee on why the name and shame campaign where CCTV 

pictures of people dropping litter was published on the council website was no longer 
being used. 

  
7. Parking on Grass Verges 

   
The report informed the Committee on the work being undertaken to assess and tackle verge 
parking concerns across the city.  Various hot spots had been identified across the city which 
would be dealt with in a holistical and affordable approach.  There were now nine officers in 
post and a CCTV car tackling the issue.  Funding would be key to any scheme proposed.  
Existing highway funds were limited and would need to be supplemented by Neighbourhood 
Committee funds if considered to be a neighbourhood priority and with Member Community 
Leadership funding where ward Councillors wished to support a scheme in their ward. Where 
advantageous to do so and funds were available, schemes to address verge parking 
problems would be aligned with planned highway improvements in order to reduce scheme 
costs.  
 
Site specific measures to address the problem that could be considered and used in the 
highway included: 
 

• Installation of Grass-crete (porous concrete sections which facilitates grass to grow 
through) which allows parking on verges without the resultant damage. 

• Hardening of verge area by tarmacing. 

• Planting of suitable trees to act as a physical obstruction. 

• Planting of suitable low growth shrubs to act as a physical obstruction. 

•    Introduction of Traffic Regulation Orders (TRO`s) whereby no waiting at any time 
(double yellow lines) could be installed which not only cover the road but to the 
highway boundary which included adjacent verges and footways. 

•   Installation of suitable bollards or other street furniture which when positioned 
sensitively can act as a physical obstruction. 

 
Questions and observations were raised around the following areas: 
 

• Members thanked the officers for all the hard work that had been done to try and resolve 
the verge parking issues and endorsed the approaches being taken. 

• Officers advised Members that there would be a rolling programme in place to address 
the verge parking problems and that the worst areas would be addressed as a priority.  It 
was envisaged that in twelve months time there would be some noticeable progress. 

• Members commented that green areas across the city should be taken into consideration 
when looking to concrete areas and should note areas that may flood.  Cheaper 
alternatives like planting trees and shrubs should also be considered.   Members were 
informed that site specific needs would have to be taken into consideration and there 

6



would be a need to be realistic with funding.  The aim would be to enhance the look and 
feel of the locality. 

• Members suggested that the officers look at using Capital Funding as it could be used for 
a strategic approach to tree planting.  Members were informed that all avenues of funding 
would be explored. 

• How do you deal with areas of housing that do not have enough parking spaces 
provided? A particular area of concern was Ploverly.  Members were informed that the 
authority was working closely with the Housing Associations to try and resolve this issue.  
It may mean some capital investment for extra parking spaces. 

• Would we be wasting capital investment if enforcement was never going to happen?  Not 
all of the solutions being put in place would involved a traffic regulation that would end in 
enforcement.  A number of avenues were being pursued to increase the capacity of the 
existing resources.   

• Residents were very concerned about the issue of verge parking.  Could we save 
resources if we set up a hotline or email address so that neighbours could report people?  
There was an email address already in place where people could report any incidents.  

• Members suggested that the email address should be advertised more and especially at 
Neighbourhood Committee meetings.  

 
The Chair thanked the officers in attendance for an excellent report. 
 
ACTIONS 
 
1. The Committee noted the report and endorsed and supported the approaches being 

taken to address verge parking. 
 
2. The Committee requested that the officers look at ways of advertising more actively the 

email address where people could report verge parking. 
 

8.  Forward Plan of Key Decisions 
 
The latest version of the Forward Plan, showing details of the key decisions that the Leader 
of the Council believed the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members would be making over the 
next four months, was received. 
 
ACTION AGREED 
 
The Committee noted the Forward Plan. 
 

9. Work Programme 
 
Members considered the Committee’s Work Programme for 2010/11 and discussed possible 
items for inclusion. 
 

ACTION AGREED 
 

To confirm the work programme for 2010/11 and the Scrutiny Officer to include any 
additional items as requested during the meeting. 
 

10. Date of the Next Meeting 
 
22 March 2012  
 
 
 

CHAIRMAN 
7.00 - 9.31   pm 

7



8

This page is intentionally left blank



ENVIRONMENT CAPITAL SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 
 

Agenda Item No. 5 

22 MARCH 2012 
 

Public Report 

 

Report of the Executive Director  - Strategic Resources      
                                 
Report Author   -   John Harrison, Executive Director – Strategic Resources 
Contact Details  -  John Harrison, Executive Director – Strategic Resources 
   Tel: 01733 452520  

Email: john.harrison@peterborough.gov.uk  
 

THE DELIVERY OF RENEWABLE ENERGY 

 
1. PURPOSE 

 
1.1 To enable the committee to consider the strategy for the delivery of renewable energy 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
2.1 That the committee is asked to comment on the strategy proposed for the delivery of renewable 

energy and major energy efficiency projects. 
 

3. LINKS TO THE SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY  
 

3.1 The area supports the delivery of the Council’s Environmental Capital ambitions. 
  

4. BACKGROUND 
 

4.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2 
 
4.3 
 
4.3.1 
 
 
 
 
4.3.2 
 
 
 
 
4.4 
 
4.4.1 
 
 

At the meeting of Cabinet on 13th June 2011 it agreed to authorise the Executive Director – 
Strategic Resources to establish a limited company as an energy services company (ESCO) to 
be wholly owned by Peterborough City Council. 
 
It also authorised the Executive Director – Strategic Resources to award the contract for 
design, supply, installation and maintenance of Solar Photovoltaic (PV) panels on the roof of 
the former Freemans building at Ivatt Way, Westwood, Peterborough, PE3 7PA. 
 
The following sets out some brief details around the ESCO. 
 
What is an ESCO? 
 
Energy Services Company (ESCO) is a broad term used to describe an independent agency 
that develops, installs, and finances projects designed to improve energy efficiency, usually 
featuring sustainable energy sources. ESCOs are becoming an increasingly important tool for 
local authorities to take a more active role in developing the UK's low carbon infrastructure.  
 
An ESCO usually takes the form of a limited company, although other delivery vehicles are 
possible. It may be wholly owned by the public or private sector, or a joint venture. A greater 
degree of local authority ownership allows the authority to secure additional objectives such as 
the alleviation of fuel poverty, rather than pure profit. 

 
Why establish an ESCO? 
 
It is generally accepted that large, centralised energy generating stations waste a considerable 
amount of the energy they produce. By locating energy production close to where it is used, 
energy can be produced more efficiently, reducing the impact on the environment. Changes to 

9



 
 
 
 
4.4.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.4.3 
 
 
 
4.4.4 
 
 

regulations, concern about climate change, growing costs of traditional energy, together with 
the opportunity to make money from low and zero-carbon energy are increasingly focussing 
attention onto decentralised energy. 
 
The council therefore established an ESCO to pursue the provision of low and zero-carbon 
energy schemes. The intention is to produce and supply energy, of various types, but initially 
the main supply source would be through photovoltaic cells (PV), commonly known as solar 
energy. In the future the council will look at other sources, for example wind. The energy 
produced will be made available for use in the Peterborough area, both by domestic and 
business users. One key advantage of this is that it allows everyone to potentially have access 
to energy from renewable sources, including those for whom domestic solar panels are not an 
option, for example those who live in flats, or whose roofs are unsuitable. This is an important 
benefit that supports Peterborough’s status as Home of Environment Capital.  
 
Another important area for an ESCO’s operation is that of the delivery of energy efficiency.  It 
therefore aims to ensure that less energy is used and if it is needed to be used then renewable 
energy is sourced.   
 
Following the government changes to Feed in Tariffs (FiTs) in July 2011 the development of PV 
at the former Freemans site was limited to approx. 200kw. 
 

5. KEY ISSUES 
 

5.1 The strategy around the delivery of renewable energy has the following main features: 
 
A) Definition of Renewable Energy: 

 
Renewable energy is energy which comes from natural resources such as sunlight, wind, rain, 
tides, and geothermal heat, which are renewable (naturally replenished). 
 
The mainstream forms of renewable Green energy are as follows : 
 

• Wind power 

• Hydropower 

• Solar energy 

• Biomass 

• Biofuel 

• Geothermal energy 

B) In addition, the electricity from the Energy from Waste facility can be classified as green      
energy (per government definitions). 

 
C) The delivery of renewable energy supports directly the Council’s Carbon Reduction 

Commitment (CRC) (see item on agenda). 
 
D) Funding: 

• Department of Energy and Climate Change (DECC) funding exists in the form of 
Feed in tariffs (Fit), or Renewable Obligation Certificates (ROC’s) .  

• An alternative would be the utilisation of carbon tax credits. 

• Invest to save budget and mainstream capital programme funding (typically via 
Public Works Loans Board) 

• Third party contributions including planning obligations 

• Private equity funding  

• Other Public funds 
 

10



E) Procurement – governed largely by European procurement rules and Cabinet Member 
Decision Notice (CMDN) process. 

 
F) Aim of strategy: to maximise third party funding and invest to save monies to enable the 

rollout of renewable energy across the area at no cost to the taxpayer and where possible 
generating surplus income that can be utilised in further areas. 

 
G) The future for the council is dependant on the rollout of renewable energy and the delivery 

of energy efficiency measures such as an Energy performance contract the aim is to 
enable the council to become a ‘’Micro Generator’. 

 
5.2 In order to deliver the above strategy it is necessary to deal with the following key issues: 

 

• Procurement of services to enable the delivery of renewable technologies. At present a 
contract is in place to deliver PV installations for 4 years. Further contracts are needed 
for other technologies 

• Managing the funding via DECC for feed in tariffs. Since the spending review 2011 it is 
clear that the treasury funding limits are driving the support for renewable technology 
and in particular the following are the key drivers and constraint mechanisms in place or 
are being consulted about: 
1. Aggregation limits that once exceeded will reduce the FiT to 80% of the standard tariff 
value; 
2. Future reduction in FiT’s that will either apply at points in time or earlier, when 
national build out levels are achieved, to avoid breaching treasury spending limits; and 
3. Future increase projections of RPI and CPI 

• Evaluation of assets and planning considerations to deliver renewable energy 

• Ensuring that the funding and income streams for projects pass financial tests 

• Ensuring robust gateways are in place from concept through to delivery 

• Availability of third party funding for projects 

• Decisions on whether the council should develop or buy renewable facilities or both 
 
 

5.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The council has established the ESCO – Blue Sky Peterborough Ltd. There are also key 
considerations that are needed to be evaluated in respect of ESCO: 

• At what point should the ESCO be involved? 

• Should the ESCO own assets or income streams? 

• How is the relationship with the council best constructed to minimise or eliminate any tax 
implications? 

• How would the ESCO trade energy? 

• How does the ESCO relate to major energy suppliers when trading or at the point it 
becomes a micro generator? 

• How can the ESCO be best utilised to deliver an energy performance contract 

• What should the role of the ESCO be in the ‘Green Deal’? 

• What funding can the ESCO attract and what necessary Special Purpose Vehicles 
(SPV’s) are needed to deal with appropriate funders and projects 

• How and who does the ESCO work with across the public and private sectors? 

• How can the ESCO generate further income to the council around business 
development? 

• Should the ESCO be involved in major growth projects across the city? 
 

5.4 
 

The priority for development at this stage will be solar and wind.  Other sources will be 
examined over the next 12 months. 
 

5.5 The process for accessing Invest to Save monies was adopted as part of the budget. The first 
access to these monies is being progressed via a CMDN to enable the delivery of up to 50Kw 
build out on the schools portfolio. This robust process will be utilised for further contract awards 
subject to achieving the ‘golden rules’ set out in the invest to save budget criteria. 
 

11



5.6 The development and delivery of renewable energy is a complex issue. The aim of this report is 
the first step in enabling the Scrutiny Committee to consider some of the high level issues 
around the strategy. 
 

6. IMPLICATIONS 
 

6.1 The delivery of the strategy and associated actions is within the context of the Council’s 
approved Medium Term Financial Plan 2012/13 to 2021/22. 
 
 

7. CONSULTATION 
 

7.1 Internal only with the exception of that undertaken as a result of the consideration of this 
strategy within the MTFP budget consultation. 
 

8. NEXT STEPS 
 

8.1 It is proposed that a further report is presented back to the committee in 12 months time. 
 

9. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) 
Act 1985 
 

9.1 None 
 

10. APPENDICES 
 

10.1 None 
 

  

12



ENVIRONMENT CAPITAL SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 
 

Agenda Item No. 6 

 22 MARCH 2012 
 

Public Report 

 

Report of the Executive Director of Operations                                     
 
Contact Officer(s) – Darren Sharpe, Natural and Historic Environment Manager 
Contact Details -  01733 453596 
 

TREES AND WOODLAND STRATEGY- POLICIES AND PRIORITIES 
 
1. PURPOSE 

 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to present the updated Trees and Woodland Strategy for the 

Committee to consider prior to referral to Cabinet. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 
 
 
2.2 
 
 
2.3 
 
 
2.4 

That the Committee receives and endorses the updated Strategy and the measures outlined 
within it, which replaces the existing 1998 Strategy. 
 
That the Committee refers the Strategy to Cabinet for endorsement prior to its consideration by 
Council as part of the major policy framework. 
 
That the Committee supports the need for additional resources allocated within the Medium 
Term Financial Strategy to deliver the strategy. 
 
That the Committee agrees to receive copies of the proposed Tree Risk Management Strategy 
and annual progress reviews. 
 

3. LINKS TO THE SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY  
 

3.1 
 
 
 
 
3.2 

The Strategy in particular most directly contributes to the ‘Creating the UK’s Environment 
Capital’ priority of the Sustainable Community Strategy via the Cleaner/ Greener agenda. 
Progress on delivery of the Strategy will be used to give a more detailed picture of the breadth 
of the actions taken by the Council to deliver this priority. 
  
In addition, the Strategy will assist in delivering National Indicator 160 by helping deliver 
positive conservation management to woodlands that have local site designation. 
 

4. BACKGROUND 
 

4.1 
 
 
 
 
4.2 
 
 
 
 
 
4.3 
 

In 1998 Peterborough City Council adopted its Trees & Woodland Strategy. Since then this has 
proven to be a robust and successful document, providing the Council’s basis for managing its 
own trees and giving guidance for the control and implementation of protection for privately 
owned trees. 

The review of this Strategy commenced in 2005 by the then Trees and Woodland Team.  A 
working group was convened in 2006 of Officers and Councillors to develop the Strategy.  
Owing to the comprehensive nature of this review, high work load and restructuring of 
departments this work was not completed until 2010. The findings of the review formed the 
basis of the first draft that was presented, by Peterborough City Services, to Environment 
Capital Scrutiny in the November of that year. 

Following consideration of this draft and a separate meeting with interested members, further 
changes were made prior to the Environment Capital Scrutiny Committee endorsing the Trees 

13



 
 
4.4 

and Woodland Strategy for wider consultation in January 2011. 

Operations Directorate proceeded to undertake this public consultation in the summer of 2011. 

 

5. KEY ISSUES 
 

5.1 The key issue which the Committee need to consider is if the  revised draft Strategy provides 
the objectives, policies and actions which will establish the Council’s commitment and 
continued strategic direction for the protection, planting and maintenance of the trees and 
woodland within its authority.  A key element of change within the Strategy is moving away from 
a reactive service to one that ensures that its resources go towards a pro-active defendable 
system for managing tree risk and ensuring high standards of asset management. 
 

6. IMPLICATIONS 
 

6.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.2 
 
 
 
 
 
6.3 
 
 
 
6.4 

The Strategy can only be partially delivered within existing Council resources.  The 
extrapolation of priorities and the financial implications in complying with Strategy have been 
summarised in Appendix B.  In response to these budgetary requirements additional budget 
was allocated in the Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) of £744,000 in 2012/13, 
£735,000 in 2013/14, and £727,000 in the following three years 2014 to2017. It is considered 
that this allocation of funding will initiate the implementation of the strategy and that there will be 
the need to annually review the ongoing resource implications that will be informed by 
inspections and delivery of works undertaken the previous year.  Additionally, opportunities will 
be explored to offset the cost of managing the Council’s trees and woodland by seeking 
external funding or other changes to landscape management practices which are less 
expensive. 
 
The successfully implementation of the Strategy would help the Council facilitate compliance 
with its duty of care to maintain its trees and woods in a safe condition. In addition it 
demonstrates the City’s worthiness of Environment City status and will directly contribute to 
Peterborough’s Environment Capital aspirations. The Strategy will also deliver associated 
positive effects to quality of life, the economy and cultural heritage.  
 
This report has implications throughout the authority area where the Council is a landowner 
manager.  It will impact on all wards and will hopefully influence and inform emerging 
Community Action Plans. 
 
The Strategy identifies a standard for the management of the tree resource in the stewardship 
of the Council, which ensures its long-term conservation and development for the people of 
Peterborough and future generations.  
 
 

7. CONSULTATION 
 

7.1 Consultation was undertaken between 31st May 2011 and 11th July 2011. The Strategy was  
available on the Council website during this period.  In addition relevant organisations were 
consulted.  These include: 

• Cambridgeshire Bat Group 

• Buglife 

• Campaign To Protect Rural England 

• Forestry Commission 

• Friends of Stanley Recreation Ground 

• Froglife 

• Langdyke Countryside Trust 

• Natural England 

• Opportunity Peterborough 

• Peterborough Environment City Trust 

• Peterborough Conservation Volunteers 

14



• Peterborough Local Access Forum 

• Peterborough Civic Society 

• Phoenix Residents Association 

• Environment Agency 

• Plantlife 

• Peterborough Primary Care Trust 

• RSPB 

• The Wildlife Trust 

• The Woodland Trust 

• Greater Peterborough Partnership 

• Nene Park Trust 

• Burghley House Preservation Trust 

• The Walcot Estate 

• Milton Estates 

• Friends of the Earth 

• BTCV 

• Enterprise Peterborough 

• Trees for Cities 

• Parish Councils 

• Councillors 

• Council Officers.  This includes Legal, Recreation, Transportation, Landscape Architect, 
Neighbourhoods, Economic and Community Regeneration, Climate Change, 
Emergency Planning and Wildlife Officer. 

 
A total of 245 consultation responses were received.  These comments and observations have 
been incorporated, where appropriate, within the revised Strategy presented.  A summary of the 
consultation comments is included within Appendix C.  
 

8. NEXT STEPS 
 

8.1 
 
 
8.2 

To refer the Strategy to Cabinet for endorsement prior to consideration by the Council as part of 
the major policy framework. 
 
To receive copies of the proposed Tree Risk Management Strategy and annual progress 
reviews detailed within the Strategy. 
 
 

9. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
 

9.1 • Peterborough Tree and Woodland Strategy June1998 

• Peterborough Sustainable Community Strategy (including Rural Vision Strategy and 
Environment Capital Manifesto) 

 
10. APPENDICES 

 
10.1 
 
10.2 
 
 
10.3 

Appendix A : Draft Trees and Woodland Strategy- Policies and Strategies 
 
Appendix B: Extrapolation Of Priorities And The Financial Implications In Complying With The 
Trees and Woodland Strategy 
 
Appendix C: Consultation Comments 
 

 
  

15



16

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

  

 
                           

D
O
C
U
M
E
N
T
 1
: 
P
O
L
IC
IE
S
 A
N
D
 P
R
IO
R
IT
IE
S
 2
0
1
2
 

17



 

 
2
 

C
O
N
T
E
N
T
S
 

 
P
O
L
IC
IE
S
 F
O
R
 C
O
U
N
C
IL
 O
W
N
E
D
 T
R
E
E
S
 A
N
D
 

W
O
O
D
L
A
N
D
S
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
..
. 
…
..
3
 

P
O
L
IC
IE
S
 F
O
R
 P
R
IV
A
T
E
L
Y
 O
W
N
E
D
 T
R
E
E
S
 A
N
D
 

W
O
O
D
L
A
N
D
S
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
…
..
…
…
4
 

1
 
IN
T
R
O
D
U
C
T
IO
N
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.
5
 

1
.1
 

B
a
c
k
g
ro
u
n
d
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.6
 

1
.2
 

T
h
e
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
6
-7
 

1
.3
 

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
T
re
e
s
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
7
-8
 

2
 
T
H
E
 V
IS
IO
N
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
9
 

2
.1
 

A
im

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
9
 

3
 
T
H
E
M
E
 1
: 
 C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
Y
 A
N
D
 P
L
A
C
E
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
9
 

3
.1
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
1
0
 

3
.2
 

P
la
c
e
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
1
0
-1
1
 

4
 
T
H
E
M
E
 2
: 
 S
U
S
T
A
IN
A
B
IL
IT
Y
 &
 N
A
T
U
R
A
L
 E
N
V
IR
O
N
M
E
N
T
1
1
 

4
.1
 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
ili
ty
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
1
1
-1
2
 

4
.2
 

N
a
tu
ra
l 
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
1
2
-1
3
 

5
 
T
H
E
M
E
 3
: 
 A
S
S
E
T
 M
A
N
A
G
E
M
E
N
T
 A
N
D
 S
T
A
N
D
A
R
D
S
..
..
..
.
1
3
 

5
.1
 

A
s
s
e
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t.
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.1
3
-1
4
 

5
.2
 

S
ta
n
d
a
rd
 o
f 
S
e
rv
ic
e
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.1
4
-1
5
 

6
 
C
O
U
N
C
IL
 T
R
E
E
S
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.
1
5
 

6
.1
 

G
e
n
e
ra
l.
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.1
5
-1
7
 

6
.2
 

S
tr
e
e
t 
T
re
e
s
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.1
7
-1
8
 

6
.3
 

T
re
e
s
 i
n
 R
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
A
re
a
s
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
1
8
 

6
.4
 

P
a
rk
s
 a
n
d
 O
p
e
n
 S
p
a
c
e
s
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
1
8
-1
9
 

6
.5
 

W
o
o
d
la
n
d
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.1
9
-2
0
 

6
.6
 

U
rb
a
n
 W

o
o
d
la
n
d
s
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
2
0
-2
1
 

6
.7
 

V
ill
a
g
e
 a
n
d
 R
u
ra
l 
T
re
e
s
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
2
1
 

6
.8
 

N
e
w
 a
n
d
 R
e
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
P
la
n
ti
n
g
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
2
1
-2
3
 

6
.9
 

O
th
e
r 
S
it
e
s
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
2
3
 

6
.1
0
 
L
a
n
d
m
a
rk
 T
re
e
s
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
2
3
 

7
 
P
R
IV
A
T
E
 T
R
E
E
S
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.2
3
-2
5
 

7
.1
 

T
re
e
s
 a
n
d
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t.
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.2
5
 

7
.2
 

P
ro
te
c
ti
n
g
 T
re
e
s
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
2
5
-2
7
 

8
 
IM
P
L
E
M
E
N
T
A
T
IO
N
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
2
8
 

8
.1
 

M
e
a
s
u
re
s
 o
f 
S
u
c
c
e
s
s
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
2
8
 

8
.2
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 R
e
v
ie
w
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
2
8
 

9
 
A
P
P
E
N
D
IC
E
S
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
2
9
-3
1
 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
: 
O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l 
G
u
id
e
lin
e
s
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
2
9
 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 2
: 
R
ig
h
t 
T
re
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 R
ig
h
t 
P
la
c
e
 F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.3
0
 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 3
: 
R
e
fe
re
n
c
e
s
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
3
1
 

                  

18



 

 
3
 

S
c
h
e
d
u
le
 o
f 
P
o
li
c
ie
s
  

 P
o
li
c
ie
s
 f
o
r 
C
o
u
n
c
il
 o
w
n
e
d
 t
re
e
s
 a
n
d
 w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 

 G
e
n
e
ra
l 
p
o
li
c
ie
s
 (
C
T
W
G
);
 a
p
p
lic
a
b
le
 t
o
 a
ll 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
tr
e
e
s
 a
n
d
 w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
. 

 
C
T
W
G
 1
: 

T
h
e
 
C
o
u
n
c
il
 
w
il
l 
e
n
s
u
re
 
th
a
t 
d
iv
e
rs
e
 
tr
e
e
 
a
n
d
 
w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 

p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 c
re
a
te
d
, 
p
ro
te
c
te
d
, 
m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 a
n
d
, 
w
h
e
re
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
, 
e
x
p
a
n
d
e
d
. 

  
C
T
W
G
 2
: 

T
h
e
 
C
o
u
n
c
il
 
w
il
l 
m
a
in
ta
in
 
it
s
 
tr
e
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 
in
 

a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 
w
it
h
 
it
s
 
o
b
li
g
a
ti
o
n
s
 
to
 
o
b
s
e
rv
e
 
d
u
ty
 
o
f 
c
a
re
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 s
a
fe
ty
 o
f 
b
o
th
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
n
d
 p
ro
p
e
rt
y
. 

  
C
T
W
G
 3
: 

T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 w
il
l 
m
a
in
ta
in
 i
ts
 t
re
e
s
 a
n
d
 w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 i
n
 a
 w
a
y
 

th
a
t 

d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
s
 
b
e
s
t 

p
ra
c
ti
c
e
, 

p
ro
v
id
in
g
 
w
o
rt
h
y
 

e
x
a
m
p
le
s
 f
o
r 
o
th
e
rs
 t
o
 f
o
ll
o
w
. 
 

 
C
T
W
G
 4
: 

T
h
e
 r
e
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 
tr
e
e
s
 a
n
d
 w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 s
h
a
ll
 b
e
 r
e
s
is
te
d
, 

u
n
le
s
s
 t
h
e
re
 a
re
 s
o
u
n
d
 H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 S
a
fe
ty
 o
r 
a
rb
o
ri
c
u
lt
u
ra
l 

re
a
s
o
n
s
. 

 
 

C
T
W
G
 5
: 
 
T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 w
il
l 
e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 a
 b
e
tt
e
r 
u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
tr
e
e
 

a
n
d
 
w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 
in
 
s
o
 
d
o
in
g
 
p
ro
m
o
te
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t.
 

  
C
T
W
G
 6
: 
T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 w
il
l 
e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 t
re
e
 c
o
v
e
r 
b
y
 n
e
w
 

a
n
d
 r
e
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
ti
n
g
, 
p
la
c
in
g
 g
re
a
t 
e
m
p
h
a
s
is
 o
n
 u
s
e
 o
f 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 t
re
e
 s
p
e
c
ie
s
. 

   S
tr
e
e
t 
tr
e
e
 p
o
li
c
y
 (
S
T
) 

 
S
T
 1
: 

T
o
 e
n
d
e
a
v
o
u
r 
to
 p
ro
te
c
t 
s
tr
e
e
t 
tr
e
e
s
 f
ro
m
 t
h
re
a
ts
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 

lo
s
s
 o
f 
v
e
rg
e
s
 a
n
d
 d
a
m
a
g
e
 t
o
 s
a
m
e
. 
 

  
S
T
 2
: 

T
o
 
p
la
c
e
 
a
 
p
ri
o
ri
ty
 
o
n
 
th
e
 
re
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
g
e
in
g
 
s
tr
e
e
t 

tr
e
e
s
; 
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
s
e
 a
d
jo
in
 m
a
jo
r 
tr
a
ff
ic
 r
o
u
te
s
. 

P
la
n
ti
n
g
 w
il
l 
e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 s
e
le
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 m
o
s
t 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 

s
p
e
c
ie
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
. 

  W
o
o
d
la
n
d
 p
o
li
c
y
 (
C
W
) 

 
C
W
 1
: 

T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 w
il
l 
a
im
 t
o
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 

it
s
 w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 a
s
 d
e
te
rm
in
e
d
 b
y
 g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 w
it
h
in
 a
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 

W
o
o
d
la
n
d
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
P
la
n
. 

   U
rb
a
n
 W
o
o
d
s
 (
U
W
) 

 
U
W
 1
: 

T
h
e
 
C
o
u
n
c
il
 
w
il
l 
m
a
n
a
g
e
 
th
e
 
u
rb
a
n
 
w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 
to
w
a
rd
s
 

s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
il
it
y
 
in
 
a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 
w
it
h
 
th
e
 
o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 
a
n
d
 

g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
in
 a
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 U
rb
a
n
 W
o
o
d
la
n
d
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

P
la
n
. 

  
U
W
 2
: 

T
h
e
 
C
o
u
n
c
il
 
w
il
l 
e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 
in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t,
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
 w
it
h
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 w
h
e
n
 w
o
rk
 i
s
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 a
n
d
 s
e
e
k
 t
o
 

a
d
d
re
s
s
 
th
e
 
p
ro
b
le
m
s
 
o
f 
a
n
ti
-s
o
c
ia
l 
b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
in
 
u
rb
a
n
 

w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
. 

 V
il
la
g
e
 a
n
d
 r
u
ra
l 
tr
e
e
 p
o
li
c
y
 (
V
T
) 

 
V
R
 1
: 

T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 w
il
l 
p
re
s
e
rv
e
 a
n
d
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 d
is
ti
n
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 

o
f 
v
il
la
g
e
 a
n
d
 r
u
ra
l 
tr
e
e
s
 i
n
 i
ts
 o
w
n
e
rs
h
ip
. 

 L
a
n
d
m
a
rk
 t
re
e
 p
o
li
c
y
 a
n
d
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 (
L
T
) 

 
L
T
 1
: 

T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 w
il
l 
p
re
s
e
rv
e
 a
n
d
 p
ro
te
c
t 
tr
e
e
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 l
a
n
d
m
a
rk
 

re
g
is
te
r.
 

  

19



 

 
4
 

P
o
li
c
ie
s
 f
o
r 
P
ri
v
a
te
ly
 o
w
n
e
d
 t
re
e
s
 a
n
d
 w
o
o
d
s
 

 G
e
n
e
ra
l 
p
o
li
c
ie
s
 (
P
T
) 
a
p
p
lic
a
b
le
 t
o
 A
L
L
 P
ri
v
a
te
 t
re
e
s
 a
n
d
 w
o
o
d
s
  

 P
T
 1
: 

T
h
e
 
C
o
u
n
c
il
 
w
il
l 
s
e
e
k
 
to
 
e
n
s
u
re
 
th
a
t 
a
ll
 
tr
e
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 

m
a
k
in
g
 
a
 
p
o
s
it
iv
e
 
c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 
to
 
o
u
r 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
a
re
 
p
ro
te
c
te
d
 

a
n
d
 w
h
e
re
 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
. 
 

 
  P
T
 2
: 

T
h
e
 
C
o
u
n
c
il
 
w
il
l 
re
s
p
o
n
d
 
to
 
tr
e
e
 
is
s
u
e
s
 
w
it
h
in
 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 

a
p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 
in
 
s
u
c
h
 
a
 
w
a
y
 
th
a
t 
e
n
s
u
re
s
 
th
e
 
re
te
n
ti
o
n
 
o
f 
g
o
o
d
 

q
u
a
li
ty
 
tr
e
e
 
a
n
d
 
w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 
c
o
v
e
ra
g
e
 
o
r 
e
n
s
u
re
s
 
it
s
 
c
re
a
ti
o
n
. 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
w
il
l 
n
o
t 
b
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
w
o
u
ld
 d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 o
r 
in
d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 

d
a
m
a
g
e
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 m
a
tu
re
 o
r 
a
n
c
ie
n
t 
w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 o
r 
v
e
te
ra
n
 t
re
e
s
. 
 

   P
T
 3
: 

T
h
e
 o
u
tr
ig
h
t 
re
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 
g
o
o
d
 q
u
a
li
ty
 t
re
e
s
 a
n
d
 w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 s
h
a
ll
 b
e
 

re
s
is
te
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
s
o
u
n
d
 a
rb
o
ri
c
u
lt
u
ra
l 
o
r 
te
c
h
n
ic
a
l 

re
a
s
o
n
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 i
rr
e
fu
ta
b
le
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
s
u
b
s
id
e
n
c
e
. 

  P
T
 4
: 
T
h
e
 
C
o
u
n
c
il
 
w
il
l 
p
ro
m
o
te
 
a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 
a
n
d
 
b
e
tt
e
r 
u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 
o
f 

tr
e
e
 
a
n
d
 
w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
th
ro
u
g
h
 
u
s
e
 
o
f 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t.
 

 
P
T
 5
: 
T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 w
il
l 
e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 n
e
w
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
tr
e
e
 a
n
d
 w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 

p
la
n
ti
n
g
, 
u
s
in
g
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 t
re
e
 s
p
e
c
ie
s
 

      T
re
e
 a
n
d
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
p
o
li
c
ie
s
 (
T
D
) 

 T
D
 1
: 
T
h
e
 
C
o
u
n
c
il
 
w
il
l 
re
je
c
t 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 
w
it
h
 
in
a
d
e
q
u
a
te
 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
 
fo
r 
th
e
 
re
te
n
ti
o
n
 
o
f 
tr
e
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
w
o
o
d
s
. 
T
h
e
 
C
o
u
n
c
il
 
w
il
l 

e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 
w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 
c
re
a
ti
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
tr
e
e
 
p
la
n
ti
n
g
 
in
 
a
ll
 
n
e
w
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
. 

 P
ro
te
c
ti
n
g
 P
ri
v
a
te
 t
re
e
s
 p
o
li
c
ie
s
 (
P
P
) 

 P
P
 1
 
T
h
e
re
 
w
il
l 
b
e
 
a
 
p
re
s
u
m
p
ti
o
n
 
a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
 
c
u
tt
in
g
 
d
o
w
n
, 
to
p
p
in
g
, 

lo
p
p
in
g
 
o
r 
u
p
ro
o
ti
n
g
 
o
f 
a
n
y
 
tr
e
e
 
s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 
a
 
T
re
e
 
P
re
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 

O
rd
e
r 
(T
P
O
) 
o
r 
tr
e
e
 
w
it
h
in
 
a
 
C
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 
A
re
a
, 
w
o
rt
h
y
 
o
f 
T
P
O
 

s
ta
tu
s
 (
th
e
s
e
 m
a
y
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 a
n
c
ie
n
t 
a
n
d
 v
e
te
ra
n
 t
re
e
s
).
  
T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 

w
il
l 
n
o
t 
g
iv
e
 c
o
n
s
e
n
t 
to
 f
e
ll
 a
 p
ro
te
c
te
d
 t
re
e
 o
r 
w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 u
n
le
s
s
 i
t 
is
 

s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
is
 i
s
 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 a
n
d
 j
u
s
ti
fi
e
d
. 
 A
n
y
 s
u
c
h
 c
o
n
s
e
n
t 
w
il
l 

b
e
 
c
o
n
d
it
io
n
a
l 
u
p
o
n
 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 
re
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
w
h
e
n
 
s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 
a
 

T
P
O
. 

 

20



 

 
5
 

 1
 

IN
T
R
O
D
U
C
T
IO
N
 

 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 i
s
 s
e
t 
in
 e
a
s
te
rn
 E
n
g
la
n
d
, 
w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
 F
e
n
s
 m

e
e
t 
th
e
 l
o
w
la
n
d
s
 o
f 

th
e
 M

id
la
n
d
s
. 
 T
h
is
 j
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
la
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 a
 r
ic
h
 a
n
d
 d
iv
e
rs
e
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 

c
o
n
tr
a
s
ti
n
g
 
a
n
d
 
d
is
ti
n
c
ti
v
e
 
la
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
s
 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 
fe
n
la
n
d
s
, 
c
la
y
 
la
n
d
s
, 
ri
v
e
r 

v
a
lle
y
s
, 
g
ra
v
e
ls
 a
n
d
 l
im
e
s
to
n
e
. 

 T
h
e
 e
a
s
te
rn
 h
a
lf
 o
f 
th
e
 u
n
it
a
ry
 a
re
a
 i
s
 r
e
c
la
im
e
d
 h
ig
h
 q
u
a
lit
y
 a
g
ri
c
u
lt
u
ra
l 
la
n
d
 o
n
 

th
e
 f
la
t 
fe
n
s
. 
 O

ri
g
in
a
lly
 t
h
e
 m

a
rg
in
s
 w

o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 c
o
n
s
is
te
d
 o
f 
w
e
t 
w
o
o
d
s
 a
n
d
 

c
a
rr
s
 o
f 
a
ld
e
r,
 b
ir
c
h
, 
a
s
h
 a
n
d
 o
a
k
, 
e
d
g
in
g
 o
n
to
 v
a
s
t 
tr
a
c
ts
 o
f 
b
ra
c
k
is
h
 m

a
rs
h
, 

ri
v
e
r 
p
la
in
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
e
d
s
. 

 T
o
 t
h
e
 w
e
s
t 
o
f 
th
e
 C
it
y
 t
h
e
 l
a
n
d
 b
e
c
o
m
e
s
 m

o
re
 u
n
d
u
la
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 f
o
rm

s
 t
h
e
 e
a
s
te
rn
 

e
x
te
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 R

o
c
k
in
g
h
a
m
 F
o
re
s
t 
c
h
a
ra
c
te
r 
a
re
a
. 
T
h
e
re
 a
re
 n
u
m
e
ro
u
s
 a
n
c
ie
n
t 

w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 i
n
 t
h
is
 a
re
a
, 
m
a
n
y
 o
f 
w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 o
f 
h
ig
h
 n
a
tu
re
-c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
te
re
s
t 

w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 a
tt
ra
c
ti
v
e
 l
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 f
e
a
tu
re
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 o
w
n
 r
ig
h
t.
 F
ie
ld
s
 a
n
d
 r
o
a
d
s
 a
re
 

b
o
u
n
d
 
w
it
h
 
tr
e
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
h
e
d
g
e
ro
w
s
 
w
h
ic
h
 
lin
k
 
a
 
p
a
tc
h
w
o
rk
 
o
f 
w
o
o
d
s
. 
T
h
e
s
e
 

w
o
o
d
s
, 

th
e
 
re
m
n
a
n
ts
 
o
f 

th
e
 
R
o
c
k
in
g
h
a
m
 
F
o
re
s
t,
 
s
u
rv
iv
e
 
in
 
w
e
s
te
rn
 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
. 

 E
a
rl
y
 
s
e
tt
le
m
e
n
ts
 
s
u
c
h
 
a
s
 
th
o
s
e
 
fo
u
n
d
 
a
t 
F
la
g
 
F
e
n
 
a
n
d
 
B
a
rn
a
c
k
 
le
d
 
to
 
th
e
 

c
le
a
ra
n
c
e
 o
f 
th
e
 f
o
re
s
t.
  
L
a
te
r 
a
s
 s
e
a
 l
e
v
e
ls
 d
ro
p
p
e
d
 a
n
d
 m

a
n
 d
ra
in
e
d
 t
h
e
 F
e
n
s
 

s
o
 h
is
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 t
re
e
s
c
a
p
e
 b
e
c
a
m
e
 e
v
e
n
 g
re
a
te
r.
 

 T
h
e
 r
a
te
 o
f 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 h
a
s
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 r
a
p
id
ly
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
tw
o
 h
u
n
d
re
d
 y
e
a
rs
, 
re
s
u
lt
in
g
 

in
 t
h
e
 l
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 i
n
to
 t
h
a
t 
w
h
ic
h
 w
e
 s
e
e
 t
o
d
a
y
. 
 I
n
 t
h
e
 F
e
n
s
 t
h
e
re
 a
re
 

a
 f
e
w
 v
e
ry
 s
m
a
ll 
re
m
n
a
n
ts
 o
f 
w
e
t 
w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
; 
h
e
re
 t
h
e
 t
re
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
lin
e
 t
h
e
 r
o
a
d
s
 

lin
k
in
g
 t
h
e
 F
e
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 f
o
rm

 t
h
e
 m

a
in
 c
h
a
ra
c
te
r.
 

 T
h
e
re
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s
 
s
e
tt
le
m
e
n
t 
a
t 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 
s
in
c
e
 
4
5
 
A
D
. 
 
E
a
rl
y
 

s
e
tt
le
m
e
n
t 
w
a
s
 b
a
s
e
d
 a
ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 g
re
a
t 
a
b
b
e
y
 o
f 
S
t 
P
e
te
r.
 

 T
h
e
 C

it
y
 i
ts
e
lf
 i
s
 a
 d
y
n
a
m
ic
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t.
  
T
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 n
in
e
te
e
n
th
 c
e
n
tu
ry
 t
h
e
 

C
it
y
’s
 i
n
d
u
s
tr
ia
l 
h
e
ri
ta
g
e
 e
v
o
lv
e
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 g
re
a
t 
ra
il 
w
o
rk
s
h
o
p
s
. 
 A
t 
th
e
 s
a
m
e
 t
im
e
 

th
e
 b
ri
c
k
 i
n
d
u
s
tr
y
 s
o
 c
lo
s
e
ly
 l
in
k
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C
it
y
 u
n
ti
l 
th
e
 1
9
8
0
’s
 w
a
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
. 

 A
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
is
 i
n
d
u
s
tr
ia
l 
e
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
 w

a
s
 t
h
e
 g
ro
w
th
 o
f 
th
e
 C

it
y
. 
 I
n
 1
9
0
1
 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 
h
a
d
 
a
 
p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 
o
f 
3
1
,0
0
0
, 
th
e
 
la
s
t 
th
ir
ty
 
y
e
a
rs
 
h
a
s
 
s
e
e
n
 
th
is
 

g
ro
w
 
to
 
1
7
0
,0
0
0
. 
 
It
 
is
 
p
re
d
ic
te
d
 
to
 
in
c
re
a
s
e
 
to
 
2
0
0
,0
0
0
 
b
y
 
2
0
2
0
, 
s
o
 
th
e
 

c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 m

a
in
ta
in
 a
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
w
ill
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
. 

 T
h
e
 
o
ld
e
r 
p
a
rt
s
 
o
f 
th
e
 
C
it
y
, 
w
h
ic
h
 
a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
te
d
 
th
e
 
in
d
u
s
tr
ia
l 
g
ro
w
th
 
o
f 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 f
ro
m
 V
ic
to
ri
a
n
 t
im
e
s
 t
o
 1
9
5
0
s
, 
h
a
v
e
 a
 s
tr
u
c
tu
re
d
 l
a
y
o
u
t 
w
it
h
 t
re
e
 

lin
e
d
 r
o
a
d
s
, 
fo
rm

a
l 
p
ro
m
e
n
a
d
in
g
 p
a
rk
s
 a
n
d
 o
p
e
n
 s
p
a
c
e
s
. 
 A
s
 t
h
e
 C

it
y
 r
a
p
id
ly
 

g
re
w
 
th
ro
u
g
h
 
th
e
 
1
9
7
0
’s
 
to
 
th
e
 
p
re
s
e
n
t 
d
a
y
 
th
is
 
w
a
s
 
re
p
la
c
e
d
 
b
y
 
th
e
 
m
o
re
 

n
a
tu
ra
lis
ti
c
 p
la
n
ti
n
g
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 g
a
rd
e
n
 c
it
ie
s
. 

 T
re
e
s
 a
re
 t
h
e
 l
a
rg
e
s
t 
a
n
d
 o
ld
e
s
t 
liv
in
g
 t
h
in
g
s
 i
n
 o
u
r 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t.
  
T
re
e
s
 a
n
d
 

w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 
a
re
 
d
o
m
in
a
n
t 
fe
a
tu
re
s
 
o
f 
th
e
 
la
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 
a
n
d
 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
o
f 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
. 
 C
o
lle
c
ti
v
e
ly
 t
h
e
y
 f
o
rm

 o
n
e
 o
f 
it
s
 f
in
e
s
t 
a
n
d
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
fe
a
tu
re
s
. 

 T
h
e
y
 a
re
 n
o
t 
s
im
p
ly
 e
m
b
e
lli
s
h
m
e
n
ts
, 
b
u
t 
p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
im
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 

fo
r 
th
e
 p
u
b
lic
, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
, 
in
 t
h
e
 u
rb
a
n
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
th
is
 m

a
y
 a
ls
o
 b
e
 t
h
e
 c
a
u
s
e
 o
f 

s
o
m
e
 p
ro
b
le
m
s
. 
 T
re
e
s
 a
n
d
 w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 a
re
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
d
 a
s
 a
n
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
m
it
ig
a
n
t 

o
f 
c
lim

a
te
 
c
h
a
n
g
e
. 
W
h
ils
t 
th
e
ir
 
p
re
s
e
n
c
e
 
c
a
n
n
o
t 
h
a
lt
 
s
u
c
h
 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
, 
th
e
y
 
c
a
n
 

s
lo
w
 t
h
e
 r
a
te
 a
n
d
 e
n
a
b
le
 o
u
rs
e
lv
e
s
 a
n
d
 w
ild
lif
e
 t
o
 a
d
a
p
t 
a
c
c
o
rd
in
g
ly
. 

 T
h
is
 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
 
s
e
ts
 
o
u
t 
to
 
e
n
s
u
re
 
th
e
 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 
o
f 
tr
e
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 
a
re
 

e
x
p
lo
it
e
d
 
to
 
th
e
ir
 
g
re
a
te
s
t 
a
n
d
 
m
o
s
t 
s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 
a
d
v
a
n
ta
g
e
, 
w
h
ils
t 
e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 

p
ro
b
le
m
s
 a
re
 p
ro
m
p
tl
y
 a
n
d
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
ly
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
. 

 T
h
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
tr
e
e
s
 a
n
d
 
w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 i
s
 g
o
v
e
rn
e
d
 b
y
 
le
g
a
l 
re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 

a
n
d
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
d
 b
y
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l,
 R

e
g
io
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
p
o
lic
y
. 
 I
n
 1
9
9
8
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
d
o
p
te
d
 i
ts
 f
ir
s
t 
a
n
d
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
T
re
e
s
 a
n
d
 W

o
o
d
la
n
d
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
. 
 T
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
 

s
o
u
g
h
t 
to
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
 t
h
e
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

 c
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
t 
re
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
a
lis
e
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 

a
m
b
it
io
n
s
 f
o
r 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
e
n
h
a
n
c
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
. 
T
h
is
 r
e
v
is
io
n
 w
ill
 t
a
k
e
 

th
is
 f
o
rw
a
rd
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 t
h
e
 p
o
lic
ie
s
 a
n
d
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
re
e
s
 a
n
d
 w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 
to
 
c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
 
to
 
th
e
 
b
e
n
e
fi
t 
o
f 
th
o
s
e
 
w
h
o
 
v
is
it
 
liv
e
 
a
n
d
 
w
o
rk
 
in
 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
. 

 T
h
e
 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
 
p
ro
v
id
e
s
 
th
e
 
o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
, 
p
o
li
c
ie
s
 
a
n
d
 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 
w
h
ic
h
 
w
il
l 

e
s
ta
b
li
s
h
 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 
C
it
y
 
C
o
u
n
c
il
’s
 
c
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 

s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 
d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 
fo
r 
th
e
 
p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
, 
p
la
n
ti
n
g
 
a
n
d
 
m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 
o
f 
th
e
 

tr
e
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 
w
it
h
in
 
it
s
 
a
u
th
o
ri
ty
. 
 
S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 
s
y
s
te
m
s
 
o
f 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
w
il
l 
b
e
 p
ro
m
o
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
w
il
l 
a
im
 t
o
: 

 

•
 

M
a
in
ta
in
 o
r 
e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 t
re
e
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 

•
 

F
a
c
ili
ta
te
 t
h
e
 r
e
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 
d
a
n
g
e
ro
u
s
 o
r 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
lly
 h
a
z
a
rd
o
u
s
 t
re
e
s
 

•
 

P
ro
m
o
te
 b
io
d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
e
rv
e
 t
h
e
 t
re
e
/w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 e
c
o
-s
y
s
te
m
 

•
 

C
o
n
s
e
rv
e
 v
e
te
ra
n
 t
re
e
s
 w
it
h
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
e
c
o
lo
g
ic
a
l,
 h
is
to
ri
c
a
l 
a
n
d
 a
m
e
n
it
y
 

v
a
lu
e
 

21



 

 
6
 

 •
 

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 a
 t
re
e
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 a
 b
a
la
n
c
e
d
 d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 o
f 
a
g
e
 c
la
s
s
 

•
 

O
p
ti
m
is
e
 t
h
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
ti
m
b
e
r 
a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
p
ro
d
u
c
ts
 o
f 
tr
e
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

  1
.1
 
B
a
c
k
g
ro
u
n
d
 

 In
 1
9
9
3
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 w

a
s
 d
e
s
ig
n
a
te
d
 a
s
 o
n
e
 o
f 
fo
u
r 
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
C
it
ie
s
. 
T
h
e
 

C
it
y
 i
s
 n
o
w
 c
o
m
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 c
re
a
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 U

K
's
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
C
a
p
it
a
l.
  
T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

th
e
re
fo
re
 
s
e
e
k
s
 
to
 
d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
 
it
s
 
c
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
t 
to
 
th
e
 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
th
ro
u
g
h
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ti
n
g
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 w

o
rk
s
 a
n
d
 t
a
k
in
g
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
b
e
s
t 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
. 
 A
ll 
lo
c
a
l 

a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 a
 d
u
ty
 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 t
re
e
s
 a
n
d
 w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 i
n
 a
 w
a
y
 t
h
a
t 
e
n
h
a
n
c
e
s
 

s
a
fe
ty
 a
n
d
 t
o
 p
ro
te
c
t 
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
tr
e
e
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
ir
 a
m
e
n
it
y
 v
a
lu
e
. 

 T
h
is
 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t'
s
 
o
ri
g
in
s
 
lie
 
in
 
th
e
 
re
c
o
g
n
it
io
n
 
th
a
t 
lo
n
g
 
te
rm

 
c
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

c
o
n
s
is
te
n
c
y
 
a
re
 
re
q
u
ir
e
d
 
if
 
o
u
r 

a
m
b
it
io
n
s
 
fo
r 

lo
n
g
 
te
rm

 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 

e
n
h
a
n
c
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 a
re
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
a
lis
e
d
. 
 I
t 
fo
llo
w
s
 o
n
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 o
ri
g
in
a
l 

T
re
e
 
a
n
d
 W

o
o
d
la
n
d
 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 
a
d
o
p
te
d
 
in
 
1
9
9
8
 
a
n
d
 
th
e
 
w
o
rk
 
o
f 
th
e
 T
re
e
 
a
n
d
 

W
o
o
d
la
n
d
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
G
ro
u
p
. 

 T
h
is
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
n
d
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 w
it
h
 d
u
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 t
o
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 

in
te
rn
a
ti
o
n
a
l,
 
re
g
io
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 
p
o
lic
ie
s
, 
a
n
d
 
to
 
p
ro
v
id
e
 
a
 
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 
fo
r 

c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 l
e
g
a
l 
re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
. 

 T
h
is
 
is
 
p
a
rt
 
o
f 
a
 
fo
lio
 
o
f 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 
w
h
ic
h
 
w
ill
 
fo
rm

 
th
e
 
T
re
e
 
a
n
d
 
W
o
o
d
la
n
d
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
. 
 T
h
e
 f
o
lio
 w
ill
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
: 

 
D
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
1
: 

P
o
lic
ie
s
 a
n
d
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

D
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
2
: 

T
re
e
s
 r
is
k
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
. 

D
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
3
: 

A
c
ti
o
n
 
P
la
n
: 
B
a
s
e
d
 
o
n
 
n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
s
 

th
a
t 
in
c
lu
d
e
 
w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
, 
s
h
e
lt
e
rb
e
lt
s
, 
o
p
e
n
 
s
p
a
c
e
 
a
n
d
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
s
. 

 T
h
e
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 w

ill
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
 t
o
 t
h
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
th
e
 b
ro
a
d
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
im
s
, 

o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 a
n
d
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t,
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
, 
h
e
a
lt
h
, 
a
n
d
 l
a
n
d
 u
s
e
 

p
la
n
n
in
g
. 
 I
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
n
d
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
, 
a
n
d
 w

ill
 

e
n
a
b
le
 
th
e
 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 
T
re
e
 
a
n
d
 
W
o
o
d
la
n
d
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
s
 a
n
d
 m

e
a
s
u
re
s
 t
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 a
t 
a
 l
o
c
a
l 

le
v
e
l.
  
It
 w

ill
 e
n
a
b
le
 d
is
tr
ic
t 
w
id
e
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 t
o
 b
e
 f
o
c
u
s
e
d
 o
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
n
e
e
d
 a
n
d
 t
o
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
 t
h
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
. 

   T
h
e
 s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 o
f 
th
is
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 i
s
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
k
e
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
o
lic
ie
s
 

a
re
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 a
n
d
 a
re
 a
t 
th
e
 c
o
re
 o
f 
th
e
 p
o
lic
ie
s
 a
n
d
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 h
e
re
in
. 
 T
h
is
 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
w
ill
 
c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
 
to
 
d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 
th
e
 
b
ro
a
d
 
ra
n
g
e
 
o
f 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
im
s
 
a
n
d
 

in
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 t
h
e
 f
o
u
r 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 
w
it
h
 c
re
a
ti
n
g
 

th
e
 U

K
’s
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
C
a
p
it
a
l 
in
 c
o
n
ju
n
c
ti
o
n
 
w
it
h
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
n
d
 

la
n
d
 
u
s
e
 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 
is
s
u
e
s
. 
In
 
a
d
d
it
io
n
, 
th
e
 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 
lin
k
e
d
 
to
 
th
e
 

“S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r 
E
n
g
la
n
d
’s
 T
re
e
s
, 
W
o
o
d
s
 a
n
d
 F
o
re
s
ts
” 
p
u
b
lis
h
e
d
 i
n
 2
0
0
7
 b
y
 D
E
F
R
A
 

p
ro
v
id
in
g
 t
h
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t’
s
 v
is
io
n
 a
n
d
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 t
o
 2
0
5
0
. 

 In
 
re
c
o
g
n
it
io
n
 
o
f 
th
e
 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 
th
a
t 
g
ro
w
th
 
w
ill
 
m
e
a
n
 
to
 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 
a
n
d
 

in
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
, 
w
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
s
ta
b
ili
ty
 a
n
d
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
o
h
e
s
io
n
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 a
n
d
 

th
a
t 
g
ro
w
th
 w
ill
 l
e
a
d
 t
o
 a
 c
le
a
n
e
r 
a
n
d
 g
re
e
n
e
r 
c
it
y
. 

 T
h
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
 
th
e
 
p
o
lic
ie
s
 
a
re
 
s
e
t 
o
u
t 
a
lo
n
g
 
w
it
h
 
k
e
y
 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 
fo
r 

d
e
liv
e
ry
. 
 T
h
e
s
e
 a
re
 u
n
d
e
rp
in
n
e
d
 a
n
d
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 t
h
re
e
 t
h
e
m
e
s
: 

  
T
h
e
m
e
 1
: 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
n
d
 P
la
c
e
 

 
T
h
e
m
e
 2
: 
 
S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
ili
ty
 a
n
d
 N
a
tu
ra
l 
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

 
T
h
e
m
e
 3
: 

A
s
s
e
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 

 T
h
e
 d
is
ti
n
c
ti
o
n
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
s
e
 t
h
e
m
e
s
 a
t 
a
 l
o
c
a
l 
le
v
e
l 
w
ill
 n
o
t 
a
lw
a
y
s
 b
e
 c
le
a
r 
a
s
 

th
e
y
 
w
ill
 
o
ft
e
n
 
o
v
e
rl
a
p
 
b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 
s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 
tr
e
e
 
a
n
d
 
w
o
o
d
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

p
ro
v
id
e
s
 a
 m

u
lt
it
u
d
e
 o
f 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts
; 
fo
r 
in
s
ta
n
c
e
 a
 w
o
o
d
 c
a
n
 o
ff
e
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 u
s
e
, 

w
ild
lif
e
 h
a
b
it
a
ts
 a
n
d
 a
c
t 
a
s
 a
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
 f
o
r 
ra
w
 m

a
te
ri
a
ls
. 

 1
.2
 
T
h
e
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
 

 S
u
rv
e
y
s
 o
f 
th
e
 t
re
e
 s
to
c
k
 o
f 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 v
e
ry
 l
im
it
e
d
. 
 E
s
ti
m
a
te
s
 o
f 

th
e
 
n
u
m
b
e
rs
 
o
f 
tr
e
e
s
 
v
a
ry
 
g
re
a
tl
y
. 
 
T
h
e
 
m
o
s
t 
a
c
c
u
ra
te
 
fi
g
u
re
s
 
re
la
te
 
to
 
th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 t
re
e
s
, 
w
it
h
 a
p
p
ro
x
im
a
te
ly
 1
0
5
,0
0
0
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
tr
e
e
s
, 
p
re
d
o
m
in
a
n
tl
y
 o
n
 

h
ig
h
w
a
y
, 
p
a
rk
s
 
a
n
d
 
o
p
e
n
 
s
p
a
c
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 
a
n
 
e
s
ti
m
a
te
d
 
fu
rt
h
e
r 
1
,4
0
0
,0
0
0
 
tr
e
e
s
 

m
a
k
in
g
 u
p
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
ils
 2
8
0
 h
e
c
ta
re
s
 o
f 
w
o
o
d
s
. 

 M
o
re
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 s
u
rv
e
y
s
 i
n
 o
th
e
r 
p
a
rt
s
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
tr
y
 s
u
g
g
e
s
t 
th
a
t 
tr
e
e
s
 i
n
 p
ri
v
a
te
 

g
a
rd
e
n
s
 w
ill
 e
x
c
e
e
d
 1
0
0
,0
0
0
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 F
o
re
s
tr
y
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
’s
 e
s
ti
m
a
te
 s
h
o
w
 3
%
 

o
f 
th
e
 d
is
tr
ic
t 
is
 c
o
v
e
re
d
 b
y
 w
o
o
d
la
n
d
. 
 T
h
e
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
v
e
ra
g
e
 i
s
 9
%
. 

 

22



 

 
7
 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
’s
 t
re
e
s
 a
re
 n
o
t 
e
v
e
n
ly
 d
is
tr
ib
u
te
d
. 
T
h
e
 d
e
n
s
it
y
 o
f 
c
o
v
e
r 
in
 t
h
e
 C
it
y
 

v
a
ri
e
s
 g
re
a
tl
y
, 
w
it
h
 m

o
s
t 
tr
e
e
s
 b
e
in
g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm

e
r 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 D

e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

C
o
rp
o
ra
ti
o
n
 a
re
a
s
. 
 A
 s
im
ila
r 
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 i
s
 f
o
u
n
d
 w
it
h
 m

o
re
 t
re
e
s
 a
n
d
 w
o
o
d
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

w
e
s
t 
o
f 
th
e
 C
it
y
, 
c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
p
a
rs
e
ly
 p
o
p
u
la
te
d
 F
e
n
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 e
a
s
t.
 

 T
h
e
 
p
ri
n
c
ip
le
 
re
a
s
o
n
 
fo
r 
th
e
 
u
n
e
v
e
n
 
d
is
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 
is
 
th
e
 
a
v
a
ila
b
ili
ty
 
o
f 
s
p
a
c
e
. 
 

M
a
n
y
 o
f 
th
e
 o
ld
e
r 
a
re
a
s
 o
f 
th
e
 C

it
y
 a
re
 c
h
a
ra
c
te
ri
s
e
d
 b
y
 h
ig
h
 d
e
n
s
it
y
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 

w
it
h
 s
m
a
ll 
g
a
rd
e
n
s
 a
n
d
 l
e
s
s
 p
u
b
lic
 o
p
e
n
 s
p
a
c
e
. 
 T
h
e
 c
lo
s
e
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
th
e
 h
o
u
s
e
s
 t
o
 

th
e
 
s
tr
e
e
t 
le
a
v
e
s
 
fe
w
e
r 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 
fo
r 
s
tr
e
e
t 
tr
e
e
 
p
la
n
ti
n
g
, 
a
ls
o
, 
c
o
n
v
e
rt
in
g
 

fr
o
n
t 
g
a
rd
e
n
s
 t
o
 h
a
rd
 s
ta
n
d
in
g
 a
n
d
 b
u
ilt
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
in
 r
e
a
r 
g
a
rd
e
n
s
 h
a
v
e
 l
e
d
 t
o
 

s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 p
la
n
ti
n
g
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
. 
 S
u
c
h
 l
o
s
s
 o
f 
s
p
a
c
e
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
s
 t
o
 

w
a
te
r 
ru
n
-o
ff
 a
n
d
 h
a
s
 a
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s
to
rm

 w
a
te
r 
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
. 

 T
h
e
 r
e
c
la
m
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 F
e
n
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 i
n
te
n
s
iv
e
 a
g
ri
c
u
lt
u
re
 h
a
s
 l
e
d
 t
o
 f
e
w
e
r 
s
it
e
s
 

fo
r 
tr
e
e
s
, 
th
a
n
 
fu
rt
h
e
r 
w
e
s
t 
w
h
e
re
 
th
e
re
 
a
re
 
s
ti
ll 
re
m
n
a
n
ts
 
o
f 
th
e
 
a
n
c
ie
n
t 

R
o
c
k
in
g
h
a
m
 F
o
re
s
t.
 

 O
f 
th
e
 1
,5
0
0
 o
r 
s
o
 s
p
e
c
ie
s
 o
f 
tr
e
e
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 a
n
d
 p
la
n
te
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 U
K
, 
a
ro
u
n
d
 3
0
 

a
re
 n
a
ti
v
e
. 
 A
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 o
f 
th
e
 s
p
e
c
im
e
n
 t
re
e
s
 i
n
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 a
re
 

fr
o
m
 a
 v
e
ry
 s
m
a
ll 
n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 s
p
e
c
ie
s
, 
d
o
m
in
a
te
d
 b
y
 m

a
p
le
 (
A
c
e
r)
, 

lim
e
 (
T
ili
a
) 
a
n
d
 c
h
e
rr
y
 (
P
ru
n
u
s
).
  
In
 t
h
e
 u
rb
a
n
 w

o
o
d
s
 a
 s
im
ila
r 
s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
 o
c
c
u
rs
 

w
it
h
 a
s
h
 (
F
ra
x
in
u
s
),
 m

a
p
le
 a
n
d
 b
ir
c
h
 (
B
e
tu
la
) 
d
o
m
in
a
ti
n
g
. 

 W
h
ils
t 
it
 i
s
 w
e
ll 
k
n
o
w
n
 t
h
a
t 
tr
e
e
s
 c
a
n
 l
iv
e
 t
o
 a
 c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
b
le
 a
g
e
 (
2
0
0
+
 y
e
a
rs
).
  
In
 

th
e
 r
a
p
id
ly
 c
h
a
n
g
in
g
 u
rb
a
n
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t,
 l
if
e
 e
x
p
e
c
ta
n
c
y
 i
s
 g
re
a
tl
y
 c
u
rt
a
ile
d
, 
w
it
h
 

m
o
s
t 
tr
e
e
s
 l
iv
in
g
 6
0
 t
o
 8
0
 y
e
a
rs
. 
 T
h
e
 l
a
rg
e
r 
a
n
d
 o
ld
e
r 
tr
e
e
s
 o
ff
e
r 
a
 s
e
n
s
e
 o
f 

p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 

g
re
a
te
r 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 

a
n
d
 

a
m
e
n
it
y
 

im
p
o
rt
a
n
c
e
. 
 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
’s
 t
re
e
 a
g
e
 d
e
m
o
g
ra
p
h
ic
 m

ir
ro
rs
 t
h
a
t 
o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 n
e
a
rb
y
, 
w
it
h
 

th
e
 v
a
s
t 
m
a
jo
ri
ty
 o
f 
tr
e
e
s
 p
la
n
te
d
 s
in
c
e
 t
h
e
 1
9
6
0
’s
. 
 R
e
g
re
tt
a
b
ly
 t
h
is
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

m
a
jo
ri
ty
 o
f 
th
e
 t
re
e
 s
to
c
k
 m

a
tu
ri
n
g
 a
t 
th
e
 s
a
m
e
 t
im
e
 w
h
ic
h
 i
n
 t
u
rn
 d
e
c
re
a
s
e
s
 a
g
e
 

d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 C
it
y
 t
re
e
 s
to
c
k
 a
n
d
 w
ill
 s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
. 
 

  1
.3
 
P
o
s
it
iv
e
 I
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
T
re
e
s
 

 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 i
n
c
re
a
s
in
g
 p
u
b
lic
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
th
e
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 o
f,
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
tr
e
e
s
 

a
s
 p
e
o
p
le
 p
la
c
e
 a
 h
ig
h
e
r 
p
ri
o
ri
ty
 o
n
 t
h
e
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
in
 w
h
ic
h
 t
h
e
y
 l
iv
e
. 
 I
n
 u
rb
a
n
 

a
re
a
s
 t
h
is
 i
n
v
a
ri
a
b
ly
 m

e
a
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 r
e
c
re
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
o
p
e
n
 

s
p
a
c
e
, 
a
n
d
 p
le
a
s
a
n
t 
tr
e
e
-l
in
e
d
 s
tr
e
e
ts
 a
n
d
 s
q
u
a
re
s
. 

   B
e
n
e
fi
ts
 f
ro
m
 T
re
e
s
 

 T
re
e
s
 a
re
 e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
to
 
lif
e
; 
th
e
ir
 
v
a
lu
e
 c
a
n
n
o
t 
b
e
 o
v
e
rs
ta
te
d
. 
 M

o
s
t 
tr
e
e
s
 a
n
d
 

w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 
in
 
c
it
ie
s
 
a
re
 
p
la
n
te
d
 
to
 
p
ro
v
id
e
 
a
e
s
th
e
ti
c
 
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 
o
r 
s
c
re
e
n
in
g
. 
 

W
h
ils
t 
th
e
s
e
 a
re
 t
w
o
 e
x
c
e
lle
n
t 
re
a
s
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
ir
 u
s
e
, 
th
e
y
 a
ls
o
 s
e
rv
e
 m

a
n
y
 o
th
e
r 

p
u
rp
o
s
e
s
. 
 T
h
e
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 o
f 
tr
e
e
s
 c
a
n
 b
e
 g
ro
u
p
e
d
 i
n
to
 s
o
c
ia
l,
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l,
 a
n
d
 

e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 c
a
te
g
o
ri
e
s
. 

 S
o
c
ia
l 
B
e
n
e
fi
ts
 

 T
h
e
 
s
tr
o
n
g
 
ti
e
s
 
b
e
tw
e
e
n
 
p
e
o
p
le
 
a
n
d
 
tr
e
e
s
 
a
re
 
p
ro
v
e
n
 
b
y
 
th
e
 
re
s
is
ta
n
c
e
 
o
f 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 
to
 
th
e
 
re
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 
tr
e
e
s
. 
 
T
re
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 
c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
 

im
m
e
a
s
u
ra
b
ly
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 l
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
, 
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 o
w
n
 r
ig
h
t 
in
 u
rb
a
n
 

a
re
a
s
, 
b
e
n
e
fi
c
ia
l 
to
 p
e
o
p
le
’s
 q
u
a
lit
y
 
o
f 
lif
e
 a
n
d
 s
e
n
s
e
 o
f 
w
e
ll 
b
e
in
g
, 
re
d
u
c
in
g
 

e
v
e
ry
d
a
y
 
s
tr
e
s
s
, 
w
h
ic
h
 
is
 
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 
im
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
in
 
to
d
a
y
’s
 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t.
 
 
In
 

v
a
ri
o
u
s
 
lo
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 
tr
e
e
s
 
p
re
-d
a
te
 
th
e
 
u
rb
a
n
 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
ro
u
n
d
 
th
e
m
 
a
n
d
 

p
ro
v
id
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
th
e
 h
is
to
ry
 o
f 
th
o
s
e
 p
la
c
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
u
s
 a
re
 a
 v
a
lu
a
b
le
 p
a
rt
 o
f 

th
e
ir
 h
e
ri
ta
g
e
. 
 I
n
 a
d
d
it
io
n
 r
e
s
e
a
rc
h
 h
a
s
 s
h
o
w
n
 t
h
a
t 
h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 r
e
c
o
v
e
r 

m
o
re
 q
u
ic
k
ly
 w
h
e
n
 a
b
le
 t
o
 e
n
jo
y
 t
h
e
 v
ie
w
 o
f 
tr
e
e
s
. 

 T
h
e
ir
 
a
e
s
th
e
ti
c
 
v
a
lu
e
 
im
p
ro
v
e
s
 
th
e
 
a
p
p
e
a
ra
n
c
e
 
o
f 
o
u
r 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t,
 
g
iv
in
g
 

v
a
ri
e
ty
 o
f 
s
c
a
le
, 
fo
rm

, 
c
o
lo
u
r 
a
n
d
 s
h
a
p
e
. 

 E
v
e
n
 t
h
o
u
g
h
 t
re
e
s
 m

a
y
 b
e
 o
n
 p
ri
v
a
te
 p
ro
p
e
rt
y
, 
th
e
ir
 s
iz
e
 o
ft
e
n
 m

a
k
e
s
 t
h
e
m
 p
a
rt
 

o
f 
th
e
 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 
a
s
 
w
e
ll.
 
 
A
s
 
tr
e
e
s
 
o
c
c
u
p
y
 
c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
b
le
 
s
p
a
c
e
, 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 
is
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 
if
 
b
o
th
 
th
e
 
o
w
n
e
r 
a
n
d
 
th
e
ir
 
n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rs
 
a
re
 
to
 
b
e
n
e
fi
t.
 
W
it
h
 
p
ro
p
e
r 

s
e
le
c
ti
o
n
 
a
n
d
 m

a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
, 
tr
e
e
s
 c
a
n
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 o
n
 
o
n
e
 p
ro
p
e
rt
y
 

w
it
h
o
u
t 
in
fr
in
g
in
g
 o
n
 t
h
e
 r
ig
h
ts
 a
n
d
 p
ri
v
ile
g
e
s
 o
f 
n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rs
. 

 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
B
e
n
e
fi
ts
  

 T
re
e
s
 
in
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 
th
e
 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
in
 
w
h
ic
h
 
w
e
 
liv
e
, 
b
y
 
m
o
d
e
ra
ti
n
g
 
c
lim

a
te
, 

im
p
ro
v
in
g
 a
ir
 q
u
a
lit
y
, 
c
o
n
s
e
rv
in
g
 w
a
te
r,
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
in
g
 w
ild
lif
e
 h
a
b
it
a
ts
. 

 R
a
d
ia
n
t 
e
n
e
rg
y
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 s
u
n
 i
s
 a
b
s
o
rb
e
d
 o
r 
d
e
fl
e
c
te
d
 b
y
 l
e
a
v
e
s
 o
n
 d
e
c
id
u
o
u
s
 

tr
e
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
u
m
m
e
r 
a
n
d
 i
s
 o
n
ly
 f
ilt
e
re
d
 b
y
 b
ra
n
c
h
e
s
 o
f 
d
e
c
id
u
o
u
s
 t
re
e
s
 i
n
 w
in
te
r.
  

T
h
e
 s
h
a
d
e
 o
f 
tr
e
e
s
 b
o
th
 p
ro
te
c
ts
 u
s
 f
ro
m
 d
ir
e
c
t 
s
u
n
lig
h
t 
a
n
d
 c
o
o
ls
 u
s
. 

 

23



 

 
8
 

W
in
d
 s
p
e
e
d
 a
n
d
 d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 c
a
n
 b
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 b
y
 t
re
e
s
; 
th
e
 m

o
re
 c
o
m
p
a
c
t 
th
e
 f
o
lia
g
e
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 t
re
e
 o
r 
g
ro
u
p
 o
f 
tr
e
e
s
, 
th
e
 g
re
a
te
r 
th
e
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
th
e
 w
in
d
b
re
a
k
. 

 T
h
e
 d
o
w
n
w
a
rd
 f
a
ll 
o
f 
ra
in
, 
s
le
e
t,
 a
n
d
 h
a
il 
is
 i
n
it
ia
lly
 
a
b
s
o
rb
e
d
 o
r 
d
e
fl
e
c
te
d
 b
y
 

tr
e
e
s
, 
w
h
ic
h
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 s
o
m
e
 p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 a
n
d
 p
ro
p
e
rt
y
. 
 T
re
e
s
 i
n
te
rc
e
p
t 

w
a
te
r,
 s
to
re
 s
o
m
e
 o
f 
it
, 
a
n
d
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 s
to
rm

 r
u
n
o
ff
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 p
o
s
s
ib
ili
ty
 o
f 
fl
o
o
d
in
g
. 
 

 T
e
m
p
e
ra
tu
re
 i
n
 t
h
e
 v
ic
in
it
y
 o
f 
tr
e
e
s
 i
s
 c
o
o
le
r 
th
a
n
 t
h
a
t 
a
w
a
y
 f
ro
m
 t
re
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

la
rg
e
r 
th
e
 t
re
e
, 
th
e
 g
re
a
te
r 
th
e
 c
o
o
lin
g
 e
ff
e
c
t.
  
B
y
 u
s
in
g
 t
re
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
it
ie
s
, 
w
e
 a
re
 

a
b
le
 t
o
 m

o
d
e
ra
te
 t
h
e
 h
e
a
t-
is
la
n
d
 e
ff
e
c
t 
c
a
u
s
e
d
 b
y
 p
a
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 b
u
ild
in
g
s
. 
 

 A
ir
 q
u
a
lit
y
 c
a
n
 b
e
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 a
s
 l
e
a
v
e
s
 f
ilt
e
r 
th
e
 a
ir
 w
e
 b
re
a
th
e
 b
y
 r
e
m
o
v
in
g
 d
u
s
t 

a
n
d
 
o
th
e
r 
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
te
s
. 
 
L
e
a
v
e
s
 
a
b
s
o
rb
 
c
a
rb
o
n
 
d
io
x
id
e
 
fr
o
m
 
th
e
 
a
ir
 
to
 
fo
rm

 
c
a
rb
o
h
y
d
ra
te
s
 
th
a
t 
a
re
 
u
s
e
d
 
in
 
th
e
 
p
la
n
t’
s
 
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 
a
n
d
 
fu
n
c
ti
o
n
. 
 
In
 
th
is
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
, 
le
a
v
e
s
 
a
ls
o
 
a
b
s
o
rb
 
o
th
e
r 
a
ir
 
p
o
llu
ta
n
ts
, 
s
u
c
h
 
a
s
 
o
z
o
n
e
, 
c
a
rb
o
n
 

m
o
n
o
x
id
e
, 
n
it
ro
g
e
n
 o
x
id
e
 a
n
d
 s
u
lp
h
u
r 
d
io
x
id
e
; 
a
n
d
 g
iv
e
 o
ff
 o
x
y
g
e
n
. 
 

 B
y
 
p
la
n
ti
n
g
 
tr
e
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 
w
e
 
re
tu
rn
 
to
 
a
 
m
o
re
 
n
a
tu
ra
l 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

a
tt
ra
c
ti
n
g
, 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 
a
n
d
 
h
o
s
ti
n
g
 
b
ir
d
s
, 
m
a
m
m
a
ls
, 
in
v
e
rt
e
b
ra
te
s
 
a
n
d
 
o
th
e
r 

w
ild
lif
e
. 

 E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 B
e
n
e
fi
ts
  

 In
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
tr
e
e
s
 
in
c
re
a
s
e
 
in
 
v
a
lu
e
 
fr
o
m
 
th
e
 
ti
m
e
 
th
e
y
 
a
re
 
p
la
n
te
d
 
u
n
ti
l 
th
e
y
 

m
a
tu
re
. 
 
T
h
e
 
v
a
ri
a
b
ili
ty
 
o
f 
s
p
e
c
ie
s
, 
s
iz
e
, 
c
o
n
d
it
io
n
, 
a
n
d
 
fu
n
c
ti
o
n
 
m
a
k
e
s
 

d
e
te
rm

in
in
g
 t
h
e
ir
 e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 v
a
lu
e
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
. 

 D
ir
e
c
t 
e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 
a
re
 
u
s
u
a
ll
y
 
a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 
w
it
h
 
e
n
e
rg
y
 
c
o
s
ts
. 
 
A
ir
-

c
o
n
d
it
io
n
in
g
 c
o
s
ts
 a
re
 l
o
w
e
r 
in
 t
re
e
-s
h
a
d
e
d
 h
o
m
e
s
 a
n
d
 o
ff
ic
e
s
. 
 H

e
a
ti
n
g
 c
o
s
ts
 

a
re
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 w
h
e
n
 a
 h
o
m
e
/o
ff
ic
e
 h
a
s
 a
 w
in
d
b
re
a
k
. 

 T
h
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 i
n
 e
n
e
rg
y
 c
o
s
ts
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 p
ro
p
e
rt
y
 v
a
lu
e
 d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 

e
a
c
h
 h
o
m
e
 o
w
n
e
r.
 

 T
h
e
 i
n
d
ir
e
c
t 
e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 o
f 
tr
e
e
s
 a
re
 e
v
e
n
 g
re
a
te
r.
  
L
o
w
e
re
d
 e
le
c
tr
ic
it
y
 

b
ill
s
 a
re
 p
a
id
 b
y
 c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 w
h
e
n
 p
o
w
e
r 
c
o
m
p
a
n
ie
s
 a
re
 a
b
le
 t
o
 u
s
e
 l
e
s
s
 w
a
te
r 
in
 

th
e
ir
 
c
o
o
lin
g
 
to
w
e
rs
, 
b
u
ild
 
fe
w
e
r 
n
e
w
 
fa
c
ili
ti
e
s
 
to
 
m
e
e
t 
p
e
a
k
 
d
e
m
a
n
d
s
, 
u
s
e
 

re
d
u
c
e
d
 
a
m
o
u
n
ts
 
o
f 
fo
s
s
il 
fu
e
l 
in
 
th
e
ir
 
fu
rn
a
c
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 
u
s
e
 
fe
w
e
r 
m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 
to
 

c
o
n
tr
o
l 
a
ir
 p
o
llu
ti
o
n
. 

 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
ls
o
 c
a
n
 s
a
v
e
 m

o
n
e
y
 i
f 
fe
w
e
r 
fa
c
ili
ti
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 t
o
 b
e
 b
u
ilt
 t
o
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 

s
to
rm

 w
a
te
r 
in
 t
h
e
 r
e
g
io
n
. 
 T
o
 t
h
e
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l,
 t
h
e
s
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 a
re
 s
m
a
ll,
 b
u
t 
to
 t
h
e
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
, 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
s
e
 e
x
p
e
n
s
e
s
 a
re
 o
ft
e
n
 c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
b
le
. 

 A
n
 a
tt
ra
c
ti
v
e
 h
e
a
lt
h
y
 a
n
d
 v
ib
ra
n
t 
C
it
y
 h
e
lp
s
 t
o
 a
tt
ra
c
t 
in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t,
 h
e
a
lt
h
y
 a
n
d
 

w
e
ll 
m
a
in
ta
in
e
d
 t
re
e
s
 a
n
d
 w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 a
re
 a
n
 i
n
te
g
ra
l 
a
s
p
e
c
t 
to
 a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
h
is
. 

 T
re
e
 P
ro
b
le
m
s
 

 P
e
o
p
le
 o
ft
e
n
 l
iv
e
 i
n
 c
lo
s
e
 p
ro
x
im
it
y
 t
o
 t
re
e
s
, 
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 i
n
 u
rb
a
n
 a
re
a
s
. 
T
h
e
s
e
 

tr
e
e
s
 
a
re
 
e
it
h
e
r 
lo
c
a
te
d
 
in
 
th
e
ir
 
o
w
n
 
p
ro
p
e
rt
y
 
o
r 
th
e
ir
 
n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rs
’,
 
o
r 
q
u
it
e
 

c
o
m
m
o
n
ly
 b
e
lo
n
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il.
  
T
re
e
s
 c
a
n
 c
a
u
s
e
 i
n
c
o
n
v
e
n
ie
n
c
e
 t
o
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 

w
h
e
n
 t
h
e
y
 g
ro
w
 n
e
a
r 
d
w
e
lli
n
g
s
. 
 C
o
n
fl
ic
t 
o
ft
e
n
 o
c
c
u
rs
 w
h
e
n
 t
h
e
 t
re
e
 m

a
k
e
s
 a
n
 

im
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
b
u
t 
a
ls
o
 c
a
u
s
e
s
 i
n
c
o
n
v
e
n
ie
n
c
e
 

to
 t
h
o
s
e
 l
iv
in
g
 n
e
a
rb
y
. 

 W
it
h
 
a
n
y
 
p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 
o
f 
tr
e
e
s
 
th
e
re
 
a
re
 
a
 
n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
c
o
m
m
o
n
 
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 
o
f 

c
o
m
p
la
in
t 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 o
v
e
rh
a
n
g
in
g
 b
ra
n
c
h
e
s
, 
s
h
a
d
e
, 
le
a
f/
fr
u
it
 f
a
ll,
 o
b
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
d
a
m
a
g
e
. 
 M

a
n
y
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 p
ro
b
le
m
s
 c
a
n
 b
e
 d
e
a
lt
 w
it
h
 b
y
 c
a
re
fu
l 
p
ru
n
in
g
 

o
n
c
e
 
th
e
 
tr
e
e
 
is
 
e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 
s
o
m
e
ti
m
e
s
 
th
e
 
p
ro
b
le
m
 
is
 
a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 
o
f 

in
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 s
p
e
c
ie
s
 s
e
le
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
a
s
t 
a
n
d
 m

a
y
 b
e
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 o
r 
im
p
o
s
s
ib
le
 t
o
 

re
s
o
lv
e
 i
n
 a
ll 
p
a
rt
ie
s
’ 
fa
v
o
u
r.
 

 A
 v
e
ry
 c
o
m
m
o
n
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
 f
o
r 
h
o
m
e
o
w
n
e
rs
 i
s
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 d
a
m
a
g
e
 b
y
 t
re
e
 

ro
o
ts
. 
 T
h
is
 t
y
p
e
 o
f 
d
a
m
a
g
e
 o
n
ly
 o
c
c
u
rs
 i
n
 a
re
a
s
 w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
 s
o
il 
ty
p
e
 i
s
 h
e
a
v
y
, 

s
h
ri
n
k
a
b
le
 c
la
y
, 
w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 p
ro
n
e
 t
o
 f
lu
c
tu
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 v
o
lu
m
e
 c
a
u
s
e
d
 b
y
 c
h
a
n
g
in
g
 

s
o
il 
m
o
is
tu
re
 
le
v
e
ls
. 
 
T
h
e
re
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 
a
 
lo
t 
o
f 
c
o
n
c
e
rn
 
a
b
o
u
t 
tr
e
e
 
ro
o
ts
 
a
n
d
 

fo
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 r
e
c
e
n
t 
y
e
a
rs
. 
M
u
c
h
 o
f 
th
is
 i
s
 u
n
s
u
b
s
ta
n
ti
a
te
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 i
n
c
id
e
n
c
e
 

o
f 
p
ro
v
e
n
 t
re
e
 r
o
o
t 
re
la
te
d
 c
la
im
s
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
 C
it
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
re
m
a
in
s
 l
o
w
, 
d
e
s
p
it
e
 

th
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
tr
e
e
 c
o
v
e
r 
a
n
d
 m

u
c
h
 o
f 
th
e
 a
re
a
 h
a
v
in
g
 c
la
y
 s
o
ils
. 

 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 s
e
ts
 o
u
t 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 a
n
d
 r
e
a
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
s
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 w
h
e
n
 

th
e
y
 a
ff
e
c
t 
tr
e
e
s
 a
n
d
 w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 i
n
 i
ts
 o
w
n
e
rs
h
ip
. 

24



 

 
9
 

 2
 

T
H
E
 V
IS
IO
N
 

 T
h
e
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 o
f 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 i
s
 a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 t
o
 g
ro
w
 t
o
 2
0
0
,0
0
0
 b
y
 2
0
2
0
 w
it
h
 

2
5
,0
0
0
 n
e
w
 h
o
m
e
s
. 
 I
n
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
jo
b
s
 i
s
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 g
ro
w
 

b
y
 2
0
,0
0
0
. 
 T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
ils
 v
is
io
n
 i
s
 t
o
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
te
 t
h
is
 g
ro
w
th
 i
n
 a
 w
a
y
 w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 

s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 
a
n
d
 
w
ill
 
a
d
d
re
s
s
 
m
a
n
y
 
o
f 
th
e
 
is
s
u
e
s
 
o
f 
s
o
c
ia
l 
a
n
d
 
e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 

e
x
c
lu
s
io
n
, 
w
h
ils
t 
m
a
in
ta
in
in
g
 a
n
d
 e
n
h
a
n
c
in
g
 t
h
e
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
th
e
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t.
 

 T
h
e
 d
ri
v
e
 t
o
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 o
ft
e
n
 f
o
c
u
s
e
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 o
f 
th
e
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
h
o
m
e
s
 a
n
d
 

jo
b
s
 o
ft
e
n
 f
o
rg
e
tt
in
g
 t
h
e
 e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
in
g
re
d
ie
n
ts
 t
h
a
t 
m
a
k
e
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 s
p
e
c
ia
l 
fo
r 

th
o
s
e
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 l
iv
in
g
 a
n
d
 w
o
rk
in
g
 i
n
 a
n
d
 a
ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 d
is
tr
ic
t.
 

 T
h
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
p
u
rp
o
s
e
 o
f 
th
is
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 i
s
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 t
h
e
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 f
o
r 
a
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 t
h
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
tr
e
e
s
 a
n
d
 w
o
o
d
s
: 

 
“
A
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 t
re
e
 a
n
d
 w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
 f
o
r 
a
 

g
ro
w
in
g
 C
it
y
.”
 

 M
a
n
y
 o
f 
th
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
ff
e
c
ti
n
g
 t
re
e
 a
n
d
 w

o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 a
re
 c
ro
s
s
-c
u
tt
in
g
. 
 T
h
e
re
 a
re
 

s
tr
o
n
g
 l
in
k
s
 w
it
h
 o
th
e
r 
in
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 i
n
 u
rb
a
n
 d
e
s
ig
n
 a
n
d
 l
a
n
d
 u
s
e
. 

 T
re
e
 a
n
d
 W

o
o
d
la
n
d
 p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 c
a
re
 i
s
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
e
d
 w

it
h
 m

a
n
a
g
in
g
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 

a
n
d
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 b
e
s
t 
a
n
d
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
. 

 2
.1
 
A
im
 

 T
h
e
 
p
u
rp
o
s
e
 
o
f 
th
is
 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
is
 
to
 
re
c
o
g
n
is
e
 
th
e
 
tr
e
e
 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
 
u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 

s
te
w
a
rd
s
h
ip
 
o
f 
th
e
 
C
it
y
 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 
id
e
n
ti
fy
 
a
 
s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 
fo
r 
it
s
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t,
 

w
h
ic
h
 
e
n
s
u
re
s
 
it
s
 
lo
n
g
 
te
rm

 
c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 
p
e
o
p
le
 
o
f 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 a
n
d
 f
u
tu
re
 g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
. 

 T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
’s
 a
im
 i
s
: 

 
“
T
o
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
ly
 m
a
in
ta
in
, 
im
p
ro
v
e
 a
n
d
 e
x
p
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

q
u
a
li
ty
 o
f 
th
e
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 t
re
e
 a
n
d
 w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 c
o
v
e
r.
”
 

 
“
T
o
 e
x
p
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 e
x
te
n
t 
o
f 
w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 c
o
v
e
r 
th
ro
u
g
h
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 c
re
a
te
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

fu
n
d
in
g
.”
 

  T
h
e
 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
w
ill
 
a
c
t 
to
 
c
o
n
s
e
rv
e
 
a
n
d
 
e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 
th
e
 
q
u
a
lit
y
, 
v
a
lu
e
, 
ro
le
 
a
n
d
 

d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 o
f 
th
e
 t
re
e
s
 a
n
d
 w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C
it
y
 b
y
 t
h
e
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
re
g
u
la
r 

tr
e
e
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 m

a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
, 
w
h
ic
h
 f
u
lf
il 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
ils
 l
e
g
a
l 
re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 

a
n
d
 a
ls
o
 e
n
a
b
le
s
 i
t 
to
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 a
n
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
. 
 W

h
ils
t 

th
e
 
re
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 
tr
e
e
s
 
s
h
a
ll 

b
e
 
re
s
is
te
d
, 
w
h
e
n
 
it
 
is
 
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 
to
 
d
o
 
s
o
 

re
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts
 w
ill
 b
e
 p
la
n
te
d
. 

 T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
re
 a
 l
e
a
d
 p
a
rt
n
e
r 
in
 t
h
e
 F
o
re
s
t 
fo
r 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 p
ro
je
c
t 
le
d
 b
y
 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
C
it
y
 T
ru
s
t 
(P
E
C
T
),
 w
h
ic
h
 s
ta
te
s
: 

 “T
h
e
 F
o
re
s
t 
fo
r 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 i
s
 a
 g
ro
w
in
g
 f
o
re
s
t 
fo
r 
a
 g
ro
w
in
g
 C
it
y
, 
a
 p
a
tc
h
w
o
rk
 

o
f 
h
a
b
it
a
ts
 w
h
ic
h
 e
n
a
b
le
 b
o
th
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
n
d
 w
ild
lif
e
 t
o
 f
lo
u
ri
s
h
 a
c
ro
s
s
 G
re
a
te
r 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 w
it
h
 a
 n
e
w
 t
re
e
 f
o
r 
e
v
e
ry
 r
e
s
id
e
n
t 
in
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 –
 1
7
0
,0
0
0
 

tr
e
e
s
”.
 

 S
o
 f
a
r 
th
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
h
a
s
 e
n
a
b
le
d
 a
 t
o
ta
l 
o
f 
5
,0
0
0
 n
a
ti
v
e
 t
re
e
s
 t
o
 b
e
 p
la
n
te
d
 o
n
 l
a
n
d
 

o
w
n
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il.
 O
v
e
r 
th
e
 n
e
x
t 
1
9
 y
e
a
rs
 o
f 
th
is
 p
ro
je
c
t 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
w
ill
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 l
o
o
k
 f
o
r 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
ri
s
e
, 
th
ro
u
g
h
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
it
s
 l
a
n
d
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
s
, 
fo
r 
n
e
w
 t
re
e
s
 a
n
d
 w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 t
o
 b
e
 p
la
n
te
d
 w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 

s
u
it
a
b
le
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 w
h
ic
h
 a
llo
w
 t
h
e
 C
it
y
 t
o
 m

a
in
ta
in
 a
 d
iv
e
rs
e
 a
n
d
 

h
e
a
lt
h
y
 t
re
e
s
c
a
p
e
. 

 3
 

T
H
E
M
E
 1
: 
 C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
Y
 A
N
D
 P
L
A
C
E
 

 O
b
je
c
ti
v
e
 1
 
T
o
 
e
n
s
u
re
 
th
a
t 
tr
e
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 
a
re
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 
in
 
a
 
w
a
y
 

th
a
t 
c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 a
im
s
 a
n
d
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
. 

  O
b
je
c
ti
v
e
 2
 
T
o
 
im
p
ro
v
e
 
th
e
 
lo
c
a
l 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t,
 
th
e
 
q
u
a
li
ty
 
o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
’s
  

li
v
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 a
p
p
re
c
ia
ti
o
n
 o
f 
tr
e
e
s
 a
n
d
 w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
. 

 
In
v
o
lv
in
g
 
p
e
o
p
le
 
in
 
th
e
 
d
e
c
is
io
n
 
m
a
k
in
g
 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
 
fo
r 

th
e
 
p
la
n
n
in
g
, 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 
u
s
e
 
o
f 
w
o
o
d
s
 
w
ill
 
e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 
fe
e
lin
g
s
 
o
f 
o
w
n
e
rs
h
ip
, 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 c
o
h
e
s
iv
e
n
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 p
ro
m
o
te
 t
h
e
 w
e
ll 
b
e
in
g
 o
f 
n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
. 

   

25



 

 
1
0
 

3
.1
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

  W
h
e
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 b
e
c
o
m
e
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 m

a
k
in
g
 a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
th
e
y
 

a
re
 m

o
re
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 u
s
e
 t
h
e
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
 w

it
h
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t.
  
In
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
s
it
e
s
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 

e
v
a
lu
a
te
d
 f
o
r 
th
e
ir
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 r
e
c
re
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 

a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
. 

 T
re
e
s
 a
n
d
 w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 o
ff
e
r 
a
 v
a
ri
e
ty
 o
f 
o
u
td
o
o
r 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 
re
c
re
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

le
a
rn
in
g
. 
T
h
e
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 w
ill
 b
e
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 h
ig
h
 q
u
a
lit
y
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 n
e
a
r 
to
 w
h
e
re
 p
e
o
p
le
 

liv
e
 
a
n
d
 
w
o
rk
. 
 
T
o
 
e
n
s
u
re
 
w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 
re
m
a
in
 
v
a
lu
e
d
 
a
s
 
a
 
lif
e
 
lo
n
g
 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
, 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 
n
e
e
d
s
 
to
 
b
e
 
fr
e
e
ly
 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
. 
 
T
h
is
 
s
h
o
u
ld
 
in
c
lu
d
e
 

re
c
o
g
n
it
io
n
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 h
is
to
ri
c
, 
a
rc
h
a
e
o
lo
g
ic
a
l 
a
n
d
 c
u
lt
u
ra
l 
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
c
e
. 

 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w

o
rk
in
g
 p
ro
m
o
te
s
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 s
o
 l
in
k
s
 t
o
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 s
tr
e
n
g
th
e
n
e
d
 a
n
d
 n
e
w
 o
n
e
s
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 b
y
 p
ro
v
id
in
g
 a
d
v
ic
e
 

a
n
d
 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 
to
 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 
w
it
h
 
p
la
n
s
 
to
 
c
re
a
te
 
a
n
d
 
m
a
in
ta
in
 
th
e
ir
 
o
w
n
 

w
o
o
d
la
n
d
. 
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 c
a
n
 h
e
lp
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 c
o
u
ld
 q
u
a
lif
y
 

fo
r 
fu
n
d
in
g
 
fr
o
m
 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 
s
u
c
h
 
a
s
 
T
h
e
 
W
o
o
d
la
n
d
 
T
ru
s
t 
u
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 

‘M
o
re
w
o
o
d
s
’ 
s
c
h
e
m
e
. 
 
T
h
e
 
p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 
tr
e
e
 
p
la
n
ti
n
g
 
c
a
m
p
a
ig
n
 
to
 
c
re
a
te
 
th
e
 

F
o
re
s
t 
O
f 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 i
s
 a
n
o
th
e
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
 o
f 
a
 p
ro
d
u
c
ti
v
e
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 h
e
lp
in
g
 

d
e
liv
e
r 
th
e
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 o
f 
th
is
 T
re
e
s
 a
n
d
 W

o
o
d
la
n
d
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
. 

  T
h
e
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 c
a
n
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 b
y
 e
x
a
m
in
in
g
 t
h
e
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
 
o
f 
tr
e
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 
re
la
ti
v
e
 
to
 
p
re
d
ic
ti
o
n
s
 
fo
r 
fu
tu
re
 
n
e
e
d
s
. 
T
h
e
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
 o
f 
P
la
n
n
in
g
 G

a
in
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 1
0
6
 A
g
re
e
m
e
n
ts
 c
a
n
 h
e
lp
 s
it
e
 t
h
e
s
e
 

n
e
e
d
s
. 
 
A
t 
p
re
s
e
n
t 
9
.2
%
 
o
f 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
’s
 
p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 
h
a
s
 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 
to
 
a
 
2
h
a
+
 

w
o
o
d
 w
it
h
in
 5
0
0
m
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 h
o
m
e
. 
T
h
is
 i
s
 i
n
 c
o
n
tr
a
s
t 
to
 E
n
g
la
n
d
 w
h
e
re
 1
4
.5
%
 o
f 

th
e
 
p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 
h
a
s
 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 
to
 
a
 
2
h
a
+
 
w
o
o
d
 
w
it
h
in
 
5
0
0
m
 
o
f 
th
e
ir
 
h
o
m
e
. 
 
T
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
w
ill
 e
n
d
e
a
v
o
u
r 
to
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 a
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 

w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 d
e
fi
c
ie
n
c
y
 i
n
 w
o
o
d
s
 p
la
n
t 
n
e
w
 o
n
e
s
. 
 W

it
h
 s
o
m
e
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
m
e
n
ts
 

to
 t
h
e
 u
rb
a
n
 
w
o
o
d
s
 (
s
h
e
lt
e
rb
e
lt
s
) 
th
e
s
e
 
ta
rg
e
ts
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 r
e
a
d
ily
 
im
p
ro
v
e
d
 f
o
r 

m
u
c
h
 o
f 
th
e
 C
it
y
. 

      

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

 G
re
a
te
r 
p
u
b
lic
 a
p
p
re
c
ia
ti
o
n
 o
f 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 b
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
, 

w
it
h
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
w
h
a
t 
c
o
n
s
ti
tu
te
s
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 r
a
ti
o
n
a
le
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 i
t.
 

 C
e
rt
a
in
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 b
e
c
o
m
e
 f
o
n
d
 o
f 
tr
e
e
s
 a
n
d
 w

o
o
d
la
n
d
s
. 
 A
s
 w

o
rk
 t
e
n
d
s
 t
o
 b
e
 

c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
o
n
 a
 p
e
ri
o
d
ic
 b
a
s
is
, 
w
it
h
 s
e
v
e
ra
l 
y
e
a
rs
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 v
is
it
s
 t
h
e
 

a
p
p
a
re
n
t 
p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
c
e
 c
a
n
 c
o
m
p
o
u
n
d
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 w

h
e
n
 w

o
rk
 i
s
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
. 
T
h
e
 

in
it
ia
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 w
o
rk
s
 c
a
n
 a
ls
o
 b
e
 c
a
u
s
e
 f
o
r 
c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
b
le
 c
o
n
s
te
rn
a
ti
o
n
. 

 A
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 a
n
d
 r
o
b
u
s
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
to
c
o
l 
s
h
a
ll 
b
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
, 
w
h
ic
h
 m

e
e
ts
 t
h
e
 

n
e
e
d
 
to
 
in
fo
rm

 
th
e
 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 
o
f 
th
e
 
re
a
s
o
n
s
 
fo
r 
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
tr
e
e
 
w
o
rk
s
 
a
n
d
 

w
h
e
re
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
, 
e
n
a
b
le
 t
h
e
m
 t
o
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 i
n
 t
h
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
. 

 S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
tr
e
e
 
w
o
rk
s
 
a
re
 
d
e
fi
n
e
d
 
to
 
b
e
 
th
e
 
c
y
c
lic
a
l 
a
n
d
 
u
rb
a
n
 
w
o
o
d
 

m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 
p
ro
g
ra
m
s
 
o
r 
w
h
e
re
 
tr
e
e
s
 
o
f 
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
a
m
e
n
it
y
, 
la
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
, 

h
is
to
ri
c
a
l 
o
r 
e
c
o
lo
g
ic
a
l 
v
a
lu
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
m
o
v
e
d
. 
 E
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 t
h
is
 s
h
o
u
ld
 o
n
ly
 

e
x
te
n
d
 t
o
 e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 w
o
rk
s
 a
n
d
 w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
 t
re
e
s
 p
re
s
e
n
t 
a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
h
a
z
a
rd
. 

 W
h
e
n
 l
a
rg
e
r 
s
c
a
le
 t
re
e
 p
la
n
ti
n
g
 t
a
k
e
s
 p
la
c
e
, 
th
e
 n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
ri
n
g
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 s
h
o
u
ld
 

b
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
. 
 I
f 
th
e
re
 i
s
 m

o
re
 t
h
a
n
 o
n
e
 t
re
e
 s
p
e
c
ie
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
o
r 
s
e
le
c
ti
o
n
 t
h
e
n
 

th
e
 
p
u
b
lic
 
m
a
y
 
b
e
 
o
ff
e
re
d
 
th
e
 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 
to
 
c
h
o
o
s
e
 
a
n
d
 
th
e
 
re
s
u
lt
s
 
o
f 
th
e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
te
d
 t
o
 a
ll 
p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
n
ts
. 

 T
h
e
 m

e
th
o
d
 w
ill
 v
a
ry
 a
c
c
o
rd
in
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
it
e
 a
n
d
 n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
ri
n
g
 l
a
n
d
 u
s
e
. 
 M

e
th
o
d
s
 

w
ill
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 n
o
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 e
x
p
la
n
a
ti
o
n
, 
in
v
it
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 i
n
 s
u
rv
e
y
s
, 
a
n
d
 

p
u
b
lic
 o
r 
s
it
e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
. 

  3
.2
 
C
h
a
ra
c
te
r 

 T
h
e
 h
e
ig
h
t 
o
f 
tr
e
e
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 v
is
u
a
l 
a
n
d
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
fe
a
tu
re
s
, 
w
h
ic
h
 c
a
n
 b
e
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 

e
it
h
e
r 
s
e
p
a
ra
te
 o
r 
lin
k
 a
re
a
s
, 
a
n
d
 b
ri
n
g
 s
e
a
s
o
n
a
l 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 

s
p
e
c
ie
s
 t
o
 a
n
 o
th
e
rw
is
e
 s
ta
ti
c
 u
rb
a
n
 l
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
. 
 T
h
e
y
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
tt
ra
c
ti
v
e
 s
e
tt
in
g
s
 

to
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 n
e
w
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
a
n
d
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t,
 h
e
lp
in
g
 t
o
 c
re
a
te
 a
 

s
e
n
s
e
 o
f 
p
la
c
e
, 
a
n
d
 p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 a
 r
a
p
id
ly
 c
h
a
n
g
in
g
 C
it
y
. 
 

 T
h
e
 
e
a
rl
y
 
a
n
d
 
in
te
g
ra
te
d
 
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 
to
 
tr
e
e
 
a
n
d
 
w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 
p
la
n
ti
n
g
 
a
n
d
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
w
ill
 
p
ro
v
id
e
 
a
 
h
ig
h
 
q
u
a
lit
y
 
a
n
d
 
s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
 
w
h
ic
h
 
w
ill
 

26



 

 
1
1
 

re
fl
e
c
t 
lo
c
a
l 
n
e
e
d
 
a
n
d
 
a
s
s
is
t 
in
 
th
e
 
p
re
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 
o
f 
la
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 
c
h
a
ra
c
te
r 
a
n
d
 

d
is
ti
n
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
. 

 M
a
n
y
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
re
 i
m
m
e
d
ia
te
ly
 
id
e
n
ti
fi
a
b
le
 b
y
 t
h
e
 l
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 a
ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 

h
o
m
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
. 
 
F
o
r 
in
s
ta
n
c
e
 
P
a
rk
 
a
n
d
 
C
e
n
tr
a
l 
W
a
rd
s
 
w
it
h
 
th
e
ir
 

a
v
e
n
u
e
s
 
o
f 
p
o
lla
rd
e
d
 
lim

e
s
 
a
re
 
c
h
a
ra
c
te
ri
s
ti
c
 
o
f 
th
e
ir
 
E
d
w
a
rd
ia
n
 
d
e
s
ig
n
, 
a
n
d
 

s
im
ila
rl
y
 t
h
e
 O

rt
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 B
re
tt
o
n
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
ir
 g
a
rd
e
n
 c
it
y
 n
a
tu
ra
lis
ti
c
 l
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 o
f 

tr
e
e
 l
in
e
d
 s
tr
e
e
ts
, 
n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 a
n
d
 l
a
n
d
 u
s
e
 z
o
n
e
s
 s
e
p
a
ra
te
d
 b
y
 u
rb
a
n
 w
o
o
d
 

in
te
rc
o
n
n
e
c
te
d
 w
it
h
 o
p
e
n
 s
p
a
c
e
s
, 
fo
rm

in
g
 a
 g
re
e
n
 n
e
tw
o
rk
. 

 M
a
n
y
 v
ill
a
g
e
s
 a
re
 e
q
u
a
lly
 d
is
ti
n
c
ti
v
e
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 T
h
o
rn
e
y
 w
it
h
 i
ts
 “
e
s
ta
te
” 
v
ill
a
g
e
 a
n
d
 

p
a
rk
la
n
d
 l
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
, 
o
r 
B
a
rn
a
c
k
 w
it
h
 i
ts
 g
re
e
n
s
 a
n
d
 t
re
e
 l
in
e
d
 s
tr
e
e
ts
. 
T
re
e
s
 a
ls
o
 

fo
rm

 a
 d
e
fi
n
in
g
 r
o
le
 w
it
h
in
 o
u
r 
ru
ra
l 
la
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 c
h
a
ra
c
te
r.
 

 W
h
e
n
 s
c
h
e
d
u
lin
g
 t
re
e
 w
o
rk
 o
r 
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
in
g
 r
e
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
ti
n
g
 m

a
in
ta
in
in
g
 a
n
d
 

e
n
h
a
n
c
in
g
, 
lo
c
a
l 
d
is
ti
n
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 w

ill
 b
e
 a
n
 e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
p
a
rt
 o
f 
s
e
le
c
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 m

o
s
t 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 
a
c
ti
o
n
 
o
r 

tr
e
e
 
s
p
e
c
ie
s
. 

 
In
 
m
a
in
ta
in
in
g
 
d
is
ti
n
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 
th
e
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 
a
 m

o
re
 d
iv
e
rs
e
 a
n
d
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 l
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 a
re
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
. 

  

4
 
T
H
E
M
E
 2
: 
 S
U
S
T
A
IN
A
B
IL
IT
Y
 A
N
D
 

N
A
T
U
R
A
L
 E
N
V
IR
O
N
M
E
N
T
 

 O
b
je
c
ti
v
e
 3
 

T
o
 
id
e
n
ti
fy
 
a
n
d
 
p
re
s
e
rv
e
 
tr
e
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 
w
h
ic
h
 
a
re
 

re
c
o
g
n
is
e
d
 f
o
r 
th
e
ir
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
o
 m
a
in
ta
in
in
g
 
a
 d
iv
e
rs
e
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t.
 

 T
h
e
 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
re
c
o
g
n
is
e
s
 
th
e
 
im
p
o
rt
a
n
c
e
 
o
f 
tr
e
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 
a
n
d
 
s
h
a
ll 

p
re
s
e
rv
e
 t
h
o
s
e
 o
f 
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
c
e
. 
 W

h
e
n
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
w
ill
 p
ro
te
c
t 
tr
e
e
s
 

u
s
in
g
 T
re
e
 P
re
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 O

rd
e
rs
 i
f 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
s
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
re
a
t.
 W

h
e
re
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
, 
w
id
e
r 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
, 
in
 e
x
c
e
s
s
 o
f 
T
re
e
s
 P
re
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 O
rd
e
rs
 ‘
A
 g
u
id
e
 

to
 t
h
e
 L
a
w
 a
n
d
 G
o
o
d
 P
ra
c
ti
c
e
’,
 w
ill
 b
e
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 c
o
n
fi
rm

a
ti
o
n
. 

 
O
b
je
c
ti
v
e
 4
 

T
o
 s
e
c
u
re
 n
e
w
 t
re
e
 a
n
d
 w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 p
la
n
ti
n
g
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 

s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 g
ro
w
th
 o
f 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
. 

 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
w
ill
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
n
e
w
 t
re
e
s
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 t
o
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 a
re
 p
la
n
te
d
 

a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 t
h
is
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
m
e
n
t 
to
w
a
rd
s
 t
h
e
 g
o
a
l 
o
f 

s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
ili
ty
. 

 

4
.1
 
S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
il
it
y
 

  N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
o
lic
y
 m

a
k
e
rs
 h
a
v
e
 t
o
 a
p
p
ra
is
e
 t
h
e
ir
 p
o
lic
ie
s
 a
n
d
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
s
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
y
 a
re
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
. 
 T
h
is
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 i
s
 c
o
n
ta
in
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 L
o
c
a
l 
A
g
e
n
d
a
 2
1
 

a
n
d
 
c
o
n
s
ti
tu
e
n
t 
B
io
d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 
A
c
ti
o
n
 
P
la
n
s
. 
 
B
io
d
iv
e
rs
it
y
, 
th
e
 
v
a
ri
e
ty
 
o
f 
lif
e
, 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 a
ll 
s
p
e
c
ie
s
 o
f 
p
la
n
ts
 a
n
d
 a
n
im
a
ls
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 n
a
tu
ra
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
y
s
te
m
s
, 

h
a
s
 a
n
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
ro
le
 i
n
 t
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
. 

 T
h
e
 
N
a
tu
ra
l 
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 
R
u
ra
l 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 
A
c
t 
2
0
0
6
 
d
ir
e
c
ts
 
th
a
t 
“E
v
e
ry
 

p
u
b
lic
 
a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 
m
u
s
t,
 
in
 
e
x
e
rc
is
in
g
 
it
s
 
fu
n
c
ti
o
n
s
, 
h
a
v
e
 
re
g
a
rd
, 
in
 
s
o
 
fa
r 
a
s
 
is
 

c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t 
w
it
h
 
th
e
 
p
ro
p
e
r 
e
x
e
rc
is
e
 
o
f 
th
o
s
e
 
fu
n
c
ti
o
n
s
, 
to
 
th
e
 
p
u
rp
o
s
e
 
o
f 

c
o
n
s
e
rv
in
g
 b
io
-d
iv
e
rs
it
y
.”
  

 B
y
 i
n
c
o
rp
o
ra
ti
n
g
 h
a
b
it
a
t 
c
re
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
b
io
-d
iv
e
rs
it
y
, 
a
s
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 

w
it
h
in
 
th
e
 
C
it
y
 
C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 
B
io
d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
, 
in
to
 
re
le
v
a
n
t 
s
tr
a
te
g
ie
s
, 
a
n
d
 

lin
k
in
g
 
th
e
s
e
 
to
 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 

p
la
n
n
in
g
 
a
n
d
 
s
ta
tu
to
ry
 
o
b
lig
a
ti
o
n
s
 
fo
r 

e
n
h
a
n
c
e
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h
in
 f
o
rw
a
rd
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
c
o
n
tr
o
l,
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
c
a
n
 

re
a
c
h
 s
e
t 
ta
rg
e
ts
. 

27



 

 
1
2
 

 W
h
e
n
 
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
in
g
 
w
o
rk
s
 
to
 
tr
e
e
s
, 
th
e
 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
m
u
s
t 
h
a
v
e
 
d
u
e
 
re
g
a
rd
 
to
 
th
e
 

H
a
b
it
a
ts
 
R
e
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
 
2
0
1
0
, 
th
e
 
W
ild
lif
e
 
a
n
d
 
C
o
u
n
tr
y
s
id
e
 
A
c
t 
1
9
8
1
, 
a
n
d
 
T
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
tr
y
s
id
e
 R

ig
h
ts
 o
f 
W
a
y
 A
c
t 
2
0
0
0
 w

h
ic
h
 p
ro
v
id
e
 p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 s
p
e
c
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

h
a
b
it
a
ts
. 
 
A
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 
p
re
-w
o
rk
 
s
u
rv
e
y
s
 
a
n
d
 
ti
m
in
g
 
o
f 
o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 
w
ill
 
b
e
 

e
m
p
lo
y
e
d
 t
o
 m

in
im
is
e
 e
c
o
lo
g
ic
a
l 
ri
s
k
. 
 W

h
e
re
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 s
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 
e
c
o
lo
g
ic
a
l 

a
d
v
ic
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 s
o
u
g
h
t.
  

 C
li
m
a
te
 C
h
a
n
g
e
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
s
 t
o
 m

it
ig
a
te
 a
n
d
 a
d
a
p
t 
to
 t
h
e
 p
re
d
ic
te
d
 e
ff
e
c
ts
 o
f 
c
lim

a
te
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 

in
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
d
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 w
h
e
re
v
e
r 
p
o
s
s
ib
le
, 
ta
k
in
g
 f
u
ll 
a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
“C
lim

a
te
 

C
h
a
n
g
e
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
”.
  

 T
h
e
 
m
a
g
n
it
u
d
e
 
a
n
d
 
ra
te
 
o
f 
p
re
d
ic
te
d
 
c
lim

a
te
 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 
m
e
a
n
s
 
th
a
t 
tr
e
e
s
 
a
n
d
 

w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 
w
ill
 
b
e
 
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
tl
y
 
a
ff
e
c
te
d
. 
 
A
d
a
p
ta
ti
o
n
 
is
 
th
e
re
fo
re
 
a
n
 
im
p
o
rt
a
n
t 

is
s
u
e
 a
n
d
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
 a
t 
th
e
 e
a
rl
ie
s
t 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
. 
 T
h
is
 i
s
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 

im
p
o
rt
a
n
t,
 
b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 
o
f 
th
e
 
lo
n
g
 
ti
m
e
-f
ra
m
e
 
a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 
w
it
h
 
a
n
y
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 m

a
d
e
 i
n
 t
re
e
 a
n
d
 w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t.
  
B
y
 t
h
e
 2
0
8
0
s
, 
a
n
 o
a
k
 t
re
e
 

p
la
n
te
d
 n
o
w
 w

ill
 b
e
 l
e
s
s
 t
h
a
n
 h
a
lf
-w
a
y
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 i
ts
 a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 l
if
e
, 
w
h
ils
t 
a
s
 a
 

c
o
m
p
o
n
e
n
t 
o
f 
s
e
m
i-
n
a
tu
ra
l 
w
o
o
d
la
n
d
; 
it
 w
o
u
ld
 s
ti
ll 
b
e
 a
t 
a
 j
u
v
e
n
ile
 s
ta
g
e
. 
 T
h
e
 

d
if
fi
c
u
lt
y
 f
o
r 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
is
 e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 m

a
d
e
 n
o
w
, 
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 o
v
e
r 

p
la
n
ti
n
g
 m

a
te
ri
a
l,
 a
re
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 t
o
 b
o
th
 t
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 f
u
tu
re
 c
lim

a
te
. 

 In
it
ia
lly
, 
th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
c
lim

a
te
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 i
s
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 b
e
 m

o
s
t 
s
e
ri
o
u
s
 a
n
d
 a
p
p
a
re
n
t 
in
 

s
o
u
th
e
rn
 
E
n
g
la
n
d
. 
 
Y
o
u
n
g
 
a
n
d
 
n
e
w
ly
 
e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 
tr
e
e
s
, 
to
g
e
th
e
r 
w
it
h
 
s
tr
e
e
t 

tr
e
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
re
e
s
 i
n
 h
e
d
g
e
ro
w
s
 a
re
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 b
e
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
a
ff
e
c
te
d
. 
 M

o
rt
a
lit
y
 
w
ill
 

in
c
re
a
s
e
 a
n
d
 s
p
e
c
ie
s
 s
u
it
a
b
ili
ty
 w
ill
 c
h
a
n
g
e
, 
th
e
re
fo
re
 i
t 
is
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
to
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 

th
e
 p
la
n
ti
n
g
 s
to
c
k
 i
n
 a
d
a
p
ti
n
g
 t
o
 c
lim

a
te
 c
h
a
n
g
e
. 

 W
o
o
d
la
n
d
 n
e
tw
o
rk
s
 w

ill
 a
ls
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 t
h
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 f
o
r 
b
o
th
 n
a
ti
v
e
 f
a
u
n
a
 a
n
d
 

fl
o
ra
 t
o
 m

ig
ra
te
 a
s
 c
lim

a
te
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
e
s
. 
 I
t 
is
 w
e
ll 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
tr
e
e
s
 

o
ff
e
r 
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 
o
f 
re
m
o
v
in
g
 
C
O
2
 
fr
o
m
 
th
e
 
a
tm

o
s
p
h
e
re
 
th
ro
u
g
h
 

p
h
o
to
s
y
n
th
e
s
is
. 
 T
h
is
 C
O
2
 i
s
 b
o
u
n
d
 a
n
d
 s
to
re
d
 a
s
 c
a
rb
o
n
 w

it
h
in
 t
h
e
 t
re
e
. 
T
h
is
 

c
a
rb
o
n
 w

ill
 r
e
m
a
in
 i
n
 t
h
e
 t
re
e
 u
p
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
o
in
t 
th
a
t 
it
 i
s
 f
e
lle
d
. 
 C

a
rb
o
n
 i
s
 h
e
ld
 

w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 t
re
e
's
 f
o
lia
g
e
, 
ro
o
ts
, 
b
ra
n
c
h
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
ru
n
k
s
. 
It
 i
s
 e
s
ti
m
a
te
d
 w
it
h
in
 f
o
re
s
t 

re
s
e
a
rc
h
 t
h
a
t 
e
a
c
h
 t
re
e
 l
o
c
k
s
 u
p
 0
.5
4
6
k
g
 o
f 
c
a
rb
o
n
 a
n
n
u
a
lly
, 
e
q
u
iv
a
le
n
t 
to
 2
k
g
 

o
f 
C
O
2
. 
 
R
e
s
e
a
rc
h
 
h
a
s
 
a
ls
o
 
s
h
o
w
n
 
th
a
t 
w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 
s
o
ils
 
s
e
q
u
e
s
te
r 
a
 
la
rg
e
 

a
m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
c
a
rb
o
n
, 
a
n
d
 
p
la
n
t 
m
a
tt
e
r 
is
 
th
e
 
s
in
g
le
 
m
o
s
t 
im
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
s
o
u
rc
e
 
o
f 

c
a
rb
o
n
 i
n
 s
o
il.
 

 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 i
s
 c
o
m
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 c
re
a
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 U
K
’s
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
C
a
p
it
a
l.
 O
n
e
  

o
f 
th
e
 
k
e
y
 
e
le
m
e
n
ts
 
o
f 
th
is
 
w
o
rk
 
is
 
p
ro
a
c
ti
v
e
ly
 
w
o
rk
in
g
 
to
 
a
c
h
ie
v
e
 
th
e
 

G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t'
s
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
in
 t
h
e
 2
0
0
8
 C
lim

a
te
 C
h
a
n
g
e
 A
c
t 
w
h
ic
h
 c
o
m
m
it
s
 t
h
e
 

U
K
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 i
ts
 g
re
e
n
h
o
u
s
e
 g
a
s
 e
m
is
s
io
n
s
 b
y
 8
0
%
 b
y
 2
0
5
0
, 
a
n
d
 C

O
2
 b
y
 a
t 

le
a
s
t 
2
6
%
 
b
y
 
2
0
2
0
. 
T
h
e
 
k
e
y
 
m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s
 
to
 
a
c
h
ie
v
e
 
a
 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 
in
 
c
a
rb
o
n
 

e
m
is
s
io
n
s
 
a
re
 
to
 
re
d
u
c
e
 
e
n
e
rg
y
 
c
o
n
s
u
m
p
ti
o
n
 
th
ro
u
g
h
 
in
c
re
a
s
e
d
 
e
n
e
rg
y
 

e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 e
.g
. 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 l
o
w
 c
a
rb
o
n
 h
o
m
e
s
 a
n
d
 m

o
v
in
g
 t
o
 r
e
n
e
w
a
b
le
 e
n
e
rg
y
 

s
o
u
rc
e
s
. 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 
C
it
y
 
C
o
u
n
c
il,
 
a
s
 
a
n
 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
, 
h
a
s
 
c
o
m
m
it
te
d
 
to
 

re
d
u
c
in
g
 C
O
2
 e
m
is
s
io
n
s
 b
y
 3
5
%
 o
f 
2
0
0
8
/0
9
 l
e
v
e
ls
 b
y
 2
0
1
4
 a
n
d
 i
s
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
in
g
 

v
a
ri
o
u
s
 p
ro
je
c
ts
 t
o
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 t
h
is
 g
o
a
l.
 T
h
e
 p
ro
d
u
c
e
 f
ro
m
 m

a
n
a
g
in
g
 t
h
e
 t
re
e
s
 a
n
d
 

w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 
c
o
u
ld
 
b
e
 
u
s
e
d
 
a
s
 
c
a
rb
o
n
 
n
e
u
tr
a
l 
fu
e
l 
to
 
p
o
w
e
r 
h
e
a
ti
n
g
 
a
n
d
/o
r 

c
o
m
b
in
e
d
 h
e
a
t 
a
n
d
 p
o
w
e
r 
e
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
b
u
ild
in
g
s
. 
W
h
ils
t 
u
s
in
g
 l
o
c
a
lly
 p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
 

w
o
o
d
fu
e
l 
m
a
y
 g
o
 s
o
m
e
w
a
y
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 t
h
is
 t
a
rg
e
t,
 i
t 
is
 n
o
t 
a
 p
ro
je
c
t 
th
a
t 
is
 

c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 c
la
s
s
e
d
 a
s
 ‘
in
 s
c
o
p
e
’ 
w
it
h
in
 t
h
is
 t
a
rg
e
t,
 h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
th
e
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 i
s
 h
a
p
p
y
 

to
 e
x
p
lo
re
 t
h
is
 a
s
p
e
c
t 
fu
rt
h
e
r 
a
n
d
 o
p
e
n
 d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 w
it
h
 i
n
te
re
s
te
d
 p
a
rt
ie
s
. 

 It
 
is
 
c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 
lik
e
ly
 
th
a
t 
th
e
 
c
o
m
p
o
s
it
io
n
 
o
f 
tr
e
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 
a
d
jo
in
in
g
 

re
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
a
re
a
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
d
. 
 H
ig
h
 w
a
te
r 
d
e
m
a
n
d
in
g
 s
p
e
c
ie
s
 a
n
d
 s
p
e
c
ie
s
 

p
ro
n
e
 t
o
 g
a
le
 d
a
m
a
g
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
m
o
v
e
d
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
la
c
e
d
 w
it
h
 m

o
re
 s
u
it
a
b
le
 s
p
e
c
ie
s
. 

 N
a
tu
ra
l 
re
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 
o
f 
n
a
ti
v
e
 s
p
e
c
ie
s
 
w
ill
 b
e
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
d
 s
o
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 
n
a
tu
ra
l 

g
e
n
e
ti
c
 
v
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
 
w
ill
 
p
ro
v
id
e
 
a
 
b
u
ff
e
r 
a
g
a
in
s
t 
c
lim

a
ti
c
 
v
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
. 
 
S
p
e
c
ie
s
 

s
e
n
s
it
iv
e
 t
o
 d
ro
u
g
h
t 
c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 B
e
e
c
h
, 
S
ilv
e
r 
B
ir
c
h
 a
n
d
 Y
e
w
 w
ill
 f
o
rm

 n
o
 

m
o
re
 t
h
a
n
 1
0
%
 o
f 
p
la
n
ti
n
g
. 

 4
.2
 
N
a
tu
ra
l 
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

 G
re
e
n
 
In
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 
is
 
a
 
s
tr
a
te
g
ic
a
lly
 
p
la
n
n
e
d
 
a
n
d
 
d
e
liv
e
re
d
 
n
e
tw
o
rk
 
o
f 
h
ig
h
 

q
u
a
lit
y
 
g
re
e
n
 
s
p
a
c
e
s
, 
d
e
s
ig
n
e
d
 
a
n
d
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 
a
s
 
a
 
m
u
lt
i-
fu
n
c
ti
o
n
a
l 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
, 

d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 a
 w
id
e
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
a
n
d
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
lif
e
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
. 
T
re
e
s
 a
n
d
 

w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 
a
re
 
a
 
v
e
ry
 
im
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
p
a
rt
 
o
f 
th
is
 
a
n
d
 
p
la
y
 
a
 
v
it
a
l 
ro
le
 
in
 
d
e
fi
n
in
g
 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 
a
s
 
a
n
 
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
C
it
y
. 
T
h
e
s
e
 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 
a
re
 
fu
rt
h
e
r 
e
x
p
a
n
d
e
d
 

w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 G
re
e
n
 G
ri
d
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
. 

  I
n
 J
u
n
e
 2
0
1
1
 T
h
e
 N
a
tu
ra
l 
C
h
o
ic
e
: 
s
e
c
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 v
a
lu
e
 o
f 
n
a
tu
re
 –
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

W
h
it
e
 P
a
p
e
r 
C
M
8
0
8
2
 w
a
s
 p
u
b
lis
h
e
d
. 
T
h
is
 d
e
ta
ils
 t
h
e
 G

o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t’
s
 a
s
p
ir
a
ti
o
n
s
 

to
 
p
ro
te
c
t 
a
n
d
 
im
p
ro
v
e
 
o
u
r 
tr
e
e
 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
. 
 
C
le
a
r 
c
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
t 
to
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
, 

c
o
n
s
e
rv
e
 a
n
d
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 t
h
e
s
e
 a
s
s
e
ts
 a
re
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 p
a
p
e
r.
  
T
h
is
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 

a
im
s
 t
o
 a
s
s
is
t 
d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
th
e
 p
o
lic
y
 e
m
p
h
a
s
is
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 W

h
it
e
 P
a
p
e
r.
 

 

28



 

 
1
3
 

T
re
e
s
 a
n
d
 w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
, 
e
s
p
e
c
ia
ll
y
 o
ld
 t
re
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
n
c
ie
n
t 
w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
, 
a
re
 a
m
o
n
g
s
t 

o
u
r 
ri
c
h
e
s
t 
h
a
b
it
a
ts
. 
 
T
h
e
 
h
ig
h
e
s
t 
le
v
e
ls
 
o
f 
b
io
d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 
a
re
 
o
ft
e
n
 
fo
u
n
d
 
in
 

w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re
 a
c
ti
v
e
ly
 a
n
d
 s
e
n
s
it
iv
e
ly
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
. 
 T
h
e
ir
 d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 i
s
 e
v
e
n
 

g
re
a
te
r 
w
h
e
n
 t
h
e
y
 f
o
rm

 p
a
rt
 o
f 
a
 m

ix
e
d
 l
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 i
n
 c
lo
s
e
 p
ro
x
im
it
y
 t
o
 o
th
e
r 

fe
a
tu
re
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 p
o
n
d
s
, 
g
ra
s
s
la
n
d
s
 a
n
d
 e
v
e
n
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
g
a
rd
e
n
s
. 
H
e
d
g
e
ro
w
s
 

lin
k
in
g
 w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 a
c
t 
a
s
 w
ild
lif
e
 c
o
rr
id
o
rs
 a
n
d
 s
o
 g
re
a
tl
y
 p
ro
m
o
te
 t
h
e
 e
x
te
n
t 
a
n
d
 

ra
n
g
e
 o
f 
w
ild
lif
e
. 
In
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 p
ro
te
c
t 
th
is
 e
c
o
lo
g
ic
a
l 
a
s
s
e
t 
a
n
 e
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 b
e
 

g
iv
e
n
 
to
 t
h
e
 s
e
n
s
it
iv
it
y
 
o
f 
th
e
 s
p
e
c
ie
s
 a
n
d
 h
a
b
it
a
ts
 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 p
u
b
lic
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 r
e
m
a
in
s
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
, 
w
it
h
o
u
t 
h
a
rm

in
g
 t
h
e
 b
io
d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 i
n
te
re
s
t.
 

 T
h
e
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
u
tu
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 t
o
 m

a
in
ta
in
 a
n
d
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 d
iv
e
rs
it
y
. 
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 b
e
 a
im
e
d
 a
t 
p
ro
v
id
in
g
 a
 n
a
tu
ra
l 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
w
h
ic
h
 

is
 r
e
s
ili
e
n
t 
to
 c
lim

a
te
 c
h
a
n
g
e
. 
 C
lim

a
te
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 w
ill
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
n
a
ti
v
e
 

w
ild
 p
la
n
ts
 a
n
d
 a
n
im
a
ls
 a
n
d
 h
e
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 c
h
a
ra
c
te
r 
o
f 
o
u
r 
w
o
o
d
s
. 
 T
h
e
 p
re
s
e
n
c
e
 o
f 

s
o
m
e
 i
n
v
a
s
iv
e
 n
o
n
-n
a
ti
v
e
 s
p
e
c
ie
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 J
a
p
a
n
e
s
e
 K
n
o
tw
e
e
d
 w
ill
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 

a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
. 

  W
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 
p
ro
te
c
t 
g
ro
u
n
d
 
w
a
te
r 
fr
o
m
 
p
o
llu
ti
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
le
s
s
e
n
 
th
e
 
lik
e
lih
o
o
d
 
o
f 

fl
o
o
d
in
g
 
b
y
 
in
te
rc
e
p
ti
n
g
 
ra
in
 
b
e
fo
re
 
it
 
re
a
c
h
e
s
 
w
a
te
rc
o
u
rs
e
s
. 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
a
ll
y
 

p
la
n
te
d
 
s
h
e
lt
e
rb
e
lt
s
 
in
te
rc
e
p
t 
a
ir
 
p
o
llu
ta
n
ts
. 
 
T
o
 
re
a
lis
e
 
in
te
g
ra
te
d
 
a
n
d
 

m
u
lt
if
u
n
c
ti
o
n
a
l 
la
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
w
ill
 
n
e
e
d
 
to
 
w
o
rk
 
c
lo
s
e
ly
 

w
it
h
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 a
n
d
 a
 v
a
ri
e
ty
 o
f 
la
n
d
o
w
n
e
rs
. 
 

5
 
T
H
E
M
E
 3
: 
 A
S
S
E
T
 M
A
N
A
G
E
M
E
N
T
 A
N
D
 

S
T
A
N
D
A
R
D
S
 

 O
b
je
c
ti
v
e
 5
 

T
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
le
g
a
l 
re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
ie
s
 a
re
 m
e
t 

 T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
w
ill
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
n
d
 m

a
in
ta
in
 t
h
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 a
n
d
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 

to
 p
ro
v
id
e
 t
re
e
 a
n
d
 w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
w
h
ic
h
 f
u
lf
ils
 i
ts
 l
e
g
a
l 
re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
. 
 

T
h
e
s
e
 w
ill
 e
m
p
lo
y
 b
e
s
t 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 a
n
d
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 h
ig
h
e
s
t 
p
o
s
s
ib
le
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 

p
ro
v
id
e
d
 r
e
la
ti
v
e
 t
o
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
. 

 

5
.1
 
A
s
s
e
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

 T
re
e
s
 g
ro
w
in
g
 i
n
 a
n
 u
rb
a
n
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
re
q
u
ir
e
 a
 m

o
re
 i
n
te
n
s
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 

e
x
p
e
n
s
iv
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
re
g
im
e
 t
h
a
n
 w

o
u
ld
 b
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 f
o
r 
th
e
ir
 s
u
rv
iv
a
l 
w
it
h
in
 

w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
. 
 
In
 
a
d
d
it
io
n
 
to
 
th
is
, 
c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 
n
e
e
d
s
 
to
 
b
e
 
g
iv
e
n
 
to
 
th
e
 

e
x
p
e
c
ta
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
th
e
 p
u
b
lic
. 

  T
re
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
o
f 
d
is
p
u
te
s
 a
n
d
 l
it
ig
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
s
e
v
e
ra
l 
c
e
n
tu
ri
e
s
, 
th
is
 

le
a
d
in
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
 h
ig
h
ly
 r
e
g
u
la
te
d
 i
n
d
u
s
tr
y
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
n
g
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 

o
f 
d
a
m
a
g
e
 t
o
 p
ro
p
e
rt
y
, 
p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
in
ju
ry
 a
n
d
 l
a
c
k
 o
f 
d
a
y
lig
h
t.
 

 T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 “
a
 d
u
ty
 o
f 
c
a
re
 t
o
 m

a
in
ta
in
 i
ts
 t
re
e
s
 a
n
d
 w

o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 i
n
 a
 s
a
fe
 

c
o
n
d
it
io
n
”.
 

 T
o
 m

e
e
t 
th
is
 d
u
ty
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
w
ill
 t
a
k
e
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 a
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 l
e
s
s
e
n
 r
is
k
 a
n
d
 s
o
 

m
in
im
is
e
 e
x
p
o
s
u
re
 t
o
 l
ia
b
ili
ty
. 
 T
h
e
 H

e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 S

a
fe
ty
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 s
ta
te
s
 w

it
h
in
 

‘M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 
ri
s
k
s
 
o
f 
fa
lli
n
g
 
tr
e
e
s
 
2
0
0
7
 
(S
IM
 
0
1
/2
0
0
7
/0
5
)"
 
th
a
t 
a
n
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 L
o
c
a
l 
A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 s
y
s
te
m
 c
o
n
ta
in
s
: 

 §
 

A
n
 
in
v
e
n
to
ry
 
o
f 
th
e
 
tr
e
e
 
a
n
d
 
w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 
s
to
c
k
 
w
it
h
in
 
it
s
 
o
w
n
e
rs
h
ip
 
a
n
d
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
. 

§
 

A
n
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 r
is
k
s
 t
h
e
s
e
 p
o
s
e
. 

§
 

R
is
k
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 
p
ro
m
in
e
n
t 
in
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
tr
e
e
s
 b
a
s
e
d
 u
p
o
n
 t
h
e
ir
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

s
p
e
c
ie
s
, 
s
iz
e
, 
a
g
e
 a
n
d
 h
is
to
ry
. 

§
 

P
ro
-a
c
ti
v
e
 s
y
s
te
m
 o
f 
re
g
u
la
r 
in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 b
y
 a
 c
o
m
p
e
te
n
t 
p
e
rs
o
n
 a
n
d
 a
 s
y
s
te
m
 

o
f 
o
b
ta
in
in
g
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
s
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 
a
d
v
ic
e
 w
h
e
n
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 r
e
v
e
a
ls
 d
e
fe
c
ts
 a
n
d
 

fa
c
to
rs
 o
u
ts
id
e
 t
h
e
 e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 o
f 
th
e
 i
n
s
p
e
c
to
r.
 

§
 

A
 
s
y
s
te
m
 
to
 
e
n
a
b
le
 
p
e
o
p
le
 
to
 
re
p
o
rt
 
d
a
m
a
g
e
 
to
 
tr
e
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
to
 
tr
ig
g
e
r 

in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
. 

29



 

 
1
4
 

§
 

A
 m

e
th
o
d
 o
f 
re
c
o
rd
in
g
 a
n
d
 r
e
v
ie
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 a
lo
n
g
 w

it
h
 a
n
y
 r
e
m
e
d
ia
l 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
. 

§
 

R
is
k
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
. 

 T
h
e
 s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 f
o
lio
 o
f 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 t
h
a
t 
fo
rm

 t
h
is
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 
w
ill
 f
o
rm

 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 r
is
k
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
 f
o
r 
tr
e
e
s
 a
n
d
 w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
, 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
in
g
 t
h
e
 w
o
rk
 o
f 

re
c
e
n
t 
y
e
a
rs
 i
n
 u
p
d
a
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 o
ri
g
in
a
l 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
, 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

p
la
n
s
 a
n
d
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
s
 f
o
r 
p
a
rt
s
 o
f 
th
e
 t
re
e
 a
n
d
 w
o
o
d
 s
to
c
k
. 

 T
h
e
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
 p
ro
-a
c
ti
v
e
 t
re
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
y
s
te
m
 w

ill
 o
p
ti
m
is
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
m
o
v
e
 
th
e
 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
fu
rt
h
e
r 
to
w
a
rd
s
 
a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 
a
 
d
e
fe
n
s
ib
le
 
ri
s
k
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
y
s
te
m
 f
o
r 
tr
e
e
s
 a
n
d
 w
o
o
d
s
. 
 T
h
e
 a
im
 o
f 
a
 p
ro
-a
c
ti
v
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
is
 t
o
 

p
ro
v
id
e
 
th
e
 
b
e
s
t 
p
o
s
s
ib
le
 
q
u
a
lit
y
 
o
f 
tr
e
e
 
p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 
w
it
h
in
 
th
e
 
p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 

re
s
tr
ic
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
. 

 P
ro
-a
c
ti
v
e
 r
o
ta
ti
o
n
a
l 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
e
a
c
h
 o
f 
th
e
 c
a
te
g
o
ry
 o
f 
tr
e
e
s
 a
n
d
 w
o
o
d
s
 

w
ill
 b
e
 b
a
s
e
d
 u
p
o
n
 r
is
k
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
a
ti
o
n
. 
 T
h
e
 f
re
q
u
e
n
c
y
 o
f 
tr
e
e
 

in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 f
in
d
in
g
s
 o
f 
in
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
tr
e
e
 h
a
z
a
rd
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 o
r 

ri
s
k
 z
o
n
e
s
 s
e
t 
u
p
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 C
it
y
. 
It
 i
s
 h
ig
h
ly
 p
ro
b
a
b
le
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 C
it
y
 m

a
y
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 

b
e
 d
iv
id
e
d
 i
n
to
 r
is
k
 z
o
n
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
q
u
a
n
ti
fy
 r
is
k
 e
.g
. 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
p
la
y
g
ro
u
n
d
s
 a
re
 v
e
ry
 

h
ig
h
 r
is
k
 a
n
d
 t
h
u
s
 w
ill
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 m

o
re
 f
re
q
u
e
n
t 
in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 a
 l
o
w
 r
is
k
 z
o
n
e
 s
u
c
h
 

a
s
 a
 m

in
o
r 
ro
a
d
. 
 

 T
h
e
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
d
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 w
ill
 e
n
a
b
le
 t
h
e
m
 t
o
 b
e
 c
o
n
c
e
n
tr
a
te
d
 t
o
 

b
e
s
t 
e
ff
e
c
t.
  
It
 w
ill
 a
llo
w
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 i
n
 

a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
w
o
rk
 s
c
h
e
d
u
lin
g
. 

 F
o
r 
a
 
p
ro
-a
c
ti
v
e
 
tr
e
e
 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
 
to
 
b
e
 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 
th
e
 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
w
ill
 
n
e
e
d
 
to
 
in
v
e
s
t 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia
lly
 i
n
 t
h
e
 t
re
e
s
 a
n
d
 w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 t
o
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 a
 b
a
s
ic
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
. 

 P
ro
-a
c
ti
v
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 c
o
m
p
lim

e
n
te
d
 b
y
 s
tr
u
c
tu
re
d
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 t
o
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
 

to
 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 
re
q
u
e
s
ts
. 
 
T
h
e
s
e
 
s
h
o
u
ld
 
d
im
in
is
h
 
a
s
 
th
e
 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 
o
f 
p
ro
-a
c
ti
v
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
m
a
n
if
e
s
t 
th
e
m
s
e
lv
e
s
, 
d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 
g
re
a
te
r 
e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 a
n
d
 
e
c
o
n
o
m
y
 

s
a
v
in
g
s
. 

  

   5
.2
 
S
ta
n
d
a
rd
 o
f 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 

  A
s
 o
rg
a
n
is
m
s
 o
f 
lo
n
g
e
v
it
y
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
le
x
it
y
, 
in
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 t
re
e
s
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
ly
, 

a
 
s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 
o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 
is
 
e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l.
 
 
A
s
 
u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 
o
f 
th
e
 
w
a
y
 

p
ru
n
in
g
 a
ff
e
c
ts
 t
re
e
s
 h
a
s
 e
v
o
lv
e
d
, 
th
e
 b
a
s
ic
 p
re
m
is
e
 h
a
s
 n
o
t 
c
h
a
n
g
e
d
: 
a
ll 
tr
e
e
 

s
u
rg
e
ry
 i
s
 n
o
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
o
f 
th
e
 t
re
e
, 
o
th
e
r 
th
a
n
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 i
t 
to
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 c
o
-

e
x
is
t 
in
 a
n
 a
rt
if
ic
ia
l 
h
u
m
a
n
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t.
 

 T
h
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 m

a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
tr
e
e
s
 i
s
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 a
 c
o
m
p
le
x
 a
n
d
 s
k
ill
e
d
 

ta
s
k
, 
o
ft
e
n
 
re
q
u
ir
in
g
 
d
if
fe
re
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 
to
 
w
o
rk
 
c
lo
s
e
ly
 

to
g
e
th
e
r 
in
 o
rd
e
r 
th
a
t 
tr
e
e
s
 a
re
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
ly
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 t
o
 m

in
im
is
e
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
 t
h
e
y
 

m
a
y
 p
o
s
e
 a
n
d
 m

a
y
 b
e
 p
o
s
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
m
. 

 A
n
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
p
a
rt
 o
f 
d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 a
n
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 r
is
k
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
y
s
te
m
 i
s
 e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 

th
a
t 
th
e
 t
re
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs
 h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
 p
re
-r
e
q
u
is
it
e
 s
k
ill
s
, 
w
it
h
 s
u
it
a
b
le
 q
u
a
lif
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 

a
n
d
 e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th
e
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
s
. 

 T
h
e
 
c
o
m
p
le
x
it
y
 
o
f 
tr
e
e
 
s
to
c
k
 
w
it
h
in
 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 
re
q
u
ir
e
s
 
w
e
ll 

tr
a
in
e
d
 

A
rb
o
ri
c
u
lt
u
ra
lis
ts
 
a
s
 
a
n
 
in
te
g
ra
l 
p
a
rt
 
o
f 
a
 
d
e
fe
n
s
ib
le
 
tr
e
e
 
a
n
d
 
w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
 T
h
is
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 s
u
b
s
ta
n
ti
a
te
d
 b
y
 i
n
d
u
s
tr
y
 b
e
s
t 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
, 

p
e
e
r 
re
v
ie
w
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 i
n
 c
o
m
m
o
n
 l
a
w
 p
re
c
e
d
e
n
c
e
. 

 T
h
e
 b
re
a
d
th
 o
f 
a
rb
o
ri
c
u
lt
u
ra
l 
k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 a
n
d
 s
k
ill
 i
s
 n
o
t 
o
n
ly
 n
e
e
d
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
o
s
e
 

w
h
o
 
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 
th
e
 
w
o
rk
s
, 
p
ru
n
in
g
, 
p
la
n
ti
n
g
 
a
n
d
 
re
m
o
v
in
g
 
tr
e
e
s
, 
b
u
t 
in
 
th
is
 

h
ig
h
ly
 r
e
g
u
la
te
d
 i
n
d
u
s
tr
y
, 
a
ls
o
 t
h
o
s
e
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 t
re
e
s
, 
re
s
p
o
n
d
in
g
 t
o
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

re
q
u
e
s
ts
 a
n
d
 s
p
e
c
if
y
in
g
 w
o
rk
s
 m

u
s
t 
b
e
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
ly
 q
u
a
lif
ie
d
. 

 T
h
e
 r
e
-l
e
tt
in
g
 o
f 
th
e
 T
re
e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
h
a
s
 e
n
a
b
le
d
 t
h
e
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 o
f 

w
o
rk
m
a
n
s
h
ip
 t
o
 b
e
 a
s
s
u
re
d
, 
to
 p
ro
v
id
e
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
a
l 
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 f
le
x
ib
ili
ty
 

n
e
e
d
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 e
m
p
h
a
s
is
. 

 T
h
e
 C
it
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
re
c
e
iv
e
d
 o
v
e
r 
2
0
0
0
 e
n
q
u
ir
ie
s
 p
e
r 
y
e
a
r,
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
in
g
 t
re
e
s
, 
w
h
e
n
 

th
e
 1
9
9
8
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 w
a
s
 f
ir
s
t 
p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
. 
 T
h
e
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
in
g
 o
f 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 o
v
e
r 

re
c
e
n
t 
y
e
a
rs
 h
a
s
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 t
h
is
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
p
e
r 
a
n
n
u
m
 a
n
d
 
lim

it
e
d
 t
h
e
 
a
m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 

ti
m
e
 t
o
 h
a
n
d
le
 e
a
c
h
 o
n
e
. 

30



 

 
1
5
 

  It
 i
s
 h
o
p
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
a
 T
ru
e
 W

o
rk
s
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 s
y
s
te
m
 w
ill
 a
s
s
is
t 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

in
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
c
o
n
c
e
rn
, 
re
a
c
ti
n
g
 t
o
 a
n
d
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
in
g
 w

o
rk
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 w

a
y
 

th
e
s
e
 w
o
rk
s
 a
re
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
. 
 I
t 
c
a
n
 l
e
a
d
 d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 
c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
. 
T
h
is
 
s
o
ft
w
a
re
 
m
a
y
 
a
ls
o
 
h
e
lp
 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 
b
u
d
g
e
ts
, 
w
h
ile
 

p
o
s
it
iv
e
ly
 a
ff
e
c
ti
n
g
 n
e
w
 w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
s
, 
a
n
d
 f
o
rm

 a
n
 i
n
te
g
ra
l 
p
a
rt
 

o
f 
th
e
 s
tr
e
e
t 
tr
e
e
 a
n
d
 v
ill
a
g
e
 t
re
e
 c
y
c
lic
a
l 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
g
ra
m
s
. 
 

 A
rb
o
ri
c
u
lt
u
re
 i
s
 a
n
 i
n
d
u
s
tr
y
 w
h
ic
h
 l
a
c
k
s
 m

a
n
y
 o
f 
th
e
 p
e
e
r 
re
v
ie
w
 c
o
m
p
a
ri
s
o
n
s
 o
f 

o
th
e
r 
p
a
rt
s
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il.
  
W
h
ils
t 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
a
g
a
in
s
t 
a
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
le
g
a
l 
d
u
ty
 

a
n
d
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
im
e
s
 t
o
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 
c
a
n
 b
e
 q
u
a
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
h
e
re
 a
re
 m

a
n
y
 o
th
e
r 

fa
c
e
ts
 
o
f 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
w
h
ic
h
 
c
a
n
 
b
e
 
c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 
to
 
e
s
ta
b
lis
h
 
th
e
 
le
v
e
l 
o
f 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
t 
a
t 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il.
 

 A
s
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 2
 a
n
d
 3
 i
n
 t
h
is
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
re
 p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
, 
th
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re
s
 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 t
o
 

e
v
a
lu
a
te
 t
h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 f
o
r 

th
a
t 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 

6
 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
 T
R
E
E
S
 

  T
re
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
d
ir
e
c
ts
 m

a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 t
re
e
s
 a
s
 w

e
ll 
a
s
 

o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 p
ro
m
o
te
 t
h
e
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
m
e
n
t 
 o
f 
n
e
w
 p
la
n
ti
n
g
, 
in
c
o
rp
o
ra
ti
n
g
 a
 l
o
n
g
 

te
rm

 v
ie
w
 o
f 
h
o
w
 b
e
s
t 
to
 c
a
re
 f
o
r 
th
is
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
. 

 6
.1
 
G
e
n
e
ra
l 

 T
h
e
 C
it
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 t
re
e
 s
to
c
k
 c
a
n
 b
e
 f
o
u
n
d
 i
n
 e
ig
h
t 
p
ri
n
c
ip
le
 c
a
te
g
o
ri
e
s
. 
 

  §
 
S
tr
e
e
t 
T
re
e
s
: 
 P
la
n
te
d
 i
n
 p
a
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 o
r 
ro
a
d
 v
e
rg
e
s
. 
 T
h
e
s
e
 h
e
lp
 t
o
 f
ilt
e
r 

tr
a
ff
ic
 
p
o
llu
ti
o
n
, 
p
ro
v
id
e
 
s
h
a
d
e
 
fo
r 
c
a
r 
p
a
rk
in
g
 
a
n
d
 
im
p
ro
v
e
 
th
e
 
o
v
e
ra
ll 

a
p
p
e
a
ra
n
c
e
 o
f 
th
e
 s
tr
e
e
t 
s
c
e
n
e
. 

 
§
 
R
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
A
re
a
s
: 
 G

ro
w
in
g
 w

it
h
in
 a
n
d
 a
ro
u
n
d
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 e
s
ta
te
s
. 
 P
la
n
te
d
 

b
y
 
th
e
 
o
ri
g
in
a
l 
P
a
rk
s
 
D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 
o
r 
th
e
 
 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

C
o
rp
o
ra
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t.
 

 
§
 
P
a
rk
s
 a
n
d
 O
p
e
n
 S
p
a
c
e
s
: 
 T
h
e
s
e
 a
re
 f
re
q
u
e
n
tl
y
 t
h
e
 t
re
e
s
 o
f 
g
re
a
te
s
t 
lo
c
a
l 

s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
c
e
 
a
n
d
 
p
ro
v
id
e
 
m
a
x
im
u
m
 
v
is
u
a
l 
a
m
e
n
it
y
 
fo
r 
b
o
th
 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
 
a
n
d
 

v
is
it
o
rs
. 

 §
 
W
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
: 
 
T
h
e
s
e
 
a
re
 
s
o
m
e
 
o
f 
th
e
 
re
m
a
in
in
g
 
p
o
c
k
e
ts
 
o
f 
th
e
 
o
ri
g
in
a
l 

R
o
c
k
in
g
h
a
m
 
F
o
re
s
t 
th
a
t 
o
n
c
e
 
c
o
v
e
re
d
 
th
e
 
a
re
a
. 
 
G
ri
m
e
s
h
a
w
 
W
o
o
d
, 
a
n
 

a
n
c
ie
n
t 
w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 
s
it
e
 
a
n
d
 
L
o
c
a
l 
N
a
tu
re
 
R
e
s
e
rv
e
 
in
 
B
re
tt
o
n
, 
is
 
o
n
e
 
s
u
c
h
 

w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 
w
h
ic
h
 
is
 
a
n
 
u
n
u
s
u
a
lly
 
v
a
lu
a
b
le
 
w
ild
lif
e
 
a
n
d
 
a
m
e
n
it
y
 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
 

w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 u
rb
a
n
 f
ri
n
g
e
. 

 
§
 
U
rb
a
n
 W
o
o
d
s
: 
 F
o
rm

e
rl
y
 c
la
s
s
e
d
 a
s
 s
h
e
lt
e
rb
e
lt
s
 t
h
e
y
 w
e
re
 m

o
s
tl
y
 p
la
n
te
d
 

a
lo
n
g
s
id
e
 
th
e
 
p
a
rk
w
a
y
s
 
a
n
d
 
in
 
a
re
a
s
 
th
a
t 
s
e
p
a
ra
te
d
 
th
e
 
n
e
w
 
to
w
n
s
h
ip
s
. 
 

T
h
e
y
 p
ro
v
id
e
 v
is
u
a
l 
a
m
e
n
it
y
 a
n
d
 h
a
b
it
a
t 
fo
r 
w
ild
lif
e
. 

 §
 
V
il
la
g
e
 a
n
d
 R
u
ra
l 
T
re
e
s
: 
 T
h
e
 v
ill
a
g
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 a
 u
n
iq
u
e
 c
h
a
ra
c
te
r,
 m

u
c
h
 o
f 

w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
ir
 c
o
n
te
n
t 
o
f 
h
is
to
ri
c
 t
re
e
s
, 
a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 t
h
o
s
e
 g
ro
w
in
g
 

w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 s
u
rr
o
u
n
d
in
g
 c
o
u
n
tr
y
s
id
e
. 

 

31



 

 
1
6
 

§
 
O
th
e
r 
S
it
e
s
: 
 T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
o
w
n
 a
n
d
 m

a
in
ta
in
 n
u
m
e
ro
u
s
 o
th
e
r 
s
it
e
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
, 
a
llo
tm

e
n
ts
, 
c
e
m
e
te
ri
e
s
 a
n
d
 c
re
m
a
to
ri
a
. 
 M

a
n
y
 s
u
c
h
 s
it
e
s
 c
o
n
ta
in
 

tr
e
e
s
 o
f 
lo
c
a
l 
im
p
o
rt
a
n
c
e
. 

 
§
 
L
a
n
d
m
a
rk
 T
re
e
s
: 
In
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
s
p
e
c
im
e
n
 t
re
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
b
y
 v
ir
tu
e
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 a
g
e
, 
s
iz
e
, 

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
h
e
ri
ta
g
e
 
o
r 
b
io
d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 
v
a
lu
e
 
o
ff
e
r 
c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
b
le
 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts
. 
 
T
h
is
 

ju
s
ti
fy
in
g
 t
h
e
ir
 v
a
lu
e
 t
o
 b
e
 m

a
in
ta
in
e
d
 a
s
 a
 s
e
p
a
ra
te
 e
n
ti
ty
. 

 W
h
ils
t 
th
e
 C
it
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 b
ro
a
d
 s
u
rv
e
y
s
 o
f 
tr
e
e
s
 i
n
 i
ts
 o
w
n
e
rs
h
ip
, 

to
 
d
a
te
 
n
o
 
d
e
fi
n
it
iv
e
 
re
c
o
rd
s
 
e
x
is
t 
o
f 
th
e
ir
 
lo
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
c
o
n
d
it
io
n
 
o
r 

w
o
rk
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
. 
 I
t 
is
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 i
n
te
n
ti
o
n
 t
o
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
 a
 t
re
e
 d
a
ta
b
a
s
e
 s
y
s
te
m
 

th
a
t 
re
c
o
rd
s
 d
e
ta
ils
 o
f 
tr
e
e
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 w

it
h
in
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
o
w
n
e
rs
h
ip
, 
th
e
ir
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 

a
n
d
 
c
o
n
d
it
io
n
. 
 
T
h
is
 
w
o
u
ld
 
g
o
 
s
o
m
e
 
w
a
y
 
in
 
fu
lf
ill
in
g
 
it
s
 
H
e
a
lt
h
 
a
n
d
 
S
a
fe
ty
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 p
ro
m
o
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 p
ro
-a
c
ti
v
e
 e
le
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
w
h
ic
h
 t
o
 

d
a
te
 h
a
s
 o
n
ly
 b
e
e
n
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 f
o
r 
c
e
rt
a
in
 s
tr
e
e
t 
 t
re
e
s
. 

 In
 
M
a
rc
h
 
2
0
1
1
 
a
 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 
a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
w
a
s
 
s
ig
n
e
d
 
w
it
h
 
th
e
 
n
e
w
ly
 
fo
rm

e
d
 

E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
. 
T
h
is
 
lo
n
g
-t
e
rm

 
(2
3
 
y
e
a
r)
 
s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 
w
ill
 

m
e
a
n
 
th
a
t 

E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 
w
ill
 
b
e
 
re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 
fo
r 

d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 

a
rb
o
ri
c
u
lt
u
ra
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 U
n
it
a
ry
 A
re
a
. 
  
N
o
t 
o
n
ly
 w
ill
 t
h
e
y
 b
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

fo
r 
d
e
a
lin
g
 w
it
h
 a
ll 
e
n
q
u
ir
ie
s
 r
e
la
te
d
 t
o
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
o
w
n
e
d
 t
re
e
 s
to
c
k
, 
th
e
y
 w
ill
 p
la
y
 a
 

le
a
d
 r
o
le
 i
n
 t
h
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
th
e
 T
re
e
s
 a
n
d
 W

o
o
d
la
n
d
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 c
re
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 

th
e
 r
is
k
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
s
. 
T
h
is
 n
e
w
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
a
im
s
 

to
 d
e
liv
e
r 
p
ro
-a
c
ti
v
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 C
it
y
’s
 t
re
e
 s
to
c
k
. 

 T
h
e
 a
im
 f
o
r 
a
m
e
n
it
y
 t
re
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
(A
rb
o
ri
c
u
lt
u
re
) 
is
 ‘
s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 a
m
e
n
it
y
’ 

fo
r 
th
e
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
o
f 
th
e
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 o
f 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 a
n
d
 i
ts
 v
is
it
o
rs
. 
 T
h
is
 i
d
e
a
l 
c
a
n
 

b
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 t
re
e
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
s
 a
 w
id
e
 d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 o
f 

s
p
e
c
ie
s
 a
n
d
 a
 w

id
e
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
tr
e
e
 a
g
e
s
. 
 T
h
e
s
e
 t
w
o
 p
o
in
ts
 a
re
 f
u
n
d
a
m
e
n
ta
l 
in
 

a
v
o
id
in
g
 d
e
v
a
s
ta
ti
o
n
 b
y
 t
h
re
a
ts
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 d
is
e
a
s
e
, 
c
lim

a
ti
c
 e
x
tr
e
m
e
s
 o
r 
th
e
 s
lo
w
 

d
e
c
lin
e
 o
f 
th
e
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 d
u
e
 t
o
 i
t 
b
e
in
g
 o
v
e
r-
m
a
tu
re
d
. 

   C
o
u
n
c
il
 t
re
e
 a
n
d
 w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
p
o
li
c
ie
s
 (
C
T
W
G
) 

 T
h
e
s
e
 p
o
li
c
ie
s
 a
n
d
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a
p
p
ly
 t
o
 a
ll
 t
re
e
s
 a
n
d
 w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 b
y
 

th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
. 

   

P
o
li
c
y
 C
T
W
G
 1
 

T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 w
il
l 
e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
d
iv
e
rs
e
 t
re
e
 a
n
d
 w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 

c
re
a
te
d
, 
p
ro
te
c
te
d
, 
m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 a
n
d
, 
w
h
e
re
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
, 
e
x
p
a
n
d
e
d
. 

 P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
: 

C
T
W
G
 1
.1
: 

T
o
 
p
ro
v
id
e
 
a
n
d
 
m
a
in
ta
in
 
a
 
c
o
m
p
u
te
r 
s
y
s
te
m
 
w
h
ic
h
 
e
n
a
b
le
s
 

a
c
c
u
ra
te
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
 o
f 
th
e
 t
re
e
 a
n
d
 w

o
o
d
la
n
d
s
, 
fa
c
ili
ta
te
s
 t
h
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
n
d
 e
n
a
b
le
s
 t
h
e
ir
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
a
ti
o
n
. 

 P
o
li
c
y
 C
T
W
G
 2
 

T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 w
il
l 
m
a
in
ta
in
 i
ts
 t
re
e
s
 a
n
d
 w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 i
n
 a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 

it
s
 o
b
li
g
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 o
b
s
e
rv
e
 d
u
ty
 o
f 
c
a
re
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 s
a
fe
ty
 o
f 
b
o
th
 p
e
o
p
le
 

a
n
d
 p
ro
p
e
rt
y
. 

 P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
: 

C
T
W
G
 2
.1
: 
T
o
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
ri
s
k
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 t
re
e
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
. 

 
C
T
W
G
 2
.2
: 
T
o
 

s
u
rv
e
y
 

a
ll 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

o
w
n
e
d
 

tr
e
e
s
 

a
n
d
 

w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
, 

in
c
o
rp
o
ra
ti
n
g
 r
is
k
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t.
 

 C
T
W
G
 2
.3
: 
T
o
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 m

a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 w
o
rk
s
 i
n
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 o
f 
d
u
ty
 o
f 
c
a
re
. 

 P
o
li
c
y
 C
T
W
G
 3
 

T
h
e
 
C
o
u
n
c
il
 
w
il
l 
m
a
in
ta
in
 
it
s
 
tr
e
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 
in
 
a
 
w
a
y
 
th
a
t 

d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
s
 
b
e
s
t 

p
ra
c
ti
c
e
, 

p
ro
v
id
in
g
 
w
o
rt
h
y
 
e
x
a
m
p
le
s
 
o
f 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
o
th
e
rs
 t
o
 f
o
ll
o
w
. 
 

 
P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

C
T
W
G
 3
.1
: 
T
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 p
la
n
s
 f
o
r 
lo
n
g
 t
e
rm

 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

o
f 
tr
e
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 
a
s
 
e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
c
o
m
p
o
n
e
n
ts
 
w
it
h
in
 
th
e
 

la
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
. 

 C
T
W
G
 3
.2
: 
T
o
 
e
n
s
u
re
 
th
e
 
b
e
s
t 
u
s
e
 
o
f 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 
is
 
m
a
d
e
 
d
u
ri
n
g
 
th
e
 

p
la
n
n
in
g
 o
f 
o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
. 

 C
T
W
G
 3
.3
: 
T
o
 
s
u
p
p
le
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 
C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 
s
p
e
n
d
in
g
 
b
y
 
s
e
e
k
in
g
 
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 

fu
n
d
in
g
 f
ro
m
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 w
h
e
re
 e
v
e
r 
p
o
s
s
ib
le
. 

 C
T
W
G
 3
.4
: 
T
o
 r
e
a
lis
e
 a
n
y
 e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
o
f 
tr
e
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 w

o
o
d
la
n
d
s
, 
o
r 

m
a
te
ri
a
ls
 g
e
n
e
ra
te
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
m
, 
w
h
e
re
 t
h
is
 d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
c
o
n
fl
ic
t 
w
it
h
 

th
e
 o
th
e
r 
p
o
lic
ie
s
 a
n
d
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 o
f 
th
e
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
. 

32



 

 
1
7
 

C
T
W
G
 3
.5
: 
T
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 p
e
s
t 
a
n
d
 d
is
e
a
s
e
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
 i
n
 c
o
n
ju
n
c
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
 n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
ri
n
g
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 w
h
e
re
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
. 

 
 P
o
li
c
y
 C
T
W
G
 4
 

T
h
e
 r
e
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 
tr
e
e
s
 a
n
d
 w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 s
h
a
ll
 b
e
 r
e
s
is
te
d
, 
u
n
le
s
s
 t
h
e
re
 a
re
 

s
o
u
n
d
 H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 S
a
fe
ty
 o
r 
a
rb
o
ri
c
u
lt
u
ra
l 
re
a
s
o
n
s
. 

 
P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

C
T
W
G
 4
.1
: 
T
h
e
 r
e
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 
h
e
a
lt
h
y
 t
re
e
s
 i
n
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 s
h
a
ll 
b
e
 

re
s
is
te
d
 u
n
le
s
s
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
p
la
in
t 
h
a
s
 a
n
 o
v
e
rr
id
in
g
 j
u
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

n
o
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 c
a
n
 b
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
. 

  P
o
li
c
y
 C
T
W
G
 5
 

T
h
e
 
C
o
u
n
c
il
 
w
il
l 
e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 
a
 
b
e
tt
e
r 
u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 
o
f 
tr
e
e
 
a
n
d
 

w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 
in
 
s
o
 
d
o
in
g
 
p
ro
m
o
te
 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t.
 

 P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

C
T
W
G
 5
.1
: 
T
o
 
id
e
n
ti
fy
 
tr
e
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 
o
f 
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
in
te
re
s
t 
a
n
d
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
 
a
 
m
e
th
o
d
 
o
f 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 
w
it
h
 
lo
c
a
l 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
 
a
n
d
 

P
a
ri
s
h
 C
o
u
n
c
ils
 o
n
 w
o
rk
s
 t
o
 b
e
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
. 

  C
T
W
G
 5
.2
: 
C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 u
rb
a
n
 t
re
e
 w

a
rd
e
n
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 t
o
 

w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 t
o
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 t
re
e
 

p
la
n
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t.
 

 C
T
W
G
 5
.3
: 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 p
ra
c
ti
c
a
l 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
to
c
o
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
. 
 

 P
o
li
c
y
 C
T
W
G
 6
 

T
h
e
 
C
o
u
n
c
il
 
w
il
l 
e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 
a
n
 
in
c
re
a
s
e
 
in
 
tr
e
e
 
c
o
v
e
r 
b
y
 
n
e
w
 
a
n
d
 

re
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
ti
n
g
, 
p
la
c
in
g
 
g
re
a
t 
e
m
p
h
a
s
is
 
o
n
 
u
s
e
 
o
f 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 

tr
e
e
 s
p
e
c
ie
s
. 

 P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

C
T
W
G
 6
.1
: 
T
o
 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
 
a
 
p
la
n
ti
n
g
 
p
la
n
 
th
a
t 
s
u
s
ta
in
s
 
th
e
 
tr
e
e
 
p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
, 

w
it
h
 
e
m
p
h
a
s
is
 
o
n
 
th
e
 
lo
n
g
-t
e
rm

 
re
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
m
a
tu
re
 
a
n
d
 

o
v
e
r 
m
a
tu
re
 t
re
e
s
. 

 C
T
W
G
 6
.2
: 

A
llo
c
a
te
 
a
 
p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 
o
f 
th
e
 
to
ta
l 
tr
e
e
 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
to
 
fu
n
d
 
th
e
 

re
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
d
e
a
d
 o
r 
in
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 t
re
e
s
. 

 C
T
W
G
 6
.3
: 

A
s
 
a
n
d
 
w
h
e
n
 
th
e
 
p
ro
s
p
e
c
t 

a
ri
s
e
s
, 

to
 
w
o
rk
 
w
it
h
 
o
th
e
r 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 
to
 
s
e
c
u
re
 
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
fu
n
d
in
g
 
s
tr
e
a
m
s
 
fo
r 
th
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
tr
e
e
 s
to
c
k
. 

 

6
.2
 
S
tr
e
e
t 
T
re
e
s
 

 T
h
e
 
C
it
y
 
h
a
s
 
a
p
p
ro
x
im
a
te
ly
 
1
4
,0
0
0
 
s
tr
e
e
t 
tr
e
e
s
 
w
h
ic
h
 
h
a
v
e
 
to
 
s
u
rv
iv
e
 
in
 
a
 

d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 r
o
a
d
s
id
e
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t.
  
U
ti
lit
ie
s
 d
e
m
a
n
d
 s
p
a
c
e
, 
a
s
 d
o
 r
o
a
d
 s
ig
n
s
 a
n
d
 

s
tr
e
e
tl
ig
h
ts
. 
T
h
e
 
lim

it
e
d
 
s
p
a
c
e
 
is
 
m
a
d
e
 
a
ll 
th
e
 
m
o
re
 
c
h
a
lle
n
g
in
g
 
b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 
o
f 

p
o
llu
ti
n
g
 c
a
r 
e
m
is
s
io
n
s
, 
ro
a
d
 s
a
lt
, 
o
il 
a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
c
o
n
ta
m
in
a
n
ts
. 
 A
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
 o
d
d
s
 

tr
e
e
s
 c
a
n
 a
n
d
 d
o
 s
u
rv
iv
e
, 
a
lb
e
it
 w
it
h
 a
 l
im
it
e
d
 l
if
e
 e
x
p
e
c
ta
n
c
y
. 

 T
h
e
 c
h
a
ra
c
te
r 
o
f 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
’s
 s
tr
e
e
t 
tr
e
e
s
 v
a
ri
e
s
 c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
b
ly
, 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 o
ld
e
r 

V
ic
to
ri
a
n
 p
la
n
ti
n
g
 i
n
 r
o
a
d
s
 l
ik
e
 B
ro
a
d
w
a
y
, 
th
e
 i
n
te
r-
w
a
r 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 

D
o
g
s
th
o
rp
e
, 
to
 t
h
e
 n
e
w
e
r 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
 b
u
ilt
 b
y
 t
h
e
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

C
o
rp
o
ra
ti
o
n
. 
T
h
e
 
V
ic
to
ri
a
n
 
a
re
a
s
 
c
o
n
ta
in
 
la
rg
e
 
o
ld
 
tr
e
e
s
, 
m
a
n
y
 
o
f 
w
h
ic
h
 
a
re
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 
a
s
 
p
o
lla
rd
s
. 
 
T
o
d
a
y
 
th
e
re
 
is
 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 
to
 
a
 
w
id
e
r 
ra
n
g
e
 
o
f 
s
m
a
lle
r 

o
rn
a
m
e
n
ta
l 
tr
e
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re
 s
u
it
a
b
le
 f
o
r 
re
s
tr
ic
te
d
 s
it
e
s
. 

 M
a
n
y
 
o
f 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
’s
 
s
tr
e
e
ts
 
h
a
v
e
 
tr
e
e
 
p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
s
 
th
a
t 
a
re
 
o
v
e
r-
m
a
tu
re
. 
 

S
u
c
h
 t
re
e
s
 a
re
 v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 t
o
 c
lim

a
ti
c
 c
h
a
n
g
e
, 
d
is
e
a
s
e
 a
n
d
 d
a
m
a
g
e
. 
 A
s
 t
im
e
 

p
ro
g
re
s
s
e
s
 t
h
is
 o
v
e
r-
m
a
tu
re
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 o
f 
s
tr
e
e
t 
tr
e
e
s
 w

ill
 b
e
 d
is
a
p
p
e
a
ri
n
g
 a
s
 

in
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
tr
e
e
s
 d
e
te
ri
o
ra
te
 a
n
d
 h
a
v
e
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
m
o
v
e
d
. 
 I
n
 t
h
e
s
e
 a
re
a
s
 n
e
w
 t
re
e
s
 

c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 m

a
tu
re
 s
p
e
c
im
e
n
s
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s
 f
u
tu
re
 t
re
e
 c
o
v
e
r.
  

  A
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 
th
e
 1
9
9
8
 T
re
e
 a
n
d
 W

o
o
d
la
n
d
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
 s
u
rv
e
y
 w
a
s
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 

p
lo
t 
th
e
 a
p
p
ro
x
im
a
te
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
ll 
s
tr
e
e
t 
tr
e
e
s
. 
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 p
re
v
e
n
te
d
 t
h
is
 

w
o
rk
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
in
g
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
to
-d
a
te
. 
C
y
c
lic
a
l 
m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 i
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 l
im
it
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

re
-p
o
lla
rd
in
g
 
o
f 
V
ic
to
ri
a
n
 
p
o
lla
rd
e
d
 
L
im
e
 
tr
e
e
s
 
w
it
h
in
 
th
e
 
u
rb
a
n
 
a
re
a
 
o
n
 
a
 
b
i-

a
n
n
u
a
l 
b
a
s
is
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 r
e
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 
e
p
ic
o
rm

ic
 g
ro
w
th
s
 a
n
n
u
a
lly
. 
 T
h
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
 i
s
 

d
iv
id
e
d
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 C
it
y
 w
a
rd
s
. 
S
e
v
e
ra
l 
a
re
 s
e
le
c
te
d
 t
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
tt
e
n
ti
o
n
 e
a
c
h
 y
e
a
r.
  
 

   

33



 

 
1
8
 

S
tr
e
e
t 
tr
e
e
 p
o
li
c
y
 (
S
T
) 

 P
o
li
c
y
 S
T
 1
 

T
o
 
e
n
d
e
a
v
o
u
r 
to
 
p
ro
te
c
t 
s
tr
e
e
t 
tr
e
e
s
 
fr
o
m
 
th
re
a
ts
 
s
u
c
h
 
a
s
 
lo
s
s
 
o
f 

v
e
rg
e
s
 a
n
d
 d
a
m
a
g
e
 t
o
 s
a
m
e
. 

 
P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

S
T
 1
.1
: 
T
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 r
o
b
u
s
t 
c
y
c
lic
a
l 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
 i
n
 c
o
n
ju
n
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 

th
e
 r
is
k
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 a
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
. 

 S
T
 1
.2
: 
W
o
rk
 w
it
h
 a
n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
r 
th
e
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 o
f 
u
ti
lit
y
 c
o
m
p
a
n
ie
s
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 

m
in
im
is
e
 a
c
c
id
e
n
ta
l 
o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l 
d
a
m
a
g
e
 t
o
 t
re
e
s
. 

 
P
o
li
c
y
 S
T
 2
 

T
o
 
p
la
c
e
 
a
 
p
ri
o
ri
ty
 
o
n
 
th
e
 
re
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
g
e
in
g
 
s
tr
e
e
t 
tr
e
e
s
; 

p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 
w
h
e
re
 
th
e
s
e
 
a
d
jo
in
 
m
a
jo
r 
tr
a
ff
ic
 
ro
u
te
s
. 
P
la
n
ti
n
g
 
w
il
l 

e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 s
e
le
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 m
o
s
t 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 s
p
e
c
ie
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
. 

 
 P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

S
T
 2
.1
: 
T
o
 
p
la
n
t 
n
e
w
 
a
n
d
 
re
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
s
tr
e
e
t 
tr
e
e
s
 
in
 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 
s
it
e
s
, 

g
iv
in
g
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 t
o
 s
tr
e
e
ts
 w
h
e
re
 t
re
e
s
 a
re
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 s
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
r 
h
a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
a
s
t.
 

 
S
T
 2
.2
: 
In
 
s
tr
e
e
ts
 
w
h
e
re
 
tr
e
e
 
p
la
n
ti
n
g
 
is
 
n
o
t 
p
o
s
s
ib
le
 
in
 
p
a
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 
o
r 

v
e
rg
e
s
, 
to
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 t
o
 p
la
n
t 
tr
e
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 f
ro
n
t 
g
a
rd
e
n
s
. 

 

6
.3
 
T
re
e
s
 I
n
 R
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
A
re
a
s
 

 A
 
la
rg
e
 
p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 
o
f 
p
u
b
lic
 
s
e
c
to
r 
h
o
u
s
in
g
 
in
 
th
e
 
C
it
y
 
w
a
s
 
b
u
ilt
 
b
y
 
th
e
 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 D

e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
C
o
rp
o
ra
ti
o
n
. 
 E
x
te
n
s
iv
e
 p
la
n
ti
n
g
 o
f 
b
o
th
 t
re
e
s
 a
n
d
 

s
h
ru
b
s
 t
o
o
k
 p
la
c
e
 o
n
 s
m
a
ll 
o
p
e
n
 s
p
a
c
e
s
 i
n
 c
lo
s
e
 p
ro
x
im
it
y
 t
o
 t
h
e
s
e
 p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 

u
s
in
g
 a
 l
im
it
e
d
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
s
to
c
k
. 

 Q
u
ic
k
 
g
ro
w
in
g
 
s
p
e
c
ie
s
 
w
e
re
 
o
ft
e
n
 
c
h
o
s
e
n
 
a
n
d
 
p
la
n
te
d
 
to
 
p
ro
v
id
e
 
ra
p
id
 

te
m
p
o
ra
ry
 
g
re
e
n
in
g
 
o
f 
th
e
 
n
e
w
 
a
re
a
s
 
w
it
h
 
e
x
te
n
s
iv
e
 
s
h
ru
b
 
b
e
d
s
 
a
n
d
 
g
ro
u
p
 

p
la
n
ti
n
g
 
o
f 
tr
e
e
s
. 
 
M
a
n
y
 
tr
e
e
s
 
w
e
re
 
p
la
n
te
d
 
a
t 
h
ig
h
 
d
e
n
s
it
ie
s
, 
e
it
h
e
r 
w
it
h
o
u
t 

c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 f
u
tu
re
 g
ro
w
th
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
o
r 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 i
n
te
n
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 w
o
u
ld
 

e
it
h
e
r 
b
e
 t
h
in
n
e
d
 o
r 
th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 h
ig
h
 f
a
ilu
re
 r
a
te
s
. 
 

 

P
re
s
e
n
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
c
o
n
c
e
n
tr
a
te
s
 o
n
 d
e
a
lin
g
 w

it
h
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 f
ro
m
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
. 
 

T
h
e
s
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
lly
 s
te
m
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 l
a
rg
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
tr
e
e
s
 p
la
n
te
d
 w
it
h
in
 a
 r
e
s
tr
ic
te
d
 

a
re
a
 i
n
 c
lo
s
e
 p
ro
x
im
it
y
 t
o
 h
o
u
s
in
g
. 
 

 It
 i
s
 e
s
ti
m
a
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 a
re
 o
v
e
r 
5
0
,0
0
0
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
tr
e
e
s
 i
n
 N

o
rt
h
 a
n
d
 S

o
u
th
 

B
re
tt
o
n
, 
O
rt
o
n
 W

a
te
rv
ill
e
, 
P
a
s
to
n
 a
n
d
 R

a
v
e
n
s
th
o
rp
e
 a
lo
n
e
. 
 C

u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 c
y
c
lic
a
l 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
s
e
 t
re
e
s
 h
a
s
 n
o
t 
b
e
e
n
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 

 R
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
a
re
a
 t
re
e
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 (
R
A
):
 

 R
A
 1
: 

T
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 r
o
b
u
s
t 
c
y
c
lic
a
l 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
 i
n
 c
o
n
ju
n
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
  
  
 

th
e
 r
is
k
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 a
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
. 

 R
A
 1
.1
: 

T
o
 
c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
 
a
 
re
m
o
v
a
l,
 
a
n
d
 
w
h
e
re
 
s
u
it
a
b
le
, 
re
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 

p
ro
g
ra
m
 o
f 
tr
e
e
s
 t
h
a
t,
 i
n
 t
h
e
 j
u
d
g
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 q
u
a
lif
ie
d
 a
rb
o
ri
c
u
lt
u
ri
s
t,
 

a
re
 c
le
a
rl
y
 o
f 
a
 s
iz
e
 a
n
d
 s
p
e
c
ie
s
 i
n
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 f
o
r 
th
e
ir
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
. 
 

 R
A
 1
.2
: 

W
h
e
re
 r
e
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
ti
n
g
 o
f 
a
n
y
 p
e
rs
u
a
s
io
n
 i
s
 i
n
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
, 
to
 

p
la
n
t 
n
e
w
 
tr
e
e
s
 
n
e
a
rb
y
 
in
s
te
a
d
 
o
f 
th
e
 
lo
c
a
ti
o
n
 
th
a
t 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 

c
le
a
re
d
. 

 

6
.4
 
P
a
rk
s
 a
n
d
 O
p
e
n
 S
p
a
c
e
s
 

 T
re
e
s
 a
re
 f
u
n
d
a
m
e
n
ta
l 
to
 t
h
e
 s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 o
f 
p
a
rk
s
 a
n
d
 v
e
ry
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
c
o
n
tr
ib
u
to
rs
 

to
 t
h
e
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 a
re
a
. 
 T
h
e
 n
a
tu
re
 o
f 
d
if
fe
re
n
t 
p
a
rk
s
 a
n
d
 g
re
e
n
 s
p
a
c
e
s
 

is
 
v
e
ry
 
v
a
ri
a
b
le
. 
F
o
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
, 
C
e
n
tr
a
l 
P
a
rk
 
h
a
s
 
a
 
d
e
c
lin
in
g
 
tr
e
e
 
p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 

d
is
p
la
y
in
g
 
o
v
e
r 
m
a
tu
ri
ty
 
in
 
c
o
m
p
a
ri
s
o
n
 
to
 
B
re
tt
o
n
 
P
a
rk
 
w
it
h
 
y
o
u
n
g
e
r 
b
u
t 

n
e
g
le
c
te
d
 
s
to
c
k
 
n
o
w
 
in
 
g
re
a
t 
n
e
e
d
 
o
f 
s
e
le
c
ti
v
e
 
th
in
n
in
g
. 
 
T
h
e
 
la
tt
e
r 
is
 
n
o
w
 

u
rg
e
n
tl
y
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 p
re
v
e
n
t 
v
e
ry
 h
ig
h
 l
o
s
s
e
s
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 n
e
x
t 
te
n
 y
e
a
rs
. 
  
F
o
r 
th
is
 

re
a
s
o
n
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
h
a
s
 t
o
 b
e
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 o
n
 a
 s
it
e
 b
y
 s
it
e
 b
a
s
is
. 

 C
e
rt
a
in
 n
e
w
e
r 
a
re
a
s
 o
f 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 c
o
n
ta
in
 l
a
rg
e
 o
p
e
n
 s
p
a
c
e
s
 o
f 
s
h
o
rt
 g
ra
s
s
 

a
n
d
 
m
in
im
a
l 
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 
p
la
n
ti
n
g
. 
 
T
h
e
s
e
 
a
re
a
s
 
a
re
 
id
e
a
l 
fo
r 
e
n
h
a
n
c
e
m
e
n
t.
 

R
e
s
e
a
rc
h
 
w
it
h
in
 
T
h
e
 
W
o
o
d
la
n
d
 
T
ru
s
ts
 
“T
re
e
s
 
o
r 

T
u
rf
” 

re
p
o
rt
 
a
im
s
 
to
 

d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
 t
h
a
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 m

a
rk
e
d
ly
 c
h
e
a
p
e
r 
th
a
n
 

m
a
in
ta
in
in
g
 s
o
m
e
 t
y
p
e
s
 o
f 
g
ra
s
s
la
n
d
. 
 
B
y
 c
re
a
ti
n
g
 s
m
a
ll 
w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 o
n
 s
u
c
h
 

a
m
e
n
it
y
 
g
ra
s
s
la
n
d
 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 
fo
r 
w
ild
lif
e
 
c
a
n
 
b
e
 
p
ro
m
o
te
d
 
in
 
a
d
d
it
io
n
 
to
 

la
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
m
e
n
t.
  

 

34



 

 
1
9
 

S
in
c
e
 1
9
9
8
 s
e
v
e
ra
l 
p
a
rk
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 s
u
rv
e
y
e
d
 a
n
d
 e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
w
o
rk
s
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t.
  

T
h
e
s
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 C

e
n
tr
a
l 
P
a
rk
, 
It
te
r 
P
a
rk
, 
S
ta
n
le
y
 R

e
c
re
a
ti
o
n
 G

ro
u
n
d
 a
n
d
 C

h
e
rr
y
 

O
rc
h
a
rd
 R
e
c
re
a
ti
o
n
 G
ro
u
n
d
. 
 T
h
e
re
 a
re
 a
p
p
ro
x
im
a
te
ly
 3
0
,0
0
0
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
tr
e
e
s
 o
n
 

th
e
s
e
 s
it
e
s
. 
  

 P
a
rk
 a
n
d
 o
p
e
n
 s
p
a
c
e
 t
re
e
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 (
P
O
S
):
 

 P
O
S
 1
.1
: 

T
o
 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
 
a
 
ro
b
u
s
t 
c
y
c
lic
a
l 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
 
in
 
c
o
n
ju
n
c
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
 
th
e
 
ri
s
k
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
 
a
n
d
 
a
 
d
e
ta
ile
d
 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
 

a
n
a
ly
s
is
  

 P
O
S
 1
.2
: 

T
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
tr
e
e
s
 a
re
 f
u
lly
 i
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 w
it
h
in
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
s
 f
o
r 
P
a
rk
s
 a
n
d
 O
p
e
n
 S
p
a
c
e
s
. 

  P
O
S
 1
.3
: 

T
o
 
c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
 
a
 
re
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
g
ra
m
 
th
a
t 
in
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
s
 
a
 

d
iv
e
rs
e
 
ra
n
g
e
 
o
f 
tr
e
e
 
s
p
e
c
ie
s
 
a
n
d
 
w
h
e
re
 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
, 
to
 
re
-

e
s
ta
b
lis
h
 h
is
to
ri
c
 l
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
s
. 

  6
.5
 
W
o
o
d
la
n
d
 

 C
a
m
b
ri
d
g
e
s
h
ir
e
 a
n
d
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 a
re
 a
m
o
n
g
s
t 
th
e
 l
e
a
s
t 
w
o
o
d
e
d
 a
re
a
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

U
K
. 
T
h
e
 t
o
ta
l 
a
re
a
 o
f 
w
o
o
d
la
n
d
, 
o
f 
0
.1
h
a
 a
n
d
 o
v
e
r,
 i
s
 1
2
,3
2
5
h
a
. 
T
h
is
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ts
 

3
.6
%
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
ty
 l
a
n
d
 a
re
a
. 
 A
 c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
b
le
 p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 o
f 
th
is
 i
s
 a
n
c
ie
n
t 
s
e
m
i-

n
a
tu
ra
l 
w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 w
h
ic
h
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ts
 a
 v
a
lu
a
b
le
 w
ild
lif
e
 a
n
d
 l
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
. 
 

 T
h
e
 
C
it
y
 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
o
w
n
s
 
s
ix
 
a
n
c
ie
n
t 
w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
, 
m
a
n
a
g
in
g
 
G
ri
m
e
s
h
a
w
 
W
o
o
d
 

(i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 H
ig
h
le
e
s
 S
p
in
n
e
y
),
 P
o
c
o
c
k
’s
 W

o
o
d
 i
n
 B
re
tt
o
n
 a
n
d
 l
e
a
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 o
th
e
rs
 

to
 N
e
n
e
 P
a
rk
 T
ru
s
t 
a
n
d
 W

o
o
d
la
n
d
 T
ru
s
t.
  
T
h
e
s
e
 a
re
a
s
 a
m
o
u
n
t 
to
 a
p
p
ro
x
im
a
te
ly
 

2
7
 h
e
c
ta
re
s
 a
n
d
 h
a
v
e
 a
tt
ra
c
te
d
 t
h
e
 d
e
s
ig
n
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
L
o
c
a
l 
N
a
tu
re
 R
e
s
e
rv
e
s
. 

 T
h
e
 t
y
p
ic
a
l 
c
o
m
p
o
s
it
io
n
 o
f 
lo
c
a
l 
a
n
c
ie
n
t 
w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 i
s
 O
a
k
, 
A
s
h
 a
n
d
 F
ie
ld
 M

a
p
le
, 

tr
a
d
it
io
n
a
ll
y
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 a
s
 c
o
p
p
ic
e
 w

it
h
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 f
o
r 
ti
m
b
e
r 
p
ro
d
u
c
ti
o
n
. 
 S

u
c
h
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
c
e
a
s
e
d
 e
a
rl
y
 l
a
s
t 
c
e
n
tu
ry
 a
n
d
 m

a
n
y
 w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
w
 b
e
c
o
m
e
 

n
e
g
le
c
te
d
 
o
r 
re
p
la
c
e
d
 
w
it
h
 
s
o
ft
w
o
o
d
 
p
la
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 
o
n
 
a
n
c
ie
n
t 
w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 
s
it
e
s
 

(P
A
W
S
).
 

   

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 c
o
n
ta
in
s
 7
8
 h
e
c
ta
re
s
 o
f 
w
e
t 
w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 h
a
b
it
a
t 
a
c
ro
s
s
 7
3
 s
it
e
s
. 
 O
f 

th
e
s
e
, 
th
e
 m

a
jo
ri
ty
 a
re
 l
e
s
s
 t
h
a
n
 1
 h
e
c
ta
re
 i
n
 s
iz
e
. 
 W

e
t 
w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 i
s
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
lly
 

a
n
d
 
lo
c
a
ll
y
 
ra
re
. 
 
It
 
is
 
a
 
p
ri
o
ri
ty
 
h
a
b
it
a
t 
w
it
h
in
 
th
e
 
C
a
m
b
ri
d
g
e
s
h
ir
e
 
a
n
d
 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 
B
io
d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 
A
c
ti
o
n
 
P
la
n
 
o
w
in
g
 
to
 
a
 
ri
c
h
 
d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 
o
f 
h
a
b
it
a
t.
  

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 c
re
a
te
 n
e
w
 w

e
t 
w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 w

ill
 b
e
 s
o
u
g
h
t 
in
 a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 

th
e
 w
e
t 
w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 a
u
d
it
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 w
it
h
in
 2
0
0
4
 b
y
 a
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 o
f 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 F
o
re
s
tr
y
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 C
it
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il.
 

 A
 n
e
w
 w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
 i
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
w
ill
 d
e
ta
il 
w
o
rk
 p
re
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
s
 

fo
r 
th
e
 n
e
x
t 
2
0
 y
e
a
rs
, 
a
n
d
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 t
o
 s
u
s
ta
in
 t
h
e
m
 f
o
r 
th
e
 n
e
x
t 
5
0
 

y
e
a
rs
. 
 
N
e
g
le
c
t 
o
v
e
r 
th
e
 
la
s
t 
7
5
 
y
e
a
rs
, 
in
 
a
d
d
it
io
n
 
to
 
c
lo
s
e
 
p
ro
x
im
it
y
 
o
f 
n
e
w
 

u
rb
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
, 
h
a
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 i
ts
 t
o
ll.
  
 

 T
h
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
 
w
o
u
ld
 s
e
t 
a
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 p
re
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
in
te
g
ri
ty
 

a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 s
e
n
s
it
iv
e
 t
o
 m

a
tt
e
rs
 o
f 
e
c
o
lo
g
y
 a
n
d
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
ili
ty
. 

In
 
d
ra
w
in
g
 
th
is
 
u
p
 
e
x
te
n
s
iv
e
 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 
w
o
u
ld
 
b
e
 
re
q
u
ir
e
d
 
w
it
h
 
lo
c
a
l 
a
n
d
 

re
g
io
n
a
l 
g
ro
u
p
s
. 
 T
h
e
 p
la
n
 w
o
u
ld
 n
o
t 
o
n
ly
 c
o
n
fo
rm

 t
o
 t
h
e
 U
K
 F
o
re
s
tr
y
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
 

b
u
t 
a
ls
o
 a
s
s
is
t 
w
it
h
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
g
ra
n
ts
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 E
n
g
lis
h
 W

o
o
d
la
n
d
 

G
ra
n
t 
S
c
h
e
m
e
. 

 W
o
o
d
la
n
d
 p
o
li
c
y
 a
n
d
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
  

P
o
li
c
y
 C
W
 1
: 

T
h
e
 
C
o
u
n
c
il
 
w
il
l 
a
im
 
to
 
a
c
h
ie
v
e
 
s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
it
s
 

w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 
a
s
 
d
e
te
rm
in
e
d
 
b
y
 
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 
w
it
h
in
 
a
 
re
v
is
e
d
 
W
o
o
d
la
n
d
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
P
la
n
. 

  P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
: 

C
W
 1
.1
: 

T
o
 
p
ro
d
u
c
e
 
a
 
W
o
o
d
la
n
d
 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
P
la
n
 
fo
r 
a
ll 
w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 

o
w
n
e
d
 
b
y
 
th
e
 
C
it
y
 
C
o
u
n
c
il.
 
T
h
is
 
p
la
n
 
w
o
u
ld
 
d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
 
th
e
 

fo
llo
w
in
g
 d
e
s
ir
e
s
: 

 •
 

T
o
 m

a
in
ta
in
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s
 t
re
e
 c
o
v
e
r 
a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
 w
o
o
d
s
  

to
w
a
rd
s
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
ili
ty
. 

 •
 

T
o
 m

a
k
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 f
o
r 
p
u
b
lic
 a
c
c
e
s
s
. 

 •
 

T
o
 m

a
in
ta
in
 w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 b
o
u
n
d
a
ri
e
s
, 
c
o
m
b
a
t 
fl
y
-t
ip
p
in
g
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
 

a
n
ti
-s
o
c
ia
l 
b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r.
 

 •
 

T
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
h
a
b
it
a
ts
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 w
o
o
d
s
. 

35



 

 
2
0
 

 •
 

T
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 b
io
d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
in
v
a
s
iv
e
 s
p
e
c
ie
s
. 

 •
 

T
o
 p
re
s
e
rv
e
 t
h
e
 h
is
to
ri
c
 f
e
a
tu
re
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
. 

 •
 

T
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 a
m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
s
ta
n
d
in
g
 a
n
d
 f
a
lle
n
 d
e
a
d
w
o
o
d
 (
w
h
e
re
  

th
is
 d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
c
o
m
p
ro
m
is
e
 s
a
fe
ty
.)
 

 •
 

T
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
. 

 •
 

R
e
s
to
re
 c
o
p
p
ic
e
 i
n
te
rs
p
e
rs
e
d
 w
it
h
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
. 

 •
 

E
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 s
u
it
a
b
le
 n
a
tu
ra
l 
re
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
. 

 •
 

E
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
w
h
e
re
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
. 

 

•
 

T
o
 a
tt
e
m
p
t 
to
 p
la
n
t 
tr
e
e
s
 o
f 
lo
c
a
l 
p
ro
v
e
n
a
n
c
e
. 

  
 6
.6
 
U
rb
a
n
 W
o
o
d
s
 

 T
h
e
 a
re
a
s
 o
ri
g
in
a
lly
 c
la
s
s
if
ie
d
 a
s
 s
h
e
lt
e
rb
e
lt
s
 w
e
re
 p
la
n
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
C
o
rp
o
ra
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 1
9
7
0
’s
 a
n
d
 8
0
’s
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 l
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 m

a
s
te
r 

p
la
n
. 
 A
s
 t
im
e
 h
a
s
 p
a
s
s
e
d
 t
h
e
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
is
 p
la
n
ti
n
g
 h
a
s
 s
h
if
te
d
 a
n
d
 t
o
d
a
y
 t
h
e
 

ti
tl
e
 o
f 
U
rb
a
n
 W

o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 i
s
 m

o
re
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
. 
 T
h
e
s
e
 w

o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 c
o
v
e
r 
a
 t
o
ta
l 

a
re
a
 o
f 
2
5
0
 h
e
c
ta
re
s
 a
n
d
 h
a
v
e
 a
p
p
ro
x
im
a
te
ly
 4
0
0
 m

ile
s
 o
f 
b
o
u
n
d
a
ry
 a
lo
n
g
s
id
e
 

ro
a
d
s
, 
re
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l,
 c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
a
n
d
 i
n
d
u
s
tr
ia
l 
p
re
m
is
e
s
. 

 T
h
e
s
e
 t
re
e
s
 a
re
 a
 m

ix
 o
f 
p
la
n
te
d
 n
a
ti
v
e
s
, 
th
o
s
e
 n
a
tu
ra
lis
e
d
 a
n
d
 s
h
ru
b
 s
p
e
c
ie
s
 

th
a
t 
a
re
 c
h
a
ra
c
te
ri
s
ti
c
 o
f 
a
 w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 s
e
tt
in
g
. 
 T
h
e
 m

ix
 i
s
 p
re
d
o
m
in
a
n
tl
y
 m

a
d
e
 u
p
 

o
f 
fa
s
t 
g
ro
w
in
g
 
s
p
e
c
ie
s
 
w
h
ic
h
 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 
to
 
m
a
tu
re
. 
 
C
o
m
p
o
n
e
n
ts
 
o
f 
th
e
 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
C
o
rp
o
ra
ti
o
n
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
s
 w
e
re
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
, 

b
u
t 
th
e
 t
im
e
 h
a
s
 c
o
m
e
 f
o
r 
a
 n
e
w
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
 t
o
 d
ir
e
c
t 
o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

lig
h
t 
o
f 
th
e
 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 
u
rb
a
n
 
w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 
c
o
n
te
n
t 
a
n
d
 
c
o
n
d
it
io
n
 
in
 
2
0
1
2
. 
 
S
u
c
h
 
a
 

re
v
is
io
n
 
w
o
u
ld
 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 
a
n
 
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 
to
 
th
e
 
F
o
re
s
tr
y
 
C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 
u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 

E
n
g
lis
h
 W

o
o
d
la
n
d
 G
ra
n
t 
S
c
h
e
m
e
. 

  

L
im
it
e
d
 a
c
ti
v
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
is
 n
o
w
 b
a
d
ly
 a
ff
e
c
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
s
e
 u
rb
a
n
 w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
, 
th
e
ir
 

q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 a
b
ili
ty
 t
o
 f
u
lf
il 
tw
o
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 i
n
te
n
d
e
d
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
, 
n
o
ta
b
ly
 t
o
 a
c
t 
a
s
 v
is
u
a
l 

a
n
d
 
s
o
u
n
d
 
d
e
a
d
e
n
in
g
 
b
a
rr
ie
rs
. 
 
N
e
g
le
c
te
d
 
w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 
b
e
c
o
m
e
 
d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 
to
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
 i
n
 a
 s
e
n
s
it
iv
e
 o
r 
c
o
s
t 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 m

a
n
n
e
r.
 

 P
o
li
c
y
 U
W
 1
: 

T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 w
il
l 
m
a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
 u
rb
a
n
 w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 t
o
w
a
rd
s
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
il
it
y
 

in
 a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 a
n
d
 g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
in
 a
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 

U
rb
a
n
 W
o
o
d
la
n
d
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
P
la
n
. 

 P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
: 

U
W
 1
.1
: 

T
o
 
p
ro
d
u
c
e
 
a
n
 
U
rb
a
n
 
W
o
o
d
la
n
d
 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
P
la
n
 
fo
r 
a
ll 

w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 
o
w
n
e
d
 
b
y
 
th
e
 
C
it
y
 
C
o
u
n
c
il 

w
it
h
 
th
e
 
fo
llo
w
in
g
 

a
s
p
ir
a
ti
o
n
s
: 

 

•
 

T
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
 w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 o
n
 t
o
w
a
rd
s
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
ili
ty
. 

 

•
 

T
o
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
 
th
e
 
w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 
to
 
p
ro
v
id
e
 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s
 
w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 

c
o
v
e
r.
 

 

•
 

T
o
 m

a
in
ta
in
 a
n
d
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 l
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 a
m
e
n
it
y
. 

 

•
 

T
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 b
io
d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 a
n
d
 m

a
x
im
is
e
 w
ild
lif
e
 h
a
b
it
a
ts
. 

 

•
 

T
o
 
p
ro
v
id
e
 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 
fo
r 
im
p
ro
v
e
d
 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 
a
n
d
 
re
c
re
a
ti
o
n
, 

w
h
e
re
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
. 

 

•
 

T
o
 p
ro
te
c
t 
a
n
d
 p
re
s
e
rv
e
 a
rc
h
a
e
o
lo
g
ic
a
l 
a
n
d
 c
u
lt
u
ra
l 
fe
a
tu
re
s
. 

 

•
 

T
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re
s
 t
h
a
t 
c
a
n
 a
s
s
is
t 
w
it
h
 a
d
a
p
ta
ti
o
n
 t
o
 c
lim

a
te
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
, 

a
s
 
w
e
ll 

a
s
 
to
 
m
a
x
im
is
e
 
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 
fo
r 

c
a
rb
o
n
 

s
e
q
u
e
s
tr
a
ti
o
n
. 

 

•
 

T
o
 
id
e
n
ti
fy
 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
n
e
w
 
s
it
e
s
 
fo
r 
w
o
o
d
s
 
a
n
d
 
e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 
th
e
ir
 

c
re
a
ti
o
n
 
a
d
jo
in
in
g
 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 
w
o
o
d
s
 
a
n
d
, 
w
h
e
re
 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
, 

m
a
k
in
g
 f
u
ll 
u
s
e
 o
f 
n
a
tu
ra
l 
re
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
. 

 

•
 

R
e
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
tr
e
e
s
 
to
 
b
e
 
e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 
b
y
 
n
a
tu
ra
l 
re
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 e
n
ri
c
h
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
ti
n
g
. 

 

36



 

 
2
1
 

•
 

T
o
 a
tt
e
m
p
t 
to
 p
la
n
t 
tr
e
e
s
 o
f 
lo
c
a
l 
p
ro
v
e
n
a
n
c
e
. 

 
 P
o
li
c
y
 U
W
 2
: 

T
h
e
 
C
o
u
n
c
il
 
w
il
l 
e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 
in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t,
 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
 
w
it
h
 

re
s
id
e
n
ts
 w
h
e
n
 w
o
rk
 i
s
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 a
n
d
 s
e
e
k
 t
o
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 t
h
e
 p
ro
b
le
m
s
 o
f 

a
n
ti
-s
o
c
ia
l 
b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
in
 u
rb
a
n
 w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
. 

 
P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
: 

U
W
 2
.1
: 

P
ro
d
u
c
e
 
a
 
p
ro
to
c
o
l 
fo
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
n
g
 
d
e
ta
ils
 
o
f 
tr
e
e
 
w
o
rk
s
 

p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 a
n
d
 t
o
 b
e
 a
 g
o
o
d
 n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
r 
e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 

a
re
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 i
n
 a
 m

a
n
n
e
r 
s
e
n
s
it
iv
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 w
is
h
e
s
 o
f 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
. 

 U
W
 2
.2
: 

T
o
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 p
u
b
lic
 a
p
p
re
c
ia
ti
o
n
, 
re
c
re
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
u
s
e
, 
e
n
jo
y
m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t.
 

 U
W
 2
.3
: 

In
tr
o
d
u
c
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re
s
 t
o
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
v
a
n
d
a
lis
m
, 
u
n
a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
 t
ip
p
in
g
, 

th
e
 d
u
m
p
in
g
 o
f 
w
a
s
te
 a
n
d
 l
it
te
r 
a
n
d
 r
e
s
id
e
n
t 
e
n
c
ro
a
c
h
m
e
n
t.
 

 6
.7
 
V
il
la
g
e
 a
n
d
 R
u
ra
l 
T
re
e
s
 

 M
a
n
y
 o
f 
th
e
 t
re
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 v
ill
a
g
e
s
 a
n
d
 r
u
ra
l 
a
re
a
s
 a
re
 p
ri
v
a
te
ly
 o
w
n
e
d
. 
 I
n
 s
p
it
e
 o
f 

th
is
 
th
e
 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
s
ti
ll 
h
a
s
 
re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
 
fo
r 
a
 
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 
w
h
ic
h
 
to
ta
l 

a
p
p
ro
x
im
a
te
ly
 5
0
0
0
. 
T
h
e
s
e
 t
re
e
s
 b
e
in
g
 a
p
p
ro
x
im
a
te
ly
 u
p
 t
o
 2
0
0
 y
e
a
rs
 o
ld
 a
re
 

a
m
o
n
g
s
t 
th
e
 o
ld
e
s
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 A
u
th
o
ri
ty
. 

 L
o
c
a
lly
, 
E
lm
 w

a
s
 o
n
e
 o
f 
th
e
 m

o
s
t 
im
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
tr
e
e
s
. 
 W

h
e
n
 D

u
tc
h
 E
Im

 D
is
e
a
s
e
 

s
tr
u
c
k
 t
h
is
 d
o
m
in
a
n
t 
h
e
d
g
e
ro
w
 t
re
e
 w

a
s
 l
o
s
t.
  
C
o
n
s
id
e
ra
b
le
 a
re
a
s
 o
f 
re
la
ti
v
e
ly
 

d
e
n
u
d
e
d
 l
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
t 
b
e
e
n
 r
e
p
la
c
e
d
, 
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 w

it
h
in
 a
re
a
s
 o
f 
m
o
re
 

in
te
n
s
iv
e
 f
a
rm

in
g
. 
  
T
o
 t
h
is
 d
a
y
 t
h
e
re
 r
e
m
a
in
s
 r
e
lia
n
c
e
 u
p
o
n
 E
lm
 r
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

th
a
t 
e
x
is
ts
 w
it
h
in
 a
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
a
l 
s
ta
te
 o
f 
g
ro
w
th
 f
o
llo
w
e
d
 b
y
 d
is
e
a
s
e
 r
e
la
te
d
 d
e
c
lin
e
. 
 

P
la
n
ti
n
g
 o
f 
A
s
h
 o
r 
O
a
k
 w
o
u
ld
 l
e
s
s
e
n
 d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
y
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 l
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 u
p
o
n
 t
h
is
 

re
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
. 

 D
is
ti
n
c
ti
v
e
 v
ill
a
g
e
 s
c
e
n
e
s
 c
a
n
 b
e
 m

a
in
ta
in
e
d
 a
n
d
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 b
y
 p
la
n
ti
n
g
 t
re
e
s
 

th
a
t 
o
ri
g
in
a
lly
 
g
e
n
e
ra
te
d
 
s
u
c
h
 
la
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
s
. 
T
h
e
 
u
s
e
 
o
f 
n
a
ti
v
e
 
s
p
e
c
ie
s
 
w
ill
 
b
e
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 w
h
e
re
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 i
.e
. 
ru
ra
l 
v
e
rg
e
s
. 
In
 c
e
rt
a
in
 v
ill
a
g
e
 

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
n
o
n
 n
a
ti
v
e
 s
to
c
k
 m

a
y
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 w
h
e
re
 s
it
e
 r
e
s
tr
ic
ti
o
n
s
 

o
r 
th
e
 s
u
rr
o
u
n
d
in
g
 l
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 d
ic
ta
te
s
. 

 

A
g
e
 
re
la
te
d
 
ri
s
k
s
 
o
f 
v
ill
a
g
e
 
tr
e
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
th
e
ir
 
c
lo
s
e
 
p
ro
x
im
it
y
 
to
 
p
ro
p
e
rt
y
 

n
e
c
e
s
s
it
a
te
s
 
fr
e
q
u
e
n
t 
in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 
to
 
b
e
 
fo
llo
w
e
d
 
b
y
 
a
 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 
o
f 
w
o
rk
s
 

b
a
s
e
d
 
u
p
o
n
 
th
e
 
fi
n
d
in
g
s
, 
th
is
 
fo
llo
w
e
d
 
b
y
 
p
ro
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 
o
f 
c
y
c
lic
a
l 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

p
la
n
s
. 
 T
o
 d
a
te
 o
n
ly
 a
 s
m
a
ll 
p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 o
f 
tr
e
e
s
 a
lo
n
g
s
id
e
 r
u
ra
l 
ro
a
d
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
n
d
 i
n
s
p
e
c
te
d
. 
  
 I
t 
w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 w

is
e
 t
o
 b
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
s
e
 t
re
e
s
 i
n
to
 c
y
c
lic
a
l 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h
o
u
t 
d
e
la
y
 
s
o
 
th
a
t 
th
e
 
C
it
y
 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
c
a
n
 
d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
 
d
u
ty
 
o
f 

c
a
re
. 

 In
 
re
c
e
n
t 
y
e
a
rs
 
P
a
ri
s
h
 
C
o
u
n
c
ils
 
a
n
d
 
T
re
e
 
W
a
rd
e
n
s
, 
o
n
 
s
e
v
e
ra
l 
o
c
c
a
s
io
n
s
, 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
lly
 
o
b
ta
in
e
d
 
fu
n
d
in
g
 
fo
r 
tr
e
e
s
 
w
it
h
in
 
th
e
ir
 
w
a
rd
s
. 
 
T
h
e
s
e
 
tr
e
e
s
 
h
a
v
e
 

ty
p
ic
a
lly
 b
e
e
n
 p
la
n
te
d
 o
n
 v
ill
a
g
e
 g
re
e
n
s
 a
n
d
 v
e
rg
e
s
, 
in
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 v
ill
a
g
e
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
’s
 
d
e
s
ir
e
. 
 
W
h
e
re
 
p
o
s
s
ib
le
 
th
e
 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 
h
e
lp
e
d
 
fa
c
ili
ta
te
 
th
e
s
e
 

re
q
u
e
s
ts
 b
y
 o
ff
e
ri
n
g
 s
u
it
a
b
le
 p
la
n
ti
n
g
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
t 
to
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 

th
o
s
e
 t
re
e
s
 p
la
n
te
d
 o
n
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
o
w
n
e
d
 l
a
n
d
. 

 V
il
la
g
e
 a
n
d
 r
u
ra
l 
tr
e
e
 p
o
li
c
ie
s
 a
n
d
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 (
V
R
):
 

 P
o
li
c
y
 V
R
 1
: 

T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 w
il
l 
p
re
s
e
rv
e
 a
n
d
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 d
is
ti
n
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
v
il
la
g
e
 

a
n
d
 r
u
ra
l 
tr
e
e
s
 i
n
 i
ts
 o
w
n
e
rs
h
ip
. 

 
P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
: 

V
R
 1
.1
: 

T
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 r
o
b
u
s
t 
c
y
c
lic
a
l 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
 i
n
 c
o
n
ju
n
c
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 a
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
 

a
n
a
ly
s
is
. 

 V
R
 1
.2
: 

T
o
 r
e
p
la
c
e
 a
ll 
tr
e
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 r
e
m
o
v
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
s
e
 a
re
a
s
 a
n
d
 

a
tt
e
m
p
t 
to
 e
x
p
a
n
d
 t
re
e
 c
o
v
e
r 
if
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
. 

 V
R
 1
.3
: 

T
o
 r
e
-p
la
n
t 
u
s
in
g
 s
u
it
a
b
le
 n
a
ti
v
e
 t
re
e
s
 e
x
c
e
p
t 
w
h
e
re
 t
h
is
 w
o
u
ld
 

re
s
u
lt
 i
n
 l
o
s
s
 o
f 
fa
m
ili
a
r 
v
e
rn
a
c
u
la
r.
 

 6
.8
 
N
e
w
 a
n
d
 R
e
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
P
la
n
ti
n
g
 

 T
re
e
s
 a
s
 a
 l
iv
in
g
 o
rg
a
n
is
m
 h
a
v
e
 a
 f
in
it
e
 l
if
e
 e
x
p
e
c
ta
n
c
y
. 
 W

h
ils
t 
re
la
ti
v
e
ly
 l
o
n
g
-

liv
e
d
, 
th
e
 s
tr
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 s
tr
a
in
 o
f 
th
e
 u
rb
a
n
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
tl
y
 s
h
o
rt
e
n
s
 t
h
is
. 
 

T
re
e
 
s
u
rv
e
y
s
 
a
n
d
 
in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 
in
 
th
e
 
C
it
y
 
h
a
v
e
 
fr
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y
 
re
v
e
a
le
d
 
a
 
la
rg
e
 

n
u
m
b
e
r 
w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 n
o
t 
s
u
it
a
b
le
 f
o
r 
th
e
ir
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 m

e
d
iu
m
 t
o
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

. 
 

37



 

 
2
2
 

W
h
ils
t 
th
e
 
p
re
s
e
n
t 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
 
re
q
u
ir
e
s
 
th
a
t 
e
a
c
h
 
tr
e
e
 
w
h
ic
h
 
is
 
re
m
o
v
e
d
 
b
e
 

re
p
la
c
e
d
, 
th
e
 
c
o
n
s
tr
a
in
t 
o
f 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 
m
e
a
n
s
 
th
is
 
o
n
ly
 
h
a
p
p
e
n
s
 
a
t 
th
e
 
h
ig
h
e
r 

p
ro
fi
le
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
  

 M
a
n
y
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
b
le
m
s
 e
n
c
o
u
n
te
re
d
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 d
a
il
y
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
tr
e
e
s
 c
a
n
 b
e
 

d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 a
tt
ri
b
u
te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 i
n
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 c
h
o
ic
e
 o
f 
s
p
e
c
ie
s
 a
t 
th
e
 t
im
e
 o
f 
p
la
n
ti
n
g
. 
 

G
re
a
te
s
t 
lo
n
g
 t
e
rm

 e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 i
n
 t
re
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
c
a
n
 b
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 b
y
 

e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 p
h
ilo
s
o
p
h
y
: 
 

“
R
ig
h
t 
T
re
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 R
ig
h
t 
P
la
c
e
”
 

is
 f
o
llo
w
e
d
 e
v
e
ry
 t
im
e
 a
 n
e
w
 o
r 
re
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
tr
e
e
 i
s
 s
e
le
c
te
d
 a
n
d
 p
la
n
te
d
. 

 T
h
is
 w
ill
 c
o
m
p
lim

e
n
t 
th
e
 p
la
n
ti
n
g
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

h
ic
h
 e
n
s
u
re
 h
e
a
lt
h
y
 t
re
e
s
 a
re
 

e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
, 
fa
ilu
re
s
 
m
in
im
is
e
d
, 
a
n
d
 
d
e
fe
c
ts
 
w
h
ic
h
 
c
o
u
ld
 
a
ff
e
c
t 
th
e
 
m
a
tu
re
 

c
o
n
d
it
io
n
 o
f 
th
e
 t
re
e
 r
e
m
o
v
e
d
 a
t 
th
e
 t
im
e
 w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 m

o
s
t 
c
o
s
t 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
. 

 A
 
tr
e
e
 
re
q
u
ir
e
s
 
s
p
a
c
e
 
in
 
w
h
ic
h
 
to
 
g
ro
w
, 
th
ri
v
e
 
a
n
d
 
p
ro
v
id
e
 
it
s
 
m
a
n
y
 
p
o
s
it
iv
e
 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts
. 
 T
o
 d
o
 t
h
is
 a
n
y
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 s
it
e
 s
h
o
u
ld
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
d
e
q
u
a
te
 s
p
a
c
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

tr
e
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
o
n
g
-t
e
rm

. 
 S
p
e
c
ie
s
 s
e
le
c
ti
o
n
 m

u
s
t 
b
e
 w
it
h
 c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 t
re
e
's
 

lik
e
ly
 u
lt
im
a
te
 s
iz
e
. 

 T
h
e
 
c
o
n
s
tr
a
in
ts
 
o
f 
th
e
 
u
rb
a
n
 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
c
a
n
 
m
a
k
e
 
th
e
 
e
n
la
rg
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 

w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
h
a
b
it
a
ts
 i
m
p
ra
c
ti
c
a
l.
  
W
it
h
 f
o
re
-p
la
n
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

o
f 
o
p
e
n
 
s
p
a
c
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
g
a
rd
e
n
s
 
th
a
t 
b
o
rd
e
r 
th
e
s
e
 
s
it
e
s
, 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 
b
u
ff
e
rs
 
a
n
d
 

e
x
te
n
s
io
n
s
 c
a
n
 b
e
 c
re
a
te
d
. 

 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
’s
 
m
o
s
t 
lim

it
in
g
 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
 
is
 
s
p
a
c
e
. 
 
T
h
is
 
n
e
e
d
s
 
to
 
b
e
 
u
s
e
d
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
ly
, 
a
n
d
 t
o
 g
re
a
te
s
t 
s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 b
e
n
e
fi
t.
  
T
h
e
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
"R
ig
h
t 
T
re
e
 

in
 t
h
e
 R
ig
h
t 
P
la
c
e
" 
fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
 w
ill
 e
n
s
u
re
 n
e
w
 p
la
n
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 n
a
tu
ra
l 
re
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

a
re
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
ly
 l
o
c
a
te
d
 a
n
d
 d
e
s
ig
n
e
d
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 e
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
 i
s
 n
o
t 
to
 

th
e
 d
e
tr
im
e
n
t 
o
f 
p
ro
te
c
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
to
ri
n
g
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
. 
 T
h
e
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 f
o
r 

tr
e
e
 a
n
d
 
lo
c
a
ti
o
n
 s
e
le
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
b
ri
e
fl
y
 
in
 A

p
p
e
n
d
ix
 
2
 “
R
ig
h
t 
T
re
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

R
ig
h
t 
P
la
c
e
" 
fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
. 

 In
 s
o
m
e
 p
a
rt
s
 o
f 
th
e
 C

it
y
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
tr
a
in
t 
o
f 
s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
p
u
b
lic
 s
p
a
c
e
 m

e
a
n
s
 a
 l
o
w
 

n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
tr
e
e
s
. 
 O
ft
e
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
s
e
 a
re
a
s
 t
h
e
re
 a
re
 p
ro
m
in
e
n
t 
p
ri
v
a
te
ly
 o
w
n
e
d
 s
it
e
s
. 

T
h
e
 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 
h
is
to
ri
c
a
lly
 
o
ff
e
re
d
 
a
 
lim

it
e
d
 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
, 
v
ia
 
it
s
 
n
a
tu
ra
l 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
g
ra
n
t 
s
c
h
e
m
e
, 
to
 e
n
a
b
le
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 t
o
 p
la
n
t 
s
u
c
h
 t
re
e
s
 w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
s
e
 

w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 a
 d
ir
e
c
t 
b
e
n
e
fi
t 
to
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t.
  

 

M
a
in
ta
in
in
g
 
a
n
d
 
e
n
h
a
n
c
in
g
 
th
e
 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 
tr
e
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
w
o
o
d
s
 
is
 
a
 
p
ri
o
ri
ty
, 
b
u
t 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 s
iz
e
 a
n
d
 d
is
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
 i
s
 a
n
 e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 

p
a
rt
 o
f 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
’s
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 g
ro
w
th
. 
 N
o
t 
o
n
ly
 d
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 p
la
n
ti
n
g
 o
f 
tr
e
e
s
 

e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 
o
p
e
n
 
s
p
a
c
e
, 
a
n
d
 
s
tr
e
e
ts
 
b
u
t 
a
ls
o
 
n
e
w
 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
. 
 
N
e
w
 

p
la
n
ti
n
g
 s
h
o
u
ld
 e
n
d
e
a
v
o
u
r 
to
 e
x
p
a
n
d
 g
re
e
n
 i
n
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
. 

 T
re
e
 p
la
n
ti
n
g
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p
ri
n
c
ip
le
 a
re
a
 w

h
e
re
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 g
ro
u
p
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 c
a
n
 

ta
k
e
 a
c
ti
v
e
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 t
re
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t.
  
S
u
c
h
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
a
t 
a
ll 
s
ta
g
e
s
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 
b
e
 
e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
d
, 
a
s
 
it
 
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
tl
y
 
in
c
re
a
s
e
s
 
tr
e
e
 
s
u
rv
iv
a
l 
ra
te
s
 
a
n
d
 

p
ro
v
id
e
s
 g
re
a
te
r 
s
e
n
s
e
 o
f 
o
w
n
e
rs
h
ip
. 
 I
t 
th
e
re
fo
re
 i
s
 a
ls
o
 s
e
e
n
 a
s
 a
n
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 

fo
r 
a
s
s
is
ta
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 c
o
s
ts
 o
f 
p
la
n
ti
n
g
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 s
p
o
n
s
o
rs
h
ip
. 
  

   N
e
w
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
tr
e
e
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 (
N
R
P
):
 

 
P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
: 

N
R
P
 1
: 

T
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 "
R
ig
h
t 
T
re
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 R
ig
h
t 
P
la
c
e
" 
fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
 

fo
r 
g
u
id
in
g
 t
re
e
 s
e
le
c
ti
o
n
 o
n
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
s
it
e
s
 a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 f
o
r 

o
b
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
. 

 N
R
P
 1
.1
: 

T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
w
ill
 p
la
n
t 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 n
e
w
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
tr
e
e
s
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
e
x
te
n
t 
o
f 
tr
e
e
 c
o
v
e
ra
g
e
 i
s
 m

a
in
ta
in
e
d
 o
r 

e
x
p
a
n
d
e
d
. 

 N
R
P
 1
.2
: 

T
o
 i
n
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 a
ft
e
rc
a
re
 i
n
to
 a
ll 
m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
. 

 N
R
P
 1
.3
: 

F
o
rm

u
la
te
 
a
 
p
la
n
ti
n
g
 
p
ro
g
ra
m
 
w
it
h
 
g
re
a
te
s
t 
p
ri
o
ri
ty
 
g
iv
e
n
 
to
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 
s
it
e
s
 
in
 
d
e
p
ri
v
e
d
 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
, 

k
e
y
 
tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
 

c
o
rr
id
o
rs
 
a
n
d
 
g
a
te
w
a
y
s
, 
la
rg
e
 
o
p
e
n
 
s
p
a
c
e
s
 
w
it
h
 
lit
tl
e
 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 

n
a
tu
ra
l 
v
e
g
e
ta
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 f
in
a
lly
 a
re
a
s
 w
it
h
in
 n
e
w
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
, 
in
 

th
is
 o
rd
e
r.
 

 N
R
P
 1
.4
: 

R
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
 
lo
c
a
l 
d
is
ti
n
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 
w
h
e
n
 
s
e
le
c
ti
n
g
 
a
n
d
 
p
la
n
ti
n
g
 

tr
e
e
s
. 

 N
R
P
 1
.5
: 

E
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t,
 

c
o
m
m
e
m
o
ra
ti
v
e
 

a
n
d
 

s
p
o
n
s
o
re
d
 p
la
n
ti
n
g
 s
c
h
e
m
e
s
 o
n
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
la
n
d
. 

 N
R
P
 1
.6
: 
U
s
e
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s
 a
n
d
 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 1
0
6
 A
g
re
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 s
e
c
u
re
 

tr
e
e
 p
la
n
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 
e
s
ta
b
lis
h
m
e
n
t 
o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
. 

38



 

 
2
3
 

 

6
.9
 
O
th
e
r 
S
it
e
s
 

 T
h
e
 C
it
y
 h
a
s
 m

a
n
y
 o
th
e
r 
tr
e
e
s
 w
it
h
in
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
g
ro
u
n
d
s
, 
c
h
u
rc
h
y
a
rd
s
, 
c
e
m
e
te
ri
e
s
, 

c
re
m
a
to
ri
a
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
p
re
m
is
e
s
. 
  

 S
c
h
o
o
ls
 
c
o
n
ta
in
 
a
 
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
p
ro
m
in
e
n
t 
tr
e
e
s
 
o
ff
e
ri
n
g
 
a
 
h
u
g
e
 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
. 
T
h
e
re
 a
re
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 
p
la
n
ti
n
g
 n
e
w
 t
re
e
s
 

w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
s
e
 s
it
e
s
 a
n
d
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
in
g
 c
h
ild
re
n
 t
o
 b
e
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
la
n
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 

a
ft
e
rc
a
re
 
o
f 
th
e
s
e
 
tr
e
e
s
. 
E
x
te
rn
a
l 
fu
n
d
in
g
 
m
a
y
 
b
e
 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
 
to
 
a
s
s
is
t 
s
u
c
h
 

p
ro
je
c
t,
 e
.g
. 
fr
o
m
 T
h
e
 W

o
o
d
la
n
d
 T
ru
s
t 
w
h
o
 o
ff
e
r 
fr
e
e
 t
re
e
 p
a
c
k
s
 f
o
r 
s
c
h
o
o
ls
. 

  W
h
ils
t 
th
e
re
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 
a
n
 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 
tr
e
e
s
 
a
t 
s
c
h
o
o
ls
, 
a
 
c
y
c
lic
a
l 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
g
ra
m
 i
s
 s
ti
ll 
lim

it
e
d
. 
 T
h
e
re
 a
re
 a
p
p
ro
x
im
a
te
ly
 4
,0
0
0
 t
re
e
s
 o
n
 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 s
it
e
s
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il.
  
In
it
ia
l 
w
o
rk
 n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 b
e
 e
x
te
n
d
e
d
 s
o
 

a
s
 t
o
 b
ri
n
g
 a
ll 
tr
e
e
s
 i
n
to
 a
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
g
ra
m
. 
S
e
v
e
ra
l 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
s
it
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
w
 

o
b
ta
in
e
d
 A
c
a
d
e
m
y
 s
ta
tu
s
, 
w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 b
e
c
o
m
e
 s
e
lf
 g
o
v
e
rn
in
g
. 
 I
t 
is
 i
n
te
n
d
e
d
 t
h
a
t 

a
t 
th
e
 p
o
in
t 
o
f 
tr
a
n
s
fe
r 
th
e
s
e
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 c
o
m
p
ly
 w
it
h
 

th
e
 p
o
lic
ie
s
 c
o
n
ta
in
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
is
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
. 
 

 T
re
e
s
 
w
it
h
in
 
c
h
u
rc
h
y
a
rd
s
, 
c
e
m
e
te
ri
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
c
re
m
a
to
ri
a
 
a
re
 
h
ig
h
ly
 
p
ro
m
in
e
n
t,
 

e
n
h
a
n
c
in
g
 t
h
e
 d
is
ti
n
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 b
e
in
g
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

h
is
to
ry
. 
 B
re
tt
o
n
 C

re
m
a
to
ri
u
m
 w
a
s
 b
u
ilt
 i
n
 a
n
c
ie
n
t 
w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 a
n
d
 s
o
 t
h
e
 t
re
e
s
 

v
e
ry
 m

u
c
h
 s
e
t 
th
e
 t
o
n
e
, 
e
s
p
e
c
ia
lly
 b
e
in
g
 s
it
u
a
te
d
 n
e
x
t 
to
 P
o
c
o
c
k
s
 W

o
o
d
. 

 M
a
n
y
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 t
re
e
s
 a
re
 a
m
o
n
g
s
t 
th
e
 o
ld
e
s
t 
tr
e
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C
it
y
 a
n
d
 t
h
o
s
e
 t
h
a
t 
c
a
rr
y
 

th
e
 g
re
a
te
s
t 
le
v
e
l 
o
f 
ri
s
k
. 
It
 i
s
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
th
a
t 
th
e
y
 a
re
 e
n
te
re
d
 i
n
to
 a
 

s
c
h
e
d
u
le
 f
o
r 
c
y
c
lic
a
l 
w
o
rk
s
. 
  

 O
th
e
r 
s
it
e
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 (
O
S
):
 

  P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
: 

O
S
 1
: 

T
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 r
o
b
u
s
t 
c
y
c
lic
a
l 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
 i
n
 c
o
n
ju
n
c
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

ri
s
k
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 a
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
. 

    

6
.1
0
 
L
a
n
d
m
a
rk
 T
re
e
s
 

 T
re
e
s
 a
n
d
 w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 o
ff
e
r 
a
 s
e
n
s
e
 o
f 
p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 a
 r
a
p
id
ly
 c
h
a
n
g
in
g
 C
it
y
. 
 I
n
 

m
a
n
y
 i
n
s
ta
n
c
e
s
, 
s
u
c
h
 a
s
 w
it
h
in
 B
re
tt
o
n
, 
th
e
y
 a
re
 t
h
e
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 o
f 
a
n
 a
re
a
’s
 p
a
s
t,
 

p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 t
h
e
 a
n
c
ie
n
t 
w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 a
n
d
 v
e
te
ra
n
 t
re
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re
 r
e
ta
in
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 

C
it
y
’s
 l
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
. 

 T
h
e
s
e
 t
re
e
s
 a
n
d
 w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
, 
a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 b
e
in
g
 p
ro
m
in
e
n
t 
fe
a
tu
re
s
 a
ls
o
, 
b
y
 v
ir
tu
e
 

o
f 
th
e
ir
 a
g
e
 a
n
d
 s
iz
e
, 
c
a
n
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
t 
th
e
 h
ig
h
e
s
t 
d
e
g
re
e
 o
f 
ri
s
k
. 
 T
h
e
y
 n
e
e
d
 s
p
a
c
e
 

to
 s
u
rv
iv
e
 a
n
d
 c
a
n
 b
e
 e
s
p
e
c
ia
lly
 v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 t
o
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 g
ro
w
in
g
 s
p
a
c
e
. 
 I
t 

is
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
th
a
t 
th
e
y
 a
re
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
n
d
 c
a
re
fu
lly
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 

th
e
ir
 r
is
k
 i
s
 m

in
im
is
e
d
. 

 S
in
c
e
 1
9
9
8
 a
 r
e
g
is
te
r 
o
f 
la
n
d
m
a
rk
 t
re
e
s
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 m

a
in
ta
in
e
d
. 
 A
ll 
th
e
 t
re
e
s
 o
n
 

th
is
 r
e
g
is
te
r 
a
re
 i
n
s
p
e
c
te
d
 a
n
n
u
a
lly
. 
 A
t 
th
e
 m

o
m
e
n
t 
it
 e
x
te
n
d
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 t
re
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 

h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 s
u
rv
e
y
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
s
ix
 y
e
a
rs
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
ta
in
s
 a
p
p
ro
x
im
a
te
ly
 2
0
0
 t
re
e
s
. 
 

T
h
e
 
b
ig
g
e
s
t 
c
o
n
s
tr
a
in
ts
 
o
n
 
e
x
te
n
d
in
g
 
th
e
 
re
g
is
te
r 
a
re
 
th
e
 
a
m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 
tr
e
e
 

s
to
c
k
 w
h
ic
h
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 s
u
rv
e
y
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
a
t 
ti
m
e
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 a
b
ili
ty
 t
o
 s
u
rv
e
y
 t
re
e
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

re
g
is
te
r.
 

 L
a
n
d
m
a
rk
 t
re
e
 p
o
li
c
y
 a
n
d
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 (
L
T
):
 

 P
o
li
c
y
 L
T
1
: 

T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 w
il
l 
p
re
s
e
rv
e
 a
n
d
 p
ro
te
c
t 
tr
e
e
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 l
a
n
d
m
a
rk
 r
e
g
is
te
r.
 

 
P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
: 

L
T
 1
.1
: 

T
o
 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 
to
 
s
u
rv
e
y
 
tr
e
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 
s
o
 
a
s
 
to
 
fi
n
d
 
a
n
d
 

re
g
is
te
r 
a
ll 
la
n
d
m
a
rk
 t
re
e
s
. 

 L
T
 1
.2
: 

T
o
 e
x
te
n
d
 t
h
e
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 
la
n
d
m
a
rk
 t
re
e
s
 

c
a
n
 b
e
 a
d
e
q
u
a
te
ly
 m

a
in
ta
in
e
d
. 

 

7
 

P
R
IV
A
T
E
 T
R
E
E
S
 

 M
a
n
y
 n
o
ta
b
le
 t
re
e
s
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 C
it
y
 g
ro
w
 i
n
 p
ri
v
a
te
 g
a
rd
e
n
s
. 
 T
h
e
 m

a
jo
ri
ty
 o
f 
la
n
d
 

o
w
n
e
rs
 t
a
k
e
 a
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 v
ie
w
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 t
re
e
s
 a
n
d
 m

o
s
t 
la
rg
e
r 
la
n
d
o
w
n
e
rs
 a
re
 a
w
a
re
 

o
f 
th
e
 g
ra
n
t 
a
id
 s
c
h
e
m
e
s
 a
n
d
 s
o
u
rc
e
s
 o
f 
a
d
v
ic
e
 t
o
 p
a
y
 f
o
r 
m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 w
o
rk
s
. 

T
h
e
re
 i
s
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
fu
rt
h
e
r 
p
la
n
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 s
c
h
e
m
e
s
 t
o
 p
ro
m
o
te
 t
h
is
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 

a
s
s
is
t 
w
it
h
 g
re
e
n
in
g
 o
f 
th
e
 C
it
y
. 

 

39



 

 
2
4
 

A
s
 a
 L
o
c
a
l 
P
la
n
n
in
g
 A
u
th
o
ri
ty
, 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 a
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 d
u
ty
 t
o
 p
ro
te
c
t 
tr
e
e
s
 

o
f 
g
re
a
te
s
t 
a
m
e
n
it
y
 v
a
lu
e
. 
 T
h
is
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 s
e
ts
 o
u
t 
th
e
 C
it
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 

th
e
 p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
p
ri
v
a
te
ly
 o
w
n
e
d
 t
re
e
s
. 

 P
ri
v
a
te
 t
re
e
 a
n
d
 w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
p
o
li
c
ie
s
 (
P
T
) 

 P
o
li
c
y
 P
T
 1
 

T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 w
il
l 
s
e
e
k
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
a
ll
 t
re
e
s
 a
n
d
 w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 m
a
k
in
g
 a
 

p
o
s
it
iv
e
 
c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 
to
 
o
u
r 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
a
re
 
p
ro
te
c
te
d
 
a
n
d
 
w
h
e
re
 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
. 
 

 P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

 
P
T
 1
.1
: 
T
o
 u
ti
lis
e
 a
n
d
 e
n
fo
rc
e
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 p
o
w
e
rs
 t
o
 r
e
ta
in
 a
n
d
 p
ro
te
c
t 
tr
e
e
s
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 T
re
e
 P
re
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 O
rd
e
rs
 a
n
d
 C
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 A
re
a
 s
ta
tu
s
. 

 
 

P
T
 1
.2
: 
T
o
 c
o
m
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 a
d
v
is
e
 o
n
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
in
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 

a
ff
e
c
t 
tr
e
e
s
 a
n
d
 w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
. 

 P
o
li
c
y
 P
T
 2
 

T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 w
il
l 
re
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 t
re
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 w
it
h
in
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 a
p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 

s
u
c
h
 
a
 
w
a
y
 
th
a
t 
e
n
s
u
re
s
 
th
e
 
re
te
n
ti
o
n
 
o
f 
g
o
o
d
 
q
u
a
li
ty
 
tr
e
e
 
a
n
d
 

w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 c
o
v
e
ra
g
e
 o
r 
e
n
s
u
re
s
 i
ts
 c
re
a
ti
o
n
. 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
w
il
l 
n
o
t 
b
e
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
w
o
u
ld
 d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 o
r 
in
d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 d
a
m
a
g
e
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 m
a
tu
re
 o
r 

a
n
c
ie
n
t 
w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 o
r 
v
e
te
ra
n
 t
re
e
s
. 
 

 
  P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

 
P
T
 2
.1
: 

T
o
 b
e
 g
u
id
e
d
 b
y
 b
e
s
t 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 f
o
r 
a
 c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t 
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
in
g
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

 
 

P
T
 2
.2
: 

T
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
p
ro
s
e
c
u
ti
o
n
 w
h
e
n
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s
 a
re
 b
re
a
c
h
e
d
 o
r 

th
e
re
 a
re
 b
re
a
c
h
e
s
 o
f 
T
P
O
s
 o
r 
th
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 
C
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 

A
re
a
 r
e
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
. 
 

 
 

P
T
 2
.3
: 

T
re
e
s
 a
n
d
 W

o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 a
re
 t
o
 b
e
 g
iv
e
n
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
in
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
, 
re
q
u
ir
in
g
 s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
 o
f 
s
u
rv
e
y
s
 i
n
 

a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 B
ri
ti
s
h
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
 5
8
3
7
: 
2
0
0
5
 “
T
re
e
s
 I
n
 R
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

C
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
- 
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
”.
 

  

P
T
 2
.4
: 

W
h
e
n
 
g
ra
n
ti
n
g
 
p
e
rm

is
s
io
n
 
s
e
t 
c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s
 
fo
r 
th
e
 
re
te
n
ti
o
n
, 

p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
, 
p
la
n
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 c
a
re
 o
f 
tr
e
e
s
. 

 
P
T
 2
.5
: 

U
ti
lis
e
 
c
o
m
m
u
te
d
 
s
u
m
s
 
a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 
w
it
h
 
S
e
c
ti
o
n
 
1
0
6
 

A
g
re
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 f
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
tr
e
e
 c
o
v
e
r.
 

 
P
T
 2
.6
: 

T
o
 u
ti
lis
e
 a
n
d
 e
n
fo
rc
e
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 p
o
w
e
rs
 t
o
 r
e
ta
in
 a
n
d
 p
ro
te
c
t 

g
o
o
d
 q
u
a
lit
y
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 t
re
e
s
 t
h
re
a
te
n
e
d
 b
y
 n
e
w
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t,
 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
. 

 P
o
li
c
y
 P
T
 3
 

T
h
e
 o
u
tr
ig
h
t 
re
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 
g
o
o
d
 q
u
a
li
ty
 t
re
e
s
 a
n
d
 w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 s
h
a
ll
 b
e
 

re
s
is
te
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
s
o
u
n
d
 a
rb
o
ri
c
u
lt
u
ra
l 
o
r 
te
c
h
n
ic
a
l 
re
a
s
o
n
s
 

s
u
c
h
 a
s
 i
rr
e
fu
ta
b
le
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
s
u
b
s
id
e
n
c
e
. 

 
P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

P
T
 3
.1
: 

T
o
 p
ro
te
c
t 
tr
e
e
s
 o
f 
a
m
e
n
it
y
 v
a
lu
e
. 

 
P
o
li
c
y
 P
T
 4
 

T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 w
il
l 
p
ro
m
o
te
 p
u
b
li
c
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 b
e
tt
e
r 
u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 

o
f 
tr
e
e
 
a
n
d
 
w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
th
ro
u
g
h
 
u
s
e
 
o
f 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t.
 

 P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

P
T
 4
.1
: 

T
o
 p
ro
m
o
te
 g
o
o
d
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 o
f 
tr
e
e
 a
n
d
 w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 c
a
re
. 

 
P
T
 4
.2
: 

T
o
 
e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 
o
w
n
e
rs
 
o
f 
n
o
ta
b
le
 
tr
e
e
s
 
th
a
t 
a
re
 
w
o
rt
h
y
 
o
f 

p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 a
d
o
p
t 
b
e
s
t 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
s
 f
o
r 
tr
e
e
 c
a
re
. 

 
P
T
 4
.3
: 

T
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
 t
re
e
 w

a
rd
e
n
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 t
o
 r
e
a
c
h
 a
n
d
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 
v
o
lu
n
te
e
rs
 
a
n
d
 
e
d
u
c
a
te
 
s
a
m
e
 
w
it
h
 
a
c
ti
v
e
 

in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 t
re
e
s
. 
 

 P
o
li
c
y
 P
T
 5
 

T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 w
il
l 
e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 n
e
w
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
tr
e
e
 a
n
d
 w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 

p
la
n
ti
n
g
, 
u
s
in
g
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 t
re
e
 s
p
e
c
ie
s
. 

 P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

P
T
 5
.1
: 

T
o
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
rs
 t
o
 s
u
b
m
it
 d
e
ta
ils
 o
f 
tr
e
e
 s
p
e
c
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

n
u
m
b
e
rs
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
ir
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
. 
 

 

40



 

 
2
5
 

P
T
 5
.2
: 

T
o
 p
ro
m
o
te
 t
re
e
 a
n
d
 w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 p
la
n
ti
n
g
 w
h
e
re
 i
t 
is
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
is
 w
ill
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
a
m
e
n
it
y
. 

 
P
T
 5
.3
: 

T
o
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
w
ill
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

lo
c
a
lit
y
. 

 7
.1
 
T
re
e
s
 a
n
d
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

  T
h
e
 
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
c
e
 
o
f 

th
e
 
L
o
n
d
o
n
–
S
ta
n
s
te
d
–
C
a
m
b
ri
d
g
e
-P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 
(M

1
1
) 

G
ro
w
th
 C

o
rr
id
o
r 
m
e
a
n
s
 t
h
e
re
 w

ill
 b
e
 m

a
jo
r 
in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
in
 h
o
u
s
in
g
, 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

fa
c
ili
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 i
n
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
. 
 T
h
is
 b
ri
n
g
s
 w

it
h
 i
t 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 
in
n
o
v
a
ti
v
e
 a
n
d
 

s
tr
a
te
g
ic
a
lly
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 t
re
e
 a
n
d
 w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
m
e
n
t.
  
It
 i
s
 e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
th
a
t 
tr
e
e
s
 

a
n
d
 w

o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 a
re
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
d
 a
s
 a
n
 e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 d
e
s
ig
n
 a
n
d
 f
a
b
ri
c
 o
f 

g
ro
w
th
. 

 A
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
n
g
 
th
e
 
p
re
d
ic
te
d
 
g
ro
w
th
 
in
 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
’s
 
p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 
a
n
d
 

e
c
o
n
o
m
y
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 
a
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 t
re
e
 a
n
d
 

w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 
p
la
n
ti
n
g
. 
 
T
h
e
re
 
a
re
 
a
 
n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
in
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 
to
 
e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 
th
e
 
n
a
tu
ra
l 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t.
  
T
h
e
y
 a
ll 
o
ff
e
r 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 t
re
e
 a
n
d
 w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 c
o
v
e
r 

o
f 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 m

o
s
a
ic
 o
f 
g
re
e
n
 s
p
a
c
e
 a
n
d
 h
a
b
it
a
ts
. 
 H
o
w
e
v
e
r 
a
s
 

e
a
c
h
 h
a
s
 i
ts
 o
w
n
 a
g
e
n
d
a
 a
n
d
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
, 
e
ff
o
rt
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 m

a
d
e
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
y
 a
re
 c
o
o
rd
in
a
te
d
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
lim

e
n
ta
ry
. 

 T
h
e
 s
c
a
le
 o
f 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 i
n
 c
o
m
in
g
 d
e
c
a
d
e
s
 w
ill
 

fa
c
ili
ta
te
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
fu
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
th
e
 c
re
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
tt
ra
c
ti
v
e
 
a
n
d
 
g
re
e
n
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 

a
n
d
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ts
. 
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
e
rs
 h
a
v
e
 a
 v
a
lu
a
b
le
 r
o
le
 a
s
 t
h
e
 k
e
y
 p
la
y
e
r 

in
 t
h
e
 m

a
jo
ri
ty
 o
f 
la
n
d
 u
s
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
. 
 T
h
e
y
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
th
e
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 t
re
e
s
 a
n
d
 

w
h
e
re
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 i
n
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 t
re
e
 p
la
n
ti
n
g
 w
it
h
in
 n
e
w
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
. 

 U
s
e
 
s
h
o
u
ld
 
b
e
 
m
a
d
e
 
o
f 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 
c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s
 
a
n
d
 
S
e
c
ti
o
n
 
1
0
6
 
A
g
re
e
m
e
n
ts
 
to
 

e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
fu
n
d
s
 a
re
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 f
o
r 
e
n
h
a
n
c
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 t
re
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t.
  
T
h
is
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 
re
q
u
ir
e
 
th
a
t 
lo
n
g
 
te
rm

 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
s
 
a
re
 
p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
, 
w
it
h
 
a
n
 

in
d
ic
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
m
m
it
te
d
 s
o
u
rc
e
 a
n
d
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 f
o
r 
th
a
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t.
 

     

O
n
e
 o
f 
th
e
 m

o
s
t 
fr
e
q
u
e
n
t 
th
re
a
ts
 t
o
 t
re
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 m

o
s
t 
c
o
m
m
o
n
 r
e
a
s
o
n
 f
o
r 

m
a
k
in
g
 
a
 
T
P
O
, 
is
 
th
e
 
p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
la
n
d
 
u
p
o
n
 
w
h
ic
h
 
tr
e
e
s
 
a
re
 

g
ro
w
in
g
. 
 
T
re
e
s
 
h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
o
ff
e
r 
c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
b
le
 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 
to
 
a
 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
s
it
e
, 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 
a
 
d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 
o
f 
la
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
, 
m
a
tu
ri
ty
, 
p
ro
v
id
e
 
v
it
a
l 
h
a
b
it
a
t 
fo
r 
w
ild
lif
e
, 

im
p
ro
v
e
 a
ir
 q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
 s
h
a
d
e
, 
w
h
ic
h
 a
s
s
is
ts
 i
n
 e
n
e
rg
y
 c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
. 
 I
n
 

o
rd
e
r 
to
 d
e
c
id
e
 w

h
ic
h
 t
re
e
s
 a
re
 s
u
it
a
b
le
 f
o
r 
re
te
n
ti
o
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
rs
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 C

it
y
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
w
ill
 
b
e
 
re
q
u
ir
e
d
 
to
 
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 
a
 
b
a
la
n
c
e
d
 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
, 
a
s
 

p
ro
v
id
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 B
ri
ti
s
h
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
 5
8
3
7
: 
2
0
0
5
 “
T
re
e
s
 I
n
 R
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 C
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 -
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
”.
  

 T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
g
iv
e
s
 p
re
-a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 a
d
v
ic
e
 a
n
d
 g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 
s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
rs
, 
b
u
ild
e
rs
 
a
n
d
 
a
rc
h
it
e
c
ts
. 
 
S
c
h
e
m
e
s
 
a
re
 
fr
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y
 
a
m
e
n
d
e
d
 
to
 

e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
tr
e
e
s
 a
re
 p
ro
p
e
rl
y
 r
e
ta
in
e
d
 o
ft
e
n
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 a
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 o
f 

w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 a
p
p
lic
a
n
t 
to
 r
e
a
c
h
 m

u
tu
a
lly
 a
c
c
e
p
ta
b
le
 s
o
lu
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
fl
ic
ts
 

th
a
t 
c
a
n
 
a
ri
s
e
. 
C
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 
in
 
th
e
 
fu
tu
re
 
w
ill
 
b
e
 
g
iv
e
n
 
to
 
th
e
 
c
re
a
ti
o
n
 
o
f 
a
 

S
u
p
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ry
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 D
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
in
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
to
 t
re
e
s
 a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
s
 p
a
rt
 

o
f 
th
e
 L
o
c
a
l 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
. 
 

 T
re
e
 a
n
d
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
p
o
li
c
ie
s
 (
T
D
) 

 P
o
li
c
y
 T
D
 1
 

T
h
e
 
C
o
u
n
c
il
 
w
il
l 
re
je
c
t 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 
w
it
h
 
in
a
d
e
q
u
a
te
 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
 
fo
r 
th
e
 
re
te
n
ti
o
n
 
o
f 
g
o
o
d
 
q
u
a
li
ty
 
tr
e
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
w
o
o
d
s
. 
T
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 w
il
l 
e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 c
re
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 t
re
e
 p
la
n
ti
n
g
 i
n
 a
ll
 n
e
w
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
. 

 P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
: 

T
D
 1
.1
: 

T
o
 u
ti
lis
e
 a
n
d
 e
n
fo
rc
e
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 p
o
w
e
rs
 t
o
 r
e
ta
in
 a
n
d
 p
ro
te
c
t 

e
x
is
ti
n
g
 t
re
e
s
 w
it
h
in
 n
e
w
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 t
re
e
s
 

th
re
a
te
n
e
d
 b
y
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
. 

T
D
 1
.2
: 

T
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 
a
n
d
 e
n
fo
rc
e
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s
 o
f 
c
o
n
s
e
n
t,
 

w
h
e
re
 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
. 

 

7
.2
 
P
ro
te
c
ti
n
g
 T
re
e
s
 

 T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 p
o
w
e
rs
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 a
n
d
 e
n
fo
rc
e
 T
re
e
 P
re
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 O

rd
e
rs
 (
T
P
O
) 

a
n
d
 
d
e
s
ig
n
a
te
 
C
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 
A
re
a
s
 
w
it
h
in
 
w
h
ic
h
 
a
ll 

e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 
tr
e
e
s
 
a
re
 

p
ro
te
c
te
d
, 
a
n
d
 o
n
ly
 i
n
 c
a
s
e
s
 o
f 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
th
re
a
t 
it
 w
ill
 s
e
e
k
 t
o
 l
e
g
a
lly
 p
ro
te
c
t 
tr
e
e
s
 

b
y
 
u
s
e
 
o
f 
T
P
O
. 
 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 
ra
re
ly
 
a
llo
w
 
th
e
 
p
ro
a
c
ti
v
e
 
u
s
e
 
o
f 
o
rd
e
rs
 
o
r 
th
e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 u
p
d
a
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 r
e
-s
u
rv
e
y
in
g
. 

41



 

 
2
6
 

 T
h
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
s
u
c
h
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 r
e
s
tr
ic
ti
o
n
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 r
ig
h
ts
 o
f 
a
 l
a
n
d
o
w
n
e
r 
is
 

a
lw
a
y
s
 a
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
s
o
u
rc
e
 o
f 
c
o
n
fl
ic
t 
a
n
d
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
y
. 
 H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 m

a
n
y
 o
f 
o
u
r 
fi
n
e
s
t 

tr
e
e
s
 a
n
d
 w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 w
o
u
ld
 n
o
t 
b
e
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
o
u
r 
la
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 t
o
d
a
y
 i
f 
s
u
c
h
 p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 

h
a
d
 n
o
t 
b
e
e
n
 u
s
e
d
. 
E
q
u
a
lly
 i
t 
is
 n
o
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 c
re
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
“F
ri
e
n
d
s
 o
f”
 g
ro
u
p
s
 

m
a
y
 h
a
v
e
 a
ls
o
 s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
 s
o
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 a
s
s
e
ts
. 

 T
h
e
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
 o
f 
p
ri
v
a
te
ly
 o
w
n
e
d
 t
re
e
s
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 C
it
y
 i
s
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
a
s
s
e
t 
to
 i
ts
 

p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
. 
 N
o
t 
o
n
ly
 d
o
 t
h
e
s
e
 t
re
e
s
 o
ft
e
n
 f
o
rm

 s
o
m
e
 o
f 
d
e
fi
n
in
g
 c
h
a
ra
c
te
ri
s
ti
c
 o
f 

o
u
r 
to
w
n
s
c
a
p
e
 a
n
d
 c
o
u
n
tr
y
s
id
e
 e
q
u
a
lly
 t
h
e
y
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
n
 e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
e
le
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 

C
it
y
’s
 

G
re
e
n
 

In
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
, 

p
ro
v
id
in
g
 

m
ic
ro
c
lim

a
te
s
, 

w
ild
lif
e
 

h
a
b
it
a
ts
, 

c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
v
it
y
 o
f 
h
a
b
it
a
ts
 e
tc
. 

 P
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 
h
a
s
 
n
o
t 
o
n
ly
 
b
e
e
n
 
a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 
th
ro
u
g
h
 
th
e
 
s
ta
tu
to
ry
 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
. 
 
A
 

s
u
b
s
ta
n
ti
a
l 
n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
tr
e
e
s
 
h
a
v
e
 
b
e
e
n
 
s
a
v
e
d
 
fr
o
m
 
in
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 
p
ru
n
in
g
 
o
r 

p
re
m
a
tu
re
 
fe
lli
n
g
 
b
y
 
th
e
 
o
ff
e
r 
o
f 
e
x
p
e
rt
 
a
d
v
ic
e
 
fr
o
m
 
th
e
 
C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 
o
ff
ic
e
rs
. 
 

A
d
v
ic
e
 i
s
 o
ff
e
re
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 o
w
n
e
rs
 o
f 
p
ro
te
c
te
d
 t
re
e
s
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
 w
it
h
in
 a
 

C
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 A
re
a
. 
T
h
is
 a
d
v
ic
e
 i
s
 o
ff
e
re
d
 f
re
e
 a
n
d
 i
s
 s
e
e
n
 a
s
 a
 v
a
lu
a
b
le
 p
a
rt
 o
f 

tr
e
e
 p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 c
re
a
te
s
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 f
o
r 
th
o
s
e
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 w

is
h
in
g
 t
o
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 
tr
e
e
 
w
o
rk
s
. 
 
T
h
e
 
q
u
a
lit
y
 
o
f 
p
ri
v
a
te
 
tr
e
e
 
c
a
re
 
is
 
v
e
ry
 
v
a
ri
a
b
le
 
a
n
d
 

ra
n
g
e
s
 
fr
o
m
 
o
w
n
e
rs
 
w
h
o
 
a
re
 
c
o
m
p
le
te
ly
 
in
d
if
fe
re
n
t,
 
th
ro
u
g
h
 
m
o
ti
v
a
te
d
 
b
u
t 

p
o
o
rl
y
 
a
d
v
is
e
d
 
o
w
n
e
rs
, 
to
 
th
o
s
e
 
w
h
o
 
ta
k
e
 
g
re
a
t 
p
ri
d
e
 
in
 
th
e
ir
 
tr
e
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
a
re
 

a
n
x
io
u
s
 
to
 
s
e
e
k
 
th
e
 
b
e
s
t 
a
d
v
ic
e
 
a
n
d
 
e
n
g
a
g
e
 
q
u
a
lit
y
 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
rs
 
to
 
c
a
rr
y
 
o
u
t 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 w
o
rk
. 

 S
ta
tu
to
ry
 P
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 

 U
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 F
o
re
s
tr
y
 A
c
t 
1
9
6
7
(a
s
 a
m
e
n
d
e
d
) 
p
e
rm

is
s
io
n
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 F
o
re
s
tr
y
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 t
o
 f
e
ll 
g
ro
w
in
g
 t
re
e
s
 i
s
 o
ft
e
n
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
. 
 T
h
is
 p
e
rm

is
s
io
n
 i
s
 g
ra
n
te
d
 

v
ia
 a
 F
e
lli
n
g
 l
ic
e
n
c
e
. 
 T
y
p
ic
a
lly
 a
n
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
  
w
h
e
re
 t
re
e
s
 

a
b
o
v
e
 a
 c
e
rt
a
in
  
s
te
m
 d
ia
m
e
te
r 
 a
b
o
v
e
 g
ro
u
n
d
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
r 
m
o
re
 t
h
a
n
  
5
 c
u
b
ic
 

m
e
tr
e
s
 o
f 
ti
m
b
e
r 
is
 f
e
lle
d
 w
it
h
in
 a
 g
iv
e
n
 c
a
le
n
d
a
r 
q
u
a
rt
e
r.
  
 

  In
 c
o
n
ju
n
c
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 i
ts
 d
u
ty
, 
a
s
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
in
 t
h
e
 T
o
w
n
 a
n
d
 C
o
u
n
tr
y
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 A
c
t,
 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
w
ill
 i
n
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 p
o
lic
ie
s
 r
e
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 T
re
e
s
 a
n
d
 W

o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 w
it
h
in
 i
ts
 L
o
c
a
l 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
. 
 
P
o
lic
ie
s
 
p
ro
te
c
ti
n
g
 
tr
e
e
s
 
e
x
is
t 
w
it
h
in
 
th
e
 
C
o
re
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 P
o
lic
ie
s
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
P
la
n
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

  

T
h
e
re
 
a
re
 
o
v
e
r 
3
5
0
 
T
P
O
s
 
a
n
d
 
2
9
 
C
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 
A
re
a
s
. 
 
T
h
e
 
p
re
s
s
u
re
 
fo
r 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
n
e
c
e
s
s
it
a
te
s
 
th
e
 
p
ro
-a
c
ti
v
e
 
u
s
e
 
o
f 
T
P
O
s
, 
h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
th
e
 
lim

it
e
d
 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 m

a
k
e
s
 t
h
is
 g
e
n
e
ra
lly
 i
m
p
ra
c
ti
c
a
l,
 a
n
d
 T
P
O
s
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 t
e
n
d
 t
o
 b
e
 u
s
e
d
 

re
a
c
ti
v
e
ly
 w
h
e
n
 a
 t
h
re
a
t 
to
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
d
it
io
n
 o
r 
re
te
n
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
 t
re
e
 i
s
 k
n
o
w
n
. 

 S
in
c
e
 1
9
9
8
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
d
 a
n
d
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 m

a
n
y
 o
f 
th
e
 o
ld
e
r 
T
P
O
s
. 
 

T
h
is
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 h
a
s
 n
o
w
 h
a
lt
e
d
 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 l
a
c
k
 o
f 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
. 

 T
h
e
 w
o
rk
 o
n
 t
re
e
s
 p
ro
te
c
te
d
 b
y
 a
 T
P
O
 o
r 
in
 a
 C
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 A
re
a
s
 p
la
c
e
s
 a
 d
u
ty
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 t
re
e
 o
w
n
e
r 
to
 b
e
 g
ra
n
te
d
 p
e
rm

is
s
io
n
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
p
ri
o
r 
to
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
in
g
 

th
e
 w

o
rk
. 
 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 a
 d
u
ty
 t
o
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
s
e
 r
e
q
u
e
s
ts
 w

it
h
in
 8
 o
r 
6
 

w
e
e
k
s
 r
e
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
. 

    P
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 A
d
v
ic
e
 

 F
re
e
 a
d
v
ic
e
 i
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 C
it
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 i
s
 s
e
e
n
 a
s
 a
n
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
a
re
a
 o
f 

w
o
rk
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
n
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 t
re
e
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
. 
 W

h
e
n
 i
t 
is
 

s
o
u
g
h
t 
in
 
c
o
n
ju
n
c
ti
o
n
 
w
it
h
 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 
a
n
d
 
T
P
O
s
 
th
is
 
m
a
k
e
s
 
th
e
 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
 
m
o
re
 

e
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 a
 c
o
s
t 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 

 T
h
e
re
 
a
re
, 
u
n
fo
rt
u
n
a
te
ly
, 
m
a
n
y
 
p
e
o
p
le
 
w
ill
in
g
 
to
 
o
ff
e
r 
tr
e
e
 
a
d
v
ic
e
 
w
h
ic
h
 
is
 

in
a
c
c
u
ra
te
, 
a
n
d
 
m
a
y
 
h
a
v
e
 
s
e
ri
o
u
s
 
c
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
s
 
fo
r 
th
e
 
tr
e
e
 
a
n
d
 
it
s
 
o
w
n
e
r.
  

A
rb
o
ri
c
u
lt
u
re
 
is
 
a
n
 
e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 
te
c
h
n
ic
a
l 
d
is
c
ip
lin
e
 
w
h
e
re
 
q
u
a
lif
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 
a
t 

v
a
ri
o
u
s
 l
e
v
e
ls
 a
re
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
. 
 R
e
s
e
a
rc
h
 i
s
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
to
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
o
u
r 
k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 o
f 

tr
e
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 c
a
re
, 
g
o
o
d
 a
d
v
ic
e
 i
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 a
n
d
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 s
o
u
g
h
t 
fr
o
m
 r
e
lia
b
le
 

s
o
u
rc
e
s
. 
 T
re
e
 o
w
n
e
rs
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
w
a
re
 t
h
a
t 
re
s
e
a
rc
h
 h
a
s
 r
e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 u
p
d
a
te
d
 

a
n
d
 
s
u
b
s
ta
n
ti
a
ll
y
 
c
h
a
n
g
e
d
 
tr
e
e
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

in
 
th
e
 
la
s
t 

2
0
 
y
e
a
rs
. 
 

C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y
, 
a
n
y
 p
e
rs
o
n
 o
ff
e
ri
n
g
 a
d
v
ic
e
 s
h
o
u
ld
 k
e
e
p
 t
h
e
ir
 k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 u
p
 t
o
 

d
a
te
, 
th
ro
u
g
h
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
h
ip
 o
f 
a
n
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l 
b
o
d
y
. 

 A
ls
o
 o
f 
c
o
n
c
e
rn
 i
s
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 c
a
rr
y
 o
u
t 
tr
e
e
 s
u
rg
e
ry
 w
o
rk
 w
h
o
s
e
 

te
c
h
n
ic
a
l 
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 a
re
 p
o
o
r.
  
T
h
is
 c
a
n
 l
e
a
d
 t
o
 l
o
w
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 o
f 
w
o
rk
, 
w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 

n
o
t 
in
 t
h
e
 i
n
te
re
s
ts
 o
f 
th
e
 t
re
e
 o
r 
it
s
 o
w
n
e
r.
 R

e
p
u
ta
b
le
 c
o
m
p
a
n
ie
s
, 
c
a
p
a
b
le
 o
f 

w
o
rk
in
g
 t
o
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
d
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 o
f 
w
o
rk
 (
s
u
c
h
 a
s
 “
B
ri
ti
s
h
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
 3
9
9
8
, 
2
0
1
0
, 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 
fo
r 
T
re
e
w
o
rk
")
, 
a
re
 
fe
w
 
in
 
th
e
 
C
it
y
 
a
re
a
, 
th
is
 
fa
c
to
r 
a
lo
n
e
 

re
s
u
lt
s
 
in
 
m
a
n
y
 
tr
e
e
s
 
b
e
in
g
 
u
n
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ri
ly
 
d
a
m
a
g
e
d
 
b
y
 
u
n
s
u
it
a
b
le
 
a
n
d
 

u
n
s
y
m
p
a
th
e
ti
c
 "
p
ru
n
in
g
".
 

 

42



 

 
2
7
 

T
h
e
 
A
rb
o
ri
c
u
lt
u
ra
l 
A
s
s
o
c
ia
ti
o
n
 
p
ro
d
u
c
e
s
 
a
 
lis
t 
o
f 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
rs
 
a
n
d
 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts
 

w
h
o
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 e
x
a
m
in
e
d
 a
n
d
 f
o
u
n
d
 t
o
 r
e
a
c
h
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
d
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
. 
 H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 

w
h
ils
t 
th
e
 l
is
t 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 g
ro
w
, 
th
e
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 a
re
 a
t 
p
re
s
e
n
t 
fa
ir
ly
 l
im
it
e
d
 a
n
d
 

n
o
t 
w
e
ll 

s
p
re
a
d
 
g
e
o
g
ra
p
h
ic
a
ll
y
. 
 
T
h
e
 
C
o
u
n
c
il 

is
 
u
n
a
b
le
 
to
 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
rs
 
o
w
in
g
 
to
 
th
e
 
n
e
e
d
 
fo
r 
d
e
ta
ile
d
 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
le
g
a
l 

lia
b
ili
ti
e
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il.
 A
d
v
ic
e
 l
e
a
fl
e
ts
 d
ir
e
c
ti
n
g
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 t
o
 s
e
e
k
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

o
f 
a
 
c
o
m
p
e
te
n
t 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
r/
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
t 
a
re
 
h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
o
ff
e
re
d
 
a
lo
n
g
 
w
it
h
 
u
s
e
fu
l 

g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 A
rb
o
ri
c
u
lt
u
ra
l 
A
s
s
o
c
ia
ti
o
n
. 

  P
ri
v
a
te
 p
ro
te
c
ti
n
g
 t
re
e
s
 p
o
li
c
ie
s
 (
P
P
) 

  P
o
li
c
y
 P
P
 1
 

T
h
e
re
 w
il
l 
b
e
 a
 p
re
s
u
m
p
ti
o
n
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
 c
u
tt
in
g
 d
o
w
n
, 
to
p
p
in
g
, 
lo
p
p
in
g
 

o
r 
u
p
ro
o
ti
n
g
 o
f 
a
n
y
  
tr
e
e
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 a
 T
re
e
 P
re
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 O
rd
e
r 
(T
P
O
) 
o
r 

tr
e
e
 
w
it
h
in
 
a
 
C
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 
A
re
a
, 
w
o
rt
h
y
 
o
f 
T
P
O
 
s
ta
tu
s
 
(t
h
e
s
e
 
m
a
y
 

in
c
lu
d
e
 a
n
c
ie
n
t 
a
n
d
 v
e
te
ra
n
 t
re
e
s
).
  
T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 w
il
l 
n
o
t 
g
iv
e
 c
o
n
s
e
n
t 

to
 f
e
ll
 a
 p
ro
te
c
te
d
 t
re
e
 o
r 
w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 u
n
le
s
s
 i
t 
is
 s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
is
 i
s
 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 a
n
d
 j
u
s
ti
fi
e
d
. 
 
A
n
y
 
s
u
c
h
 c
o
n
s
e
n
t 
w
il
l 
b
e
 c
o
n
d
it
io
n
a
l 
u
p
o
n
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 r
e
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
w
h
e
n
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 a
 T
P
O
. 

 P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
: 

P
P
 1
.1
: 

T
h
e
 
C
o
u
n
c
il,
 
w
h
e
re
 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 
w
ill
 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 
to
 
p
ro
te
c
t 

s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
tr
e
e
s
. 
  

 P
P
 1
.2
: 

N
o
 o
b
je
c
ti
o
n
 o
r 
c
o
n
s
e
n
t 
fo
r 
w
o
rk
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 i
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

is
 s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 t
h
a
t:
 

 •
 

T
h
e
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

 h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 a
p
p
e
a
ra
n
c
e
 o
f 
th
e
 t
re
e
 i
s
 n
o
t 
im
p
a
ir
e
d
. 

 •
 

T
h
e
 
w
o
rk
 
d
o
e
s
 
n
o
t 
u
n
ju
s
ti
fi
a
b
ly
 
in
h
ib
it
 
o
r 
p
re
v
e
n
t 
th
e
 
fu
ll 
a
n
d
 
n
a
tu
ra
l 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 t
re
e
. 
 

 •
 

T
h
e
 w
o
rk
 i
s
 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 f
o
r 
th
e
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 r
e
te
n
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 t
re
e
. 

 •
 

T
h
e
 w
o
rk
 i
s
 c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t 
w
it
h
 g
o
o
d
 a
rb
o
ri
c
u
lt
u
ra
l 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
. 

 •
 

T
h
e
 w
o
rk
 i
s
 c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t 
w
it
h
 s
o
u
n
d
 w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t.
 

 

 
P
P
 1
.3
: 

C
o
n
s
id
e
r 
T
P
O
s
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 t
re
e
s
 o
n
 l
a
n
d
 w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 n
o
 

lo
n
g
e
r 
th
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il.
 

 
P
P
 1
.3
: 

T
o
 m

a
in
ta
in
 r
e
c
o
rd
s
 o
f 
T
P
O
s
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 t
h
e
 a
p
p
ra
is
a
l 
o
f 

o
ld
e
r 
T
P
O
s
. 
 W

h
e
re
 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 r
e
v
o
k
e
 o
ld
 O

rd
e
rs
 a
n
d
 s
e
rv
e
 

n
e
w
 o
n
e
s
. 

 
  

43



 

 
2
8
 

8
 

IM
P
L
E
M
E
N
T
A
T
IO
N
 

 T
o
 
s
e
c
u
re
 
th
e
 
lo
n
g
 
te
rm

 
h
e
a
lt
h
 
o
f 
th
e
 
re
g
io
n
’s
 
tr
e
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 
th
e
 

p
h
ilo
s
o
p
h
y
 o
f 
th
e
 "
R
ig
h
t 
T
re
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 R

ig
h
t 
P
la
c
e
" 
m
u
s
t 
b
e
 w

id
e
ly
 u
n
d
e
rs
to
o
d
. 

T
h
is
 w

ill
 e
n
a
b
le
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l,
 r
e
g
io
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
o
lic
y
 t
o
 b
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 t
o
 b
e
s
t 

e
ff
e
c
t.
 

 K
e
y
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 t
h
is
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 w

ill
 b
e
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
. 
 D

e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
th
e
 d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 

re
q
u
ir
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
in
te
rp
re
ta
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 s
e
tt
in
g
 o
f 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
, 
th
e
 l
a
tt
e
r 
to
 b
e
 b
a
s
e
d
 u
p
o
n
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

o
f 

lo
c
a
l 

n
e
e
d
, 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
w
h
o
le
 
la
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
. 

 It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
p
o
s
s
ib
le
 t
o
 a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
 e
v
e
ry
 s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
, 
w
h
ils
t 
th
e
s
e
 p
o
lic
ie
s
 

g
u
id
e
 
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 
th
e
y
 
s
h
o
u
ld
 
n
o
t 
b
e
 
c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 
to
ta
lly
 
p
re
s
c
ri
p
ti
v
e
. 
 
In
d
iv
id
u
a
l 

p
o
lic
y
 s
h
o
u
ld
 n
o
t 
b
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 i
n
 i
s
o
la
ti
o
n
; 
a
ll 
re
le
v
a
n
t 
p
o
lic
ie
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 

in
to
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
w
h
e
n
 r
e
a
c
h
in
g
 a
 d
e
c
is
io
n
. 
 

 A
lli
e
d
 
to
 
th
is
 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
is
 
th
e
 
n
e
e
d
 
fo
r 
a
 
s
u
p
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ry
 
A
c
ti
o
n
 
P
la
n
 
to
 
c
o
-

o
rd
in
a
te
 t
h
e
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
. 
  

 M
a
n
y
 
d
if
fe
re
n
t 
d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 
a
n
d
 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
lly
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
n
 
in
te
re
s
t 
in
 
th
e
 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 o
f 
th
is
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 c
a
n
 a
ff
e
c
t 
it
s
 d
e
liv
e
ry
. 
 T
h
e
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 w
ill
 i
n
d
ic
a
te
 

w
h
e
re
 
m
a
jo
r 
c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 
a
re
 
s
o
u
g
h
t 
fr
o
m
 
o
th
e
rs
, 
a
n
d
 
w
h
e
re
 
th
e
 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
 
is
 

lik
e
ly
 t
o
 a
s
s
is
t 
th
e
m
 t
o
 d
e
te
rm

in
e
 t
h
e
ir
 o
w
n
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
. 

 T
h
e
 p
o
lic
ie
s
 w
ill
 a
s
s
is
t 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
in
 m

a
k
in
g
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 o
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 g
ro
w
th
, 
e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 p
la
n
n
in
g
, 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 d
ir
e
c
t 

a
s
s
e
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t.
  
In
c
re
a
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 i
n
c
lu
s
iv
e
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
lo
c
a
l 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
s
e
 

is
s
u
e
s
 
w
ill
 
b
e
 
im
p
o
rt
a
n
t,
 
b
o
th
 
fo
r 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 
m
a
k
in
g
, 
b
u
t 
a
ls
o
 
fo
r 

a
c
ti
v
e
 

p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 
in
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t.
 
 
P
ri
v
a
te
 
o
w
n
e
rs
 
s
h
o
u
ld
 
b
e
 
e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
d
 
a
n
d
 

a
d
v
is
e
d
 o
f 
th
e
 w
id
e
r 
im
p
o
rt
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 t
re
e
s
 a
n
d
 w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 a
n
d
 b
e
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
. 

 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 
w
ill
 
g
re
a
tl
y
 
a
s
s
is
t 
th
e
 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
to
 
id
e
n
ti
fy
 
a
n
d
 
s
e
c
u
re
 
e
x
te
rn
a
l 

fu
n
d
in
g
 a
n
d
 s
p
o
n
s
o
rs
h
ip
, 
a
n
d
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
 t
o
 a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
h
e
 a
im
 a
n
d
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 o
f 

th
e
 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
. 
 
T
h
e
 
E
n
g
lis
h
 W

o
o
d
la
n
d
 
G
ra
n
t 
S
c
h
e
m
e
 
a
n
d
 
th
e
 
‘B
ig
 
T
re
e
 
P
la
n
t’
 

a
d
m
in
is
te
re
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 F
o
re
s
tr
y
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 m

a
k
in
g
 o
f 

a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
fu
n
d
in
g
. 

 

 8
.1
 
M
e
a
s
u
re
s
 o
f 
S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 

 Im
p
le
m
e
n
ti
n
g
 
th
is
 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
 
w
ill
 
le
a
d
 
to
 
g
re
a
te
r 
o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 
in
 
tr
e
e
 
a
n
d
 

w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t.
 
 
E
q
u
a
lly
, 

it
 
w
ill
 
in
c
re
a
s
e
 
a
n
 
a
p
p
re
c
ia
ti
o
n
 
a
n
d
 

u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
tr
e
e
s
 a
n
d
 w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
. 

 T
o
 e
v
a
lu
a
te
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 
a
n
d
 d
e
c
id
e
 h
o
w
 t
o
 a
c
t 
a
n
d
 r
e
v
is
e
 t
h
e
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
, 
a
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
in
d
ic
a
to
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 p
re
s
e
n
t 
s
ta
te
 
a
n
d
 t
re
n
d
s
 o
v
e
r 
ti
m
e
 a
re
 

n
e
e
d
e
d
. 
 T
h
e
s
e
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 s
h
o
u
ld
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
; 
e
x
te
n
t,
 c
o
n
d
it
io
n
, 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t,
 u
s
e
, 

a
n
d
 a
n
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
ir
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
o
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
lif
e
. 

 O
u
tc
o
m
e
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
to
 t
h
e
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 a
re
 a
s
 f
o
llo
w
s
: 

 

•
 

R
e
d
u
c
in
g
 t
h
e
 c
o
s
t 
o
f 
in
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 c
la
im
s
 y
e
a
r 
o
n
 y
e
a
r.
 

 

•
 

R
e
d
u
c
in
g
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 c
a
ll-
o
u
ts
 t
o
 d
a
m
a
g
e
d
 o
r 
fa
ile
d
 t
re
e
s
. 

 8
.2
 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

 T
h
is
 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
 
is
 
a
n
 
e
v
o
lu
ti
o
n
 
o
f 
th
e
 
1
9
9
8
 
T
re
e
 
a
n
d
 
W
o
o
d
la
n
d
 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 
a
n
d
 

re
fl
e
c
ts
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 k
e
y
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 i
ts
 o
w
n
 t
re
e
 s
to
c
k
, 
to
 p
ro
te
c
t 

tr
e
e
s
 o
f 
a
m
e
n
it
y
 v
a
lu
e
 a
n
d
 t
o
 s
e
c
u
re
 n
e
w
 t
re
e
 a
n
d
 w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 p
la
n
ti
n
g
 a
s
 t
h
e
 C
it
y
 

g
ro
w
s
. 

 T
h
e
re
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 r
e
v
ie
w
s
 t
o
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
 b
u
d
g
e
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
. 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 
w
ill
 
c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 
e
x
te
n
t 
a
n
d
 
ra
te
 
o
f 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 
to
w
a
rd
s
 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 
th
e
 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
. 
 
M
o
re
 
d
e
ta
ile
d
 
re
v
ie
w
s
 
a
t 
fi
v
e
 
y
e
a
r 
in
te
rv
a
ls
 
c
o
u
ld
 

e
x
a
m
in
e
 p
o
lic
ie
s
, 
a
im
s
, 
o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
 t
h
e
 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 f
o
r 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 
o
r 

a
d
ju
s
tm

e
n
t 
a
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
. 

  

44



 

 
2
9
 

9
 

A
P
P
E
N
D
IC
E
S
 

 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
: 
O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l 
G
u
id
e
li
n
e
s
 

 D
a
y
li
g
h
t 
L
o
s
s
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 n
o
rm

a
lly
 o
n
ly
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
 s
e
p
a
ra
ti
o
n
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 t
re
e
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 w

in
d
o
w
 o
f 
th
e
 n
e
a
re
s
t 
h
a
b
it
a
b
le
 r
o
o
m
 i
s
 l
e
s
s
 t
h
a
n
 6
m
 f
o
r 
tr
e
e
s
 w
it
h
 a
 

h
e
ig
h
t 
o
f 
o
v
e
r 
1
2
m
, 
o
r 
le
s
s
 t
h
a
n
 h
a
lf
 t
h
e
 h
e
ig
h
t 
o
f 
th
e
 t
re
e
 f
o
r 
s
m
a
lle
r 
tr
e
e
s
, 
o
r 

w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
 s
e
p
a
ra
ti
o
n
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 e
d
g
e
 o
f 
th
e
 c
a
n
o
p
y
 a
n
d
 a
 v
e
rt
ic
a
l 
lin
e
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

th
a
t 
w
in
d
o
w
 i
s
 l
e
s
s
 t
h
a
n
 2
m
. 

 A
 ‘
h
a
b
it
a
b
le
 r
o
o
m
’ 
m
e
a
n
s
 a
 d
in
in
g
 r
o
o
m
, 
lo
u
n
g
e
, 
k
it
c
h
e
n
, 
s
tu
d
y
 o
r 
b
e
d
ro
o
m
 b
u
t 

s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
lly
 e
x
c
lu
d
e
s
 W

C
s
, 
b
a
th
ro
o
m
s
, 
u
ti
lit
y
 r
o
o
m
s
, 
la
n
d
in
g
s
 a
n
d
 h
a
llw

a
y
s
. 

 W
h
e
re
 a
 s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
 f
a
lls
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
s
e
 g
u
id
e
lin
e
s
, 
c
a
s
e
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
d
 a
c
c
o
rd
in
g
 

to
 p
ro
x
im
it
y
, 
a
n
d
 
a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
w
ill
 
a
ls
o
 b
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 o
f 
th
e
 
o
ri
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 

w
in
d
o
w
. 
 F
u
rt
h
e
r 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 m

a
y
 m

o
d
if
y
 i
n
it
ia
l 
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
. 
 O

p
in
io
n
s
 e
x
p
re
s
s
e
d
 

b
y
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 w
ill
 b
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 i
n
to
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
a
n
d
 h
e
n
c
e
 w
ill
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l 

in
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
s
. 

 D
ir
e
c
t 
R
o
o
t 
D
a
m
a
g
e
 

A
s
 
w
it
h
 
s
u
b
s
id
e
n
c
e
, 
c
a
s
e
s
 
o
f 
d
ir
e
c
t 
ro
o
t 
d
a
m
a
g
e
 
w
ill
 
b
e
 
c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 
o
n
 
a
n
 

in
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
b
a
s
is
. 
 A
 b
a
la
n
c
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 s
tr
u
c
k
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 n
u
is
a
n
c
e
 e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
d
 b
y
 

in
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 o
ff
e
re
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 t
re
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 w
id
e
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 

 D
ra
in
 B
lo
c
k
a
g
e
 

T
re
e
s
 
d
o
 
n
o
t 
h
a
v
e
 
th
e
 
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 
to
 
b
re
a
k
 
in
to
 
a
 
s
o
u
n
d
 
d
ra
in
, 
b
u
t 
th
e
y
 
w
ill
 

ru
th
le
s
s
ly
 e
x
p
lo
it
 a
n
y
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 f
a
u
lt
. 
 T
h
e
 r
e
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 
o
n
e
 t
re
e
 w

ill
 n
o
t 
p
re
v
e
n
t 

o
th
e
r 
v
e
g
e
ta
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 e
x
p
lo
it
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
. 

 T
h
e
 
C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 
p
re
s
u
m
p
ti
o
n
 
is
 
th
a
t 
th
e
 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 
w
a
y
 
to
 
d
e
a
l 
w
it
h
 
tr
e
e
 
ro
o
t 

b
lo
c
k
a
g
e
 o
f 
d
ra
in
s
 i
s
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 d
ra
in
s
 a
re
 w
a
te
rt
ig
h
t.
  
A
c
c
o
rd
in
g
ly
, 
th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
w
ill
 
n
o
t 
n
o
rm

a
lly
 
ta
k
e
 
a
c
ti
o
n
 
in
 
re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 
to
 
c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 
th
a
t 
C
o
u
n
c
il 

m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 t
re
e
s
 a
re
 b
lo
c
k
in
g
 d
ra
in
s
. 

 H
o
n
e
y
d
e
w
 

A
s
 w

it
h
 l
e
a
v
e
s
, 
h
o
n
e
y
d
e
w
 i
s
 n
o
t 
re
a
d
ily
 c
o
n
tr
o
lla
b
le
 b
y
 p
ru
n
in
g
. 
 C

e
rt
a
in
 t
re
e
s
 

s
u
c
h
 a
s
 L
im
e
 a
re
 m

o
re
 p
ro
n
e
 t
o
 p
ro
d
u
c
in
g
 t
h
is
 t
h
a
n
 o
th
e
r 
s
p
e
c
ie
s
 a
n
d
 i
n
 m

a
n
y
 

re
s
p
e
c
ts
 i
t 
m
a
y
 b
e
 b
e
s
t 
to
 t
a
c
k
le
 h
o
n
e
y
d
e
w
 w
it
h
 a
 r
o
u
ti
n
e
 c
le
a
n
s
in
g
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
. 
 

P
ru
n
in
g
 w
ill
 n
o
t 
n
o
rm

a
lly
 b
e
 r
e
g
a
rd
e
d
 a
s
 c
o
rr
e
c
t 
re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 h
o
n
e
y
d
e
w
 a
n
d
 w
ill
 

c
e
rt
a
in
ly
 n
o
t 
b
e
 t
h
e
 s
o
le
 m

e
th
o
d
 o
f 
a
lle
v
ia
ti
n
g
 s
u
c
h
 p
ro
b
le
m
s
. 

 L
e
a
v
e
s
, 
S
e
e
d
s
 a
n
d
 F
ru
it
 

L
e
a
v
e
s
 a
n
d
 s
e
e
d
s
 a
re
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 f
re
e
ly
 o
n
 t
h
e
 w
in
d
 a
n
d
 a
re
 b
e
y
o
n
d
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
o
f 

th
e
 
C
o
u
n
c
il.
 
 
T
h
e
 
p
re
s
u
m
p
ti
o
n
 
is
 
th
a
t 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
 
w
ill
 
b
e
 
p
re
p
a
re
d
 
to
 
re
m
o
v
e
 

s
a
p
lin
g
s
, 
c
le
a
r 
le
a
v
e
s
 f
ro
m
 p
a
th
w
a
y
s
 a
n
d
 g
u
tt
e
rs
 a
n
d
 r
e
m
o
v
e
 s
m
a
ll 
tw
ig
s
 t
h
a
t 

h
a
v
e
 l
a
n
d
e
d
 w

it
h
in
 t
h
e
ir
 g
a
rd
e
n
s
. 
 P
ru
n
in
g
 w

ill
 n
o
t 
n
o
rm

a
lly
 b
e
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 

a
tt
e
m
p
t 
to
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 f
a
ll 
o
f 
le
a
v
e
s
, 
s
e
e
d
s
 o
r 
fr
u
it
. 

 O
b
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 H
ig
h
w
a
y
 

T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
w
ill
 s
e
e
k
 t
o
 m

a
in
ta
in
 a
d
e
q
u
a
te
 c
le
a
ra
n
c
e
 o
f 
th
e
 h
ig
h
w
a
y
 r
e
la
ti
v
e
 t
o
 

th
e
 
ty
p
e
 
o
f 
tr
a
ff
ic
 
u
s
in
g
 
th
a
t 
ro
u
te
. 
 
C
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 
a
b
o
u
t 
lo
w
 
b
ra
n
c
h
e
s
 
o
v
e
r 
th
e
 

h
ig
h
w
a
y
 w
ill
 b
e
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
d
 a
n
d
 d
e
a
lt
 w
it
h
 p
ro
m
p
tl
y
. 

 O
b
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
s
tr
e
e
t 
li
g
h
ts
 a
n
d
 r
o
a
d
 s
ig
n
s
 

T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
w
ill
 e
n
d
e
a
v
o
u
r 
to
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
tr
e
e
s
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
ir
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
d
o
 n
o
t 

o
b
s
c
u
re
 r
o
a
d
 s
ig
n
s
 o
r 
p
re
v
e
n
t 
s
tr
e
e
t 
la
m
p
s
 f
ro
m
 i
llu
m
in
a
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 h
ig
h
w
a
y
. 

 T
h
e
 
p
u
rp
o
s
e
 
o
f 
s
tr
e
e
t 
la
m
p
s
 
is
 
to
 
ill
u
m
in
a
te
 
th
e
 
p
u
b
lic
 
h
ig
h
w
a
y
 
a
n
d
 
w
h
e
re
 

a
d
e
q
u
a
te
 i
llu
m
in
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 h
ig
h
w
a
y
 
is
 
p
re
s
e
n
t,
 t
h
e
 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
w
ill
 
n
o
t 
n
o
rm

a
lly
 

ta
k
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 l
e
v
e
ls
 o
f 
ill
u
m
in
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
p
ri
v
a
te
 p
ro
p
e
rt
y
. 

 S
a
fe
ty
 

W
h
e
re
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 c
le
a
r 
a
n
d
 f
o
re
s
e
e
a
b
le
 t
h
re
a
t 
to
 t
h
e
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
s
a
fe
ty
 o
f 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
 

o
r 
to
 p
ro
p
e
rt
y
 e
m
a
n
a
ti
n
g
 d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
d
it
io
n
 o
f 
a
 t
re
e
, 
a
c
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 

to
 m

in
im
is
e
 t
h
a
t 
ri
s
k
. 

 In
d
ir
e
c
t 
ri
s
k
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 l
e
a
v
e
s
 m

a
k
in
g
 p
a
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 s
lip
p
e
ry
 w

ill
 o
n
ly
 b
e
 d
e
a
lt
 w

it
h
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 
p
ru
n
in
g
 
in
 
u
n
u
s
u
a
l 
c
ir
c
u
m
s
ta
n
c
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
w
h
e
re
 
n
o
 
o
th
e
r 
o
p
ti
o
n
s
 
a
re
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
. 

 T
h
e
 p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
u
n
fo
u
n
d
e
d
 f
e
a
r 
o
f 
a
 t
re
e
 w
ill
 n
o
t 
n
o
rm

a
lly
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 a
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

p
ru
n
e
 t
h
e
 t
re
e
. 
 

       

45



 

 
3
0
 

    S
u
b
s
id
e
n
c
e
 

T
re
e
 
re
la
te
d
 
s
u
b
s
id
e
n
c
e
 
d
a
m
a
g
e
 
is
 
a
 
c
o
m
p
le
x
 
is
s
u
e
 
a
n
d
 
e
a
c
h
 
c
a
s
e
 
w
ill
 
b
e
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 o
n
 a
n
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
b
a
s
is
. 

 W
h
e
re
 d
a
m
a
g
e
 h
a
s
 o
c
c
u
rr
e
d
, 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
w
ill
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 t
h
a
t 
a
d
e
q
u
a
te
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 i
s
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 t
re
e
 i
s
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 

s
u
c
h
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 b
e
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 i
n
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 o
f 
a
n
y
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 
fo
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
. 

 R
e
q
u
e
s
ts
 f
o
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 a
n
 u
n
q
u
a
n
ti
fi
a
b
le
 p
o
s
s
ib
ili
ty
 o
f 
d
a
m
a
g
e
 o
c
c
u
rr
in
g
 

a
t 
a
n
 u
n
s
p
e
c
if
ie
d
 t
im
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
u
tu
re
 w

ill
 n
o
t 
b
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 u
n
le
s
s
 t
h
e
re
 
o
th
e
r 

o
v
e
rr
id
in
g
 r
e
a
s
o
n
s
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
. 

 T
e
le
v
is
io
n
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
ra
d
io
 e
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t 

 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 r
ig
h
t 
to
 g
o
o
d
 r
e
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 i
n
 m

a
n
y
 c
a
s
e
s
 i
t 
is
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 t
o
 r
e
s
o
lv
e
 

is
s
u
e
s
 o
f 
tr
e
e
 r
e
la
te
d
 p
o
o
r 
re
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 b
y
 f
in
d
in
g
 a
n
 e
n
g
in
e
e
ri
n
g
 s
o
lu
ti
o
n
. 
 T
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
w
ill
 o
n
ly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
re
q
u
e
s
ts
 t
o
 p
ru
n
e
 t
re
e
s
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 r
e
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 a
ft
e
r 
a
ll 

th
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 m

e
t:
 

 
§
 
E
ff
o
rt
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 t
o
 f
in
d
 a
n
 e
n
g
in
e
e
ri
n
g
 s
o
lu
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
ro
b
le
m
 

a
n
d
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
t 
b
e
e
n
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l.
  

 §
 
T
h
e
 w
o
rk
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 i
s
 c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t 
w
it
h
 g
o
o
d
 a
rb
o
ri
c
u
lt
u
ra
l 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 a
n
d
 w
ill
 

n
o
t 
u
n
d
u
ly
 a
ff
e
c
t 
th
e
 a
m
e
n
it
y
 o
r 
h
e
a
lt
h
 o
f 
th
e
 t
re
e
. 
 

 §
 
T
h
e
 w
o
rk
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 c
a
n
 b
e
 e
x
e
c
u
te
d
 w
it
h
in
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
c
o
n
s
tr
a
in
ts
. 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 2
: 
R
ig
h
t 
T
re
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 R
ig
h
t 
P
la
c
e
 F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
. 

 L
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 

Im
p
a
c
t 

§
 
C
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 u
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 s
p
a
c
e
 a
n
d
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

w
h
e
th
e
r 
th
e
 
p
re
s
e
n
c
e
 
o
f 
tr
e
e
s
 
w
o
u
ld
 
b
e
 
a
 
p
o
s
it
iv
e
 

a
d
d
it
io
n
. 

§
 
Id
e
n
ti
fy
 t
h
e
 l
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 t
y
p
e
 a
n
d
 w

h
a
t 
c
o
n
s
tr
a
in
ts
 t
h
is
 

w
ill
 p
la
c
e
 o
n
 t
h
e
 s
e
le
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
s
p
e
c
ie
s
. 

§
 
E
x
a
m
in
e
 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 
h
a
b
it
a
ts
 
s
o
 
a
s
 
to
 
a
s
s
e
s
s
 
th
e
ir
 

c
o
m
p
a
ti
b
ili
ty
 w

it
h
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
tr
e
e
s
 a
n
d
 w

o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 a
n
d
 

th
e
re
fo
re
 t
h
e
 l
a
tt
e
r’
s
 a
b
ili
ty
 t
o
 a
d
d
 v
a
lu
e
. 

§
 
E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 
th
e
 
h
is
to
ry
 
o
f 
tr
e
e
 
c
o
v
e
r 

to
 
d
e
te
rm

in
e
 

w
h
e
th
e
r 
n
e
w
 a
d
d
it
io
n
s
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
. 

 
S
it
e
 C
o
n
s
tr
a
in
t 

§
 
M
a
in
ta
in
 l
o
c
a
l 
d
is
ti
n
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
. 

§
 
A
s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
la
n
ti
n
g
 o
n
 v
is
ta
s
. 

§
 
C
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 p
re
s
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
u
n
d
e
rg
ro
u
n
d
 a
n
d
 o
v
e
rh
e
a
d
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

§
 
M
e
e
t 
th
e
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 s
a
fe
ty
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 

p
e
d
e
s
tr
ia
n
s
 a
n
d
 v
e
h
ic
le
s
. 

§
 
A
s
s
e
s
s
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 n
e
a
re
s
t 
b
u
ild
in
g
s
 t
o
 b
e
 s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 

fu
tu
re
 

p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 

p
ro
b
le
m
s
 

c
a
n
 

b
e
 

m
in
im
is
e
d
, 

p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 s
u
b
s
id
e
n
c
e
. 

§
 
P
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
 
s
it
e
s
 
in
 
re
la
ti
o
n
 
to
 
w
h
e
re
 
g
re
a
te
s
t 
p
u
b
lic
 

b
e
n
e
fi
t 
c
a
n
 b
e
 r
e
a
lis
e
d
. 

 
S
p
e
c
ie
s
 

C
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

§
 
S
e
le
c
t 
s
p
e
c
ie
s
 
k
n
o
w
n
 
to
 
th
ri
v
e
 
o
n
 
th
e
 
s
o
il 
ty
p
e
, 
it
s
 

c
o
m
p
a
c
ti
o
n
, 
n
u
tr
ie
n
ts
 a
n
d
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 w
a
te
r.
 

§
 
C
o
n
s
id
e
r 
s
p
a
c
e
 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
 
re
la
ti
v
e
 
to
 
s
iz
e
 
o
f 
tr
e
e
 
a
t 

m
a
tu
ri
ty
 
u
n
le
s
s
 
th
e
 
tr
e
e
 
is
 
d
e
s
ti
n
e
d
 
fo
r 
c
o
n
tr
o
lle
d
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
u
c
h
 a
s
 c
o
p
p
ic
in
g
 o
r 
p
o
lla
rd
in
g
. 

§
 
S
e
le
c
t 

th
e
 
la
rg
e
s
t 

g
ro
w
in
g
 
s
p
e
c
ie
s
 
th
e
 
s
it
e
 
w
ill
 

re
a
s
o
n
a
b
ly
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
te
. 

§
 
C
o
n
s
id
e
r 

u
s
e
 

o
f 

n
a
tu
ra
l 

re
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

w
h
e
re
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
. 

§
 
W
h
e
re
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 u
s
e
 n
a
ti
v
e
 s
p
e
c
ie
s
. 

§
 
M
a
in
ta
in
 d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 t
re
e
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
. 

§
 
C
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 s
p
e
c
ie
s
' 
to
le
ra
n
c
e
 t
o
 d
is
e
a
s
e
 a
n
d
 w

in
d
 

d
a
m
a
g
e
. 

§
 
C
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
fr
u
it
 t
re
e
 p
la
n
ti
n
g
 a
s
 a
 p
ro
d
u
c
ti
v
e
 

a
n
d
 a
tt
ra
c
ti
v
e
 f
e
a
tu
re
. 

46



 

 
3
1
 

§
 
C
o
n
s
id
e
r 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
n
u
is
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
fr
u
it
 f
a
ll 
in
 t
h
e
 a
u
tu
m
n
, 

s
lip
p
e
ry
 p
a
th
s
 a
n
d
 a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 r
e
q
u
e
s
ts
 f
o
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 

d
e
a
l 
w
it
h
 p
ro
b
le
m
s
. 

  
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

C
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

§
 
C
o
n
s
id
e
r 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rs
. 

§
 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
 w
it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
in
g
 n
e
w
 

la
rg
e
 s
c
a
le
 p
la
n
ti
n
g
. 

 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 3
: 
R
e
fe
re
n
c
e
s
 

 A
rb
o
ri
c
u
lt
u
ra
l 
A
s
s
o
c
ia
ti
o
n
 2
0
0
5
, 
“T
re
e
 S
u
rv
e
y
s
: 
G
u
id
e
 t
o
 G
o
o
d
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
” 

B
ri
ti
s
h
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
 3
9
9
8
 “
T
re
e
 W

o
rk
” 

B
ri
ti
s
h
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
 5
8
3
7
 “
T
re
e
s
 i
n
 R
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 C
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
” 

C
o
u
n
tr
y
s
id
e
 a
n
d
 R
ig
h
ts
 o
f 
W
a
y
 A
c
t 
2
0
0
0
 

D
E
F
R
A
 2
0
0
7
, 
“A
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r 
E
n
g
la
n
d
’s
 T
re
e
s
, 
W
o
o
d
s
 a
n
d
 F
o
re
s
ts
” 

D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
1
9
7
3
, 
C
ir
c
u
la
r 
9
0
/7
3
 "
In
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
, 
M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 

P
la
n
ti
n
g
 o
f 
R
o
a
d
s
id
e
 T
re
e
s
 o
n
 R
u
ra
l 
R
o
a
d
s
” 

D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
1
9
7
5
 C
ir
c
u
la
r 
5
2
/7
5
 "
In
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
H
ig
h
w
a
y
 T
re
e
s
” 

D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
1
9
7
8
, 
C
ir
c
u
la
r 
3
6
/7
8
 "
T
re
e
s
 a
n
d
 F
o
re
s
tr
y
” 

D
E
T
R
 2
0
0
0
, 
“T
re
e
 P
re
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 O
rd
e
rs
, 
G
u
id
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 L
a
w
 a
n
d
 G
o
o
d
 P
ra
c
ti
c
e
” 

H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 S
a
fe
ty
 a
t 
W
o
rk
 A
c
t 
1
9
7
4
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 S
a
fe
ty
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 2
0
0
7
, 
“M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
R
is
k
 f
ro
m
 F
a
lli
n
g
 T
re
e
s
” 

F
o
re
s
tr
y
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
, 
“T
h
e
 c
a
s
e
 f
o
r 
tr
e
e
s
”.
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 S
a
fe
ty
 a
t 
W
o
rk
 R
e
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
 1
9
9
9
 

N
a
tu
ra
l 
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 R
u
ra
l 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 A
c
t 
2
0
0
6
 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 C
it
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
1
9
9
8
, 
“T
re
e
 a
n
d
 W

o
o
d
la
n
d
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
” 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 C
it
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
2
0
0
5
, 
“G

ro
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 R
ig
h
t 
W
a
y
” 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 C
it
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
2
0
0
6
, 
“C
lim

a
te
 C
h
a
n
g
e
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
” 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 C
it
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
2
0
0
6
, 
“M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
A
n
c
ie
n
t 
W
o
o
d
s
” 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 C
it
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
2
0
0
6
, 
“P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 O
p
e
n
 S
p
a
c
e
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
” 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 C
it
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
2
0
0
7
, 
“A
 P
la
c
e
 f
o
r 
P
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 G
ro
w
” 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 C
it
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
2
0
0
7
, 
“U
rb
a
n
 W

o
o
d
s
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
P
la
n
” 

T
o
w
n
 a
n
d
 C
o
u
n
tr
y
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 (
T
re
e
s
) 
R
e
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
 1
9
9
9
 

T
o
w
n
 a
n
d
 C
o
u
n
tr
y
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 A
c
t 
1
9
9
0
 

W
ild
lif
e
 a
n
d
 C
o
u
n
tr
y
s
id
e
 A
c
t 
1
9
8
1
 

W
o
o
d
la
n
d
 T
ru
s
t 
“S
p
a
c
e
 f
o
r 
P
e
o
p
le
” 

W
o
o
d
la
n
d
 T
ru
s
t 
2
0
0
2
, 
“W

o
o
d
s
 f
o
r 
P
e
o
p
le
” 

 

47



48

This page is intentionally left blank



K
e
y
 

 

 
U
n
d
e
liv
e
ra
b
le
 w

it
h
o
u
t 
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 (
p
ri
o
r 
to
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
in
 M

T
F
S
) 

 
P
a
rt
 d
e
liv
e
ra
b
le
 y
e
t 
m
o
re
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 (
p
ri
o
r 
to
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
in
 M

T
F
S
) 

 
D
e
liv
e
ra
b
le
 w

it
h
in
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 b
u
d
g
e
ts
 

  E
X
T
R
A
P
O
L
A
T
IO
N
 O
F
 P
R
IO
R
IT
IE
S
 A
N
D
 T
H
E
 F
IN
A
N
C
IA
L
 I
M
P
L
IC
A
T
IO
N
S
 I
N
 C
O
M
P
L
Y
IN
G
 W
IT
H
 T
H
E
 T
R
E
E
S
 A
N
D
 W

O
O
D
L
A
N
D
 

S
T
R
A
T
E
G
Y
 

     1
. 

S
u
m
m
a
ry
 

 O
v
e
ra
ll 
a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
h
e
 e
le
m
e
n
ts
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
in
 t
h
e
 u
p
d
a
te
d
 T
re
e
s
 a
n
d
 W

o
o
d
la
n
d
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 w
ill
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
to
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
 i
ts
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 

e
ff
o
rt
s
 a
n
d
 i
n
 s
o
m
e
 i
n
s
ta
n
c
e
s
 m

o
d
if
y
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
s
. 
T
h
is
 m

a
y
 h
a
v
e
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
im

p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 i
n
 m

o
re
 d
e
ta
il 
b
e
lo
w
. 
In
 

m
a
n
y
 i
n
s
ta
n
c
e
s
 t
h
e
 c
o
s
t 
o
f 
m
a
n
a
g
in
g
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’
s
 t
re
e
s
 a
n
d
 w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 c
a
n
 b
e
 o
ff
s
e
t 
b
y
 s
e
e
k
in
g
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 
fu
n
d
in
g
 o
r 
o
th
e
r 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 

la
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 l
e
s
s
 e
x
p
e
n
s
iv
e
 t
h
a
n
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
, 
w
h
ic
h
 m

a
y
 a
llo
w
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
fu
n
d
s
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
le
a
s
e
d
. 
 

  A
n
 o

v
e
ra
ll 
fa
ilu
re
 t
o
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 S

tr
a
te
g
y
 w

o
u
ld
 e

n
ta
il 
n
o
n
 c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 i
ts
 d

u
ty
 o

f 
c
a
re
 t
o
 m

a
in
ta
in
 i
ts
 t
re
e
s
 a
n
d
 w

o
o
d
s
 i
n
 a

 s
a
fe
 

c
o
n
d
it
io
n
, 
fa
ilu
re
 t
o
 b
e
 w

o
rt
h
y
 o
f 
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
C
it
y
 s
ta
tu
s
 o
r 
to
 b
e
 a
b
le
 t
o
 p
re
s
e
n
t 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 a
s
 t
h
e
 U

K
s
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
C
a
p
it
a
l.
 A

s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 

n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 e
ff
e
c
ts
 t
o
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
lif
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 e
c
o
n
o
m
y
 a
n
d
 c
u
lt
u
ra
l 
h
e
ri
ta
g
e
 s
h
o
u
ld
 a
ls
o
 b
e
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 a
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 a
 r
e
a
l 
ri
s
k
 t
o
 p
u
b
lic
 s
a
fe
ty
 

  2
. 

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
im
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 

 A
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 b
re
a
k
d
o
w
n
 o
f 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
im

p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
s
p
e
c
if
ic
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 c
a
n
n
o
t 
b
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 s
h
o
w
n
 a
s
 t
h
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 i
n
fo
rm

e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 t
re
e
 r
is
k
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
s
 f
o
rm

u
la
te
d
. 
 I
f 
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 t
h
e
s
e
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 w
ill
 f
o
rm

 t
h
e
 b
a
s
is
 o
f 
fu
rt
h
e
r 
fu
n
d
in
g
 b
id
s
, 
b
o
th
 

in
te
rn
a
lly
 a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
lly
. 
 I
t 
is
 h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
p
o
s
s
ib
le
 t
o
 d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
 t
h
e
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
e
le
m
e
n
ts
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 d
e
liv
e
ra
b
le
 w
it
h
in
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 b
u
d
g
e
ts
. 
 

W
h
e
re
 t
a
s
k
s
 a
re
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
o
 b
e
 o
n
ly
 p
a
rt
ia
lly
 d
e
liv
e
ra
b
le
 o
r 
u
n
d
e
liv
e
ra
b
le
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
fu
rt
h
e
r 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 t
h
e
s
e
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 t
a
b
le
 b
e
lo
w
. 
A
 c
o
lo
u
r 
c
o
d
in
g
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 u
s
e
d
 a
c
c
o
rd
in
g
ly
 a
s
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 w

it
h
in
 t
h
e
 k
e
y
 a
t 
th
e
 f
o
o
t 
o
f 
th
is
 p
a
g
e
. 
 

49



K
e
y
 

 

 
U
n
d
e
liv
e
ra
b
le
 w

it
h
o
u
t 
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 (
p
ri
o
r 
to
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
in
 M

T
F
S
) 

 
P
a
rt
 d
e
liv
e
ra
b
le
 y
e
t 
m
o
re
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 (
p
ri
o
r 
to
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
in
 M

T
F
S
) 

 
D
e
liv
e
ra
b
le
 w

it
h
in
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 b
u
d
g
e
ts
 

   

R
e
fe
re
n
c
e
 

P
o
li
c
y
/P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

 
D
e
li
v
e
ra
b
le
 w
it
h
in
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 b
u
d
g
e
ts
 

 

C
T
W
G
 3
.2
 

T
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 b
e
s
t 
u
s
e
 o
f 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 i
s
 m

a
d
e
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 o
f 
o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
. 

W
o
rk
s
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 

C
T
W
G
 3
.3
 

T
o
 s
u
p
p
le
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’
s
 s
p
e
n
d
in
g
 b
y
 s
e
e
k
in
g
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
  
fu
n
d
in
g
 f
ro
m
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
o
u
rc
e
s
 w
h
e
re
 e
v
e
r 
p
o
s
s
ib
le
. 

W
o
rk
s
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 

C
T
W
G
 3
.4
 

T
o
 r
e
a
lis
e
 a
n
y
 e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
o
f 
tr
e
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 w

o
o
d
s
, 
o
r 
m
a
te
ri
a
ls
 g
e
n
e
ra
te
d
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
m
, 
w
h
e
re
 
th
is
 
d
o
e
s
 
n
o
t 
c
o
n
fl
ic
t 
w
it
h
 
th
e
 
o
th
e
r 
p
o
lic
ie
s
 
a
n
d
 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 
o
f 
th
e
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
. 

W
o
rk
s
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 

C
T
W
G
 4
.1
 

T
h
e
 r
e
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 
h
e
a
lt
h
y
 t
re
e
s
 i
n
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 s
h
a
ll 
b
e
 r
e
s
is
te
d
 u
n
le
s
s
 t
h
e
 

c
o
m
p
la
in
t 
h
a
s
 a
n
 o
v
e
rr
id
in
g
 j
u
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 n
o
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 c
a
n
 

b
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
. 

 

W
o
rk
s
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 

C
T
W
G
  
5
.2
  
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 u
rb
a
n
 t
re
e
  
 w

a
rd
e
n
 s
c
h
e
m
e
  
 t
o
 w

o
rk
 w

it
h
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 t
o
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 t
re
e
 p
la
n
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t.
 

 

W
o
rk
s
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 

C
T
W
G
 6
.3
  
  

A
s
 a
n
d
 w

h
e
n
 t
h
e
 p
ro
s
p
e
c
t 
a
ri
s
e
s
, 
to
 w

o
rk
 w

it
h
 o
th
e
r 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 s
e
c
u
re
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 

fu
n
d
in
g
 s
tr
e
a
m
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
tr
e
e
 s
to
c
k
. 

 

W
o
rk
s
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 

S
T
1
.2
  
 

W
o
rk
 
w
it
h
 
a
n
d
 
m
o
n
it
o
r 
th
e
 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 
o
f 
u
ti
lit
y
 
c
o
m
p
a
n
ie
s
 
in
 
o
rd
e
r 

to
 
m
in
im

is
e
 

a
c
c
id
e
n
ta
l 
o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l 
d
a
m
a
g
e
 t
o
 t
re
e
s
. 

 

W
o
rk
s
  
o
n
g
o
in
g
 

S
T
2
.1
 

T
o
 
p
la
n
t 
n
e
w
 
a
n
d
 
re
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
s
tr
e
e
t 
tr
e
e
s
 
in
 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 
s
it
e
s
, 
g
iv
in
g
 
p
ri
o
ri
ty
 
to
 

s
tr
e
e
ts
 w
h
e
re
 t
re
e
s
 a
re
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 s
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
r 
h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
a
s
t.
 

  
  

W
o
rk
s
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 

R
A
 1
.2
  
 

W
h
e
re
 r
e
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
ti
n
g
 o

f 
a
n
y
 p

e
rs
u
a
s
io
n
 i
s
 
in
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
, 
to
 p

la
n
t 
n
e
w
 
tr
e
e
s
 

n
e
a
rb
y
 i
n
s
te
a
d
 o
f 
th
e
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 c
le
a
re
d
. 

W
o
rk
s
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 

U
W
 

2
.1
 

–
U
W
2
.3
 

P
ro
d
u
c
e
 
a
 
p
ro
to
c
o
l 
fo
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
n
g
 
d
e
ta
ils
 
o
f 
tr
e
e
 
w
o
rk
s
 
p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 
a
n
d
 
to
 
b
e
 
a
 

g
o
o
d
 n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
r 
e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 i
n
 a
 m

a
n
n
e
r 
s
e
n
s
it
iv
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

w
is
h
e
s
 o
f 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
. 

 
T
o
 
e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 
p
u
b
lic
 
a
p
p
re
c
ia
ti
o
n
, 

re
c
re
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
u
s
e
 
e
n
jo
y
m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

W
o
rk
s
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 

50



K
e
y
 

 

 
U
n
d
e
liv
e
ra
b
le
 w

it
h
o
u
t 
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 (
p
ri
o
r 
to
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
in
 M

T
F
S
) 

 
P
a
rt
 d
e
liv
e
ra
b
le
 y
e
t 
m
o
re
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 (
p
ri
o
r 
to
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
in
 M

T
F
S
) 

 
D
e
liv
e
ra
b
le
 w

it
h
in
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 b
u
d
g
e
ts
 

  

in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t.
 

 In
tr
o
d
u
c
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re
s
 t
o
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
v
a
n
d
a
lis
m
, 
u
n
a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
 t
ip
p
in
g
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 d

u
m
p
in
g
 o
f 

w
a
s
te
 a
n
d
 l
it
te
r 
a
n
d
 r
e
s
id
e
n
t 
e
n
c
ro
a
c
h
m
e
n
t.
 

 

P
T
 1
.1
-1
.2
 

T
o
 u
ti
lis
e
 a
n
d
 e
n
fo
rc
e
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 p
o
w
e
rs
 t
o
 r
e
ta
in
 a
n
d
 p
ro
te
c
t 
 t
re
e
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 T
P
O
’s
 a
n
d
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 a
re
a
 s
ta
tu
s
 

 
T
o
 c
o
m
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 a
d
v
is
e
 o
n
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
in
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 a
ff
e
c
t 
tr
e
e
s
 a
n
d
 

w
o
o
d
s
. 

 

W
o
rk
s
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 

P
T
2
.1
-2
.7
 

 T
o
 
b
e
 
g
u
id
e
d
 
b
y
 
b
e
s
t 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 
fo
r 
a
 
c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t 
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 
to
 
re
v
ie
w
in
g
 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 

a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

 
 T
o
 
c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
p
ro
s
e
c
u
ti
o
n
 
w
h
e
n
 
c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s
 
o
f 
c
o
n
s
e
n
t 
a
re
 
b
re
e
c
h
e
d
 
o
r 
th
e
re
 
a
re
 

b
re
e
c
h
e
s
 o
f 
T
P
O
’s
 o
r 
th
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 
C
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 A
re
a
 r
e
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
. 
 

 
T
re
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
W
o
o
d
s
 
b
e
 
g
iv
e
n
 
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 
w
it
h
in
 
 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
, 

re
q
u
ir
in
g
 
s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
 
o
f 
s
u
rv
e
y
s
 
in
 
a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 
w
it
h
 
B
ri
ti
s
h
 
S
ta
n
d
a
rd
 
5
8
3
7
: 
2
0
0
5
 

“T
re
e
s
 I
n
 R
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 C

o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
- 
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
” 
 

 
W
h
e
n
 g
ra
n
ti
n
g
 p
e
rm

is
s
io
n
 s
e
t 
c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 r
e
te
n
ti
o
n
, 
  
p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
, 
p
la
n
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 

c
a
re
 o
f 
tr
e
e
s
. 

 
U
ti
lis
e
 c
o
m
m
u
te
d
 s
u
m
s
 a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w

it
h
 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 1
0
6
 A
g
re
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 f
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

 
c
a
re
 o
f 
tr
e
e
s
. 
 T
o
 u
ti
lis
e
 a
n
d
 e
n
fo
rc
e
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 p
o
w
e
rs
 t
o
 r
e
ta
in
 a
n
d
 p
ro
te
c
t 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 

tr
e
e
s
 t
h
re
a
te
n
e
d
 b
y
 n
e
w
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 

p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
. 

 

W
o
rk
s
  
o
n
g
o
in
g
 

P
T
3
.1
 

T
o
 p
ro
te
c
t 
tr
e
e
s
 o
f 
a
m
e
n
it
y
 v
a
lu
e
. 

 
 

W
o
rk
s
 O
n
g
o
in
g
 

51



K
e
y
 

 

 
U
n
d
e
liv
e
ra
b
le
 w

it
h
o
u
t 
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 (
p
ri
o
r 
to
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
in
 M

T
F
S
) 

 
P
a
rt
 d
e
liv
e
ra
b
le
 y
e
t 
m
o
re
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 (
p
ri
o
r 
to
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
in
 M

T
F
S
) 

 
D
e
liv
e
ra
b
le
 w

it
h
in
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 b
u
d
g
e
ts
 

  

P
T
 4
.1
- 
4
.3
 

T
o
 p
ro
m
o
te
 g
o
o
d
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 o
f 
tr
e
e
 a
n
d
 w

o
o
d
la
n
d
 c
a
re
. 

 
T
o
 
e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 
o
w
n
e
rs
 
o
f 
n
o
ta
b
le
 
tr
e
e
s
 
th
a
t 
a
re
 
w
o
rt
h
y
 
o
f 
p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 
to
 
a
d
o
p
t 
b
e
s
t 

p
ra
c
ti
c
e
s
 f
o
r 
tr
e
e
 c
a
re
. 

 
T
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a

 t
re
e
 w

a
rd
e
n
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 t
o
 r
e
a
c
h
 a

n
d
 e

n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 v
o
lu
n
te
e
rs
 

a
n
d
 e
d
u
c
a
te
 s
a
m
e
 w

it
h
 a
c
ti
v
e
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 t
re
e
s
. 
 

 

W
o
rk
s
 O
n
g
o
in
g
 

P
T
 5
.1
- 
5
.3
 

T
o
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
rs
 t
o
 s
u
b
m
it
 d
e
ta
ils
 o
f 
tr
e
e
 s
p
e
c
ie
s
 a
n
d
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
ir
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
. 
 

 
T
o
 p
ro
m
o
te
 t
re
e
 a
n
d
 w

o
o
d
 p
la
n
ti
n
g
 w

h
e
re
 i
t 
is
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
is
 w

ill
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 

a
m
e
n
it
y
. 

 T
o
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
w
ill
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 w

o
o
d
la
n
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
lit
y
. 

 

W
o
rk
s
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 

T
D
 1
.1
 

T
o
 u
ti
lis
e
 a
n
d
 e
n
fo
rc
e
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 p
o
w
e
rs
 t
o
 r
e
ta
in
 a
n
d
 p
ro
te
c
t 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 t
re
e
s
 w

it
h
in
 n
e
w
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
s
 w

e
ll 
a
s
 t
re
e
s
 t
h
re
a
te
n
e
d
 b
y
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
. 

  

W
o
rk
s
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 

52



K
e
y
 

 

 
U
n
d
e
liv
e
ra
b
le
 w

it
h
o
u
t 
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 (
p
ri
o
r 
to
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
in
 M

T
F
S
) 

 
P
a
rt
 d
e
liv
e
ra
b
le
 y
e
t 
m
o
re
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 (
p
ri
o
r 
to
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
in
 M

T
F
S
) 

 
D
e
liv
e
ra
b
le
 w

it
h
in
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 b
u
d
g
e
ts
 

  

P
P
1
.1
-1
.3
 

T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
w
h
e
re
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 w

ill
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 p
ro
te
c
t 
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
tr
e
e
s
. 

 
N
o
 o
b
je
c
ti
o
n
 o
r 
c
o
n
s
e
n
t 
fo
r 
w
o
rk
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 i
f 
th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
is
 s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 t
h
a
t:
 

 

•
 

T
h
e
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

 h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 a
p
p
e
a
ra
n
c
e
 o
f 
th
e
 t
re
e
 i
s
 n
o
t 
im

p
a
ir
e
d
. 

 •
 

T
h
e
 
w
o
rk
 
d
o
e
s
 
n
o
t 
u
n
ju
s
ti
fi
a
b
ly
 
in
h
ib
it
 
o
r 

p
re
v
e
n
t 
th
e
 
fu
ll 

a
n
d
 
n
a
tu
ra
l 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 t
re
e
. 
 

 •
 

T
h
e
 w
o
rk
 i
s
 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 f
o
r 
th
e
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 r
e
te
n
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 t
re
e
. 

 •
 

T
h
e
 w
o
rk
 i
s
 c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t 
w
it
h
 g
o
o
d
 a
rb
o
ri
c
u
lt
u
ra
l 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
. 

 

•
 

T
h
e
 w
o
rk
 i
s
 c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t 
w
it
h
 s
o
u
n
d
 w

o
o
d
la
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t.
 

 
 

 C
o
n
s
id
e
r 
T
P
O
’s
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 t
re
e
s
 o

n
 l
a
n
d
 n

o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 
th
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
 o

f 
th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il.
 

 

W
o
rk
s
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 

 
P
a
rt
 d
e
li
v
e
ra
b
le
 y
e
t 
m
o
re
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 m
a
y
 b
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
  

F
o
llo
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
in
 t
h
e
 M

e
d
iu
m
 T

e
rm

 F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

(M
T
F
S
) 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
n
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
 i
m
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 

 

C
T
W
G
1
.1
  
  

T
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
n
d
 m

a
in
ta
in
 a
 c
o
m
p
u
te
r 
s
y
s
te
m
 w

h
ic
h
 e
n
a
b
le
s
 a
c
c
u
ra
te
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
 o
f 
th
e
 

tr
e
e
 
a
n
d
 
w
o
o
d
la
n
d
s
, 
fa
c
ili
ta
te
s
 
th
e
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
e
n
a
b
le
s
 
th
e
ir
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
a
ti
o
n
. 

 

C
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 

s
p
e
c
if
ie
d
 

w
it
h
in
 

th
e
 

e
x
is
ti
n
g
 

E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t.
 
W
it
h
o
u
t 

s
o
m
e
 
e
x
tr
a
 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 t
h
is
 s
u
rv
e
y
 w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 u
p
 t
o
 

7
 y
e
a
rs
. 
T
h
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 M
T
F
S
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 
a
ll
o
w
 
m
o
re
 
ra
p
id
 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
io
n
 
o
f 
th
is
 

w
o
rk
. 
  

C
T
W
G
 2
.1
 

T
o
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
ri
s
k
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 t
re
e
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
. 

 
T
h
is
 i
s
 a
 d
e
s
ir
e
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 f
o
li
o
 o
f 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 

th
a
t 
m
a
k
e
 
u
p
 
th
is
 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
. 
 
 
T
h
e
 
b
u
d
g
e
t 

a
ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 
w
it
h
in
 
th
e
 
M
T
F
S
 
s
h
o
u
ld
 
a
ll
o
w
 
th
e
 

53



K
e
y
 

 

 
U
n
d
e
liv
e
ra
b
le
 w

it
h
o
u
t 
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 (
p
ri
o
r 
to
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
in
 M

T
F
S
) 

 
P
a
rt
 d
e
liv
e
ra
b
le
 y
e
t 
m
o
re
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 (
p
ri
o
r 
to
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
in
 M

T
F
S
) 

 
D
e
liv
e
ra
b
le
 w

it
h
in
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 b
u
d
g
e
ts
 

  

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
s
u
c
h
 p
la
n
s
. 

C
T
W
G
 2
.2
 

T
o
 s
u
rv
e
y
 a
ll 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
o
w
n
e
d
 t
re
e
s
 a
n
d
 w

o
o
d
s
, 
in
c
o
rp
o
ra
ti
n
g
 r
is
k
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t.
 

 
C
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 

s
p
e
c
if
ie
d
 

w
it
h
in
 

th
e
 

e
x
is
ti
n
g
 

E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t.
 
 
W
it
h
o
u
t 

s
o
m
e
 
e
x
tr
a
 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 t
h
is
 s
u
rv
e
y
 w
il
l 
ta
k
e
 u
p
 t
o
 7
 y
e
a
rs
. 

T
h
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 M
T
F
S
 s
h
o
u
ld
 

a
ll
o
w
 m
o
re
 r
a
p
id
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
io
n
 o
f 
th
is
 w
o
rk
. 
  

C
T
W
G
 2
.3
 

T
o
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 m

a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 w

o
rk
s
 i
n
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 o
f 
d
u
ty
 o
f 
c
a
re
. 

 
In
d
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 m

o
v
e
 t
o
w
a
rd
s
 g
re
a
te
r 

p
ro
-a
c
ti
v
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
w
il
l 
re
q
u
ir
e
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
. 
 
T
h
e
 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 
w
it
h
in
 
th
e
 

M
T
F
S
 
s
h
o
u
ld
 
a
ll
o
w
 
th
e
 
w
o
rk
s
 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 
b
y
 

s
u
rv
e
y
 t
o
 b
e
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
. 

C
T
W
G
 3
.1
 

T
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 p
la
n
s
 f
o
r 
lo
n
g
 t
e
rm

 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
tr
e
e
s
 a
n
d
 w

o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 

a
s
 e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
c
o
m
p
o
n
e
n
ts
 w

it
h
in
 t
h
e
 l
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
. 

 

S
o
m
e
 w
o
rk
s
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 d
e
li
v
e
re
d
 h
o
w
e
v
e
r 

fu
tu
re
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 w
il
l 
b
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 

a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
. 

C
T
W
G
  
5
.1
 

T
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 t
re
e
s
 a
n
d
 w

o
o
d
s
 o
f 
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
in
te
re
s
t 
a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 m

e
th
o
d
 o
f 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 P
a
ri
s
h
 C

o
u
n
c
ils
 o
n
 w

o
rk
s
 t
o
 b
e
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
. 

 

S
o
m
e
 
in
te
re
s
t 
tr
e
e
s
 
h
a
v
e
 
b
e
e
n
 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 
to
-

d
a
te
. 
T
h
e
 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 
w
it
h
in
 
th
e
 
M
T
F
S
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 a
s
s
is
t 
d
e
li
v
e
ry
 o
f 
th
is
 w
o
rk
. 

C
T
W
G
  
 5
.3
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 p
ra
c
ti
c
a
l 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y
 p
ro
to
c
o
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
im

p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
. 
 

 

C
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 

w
it
h
in
 

e
x
is
ti
n
g
 

E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t.
 

F
u
tu
re
 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
 

im
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 w
il
l 
b
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
. 

C
T
W
G
 6
.1
 

T
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 p
la
n
ti
n
g
 p
la
n
 t
h
a
t 
s
u
s
ta
in
s
 t
h
e
 t
re
e
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
, 
w
it
h
 e
m
p
h
a
s
is
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

lo
n
g
-t
e
rm

 r
e
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
m
a
tu
re
 a
n
d
 o
v
e
r 
m
a
tu
re
 t
re
e
s
. 

  
 

S
o
m
e
 
w
o
rk
 
h
a
s
 
a
lr
e
a
d
y
 
b
e
in
g
 
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 

h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
m
o
re
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
. 
T
h
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t 

a
ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 
w
it
h
in
 
th
e
 
M
T
F
S
 
s
h
o
u
ld
 
a
s
s
is
t 

d
e
li
v
e
ry
 o
f 
th
is
 w
o
rk
. 

C
T
W
G
 6
.2
 

A
llo
c
a
te
 a

 p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o

f 
th
e
 t
o
ta
l 
tr
e
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
to
 f
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 r
e
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
d
e
a
d
 o

r 
in
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 t
re
e
s
. 

 
 

C
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 o
n
ly
 a
 s
m
a
ll
 p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
b
u
d
g
e
ts
 

c
a
n
 
b
e
 
a
ll
o
c
a
te
d
 
to
 
re
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
ti
n
g
. 
 

F
u
tu
re
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
 i
m
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 w
il
l 
b
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
. 

S
T
1
.1
, 
 
R
A
1
, 

P
O
S
1
.1
, 

V
R
1
.1
, 
O
S
1
.1
 

T
o
 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
 
a
 
ro
b
u
s
t 

c
y
c
lic
a
l 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

p
la
n
 
in
 
c
o
n
ju
n
c
ti
o
n
 
w
it
h
 
th
e
 
ri
s
k
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 a
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
. 

 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

p
la
n
s
 

a
re
 

c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 

b
e
in
g
 

c
re
a
te
d
. 
T
h
e
 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 
w
it
h
in
 
th
e
 

M
T
F
S
 s
h
o
u
ld
 a
ll
o
w
 m

o
re
 r
a
p
id
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
io
n
 o
f 

th
is
 w
o
rk
. 
  

54



K
e
y
 

 

 
U
n
d
e
liv
e
ra
b
le
 w

it
h
o
u
t 
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 (
p
ri
o
r 
to
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
in
 M

T
F
S
) 

 
P
a
rt
 d
e
liv
e
ra
b
le
 y
e
t 
m
o
re
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 (
p
ri
o
r 
to
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
in
 M

T
F
S
) 

 
D
e
liv
e
ra
b
le
 w

it
h
in
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 b
u
d
g
e
ts
 

  

S
T
2
.2
  
 

In
 s
tr
e
e
ts
 w

h
e
re
 t
re
e
 p
la
n
ti
n
g
 i
s
 n
o
t 
p
o
s
s
ib
le
 i
n
 p
a
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 o
r 
v
e
rg
e
s
, 
to
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 

re
s
id
e
n
ts
 t
o
 p
la
n
t 
tr
e
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 f
ro
n
t 
g
a
rd
e
n
s
. 

S
o
m
e
 
w
o
rk
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 
h
o
w
e
v
e
r 

th
e
s
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 w
il
l 
b
e
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
d
 w
it
h
in
 

o
n
g
o
in
g
 w
o
rk
s
. 

R
A
 1
.1
 

T
o
 c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
 a
 r
e
m
o
v
a
l,
 a
n
d
 w

h
e
re
 s
u
it
a
b
le
, 
re
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
g
ra
m
 o
f 
tr
e
e
s
 t
h
a
t,
 i
n
 

th
e
 
ju
d
g
m
e
n
t 

o
f 

a
 
q
u
a
lif
ie
d
 
a
rb
o
ri
c
u
lt
u
ri
s
t,
 
a
re
 
c
le
a
rl
y
 
o
f 

a
 
s
iz
e
 
a
n
d
 
s
p
e
c
ie
s
 

in
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 f
o
r 
th
e
ir
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
. 

S
o
m
e
 

w
o
rk
 

o
f 

th
is
 

n
a
tu
re
 

h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 
li
m
it
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
. 
 T
h
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
in
 

th
e
 

M
T
F
S
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 

a
ll
o
w
 

m
o
re
 

ra
p
id
 

p
ro
g
re
s
s
io
n
 o
f 
th
is
 w
o
rk
. 
  

P
O
S
 1
.2
 

T
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
tr
e
e
s
 a
re
 f
u
lly
 i
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 w

it
h
in
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
s
 

fo
r 
P
a
rk
s
 a
n
d
 o
p
e
n
 s
p
a
c
e
s
. 

P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 

w
it
h
in
 

th
e
 

c
u
rr
e
n
t 

E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t.
 
T
h
e
 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 
w
it
h
in
 
th
e
 

M
T
F
S
 s
h
o
u
ld
 a
ll
o
w
 m

o
re
 r
a
p
id
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
io
n
 o
f 

th
e
s
e
 p
la
n
s
. 
  

P
O
S
 1
.3
 

T
o
 
c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
 
a
 
re
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
g
ra
m
 
th
a
t 
in
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
s
 
a
 
d
iv
e
rs
e
 
ra
n
g
e
 
o
f 
tr
e
e
 

s
p
e
c
ie
s
 a
n
d
 w
h
e
re
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
, 
to
 r
e
-e
s
ta
b
lis
h
 h
is
to
ri
c
 l
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
s
. 

W
o
rk
s
 
s
ta
rt
e
d
 
h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

li
m
it
 t
h
e
 r
e
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
. 
 T
h
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t 

a
ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 M
T
F
S
 s
h
o
u
ld
 a
ll
o
w
 m

o
re
 

ra
p
id
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
io
n
 o
f 
th
is
 w
o
rk
. 

C
W
 1
.2
 -
1
.1
2
 

T
o
 m

a
in
ta
in
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s
 t
re
e
 c
o
v
e
r 
a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
 w

o
o
d
s
 t
o
w
a
rd
s
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
ili
ty
. 

 
T
o
 m

a
k
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 f
o
r 
p
u
b
lic
 a
c
c
e
s
s
. 

 
T
o
 m

a
in
ta
in
 w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 b
o
u
n
d
a
ri
e
s
, 
c
o
m
b
a
t 
fl
y
-t
ip
p
in
g
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
a
n
ti
-s
o
c
ia
l 
b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r.
 

 
T
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
h
a
b
it
a
ts
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 w

o
o
d
s
. 

 
T
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 b
io
d
iv
e
rs
it
y
, 
a
n
d
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
in
v
a
s
iv
e
 s
p
e
c
ie
s
. 

 
T
o
 p
re
s
e
rv
e
 t
h
e
 h
is
to
ri
c
 f
e
a
tu
re
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 w

o
o
d
s
. 

 
T
o
 
in
c
re
a
s
e
 
th
e
 
a
m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
s
ta
n
d
in
g
 
a
n
d
 
fa
lle
n
 
d
e
a
d
w
o
o
d
 
w
h
e
re
 
th
is
 
d
o
e
s
 
n
o
t 

c
o
m
p
ro
m
is
e
 s
a
fe
ty
. 

 T
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
. 

W
o
rk
s
 
in
it
ia
te
d
 
h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
th
e
 
h
is
to
ri
c
 
la
c
k
 
o
f 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
s
 l
im
it
s
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
. 
T
h
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t 

a
ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 
w
it
h
in
 
th
e
 
M
T
F
S
 
s
h
o
u
ld
 
s
ta
rt
 
to
 

a
ll
o
w
 t
h
e
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
 o
f 
th
is
 w
o
rk
. 

55



K
e
y
 

 

 
U
n
d
e
liv
e
ra
b
le
 w

it
h
o
u
t 
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 (
p
ri
o
r 
to
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
in
 M

T
F
S
) 

 
P
a
rt
 d
e
liv
e
ra
b
le
 y
e
t 
m
o
re
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 (
p
ri
o
r 
to
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
in
 M

T
F
S
) 

 
D
e
liv
e
ra
b
le
 w

it
h
in
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 b
u
d
g
e
ts
 

  

 R
e
s
to
re
 c
o
p
p
ic
e
 i
n
te
rs
p
e
rs
e
d
 w

it
h
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
. 

 E
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 s
u
it
a
b
le
 n
a
tu
ra
l 
re
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
. 

 
E
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
w
h
e
re
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
. 

 
T
o
 a
tt
e
m
p
t 
to
 p
la
n
t 
tr
e
e
s
 o
f 
lo
c
a
l 
p
ro
v
e
n
a
n
c
e
 

 

U
W
 1
.2
-1
.1
1
 

T
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
 w

o
o
d
la
n
d
s
 o
n
 t
o
w
a
rd
s
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
ili
ty
. 

 
T
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
 w

o
o
d
s
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s
 w

o
o
d
la
n
d
 c
o
v
e
r.
 

 
T
o
 m

a
in
ta
in
 a
n
d
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 l
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 a
m
e
n
it
y
. 

 
T
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 b
io
d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 a
n
d
 m

a
x
im

is
e
 w
ild

lif
e
 h
a
b
it
a
ts
. 

 
T
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 
im

p
ro
v
e
d
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
c
re
a
ti
o
n
, 
w
h
e
re
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
. 

 
T
o
 p
ro
te
c
t 
a
n
d
 p
re
s
e
rv
e
 a
rc
h
a
e
o
lo
g
ic
a
l 
a
n
d
 c
u
lt
u
ra
l 
fe
a
tu
re
s
. 

 
T
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re
s
 t
h
a
t 
c
a
n
 a
s
s
is
t 
w
it
h
 a
d
a
p
ta
ti
o
n
 t
o
 c
lim

a
te
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 a
s
 w

e
ll 
a
s
 t
o
 

m
a
x
im

is
e
 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 f
o
r 
c
a
rb
o
n
 s
e
q
u
e
s
tr
a
ti
o
n
. 

 
T
o
 
id
e
n
ti
fy
 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
n
e
w
 
s
it
e
s
 
fo
r 
w
o
o
d
s
 
a
n
d
 
e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 
th
e
ir
 
c
re
a
ti
o
n
 
a
d
jo
in
in
g
 

e
x
is
ti
n
g
 w
o
o
d
s
 a
n
d
 w

h
e
re
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 m

a
k
in
g
 f
u
ll 
u
s
e
 o
f 
n
a
tu
ra
l 
re
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
. 

 
R
e
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
tr
e
e
s
 t
o
 b
e
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 b
y
 n
a
tu
ra
l 
re
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 e
n
ri
c
h
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
ti
n
g
. 

  T
o
 a
tt
e
m
p
t 
to
 p
la
n
t 
tr
e
e
s
 o
f 
lo
c
a
l 
p
ro
v
e
n
a
n
c
e
 

 
 

W
o
rk
s
 

in
it
ia
te
d
 

h
o
w
e
v
e
r 

th
e
 

la
c
k
 

o
f 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
s
 l
im
it
s
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
. 
T
h
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t 

a
ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 
w
it
h
in
 
th
e
 
M
T
F
S
 
s
h
o
u
ld
 
s
ta
rt
 
to
 

a
ll
o
w
 t
h
e
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
 o
f 
th
is
 w
o
rk
. 

56



K
e
y
 

 

 
U
n
d
e
liv
e
ra
b
le
 w

it
h
o
u
t 
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 (
p
ri
o
r 
to
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
in
 M

T
F
S
) 

 
P
a
rt
 d
e
liv
e
ra
b
le
 y
e
t 
m
o
re
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 (
p
ri
o
r 
to
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
in
 M

T
F
S
) 

 
D
e
liv
e
ra
b
le
 w

it
h
in
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 b
u
d
g
e
ts
 

  

 

V
R
1
.2
 

T
o
 r
e
p
la
c
e
 a
ll 
tr
e
e
s
 w

h
ic
h
 a
re
 r
e
m
o
v
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
s
e
 a
re
a
s
 a
n
d
 a
tt
e
m
p
t 
to
 e
x
p
a
n
d
 t
re
e
 

c
o
v
e
r 
if
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
. 

 
 

S
o
m
e
 

w
o
rk
 

o
f 

th
is
 

n
a
tu
re
 

h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 
li
m
it
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 
to
 
th
e
 
d
e
s
ir
e
d
 
le
v
e
l.
 
 
T
h
e
 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 
w
it
h
in
 
th
e
 
M
T
F
S
 
s
h
o
u
ld
 

a
ll
o
w
 m
o
re
 r
a
p
id
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
io
n
 o
f 
th
is
 w
o
rk
. 

V
R
 1
.3
 
 

T
o
 r
e
p
la
n
t 
u
s
in
g
 s
u
it
a
b
le
 n
a
ti
v
e
 t
re
e
s
 e
x
c
e
p
t 
w
h
e
re
 t
h
is
 w
o
u
ld
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 l
o
s
s
 o
f 
fa
m
ili
a
r 

v
e
rn
a
c
u
la
r.
 

S
o
m
e
 

w
o
rk
 

o
f 

th
is
 

n
a
tu
re
 

h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 
li
m
it
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 
to
 
th
e
 
d
e
s
ir
e
d
 
le
v
e
l.
 
 
T
h
e
 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 
w
it
h
in
 
th
e
 
M
T
F
S
 
s
h
o
u
ld
 

a
ll
o
w
 m
o
re
 o
f 
th
is
 w
o
rk
 t
o
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
. 

N
R
P
1
.1
 1
.7
 

T
o
 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
 
a
 
d
e
ta
ile
d
 
R
ig
h
t 
T
re
e
 
in
 
th
e
 
R
ig
h
t 
P
la
c
e
 
fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
 
 
fo
r 
g
u
id
in
g
 
 
tr
e
e
 

s
e
le
c
ti
o
n
 
o
n
 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
s
it
e
s
 
a
s
 
w
e
ll 
a
s
 
fo
r 
o
b
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
 
w
it
h
in
 
th
e
 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
 

 
T
h
e
 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
w
ill
 
p
la
n
t 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 
n
e
w
 
a
n
d
 
re
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
tr
e
e
s
 
 
to
 
e
n
s
u
re
 
th
a
t 
th
e
 

c
u
rr
e
n
t 
e
x
te
n
t 
o
f 
tr
e
e
 c
o
v
e
ra
g
e
 i
s
 m

a
in
ta
in
e
d
 o
r 
e
x
p
a
n
d
e
d
  

 T
o
 i
n
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 a
ft
e
rc
a
re
 i
n
to
 a
ll 
m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
. 

  
F
o
rm

u
la
te
 
a
 
p
la
n
ti
n
g
 
p
ro
g
ra
m
 
w
it
h
 
g
re
a
te
s
t 
p
ri
o
ri
ty
 
g
iv
e
n
 
to
 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 
s
it
e
s
 
in
 

d
e
p
ri
v
e
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
, 
k
e
y
 t
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 c
o
rr
id
o
rs
 a
n
d
 g
a
te
w
a
y
s
, 
la
rg
e
 o
p
e
n
 s
p
a
c
e
s
 w

it
h
 

lit
tl
e
 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 
n
a
tu
ra
l 
v
e
g
e
ta
ti
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
fi
n
a
lly
 
a
re
a
s
 
w
it
h
in
 
n
e
w
 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
 
in
 
th
is
 

o
rd
e
r.
 

 
R
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
d
is
ti
n
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 w

h
e
n
 s
e
le
c
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 p
la
n
ti
n
g
 t
re
e
s
 

  
  
  
  

E
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t,
 c
o
m
m
e
m
o
ra
ti
v
e
 a
n
d
 s
p
o
n
s
o
re
d
 p
la
n
ti
n
g
 s
c
h
e
m
e
s
 

o
n
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
la
n
d
. 

 U
s
e
 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 
c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s
 
a
n
d
 
S
e
c
ti
o
n
 
1
0
6
 
A
g
re
e
m
e
n
ts
 
to
 
s
e
c
u
re
 
tr
e
e
 
p
la
n
ti
n
g
 
a
n
d
 

S
o
m
e
 

w
o
rk
 

o
f 

th
is
 

n
a
tu
re
 

h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 
li
m
it
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 
to
 
th
e
 
d
e
s
ir
e
d
 
le
v
e
l.
 
 
T
h
e
 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 
w
it
h
in
 
th
e
 
M
T
F
S
 
s
h
o
u
ld
 

a
ll
o
w
 m
o
re
 r
a
p
id
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
io
n
 o
f 
th
is
 w
o
rk
. 

57



K
e
y
 

 

 
U
n
d
e
liv
e
ra
b
le
 w

it
h
o
u
t 
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 (
p
ri
o
r 
to
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
in
 M

T
F
S
) 

 
P
a
rt
 d
e
liv
e
ra
b
le
 y
e
t 
m
o
re
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 (
p
ri
o
r 
to
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
in
 M

T
F
S
) 

 
D
e
liv
e
ra
b
le
 w

it
h
in
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 b
u
d
g
e
ts
 

  

fu
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
tr
e
e
 s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 
e
s
ta
b
lis
h
m
e
n
t 
o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
. 

 

L
T
1
.1
-1
.2
 

T
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 s
u
rv
e
y
 t
re
e
s
 a
n
d
 w

o
o
d
s
 s
o
 a
s
 t
o
 f
in
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
n
 r
e
g
is
te
r 
a
ll 
la
n
d
m
a
rk
 

tr
e
e
s
.  

T
o
 e
x
te
n
d
 t
h
e
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 
la
n
d
m
a
rk
 t
re
e
s
 c
a
n
 b
e
 a
d
e
q
u
a
te
ly
 

m
a
in
ta
in
e
d
. 

 
 

S
o
m
e
 

w
o
rk
 

o
f 

th
is
 

n
a
tu
re
 

h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 
li
m
it
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 
to
 
th
e
 
d
e
s
ir
e
d
 
le
v
e
l.
 
 
T
h
e
 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 
w
it
h
in
 
th
e
 
M
T
F
S
 
s
h
o
u
ld
 

a
ll
o
w
 m
o
re
 r
a
p
id
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
io
n
 o
f 
th
is
 w
o
rk
. 

T
D
 1
.2
 

T
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 
a
n
d
 e
n
fo
rc
e
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s
 o
f 
c
o
n
s
e
n
t 
w
h
e
re
 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
. 

 
C
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 w
o
rk
 o
f 
th
is
 n
a
tu
re
 i
s
 v
e
ry
 r
e
a
c
ti
v
e
. 
 

F
u
rt
h
e
r 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 d
e
li
v
e
r 

a
 
fu
ll
y
 
p
ro
a
c
ti
v
e
 
s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
F
u
tu
re
 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
 

im
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 w
il
l 
b
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
. 

P
P
1
.4
 

T
o
 m

a
in
ta
in
 
re
c
o
rd
s
 
o
f 
T
P
O
’s
 
a
n
d
 
c
o
m
p
le
te
 
th
e
 
a
p
p
ra
is
a
l 
o
f 
o
ld
e
r 
T
P
O
’s
. 
 W

h
e
re
 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 r
e
v
o
k
e
 o
ld
 O

rd
e
rs
 a
n
d
 s
e
rv
e
 n
e
w
. 

 

W
o
rk
 c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
d
 b
u
t 
in
s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
 t
o
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
 
th
e
 
p
ro
je
c
t.
 
T
h
e
 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
in
 
th
e
 
M
T
F
S
 
s
h
o
u
ld
 
a
ll
o
w
 
m
o
re
 
ra
p
id
 

p
ro
g
re
s
s
io
n
 o
f 
th
is
 w
o
rk
. 

 
P
o
te
n
ti
a
ll
y
 u
n
d
e
li
v
e
ra
b
le
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

F
o
llo
w
in
g
 
th
e
 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 
w
it
h
in
 
th
e
 
M
T
F
S
 
th
e
re
 
w
ill
 
b
e
 
a
n
 
o
n
g
o
in
g
 

re
v
ie
w
 o
f 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
 i
m
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 

 

C
T
W
G
3
.5
 

T
o
 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
 
a
 
p
e
s
t 
a
n
d
 
d
is
e
a
s
e
 
c
o
n
tr
o
l 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
 
in
 
c
o
n
ju
n
c
ti
o
n
 
w
it
h
 
n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
ri
n
g
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 w

h
e
re
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
. 

  

C
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 n
o
t 
b
u
d
g
e
te
d
 f
o
r.
  
T
h
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t 

a
ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 M
T
F
S
 w
il
l 
a
ll
o
w
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
g
re
s
s
io
n
 o
f 
th
is
 w
o
rk
. 

C
W
1
.1
  
  
  

T
o
 p
ro
d
u
c
e
 a

 W
o
o
d
la
n
d
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
P
la
n
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
w
o
o
d
la
n
d
  
  
o
w
n
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 C

it
y
 

C
o
u
n
c
il.
 

  
 

A
c
h
ie
v
a
b
le
 
o
n
ly
 
w
it
h
 
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
. 
 

T
h
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 M
T
F
S
 s
h
o
u
ld
 

n
o
w
 a
ll
o
w
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
io
n
 o
f 
th
is
 w
o
rk
. 

U
W
1
.1
 

T
o
 p
ro
d
u
c
e
 a
n
 U

rb
a
n
 W

o
o
d
la
n
d
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
P
la
n
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 o
w
n
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 

C
it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il.
 

A
c
h
ie
v
a
b
le
 
o
n
ly
 
w
it
h
 
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
. 
 

T
h
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 M
T
F
S
 s
h
o
u
ld
 

n
o
w
 a
ll
o
w
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
io
n
 o
f 
th
is
 w
o
rk
. 

58



K
e
y
 

 

 
U
n
d
e
liv
e
ra
b
le
 w

it
h
o
u
t 
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 (
p
ri
o
r 
to
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
in
 M

T
F
S
) 

 
P
a
rt
 d
e
liv
e
ra
b
le
 y
e
t 
m
o
re
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 (
p
ri
o
r 
to
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
in
 M

T
F
S
) 

 
D
e
liv
e
ra
b
le
 w

it
h
in
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 b
u
d
g
e
ts
 

   

59



60

This page is intentionally left blank



���������	�
�	��������������������

������������������ 	������ �		��������� ������

����� ����	
����	���������
������������������������
��������������������	��������������������������

 ������������������	���	 ��	������������

!���� ��������������������������	�����������

����" #������������������� 	�	�����$����% �����	���& #��������������������������������������������� ��������������

����' ��������	��������	������$����
�������
���
����������������������$�����	��������(��

��	���������
��)��)�	������)��������*�$�����
�������%*�
��)����	���������	�������


����
���������������
����*�
��)������
�������������������%�������%*����������

	���������+���������	�����������������	������

�����������*�����	�+�
���	�����	*���������

��
�����	*��������������*������

���������*	������$���	*�����$����	*����	��
����������$�������
�������*�	������%�
����������*�


������������������*��������
����*���
��)��������
����	
����*�	����	��$���	�����*���������*�
����������+������)���	��������������*�
����)����������	*����������$�����	���������

�������

!�������,������
������)�������$�����	�
������������	���������-�

�������������

����� !���������)����������������)�����	����./����

���-�0�#���!1 -/�������2�	�������	���)�����$%�
�������� �$�	��������������	&

2������	�������������������� 3������������

����- �������	���������������$����������������������

���	��������������������	���������	���
	
����	*������������$�)��	
����	������������

!�������,������
������������ �������������

����. #��������������	�	�����$����% !�������2�������������������������������
�������������

����������
�������

������������� � ����� ����!!

6
1



������������������ 	������ �		��������� ������

����4 ��������	������������	����$������)�������

�����
�������
��������	��������%������
$�����	������5�	����
��)�����������������������

����
��(���	������*���
��)��)�	����
��)��������*�$������������%*�
��)����	�����

����	�������
����
���������������
�����
��)������
�������������������%*�������%����������

	���������+���������	�����������������	������
������������������	�+�
���	�����	*���������


��
�����	*��������������*������������������
	������$���	*�����$����	����	������������

$�������
�������*�	������%�
�����������
���������

���������*��������
����*���
��)��������
����	
����*�	����	��$���	�����*����������

����������+������)���	�����������������
����)����������	*����������$�����	���������

�������

�������%�$�����	�������	����������������	�

������������	��������������	����	�����
$�����	��������	���������-�����)��������������

$����������	��)����	��

��������������������)��	��������

����� 3���6��������$����������	���
������7���

��
������%��������	���	�$	����������

����	�������������6������	����	�������������

8�$����������������)�������
������
����	�
$������������������	��������������������

	
����	��������	������������	����%�

������������������������	�������

����- ������	��������	�������	���������$��
�����		���������������������

�����������	���������	�����$�������������
������������	�����������3

����������	���	��

$�������������������%���
���������#������9	�
�
�������������������	������	
��������������%�

�������:�����	�

�������������

����� !���	����$�����������������������	��	���)��

������*����	����������������������
����;

!���� ��������������������������	��������

����. 7�	��	����������������������%���	���$	&;����	�
�	��$������������	
����	�	��������������%�

!���� <������������)�������������������

-���' -���"�=�-���'�������3�$��������������
��������	���<��)����������!���	������������

�����	������������������������������	�	�������
��	���	���������������	������	�����		��%����

��5�	�����������

�������������

����� 7�	��	����������������������������

��
������

����#������������
�����������	��	�����,6	�������
����	����������������	�$���������

����	����������������	���������������$��

�����������������%��6�������%������)�����
����	����������
���������������������������

�����������������

������������

������������� � ����������!!

6
2



������������������ 	������ �		��������� ������

����> !���	����$�� 5�������
 ��

�����������#�������

#������<������%������	������������	����$��
��)������	
����	�	�������������������
���������

������$��������������� ������ �
�	�	�����
��	��	�	����������
��*����������%���)��

6,?������	���	�����
������������������@����	��
����	��
�	���6����	�����
������*���	��6���

��:�����	�$�A�������
	����	�������$��)��$����
�������	���������%������������������	��������

#�������#������<������%�

!����� !�����������������

������ @���������	����%�����)�����	��������B������� ����)�������	������%� �������������

����4 ����'�=�����4�������5�	����������������	��

$���������������

,������
������)�������������� �������������

������ �����������	��������������������	��	��������
�����������������)������������������
������

�����	��	����������������#�����,##����
���
�����	������������&

!�������2������������������������ �������������

������������� � �����"����!!

6
3



������������������ 	������ �		��������� ������

>���� C<B���)����������	����������������C<B���$�

	����$�������	����	��	������	�������	�����
��
���������������<������%����3���)������

�		�		���������	�	���������	*�
����������%�
������%��������
	�������	�$%�������
�	����������

���������
�$��������		�����	���������$�������
��	�	��		������������������	����	����$��


�������	��*��������
�������%���%������	����
��	
������	���������3	����������*�����	�

	������$����)��������������A���	(�����A����
�������������	���:�����
�$��������		��������	�

0�������������������
����������	*�	�����	*�

��������9	�
��%������	*�
�
���������
���	*�����

���	*�����������	������$�	%�����	1D�������

	������A��������������	���������	�$5�������
��:�����
�$��������		��3	�������������������	�

	�$5���������:�����
�$��������		EF��������	��
������������	��%��

��������$%����%�
��
���

�)��%���%��?�
	���%�$���	����������	�
����)������������	��������)����������	�����

�������%����$������		��%���A���	�������������	�
�������A���	�����������%��������������������	����

����:�����%�)�	�����A���*���	%	�������

�������*�
������)�������	��	��

��
����������	�

	��������)��)����:�����)�	��������������$)���	�

	���	��������������	������%����$����	��$�������$��
������������$%���
��	������������������

����������������	����������������	*�$�������
���������$�������$������������	
������	���

���������	���������������
���	����������%	�
�	���������������������������������%�	������

2��%�������	�	��������	�����������%�	%	����
������	�
������
����������������������	���%��	�


��
���%��

������������������������3�	�����
�������������������������A�����������	������%�

�������)�������������	�$���������������

��	
�����������������	�����%������	������
�������������������)�3�	%	��������$��������

	
������	���		�	������+������������������������
��������)���	������	���������������
��������

��������������������
��	�������%������������
�������)�3�	%	����������$���
��
��������
����

��������������	*�	�����	�)������������	���	*�

!������������	����	�������������������	����������

	���������������������
�����
��	����������
�������������	
��	������������������������

����������������	������%�

���������������

������������� � �����#����!!

6
4



������������������ 	������ �		��������� ������

��������������������	����������
���������%�
�������������)����	�	�����	������$%�����

��������	��������)������%�������	����	�)��������	��

)��6���	������%������%����������%���)��
��	
��	�$����%��������	��������)��	�����	�

	��������������	�$������������%�����������
��������G�����	�����������������	�	�	
������

���������������	��
�	�	���
���������%�	�����	�
��	��$����	�*��������
�����	�
�������%�������

������������
�$�����	�*���	
�������		�		�����
�����������������	
�����������������

���	���	*����������%����$���

��
�������
)���6�������������	�$��������������$%���������

�����)����	��������������������
��	���	����

���)�������	�*��������	������$��
�����������
����������������������	���3�%���$������������

�������:������	������$��������������$%���
���
��������$����������	�*��	�	�������������	�

���
��	������������)��%��������	���������������	�
��)��)����2��%�������	�	����������$��

���������������������
���������	�
������		����%��)������	
�������������)������

����	���������%�$������		��%���������������	���*�
�����5��������*����������������
�$�����	�*���	�
	��������������	���������������%������������
��	��$�������������	������	�$������������

������������������������	������	�����?����������

�����	������������������������	�����
��
������������
��������

>���- ,����%����������� ��$�����������	� �	������$��

���������������)����������������������������	�
�	�������2��
�����>'-"����������

3�����������	����������:���������������� �������������

>���> <���������	�������	������������������$������
��������������	�����������������

<����	�������������������� �������������

,����%�#�GH�� G�������	�9�	��$��	��������������9�����& �����	��������������������������%���	���:������

�����������
����%��������	������	�	�$	�:�����%�
���������

�������������

,��������	����#G�H�> �����G�����	�������%�������	����� #�����������������������������	�����
��������
������������������������������%�

�������������

������������� � �����!����!!

6
5



������������������ 	������ �		��������� ������

,��������	����#G�H�. I�����������	������������������ !�����������#������������	���������

��
����������	��������	�������)���������

���������������������7�������������	�������

!�����������������

.���� ����������	��������& <������������������� �������������

.�-�� ���	�	���������	����������$�������<���������

���������

!�������������)�� ���������)���

.�-�> ���	�����������������*�
����������%��3�����=���� <�����������������%���	�$���������������

��������������������������	��
��������	�

�������������

.�>�� 6��%���������������������������	���������$��
��)�����$%�?����������,���	����������

����	��%�@�	��,��������

!��������������������� �������������

,����%�#G�� 2����+���	����	�	�����$����%& !�������2���������������������� �������������

,��������	����#G�� �����������������*����	��������	��������*�$������

����������������������������*��������	�����
<����	�����	���������	���������	��������%�

�
�����������
����������������$�������	�����
�)����$��*���������	�� �����	 ��������$������

!�������������������������
��������	���	�$����

���������������������$����%����������������)��%*�
���������
�����������	��������
��������	�

�������������

������������� � �����$����!!

6
6



������������������ 	������ �		��������� ������

,����%�8G�� 3	�����	�����������*�������������)�����

8�$���G��������?����������,���������
	������$���	������$������$����	���������������

����	�����������������������������	��������
���	����	*�����		*�����=�����������3���������

-��%�	����*����	��$���	�	��������)��$����
��������������	�����%�	����*�����������������

���	����	���	������������	��������

%�����
����*���%�����������������	����������������$��	�

������	�	�����$���������������	���
�����������2������������������������	��$���	�

��������		�
��$���	*�C=<��������������%�

	�����
��������)�������%���
�		�$�����������$���
��	���������������)����������������	�A��������

����	*�)�����*�����		�����C=<��		��	��
��������������	���������$����	�������*�


��)������	����$�������������	������������
��$����*�$������	��������������������
����������

��	����
��������	*��	������������C=<��	
�����
�������%������������	��	���������������������	��

$����)�����������%�����
��$���������$�����
��

�������	��$���	*��������������������������
�

	�A����������������$�����������
��������C=<�
�	
����������	���������)�����������$��

�����		�������������������	����������)��������


���	������$�����������������������������
��������$�����	��������������	�����	���������

������%����������	������$���)����������)����
���	��
���	�������$����	��%��6�����������

�������������)��������������������������
	�$	�:�����%�$����		�����
��$�����3��

��$�����%����%������

�����%����������$����
	��	�$����

�����������	������)��	���	�

����������	�����)��	����%��3������
���������
	����		������	��	�����$��	�������<)��	��$%����

6�����G�	����

!�����������#������������������������������

���	�����������	���
��������������������������

������)���������������)�	��������������

8�$���G��������?����������,������%�
��������	����	����	����	�

�������������

������������� � �����%����!!

6
7



������������������ 	������ �		��������� ������

,��������	����8G�� ��������	����	����������	��
��������	�����

����)��������������	����$������)�����������

����%�	����������������)��	�0����	��������
���

���	����	�������.�>��������9���
��������������
�����;1�	������$���	�������������*����	�������

��)������	*��$5����)�	�����	�	�����$����%�
�����	�����	�
����%�	���������������$���������

���������		���
�����������������������������
�	�������	��$����	������	�����
�		�$�������	������

�������	�$����������������$����	+$���	����
����
��������������	���)���
�����
��	�����

���
���*�������������	���
��	�)���������


�����������	�����������������������:������
��)��������������*�	��������������	����������

	��)����������	���:�������,##����	�������)��
�������	�������?����������
���	���������$��


�������������������������$���������
	������$����$�	������������������������������

����������
����	��������������)�����������
�	
���	*���������*����	������	�=��

���������	�

!����������������������������������
���	�

��������$�������7�����3�������%��������������
�����	����$����%���������
��������	�����

�%�������

�������	�$���������������������	���������	�
���	����������

�������������

,��������	����I��� ������:����%�%������$������������ !���������������������������:����%�����)��� �������������

,��������	����,��> >���������)�*���)�����������	������ #����������
���� �������������

3�������������,#��������������	���	��)������
	�$�������������������	
��	���������	������%�

�	��������(�9G���	�����	��	��������
������������
����������	��������%������������	*�����	���%�

�����$��������������%����	����
��)������������
�������
����������		������������	����	9�

!����������	���
���������������������	��������
	������%������
��)����������������������������

�		��������!����$��������
���	�������	��
?����������<��������	������
��)����������

����	����	�����������	�

������������������������

"�� <�������"�����	�������������	�����	�$���%�
�������*�����	���	5�����������	����������

	��������	��������������������������������
@<>'-"�����	����$��
��	�������������%�����

�����������%���������	�$5����)���������	��
�����������	������	����$�������������������

�

��������	������������	����	�����������
	���������������
���������

	�

������������������%� �������������

"���� <��������������	����%����#��	�3���	��!���	�
���$������)�����������������

�������������������%� �������������

������������� � ����������!!

6
8



������������������ 	������ �		��������� ������

"���' �������� 3���������������� �������������

"����� �������)�������#��	+�,6+2#+C����	����% !�����������������������������%� �������������

"����� -44'(���� !������8
����� �������������

"����- !���	����������� !������,������
��������������������%� �������������

,����%�,,�� ������������=�-���	�������	�����������

���������$��������,6+#��	�����
����		�

!�������,����%���������������������������� �������������

,��������	����,,�� �������������

��
����������������������
9���	���9���#��	�3��������	����$�������������

��'�������)�&

!������3��������	�������� �������������

'���" 7�	��	�����������#��������BGH< !�����������������������������% �������������

��*���=����������������������������������

	������%

!�����������	�����%���
������	������������

���������	������%�

��������������	��

��
������

�2�������	�������������������������@<>'-"�,,��
����	�����������

!�����������	���������	�$���������������������
������%�

������������

2�%��������		�����	�������������!���	���������
�������	�������	�	������2����	�����	����$��

�		�		����������	��$%���	��$�	�	��C�����%	�
	�������������	����$��$�	������������������

C�����%	�3���<������	�������-.*��>�

!����������	���
�������������������	�����
��������%����	����������$������������)�������

���������������������%���	����������������
������%��	����	��	�������	������
�������

!����������������������%������

������������� � �����&����!!

6
9



������������������ 	������ �		��������� ������

H��������������	�����	����������	�������	�

��������������9	�	���������
��
�	�����
����	*�
����������	�$5����)���������	*��$)���	�

��	����	�����	���
����	��������	��G�������
	���������������������	*����	�����������	�

��������������
�
�������	�����������������	��	*�
�����%�9	��)�	�����
��
�	�9���,##�$������$���

���
����������������%�������)����<������%��
@��������	�	�������������������	��������*����

�����)������*�����	���
���������������	�����
���$��	����$��	��������������������������$��

�������*���	���������������)������3	��	*�����

������������������������������
����$������%���
���������	�����������	�
�
��������������

���������%�����������������?��$��	�����	������
	������������������	�������,##���)��	���

���������	
������	��	����	���:�������������)�����
����������<������%�����	���������%�������	�

��
����	����������*���)�	���������������%�

��
���������	�������������������	�

���������������	���
���������������	�	������%��	�
��9����9����������������	�����������$��

��	
��	�$��������
����������������������*�
	��������	�����$���������	��������������)���$���

!����������	������%���	�$�����������������

�����������
��)����������%���������������
������������������������������������
��������	�

������	������%���)��$�������	�������������	�
��	�������������
����%�$������������������

��������������������%����

3��������	�������������������������

����� <����	������������(� ,����$��������������	���
���$�����������	������������%���	������)��

����	��
�	������������������	*�#��%����	*�
��)���I����%	*�H��)��	�����7���	����*��	�

�����������������#��$�����	�����7���	��
��
H��������	�0�44�1 �

!������<�����������������%���	����	���������
�	���

B������	�����������������

����- <����	������������D� ���������	�����������%�
���������$�����	������������������������	�

������	���������������������������������	��
����������������������������:�������������

��������	*����%���������������������������
���	��)������������	��������������)������	��
��

������	��������������������������	���������	�
����$������������������������	��������������


���������������	 �

!�������<����	������������������
���� ������������

������������� � ����� �����!!

7
0



������������������ 	������ �		��������� ������

��-�� ����������������	������������������
�����%	�

����	�������������	�������������
������������������
����������������:������

�	�����	�����
��	��)������$����%��������	��

��)������������)��

!�����������	�

����)���������	�����

����������������	������%����	����
��)��������
�������������
��	��)������������������	��

�		��	�

!����������������:������

����- 3������
���������������	����B%���	������
�)�����

!�����������	������%����	����	��)�%�����
#�����������������	������������)��������	�
����

����	�
�������)�������������	%	����

!�����������������

����- ��������������������	����B%��������$����������
�������������	������������	��)�%����

	����$����%

!�����������#�������	�

��������
��
�	��	����
�������������	������������)���������B%��%���

���	�������������	����	����	��������	��
��������
<������%�������!�������B�)���������<�����

H�����<�������	����	����������$�����������
�

�������%�����		�	������������������


���������

���������	�����)�����������������

,���	�����#�������%�H���
	�

!�����������������

��� ���������������$�������	�����	��������	����
��������+
�����������������������������

��
�������������������

!�������3�������
����	�$����������������)��
����	������	����	�

3��������	��������������������������

����" ������

���	������
�����������������		& !������������������������	������� �������������

����� G�����������&�6��%����& !�������<������������)���������������������

	�������

������������

������ ���	�����	����9��	�����	�������������	9��	�
�������������%�������	����,##���������	��������

������%��	������������	�����������	�������������
��)���

!��������������������������	�$������
������
��������������%�����������	��������	������

���	�

3�����������������������������������

����� <����%���������	��$���������)�	�����������
G��������<������%���������	������

,����$������9	��	
�����������$�����
B�)���������#�
����&�3	������������	��	�����

	
��������������	
�����

!�����������	������%���	�$���������������

��)��������������)�	���������	��	
�������	����

$������B�)���������#�
���������	�����������
���������������	������	
�����������������������

���������������������������������

����� C��������	
������	�������������������������

��)��	��%&

!�����������	�����������������	�����������	�����

�����	��	���

����������������
��)����������%�

������������� � �����  ����!!

7
1



������������������ 	������ �		��������� ������

����� �����	������
��	���$�%�$������&�G�����$����

��)���
��	*�
��)��������������	�����
���	��
�������	��	������������
��	

!������B���
�����������)����	������	�

���	����������

��
���������������
����%�

������������

����- ���	���
���	��������	������	�������������

���
�%������,##9	������������	���������������
��	�����9	��������	���������	������
����

$����������$��	������$�������������%�+�	���%�
+�$����)��	��%������������		��	��������	�9�������

�������������������	�9��5�	�������,##�������

����	;

!�������������������������
������
����	�

���	�������������������	���
�������������
������%�������������������������

�������������

����- G��������
�
����������
���	�
��
�����)�������
��������	;����	�5�	��	���	�����������%�

���)��������G�����$������������	�����
,����$������&�B�)���������#�
����&

!������������������������)��������	���������
�����9��	�����9���	�$����	�$	��������

������������

������������� � ����� �����!!

7
2



������������������ 	������ �		��������� ������

������	���	������)��$����������������������%�

�����		��	�������������	������
����	����
�����		����	���		��	���		��	�������	
��������

����(�2�	���������$�������,##9	�������	�
������������	*���	�����������������	��	�


����������������%�������	�������	�����������

��5���	��3	
�����������$��B�)���������#�
������

#������������������������0����	�����
,����$������1�����������%�
��������0����

����		����%�����	���������1��?������������
���	������������������������%�
�������	�

0,�$���+,��)���+�������2�)���
����	1��7������

?����������������������$�������	�����
��	����������	����$�������	���������

��)���
�����������
�������
��	�����	+$�������	����
������������������

�������������	����	�������
�	������������
2�	���������$�������
������	��������������

��$����������������	��������������	�
����������������
��%���
������������	����������

����	��������	�����C�����%�	���%��<���%���
����	��������������	������
��%������	*���5�


�$���������	���G�%�������	���%���	
�������

����%��B���		�)��	������������	����	������%�

�		��	��7������
�$���������	�����������

��

������+�
����������+����)�	���������	��
#�������$��������,69	�+�2���������@�������	�

+������<���%��		��	��2�	��	���		��	���������
�����	
����	��������+��	������
����������	�

����������
����	��?��	���	������������+�������
��
��������	��	��	
������8	��������������	�+�

������	��	��������������,##9	�����	�

�����������	����	����������������������	�

��
�����������������	��������	������%����
����
�����		�	���������	���		��	��3��������	�

��)��$�����������������������%�����������
#������9	�����	D����������������������

B�)���������#�
�������������	������
,����$�������
��5���	D��������������������

<���%�<������%D������	����������
�$����
���	��������+���������D���������������	����

�	���������	�������������
��)������D�����
���������������
�	��������	��	����������

	������%����������
�����������������������

��������������������	�

������������������������

���������$�����
�����������%��������	����������

	��	����������������������7�����2�)���
�����
,����������
�����%����	��������������
������	�

�����������72,���������������)����������		�
��������&

!�����������������
������	��������������������

72�������
������*�������������
��	��)������
�����������������������%�������	����	������������

����<������%�	������������������������������	��

������	����������
��������
������	���������*�

��	��������%�	������	�

��������	����������������
���������������������

!�����������������

������������� � ����� "����!!

7
3



������������������ 	������ �		��������� ������

-���- #�������%�����	(�,������	��
	�����$���������

$%�����:����%�������������������G��������
���	������������<
�������,��
��F���������)���

<����	�����	����������(�,������	��
	�����$��
�������$%�����:����%�������������������

G�����������	������������J?�������	 EF�
	������

!�����������
��
�	��������������	��������

�������������������������������%�

������������

-���� #,�B�,����$�������=�#��$�����	���������
���������	���	��
��%������
�������
�������������

����	�����������������	������������������	��
��

!�����������7�����3�������%���������������	�
	�������������
��
�	��������������������������

	�������(� ����	���	���������������������
���������������������	��
������������ 

������������

����� #,�B�,����$�����������������������

,����$�������#��%�#������������)��)��������
����������	�����,69	��	����%�����$����)�	�)��

�������������������	�

����	���������%	����	��������

��
���������

��)��)��������������%�����������������������
�,6	�������	�����)�������
�������������

���	�����������%�	�������	�$����:�����������
������������������������������	����������

	����	���(� G��������	��������

��
������

���������	��������*��������		�������	�
,��	��)������6����	�K3��������������7�������

H����,�������L*������$�������������
��������
����������� �

��������������	���������

����� ,����$�������7�����3���		������������������
�����	���������
�$��������		��	�
���������=�

����������������

����$���

������������$�������
�$��������		������	��
���	��)����$����)��	��%��	�����
����$%�����

��������%���������������	�������������	�
���	���������������������	�����$����

����������������	�����������

����������������������	�����������

������ H�������=�,�������H�����H���
���������������
����������,����$�������#��%�#��������������

����������������������#6��	�:��	��������=�
	����	��������	���������%�$�����	������������

������������
��)������)���
��	����
����������
����	�

!�������2����������$���	�:��	����������	�
$��������������������������	���������	��

��	�������	��������������	������%��<�����	�
���������������)���
��	����
��������������	�

��%�$�����	��������������	��	�����	�
�����	��������
��)����������)����G���������	�

��������	�������������������������	�����

,����$�������
��5����

2�����������

������������� � ����� #����!!

7
4



������������������ 	������ �		��������� ������

-���> ����G�����������	������	�%���������
����	�

G��������3���		�<���������	�����������������
���	������	����		��#������������	����(�

,����$�������4��/�������
�
����������	�
����		���������M�������������>������������

������B����������>/�������
�
����������	�
����		���������M�������������>������������

������8N��>�./�������
�
����������	�����		�
��������M�������������>������������������

����G�����������	��������$��
���	������	���
���������		��������������������
��
�����

,����$�����������	������%�	�

���	�%����

	����	��������
�����������������	������
G�����������	����	����������������%�7�����

3���������	����������������������
��5���	�����
������$��
���	��������������
������	��
����

���	�

3������������������%����
���������G��������

3���		�<�������*�����<������%���	�$����
����������������	���������������#������������

�����)�����������)���������	��������	�

�������������������������	�������	�

,��������	����#G�H�. ����G�����������	���	�
���	������	��������%���


�������	�	������������)��*�����)��*����������
����������%����������������������	����������

��)����G����������	������������%������
�����
��������	�����)��%���������)�������	�������

���������	����%���������	�����	��)�)��������
���������
���)��������	����������	����������

��)��������8N��	��������������	���������
����	���B���
�*������5�	�����'/����������

��)������
�����������������/����B���
���	�
�������������G�����������	���	����������

����������������)����	���$�����	�������

���$���������)�������������)���$%���>��

����#�����������
������������������������

��
��������������)���������)�����	�
	����������������
����%�$%��������������	��������

���������

������������

������������� � ����� !����!!

7
5



������������������ 	������ �		��������� ������

,��������	����,6<�� G�������������%������
�������������	�����)��%�

����������������������(�����G�����������	��
$����)�	�������������������������	��	
������%�

��
�������$����	�����������:����$����%���
����������������)�������		����������������

$�����	O�	�������
�$���������G��������
#�������O���%����������	�

0���
(++���������������	��������+��+�$����
�	+
�$��������	+,���	+���	��	
�1�����	��

�����������$��������	��
������$����)��	��%�
0���
������$����	�$�������������$�	��������
��

�����������������*�$���������������������

��������������������������1*����:�����%���
�����������������������0������%�=�����������*�


�$����������*������������������*���$���
�������1������������������������%�0���$�������

��������������	1�

����#�������	�

��������
��
�	��������
����

�������)�������)�������	����	�������
���

��
�����������
�	���������������
��������


������%������������	������%�������	������
���	���������������	������	���%�	��������


��)��������������
�����������������	�
	����	����
����%���2�)���������������	������%�

��%�����������������	��������������
�������������������������	
�������)���������

����	�����������B:����%����������������	���	�
��������������%���	���������������������������


��
�	��	����

��
������

!�����������������

.���� ����G�����������	����	��������%������������

��
�������������J����	������� F��������
����
����$�����������������������$	���(�

���
(++���������������	��������+��+���
������
�+����)���	�����
����%+����	����


��
��+,���	+����		�)�����%��	
������
��
����	���	������7�����3���������	�����

�������%�	�)������%�$%�
�����������		�0�	�
�

�	��������������		1�����	����	��������

$�����	�������%�����������������	�
������
��

����#������������������	���	���������������

������)�����������������������������	�	�������
������	������%�

3���������������������

������������� � ����� $����!!

7
6



������������������ 	������ �		��������� ������

,��������	����#G�� ����G�����������	��	����	�	���������

�����������
������%�	������$�������	���������
������������������	����%�
�������������������(�

3����������������0������������	�$����
����������%��������	�����������	��32�.��1��	�

���������	����$����������������$�������������
�����	
����	������	��)�������������������

��%���������$�����0	�

�������	�����-��
	
����	��	�����������������8N�@����)��	��%�

3������,���*��44�*�����	���������	����%�
	
����	������	��)���������������	���%�������

��$���������������������������	����%��	�������

���		�������������	������������	��	����%��	�
����������������������	��	�
����������%�����)����

�	�������������������	�	�����������
���	�����$���������	�PEO���	��������������

G�����������	��	���	���������������	���������
����	:���������	�0�.*�����������	����>/���

������������������������������������
�����������������8N1�����������������������

����8N���	�����������������������
��	�������������������������2�)���
�����

������	��		�����������������	
��������
����	����������

���������$��������	��

	����������0-�/�����	�	1*���������$%�

������%��������	������)���
����	�0��/1*�
���	����0��/1*�����:����%����������������

�����������0./1������H�)�������9	��������%�

�$��	����!�������B�)���������G�����,�
��O��

����!�������#�����(�	������������)�������
�������0C?�H�)�������*�Q��%�����*�
������>.1�

	����	�����(�J����H�)���������	��������������

��)�������

��
������
���������������������

��������	���� �3	��������
�����
����%��	���
$%�����������������������	*�����<�������#��%�

,������	�����<���	�#��	��������������

0���
(++����	���������)���+
���������������%�
��)���
����+
����������������	+	�+���%�


������	�����	���	1�	����	����,����%�H-(�J!���
��)���
����	������$����:�����������������

�

��
�����������
�������*���������������
����������������%*������������	�������������	�

������
�������%�����	��������������$��

����#����������������	���������������������

�������������)�������	�����#������9	��
�������
������		��%�������������������
��������	��������

���	�	��������	�����	����	����������������
�)����������
������	����������������������

���������	��������	����	����$���
������������
#��������������
�����������������������

�����������
���	�������:����%���	��������
��������
���������������	���		��	���������������

72��
��������
����%������
��)�����������

����������������	����)����$����		��	�

!�������������

������������� � ����� %����!!

7
7



������������������ 	������ �		��������� ������

����)����2�)���
��������������$��
���������
������������������%�������������%��������

���	�������������������������������*�)�������

����	���������������	
����	��������������	F�

,��������	����I��� ����G�����������	������	�%����������%����
��
���������)�������	*�$������������	�������

��)��������H�)���������������������@���
�����,��������2����$�������������@��������

,������	������
������������������
��
�������
����������	����
��������������	����B������9	�

����	*������	����������$�������	������@���

�����,�������$	����	����	�����(�J����	�����
�������	�����������������*�$%������������

�������*����������������	����������������
	��	��	*��������������	���������	��������

���%�	���������	�	��������������	�*��������
�
	�)�������%*������������������	�������������

������$	�������	�������	�%(�J�������	�
�)����������������	���������	�������	�����
������

��������	�������
���������������������
������� 

���
(++���$������
��������������)���+��%����	��

���������

������	���������
�����������)����	�����������
���	�I�������	�$�����������������������

��������������
��������������)������������
�

��
������

��������I�������������

������������� � ����� �����!!

7
8



������������������ 	������ �		��������� ������

.�'�� G�������������������������	���������

	����	�	��������������������������)����	�
���)���$����G��	������%�����������%������

��	����������������)������,����$�������
������	�	*�������������������	�	������	��������

��������	����������	�
��)��������������$�����
$�����	�����	��)���	��	����������������������


��������$%���������	�����2�	����3������
H���
���J!������	*�!��������F�0����	�����

2�	����3������H���
*�����1(��������	���
��������$��%����)����������������	������$���

����	�$��������������������$�����	��

B��������$�����	�����$�������	(�����	�����
������	��
��
���%�)����	�$%�"��>�
���������3	�

����	������������*������������%���)�����
��
���%�
)����	�����	�
��
����������%������%�����

��
��)��������)�����������
������������
$�������	�$%������������������������������

��	�	*������$%���������$���	��?����������	��
�	�
���������	�����$��������������	���)���
�����

	���	������	����������
�	���)��
����
���������

��������
���������
��
���%�$�%��	��8�$���

����	���
��)���������������������
�
�������	*�
����������������������	�	������	�������������

����
��	
������	��������
��������
����		�����

���%�����
��)������
�������������������
������$��������%���	�������<������$�����	���

��$�������	(�����	����
����������	��	����

����������������������%�����%�$������

����������	�$%�������	����
������������������
����������%�������������
����	�������������	��

���%���)����
�	���)����
�������
��
��9	�

�%	����������������������������%���)����


�	���)����
������������������������
B�)�����������$�����	�����$�������	(�8�$���

����	������������9��$���������	���������9���

������	������
���������������	�����%�
��)����
	����*��������	�����	�����$�������	�����������

	����������%����
�����)����	������

����������	�����������������%����
�����������

���������	��$%��$	��$������������������
	���������%����
����������������	
���	��@%�


��)��������������	���������������������%����
�

����	����	��������

��
�����������������������

������������	����������������������������������
�������)���������	���������������������������	�

����)������	����������������#������9	���	����
������������������
�����������)�������������%�

��������������������������������$�������%�$���
�����	�

�������	�	������%����������������������

	������������$�������		�����������������������

�������)�������������������������$�����	�

������	���������������	���������-������
�	����
	������	�����	��

����������������	�������	���������������	�����

������������� � ����� &����!!

7
9



������������������ 	������ �		��������� ������

������	��$����)��	��%�����%����������������	�
����	����������$%�	�������������������������

��������������	�������������G����
����������


������������������%����
���
��)����	�:�����%��
R������	��������������	�	�������������
���(�

�������	��%���)���+����S

������������� � �����������!!

8
0



������������������ 	������ �		��������� ������

.�'�� ����G�����������	���	���������������������
�

����������)����	�$��������	��������3	�
����������
��)���	�%*�
������������	�����

�������%�	�)������#��%�#�����������%�0�	�
�

�	��������������		1�������	������)�����

��������$�����������$�����	*�$����
��)���������������	�����������H�)�������9	�

�������%�
�$��	����!�������B�)���������G�����
,�
����O����!�������#�����(�	������������

)��������������0C?�H�)�������*�Q��������*�

������'1�	����	�����(�J�������	�����������	������

	�A�������	�������������	���	���������������

	���	���������	��	����	����
������>�(�JG����������
�������������

���������	����
��������


�������)����������)����������	D����������	�
�����������	*������	�����)������	 ���3����
�������


�$���������������������	��%�#����		���*�
����#�	���������	������)���
�������������

��$�����)���������0����	��%�#����		���*�Q��%�
����1*�	��	�����J���������
���)�����������	����


��
�������
����	�O������	���������	
��������
��������$��	��	������%���������������������

��	�������)������	�������������$�������	�
��������)�)���*�������	�	�0���
���1�����$�����	�

�	�O#��������������������$�����	���

B�)�����������)������	���B��������
��)�����	���<������$�����	������G��������

���	��$����)�	�������������������������	�
�	
������%���
�������$����	�����������:���

�$����%�������������������)�������		��������
��������$�����	O�	�������
�$���������

G��������#�������O���%����������	�
0���
(++���������������	��������+��+�$����

�	+
�$��������	+,���	+���	��	
�1�����	��
�����������$��������	��
������$����)��	��%�

0���
������$����	�$�������������$�	��������
��

�����������������*�$���������������������
��������������������������1*����:�����%���

�����������������������0������%�=�����������*�

�$����������*������������������*���$���

�������1������������������������%�0���$�������
��������������	1�

������������
�����������������	���	�����

$��������)�����������
������
������������%�
��������	����������#������������	����

 �

���������	����������	������	�A������
��	���$��������������	�������	�����		�������


������,����$������L	�	�	�����$��������� �

������������

������������� � ������ ����!!

8
1



������������������ 	������ �		��������� ������

,��������	����!�,�� ���(�����G�����������	������	�%�������������

�����������������	�
�������(������	�������������
������������������������)�������	�������	����

3����
�������
�$���������������������	��%�
#����		���*�����#�	���������	����

��)���
���������������$�����)���������
0����	��%�#����		���*�Q��%�����1*�	��	�����

J���������
���)�����������	����
��
�������

����	�O������	���������	
�������������

���$��	��	������%�����������������������	��
�����)������	�������������$�������	������

���)�)��� *�������	�	�0���
���1�����$�����	��	�

O#��������������������$�����	���B�)���������
��)������	���B����������)�����	���<������

$�����	 

������
������������
��������������)�������	�

������$%�������������%��������	���������������
!�,������	�$���������������������������

��
��	�������������)�������	������

�������������

.�4�� ����G�����������	���������������������%����
���������������	����������
���	����	�����	��G��

����������������%������������%����	�����	����
���	(����
(++���������������	��������+��+�����


���+
���������	+,���	+���������������

�����	
�

!�����������������������	��������	�����
$��������������������	�������.�4�

������������

,����%��2�� G�������������%��������������	���������������
�������(�����#�������������������������������

������������������
�������������������
��)���
����	�

����#�������	�

�������	�	����	�������������
���������������������$�����	��������
��������

�

���������	��������������)���
����	�

��������������������������������	����	�����

,��������	����,,�� ����G�����������	��$����)�	������������������
)�����������	�	������$���������������������

	������$�����%�
���������

����#�����������������	���������������������
����)�����������	������	�	�����������	�

������������������������
����%�,,��

�������������

����� ,����$�������7�����3���		�������������
����������,##������������	��%������

���������	�=�!�������B������������	����

�$��������		�����������������	�

!�����������	�����������������#�����������������
�����������	��%���������������	�����!�������

B�������������	�����������������������
����������	��������������	�������	���
������$��

��������������������������	�����7�����3���		�
����������!�������!������	�,������	��
�

!��������������

������������� � �����������!!

8
2



������������������ 	������ �		��������� ������

,��������	����#G�� H�������=�,�������H�����H���
�	�

��������

���	������	�
����%�$���������	����	�������
�����������
���	����������������������

��������%���)��)������$%���������������	����
���������$%�)��������	�����	�������������

��������%����������	����������������������
$����)����$���	���������������������	����

������������������	�	�����	���

�������
,����$�������7�����3���		�������	�

��������

��
����������
�$��������		��H�)����������
�������������������������������������������

���	�����	����������������������	�������	�	�

	�����	��%��

����

!������,�$��������		*���������%���)��)������

����	�	�����$����%����������
����	������������
�	�������$�������������
������	��������������

���������������������%���������	�
��������	�
�����������	������%�

!���������������������

,����%�I��� #,�B�	�

����������)��)��������������
��
���
��������������	���	���������������������

����	��
��

!�����������#���������)�����������������������
����������������
��
�����������������	���	�

�������������������������	��
����������	������
����������������	�������.�"*����������������


�������������	
��	�������������������	���	����
��
����%���������	����	������������

����������������.�"�����������������)��)����

"���- H�������=�,�������H�����H���
�������
����������������������	��������������$���

���
�������������)���
����������	����$��������

��������

G�����	��������������)�	�����������$�����	���
���$����	�������	�������������������


����������6�������
��5���	�	�����	�����	�����
,����$������������������������������	�����

7���
��5�����������
��������	���

���������	�
������������	����	��	�����	����������$���	���

�����������������)�	���	������	�	������%�

!�����������������

"���� ,����$�������7�����3���		�����������

���������������	����9�����	��9�����
	����
��	������������$��������������������	����

$����
�$����=�
��)���������	��
�

!�����������#���������������������������	�

	����	�����������)�����	���������������������
�����	���������	�����
	�������������
������
��

������������

����� <����	�������������	������	����������(� 3	�

	�����)��	�����������������	�����������������
������	������
����*���
���	������������������

����	������	�������	���� �

!������������	������������������������:������

��������������)�������	����	������������
��	���������
����������	�����)������	�������

����������		�����������	����	����
������
��
������	���������������	�����������

�������������

������������� � ������"����!!

8
3



������������������ 	������ �		��������� ������

����. <����	�������������	������	����������� ���

������	�������%�%���	����	���	�����������.�*����
�����������������	�	�����������������������*����

$%����� �����	���������)���$�%�
������������

��		��������������%9	�����	�������������	*�

�������������	��		������������
���������������	�
�����)��������	�	�����$���������������

��������	�)�������	�������������
����������
���%9	������ �

!������������	����������������	�
������
��

��:��������������������		�	�������������%���
3��������������������	����	������������

��	���������
����������	�����)������	�������
����������		�����������	����	����
������
��

������	���������������	�����������

������������

����' ,���	����	����������������$�����	���������	�
������������)�����������$�����	*����������

$�����	*����$���	�:��	�������+����������������
������$�����	�

!���������	��$�����	�������������������������
	���������-�

3��������	���������	���������-������
������

����4 <����	������)������������� �� �������	��
	��������

!������,������
����������� ������������

����� <����	���������������	��	�������� �>�%���	�

����,����$���������	���	���������	�������
������)��������������	���������%��	�����

��������������������������8N9	�B�)���������
#�
���� �

!���������
��)��������������
���*�����)���

9�>�%���	9���	�	�$	�������������9��%���9����

��)����������%��������������

�������������

����� ,���	��������������������-/������������)���
����������%�������	���	�)��%��������$����)����9	�

���	������'/�

���������	���������������������	��%�
#����		����
�$���������������������	������

#��$�����	���������,����$�����������������
�������	�������������	�������8N������������

�����������������������������)����	�
��*-�>�������	���
��	���	�-�./������������%�

����������

!�����������������

��-�- <����	������������� ������	���������	 ��#�

�����������*��
�������������
��	���$�����	�

!����������	������������	���������������

�	��������
���������������	�������������
	������%�

�������������������
�������������	�������

��-�4 <����	�������������������
����������	��

$�����	��	�������	���������������	�����

!������������	�����������������	�	��������	��

$���������������������	�	���������������������
����
������
����	������������������
���
����

����$�����	���������������%�

������������

��-��� ,����%���
�������
������
���<����	�����

��������

!�������3�	�����������������������
������
��

��	������������		�	�������������
�����������
����
������
��

������������

������������� � ������#����!!

8
4



������������������ 	������ �		��������� ������

����> <����	�������������
��	���������

��
������

�����	
����	������	��	��������

�����	����	�����������������������������	�

�������	���������	�
�����������	������������
	����������	��������������������
��)���

������%��������	����	�������������		��%��������
���	�	������������������������������������������

����)������	
����	�	���������

B������	����������������

����. #���������$%������	�����	���� ����*�

�)��������	���$	 �������<����	���	��������)��
	
����	����%�

6����)���������	����	����������������


������
����	������%���������������	�����
�������
������
����	�����)������������������

	�������������������<�������.�>����	����������%�
	���������3���������	��������������
���������)��

����	���������
��)��������������

��
������

���������)�������	�����������������

������ 8����������������
��
�	�������	�	����������	��
������������	�������,##�����	��������		������

�/������%9	����$������
��*��������	�$�����
���������������������
�	���)��	���������

�$������������������	�����	�����
��)���&

!�����������
������
����	�������%�����)���
���������������	������%���3������
�	���)��

	�����������	�������������������������������
	�������$�	���������	���������������

������������������$	����

������������

����� <����	�����
���������������� H���	���

	�����������%�
���������������)���������������
�����:�����%�������	
���	*���	����������

���������	���������������������	�����*�
����)�����������������������)���������������

:�����%�������$�����	������	�������������	�

������)��%���
�������
���������	�����
��%���
)���������������������,����$��������	����

��)������������%�������	���$���������$������
����8N9	�B�)���������#�
���� �

!�����������	����	�����������������������	�

���	����������$�����������������������������%�
��������������	�����������������	����%�

����
����

�������������

����- ,���	�������%���	��	����������	����	���
����%����

��������)�	������	%������	+�	
���	��
$���$���	+�����������������&

����	�����
�������������������������������	�

��:�����������������������������)��	
����	�
$���������������3������
�����������������	�

���������$����������������������	������%�

�����������������������%�

.���� G�����
������������������	�����
�������������

�
���	
�����	����������������������	�����
��������		��<����	���������������������	�����

,����$�����������

!��������	�����������������G�����������	�	�

 ����	�������� ���
����������������
�����	���������	�
�����

��������������������������	�����������

������������� � ������!����!!

8
5



������������������ 	������ �		��������� ������

.�>�� 3����*����	���������-/�	���	��������� #��$�����	���������,����$�����������������

�������	�������������	�������8N������������
�����������������������������)����	�

��*-�>�������	���
��	���	�-�./������������%�
����������

������������������
��	������������������������

.�>�> G�����������������,##���	�������%������)�����
�#�������)���BGH<����
������������������


���	���������
�����������'�

!���� �����������������������
��)���	��

��������	�

,����%�#G�� ,���	�������+������%������	�������������
 	�	�����$����% ������

!���� ��������������������������������������	�	����

������%���)��%���������
��)������B����
��	��
����������

�������%������)��������#��%�

#������9	������������������������	������%*����
���	�����
���	������	�������$������������	�

��������������
���������$�����		�	�������������

�����������������������������6)�������������

�������������������	���
�	���)����	
��	�����
���������)�������������������	�����

��������	��������,����$������*�����)������
����������������������
��	�	�	������$��


�������
��(�������	�����������)��%�������	�
������������	�����������������%�
��%��	�
����

����������������������	�����������

,����$�������������	�	�������	�
��	
��	�)���		����������������������������

�����	����*����
���������������������������	�����
��������������������	
����	���������������	�

��:�����������	
�����������	����#�������
�������������������������	�)����
��		���	�


�������
�����������������������������������
��	
�������������		��	������	�	��������

���������������*�
���������$�����	����
��	
��������������		��	�0$�%����5�	��

��)��������1���������)�������%�+�-���<������

�����		�	��,������������������%�������)���
�+�
�������$���������
��������������	������������

�������

���������
��������������������������	

#��	������������	�$������)�������������	��

����	����������������������	�������

	������%�������	����	���������������	�	������%�
������������
�������H���������	���������0H��1�

��	���������#������9	�H�����H����<������%������
��)������	���
��������������������������	���

�����������	�����$����������������$�����	�
������	����H�������������������
������

�����������	�$������������������������
�����������)��	�������������)�������

��������	��
������������	
����	������������
��	���	��$���������������	������������

���������������*������	��������)�������%�

	������)�����������%���)��)����������
�

���������	�����
����	�������	�������$�������

������
������	�������������������

�����������������������%

������������� � ������$����!!

8
6



������������������ 	������ �		��������� ������

����� �����������������
��	�	�	������$����������

��	
��������������
�������������������������
	����*�������5����%����������	���	���������

��������������	��������*����	(����������	����
����������%������������������
���������


�����������)���
��������	��������������	�
����	
����	�����		�����#��%D�����$������

�		���������		��	����������������������	���
	��������������������������:��������	��������

���	���$��������

�!������������	���
�����������������	�$����

�������������������������������)��	��
�����������)��������������	��
������������

	
����	�

�������������

����� ����#������	�������������	����	�����������

	����������	�	�����������������	
����������
��
��	���������������������)���$�����$�	���

�
�����	�	�����$����������	������%���������
����������������	�����	D�
�����������)��%�

�������	������������������	�����	��������%���	�
��������������	����	����������	���������������������

��%�$����)�����������	��������)�������������
	�������������
��������������
��������	��%�


�����
��	������	�������
������������������	�
$�������)���
���������������������$��	������

	
���������$���
�����������������)��%���

��

������+�����
�������������&

<�	�����$�����������	�����%���
������������

����#���������������������	�	�����������
#��	������������	�$������)����������

�����������)���������������������		���%������
�	����	���������������	���

���������	�����

����������������������%�

������������������������	�	�����$������������

-���" -���"�=�-���'�3		����	������$������

������
�������)�����		�����	�	���������

��������������	
�����������+�������������
���	���

����	��������������������������������	����������	�
��:������

���������������������%�����	��������	��������

����- ���	�	�������	������������������
������
����������������,����$�������@����)��	��%�

3������,���

3����������������������@����)��	��%�<������%�
�	���:�����

���������������������������	����������

������ ���	�	���������	���	����$�������������������

����	������&

3���������������	���������	����������	5������ ��������	���������������������	�������������)

��� !�������B�)����������O�������	����	����������	�
	��������	���)��������������������)�����������

�	
���	���������������	���������������	
������
����������	�����������
��������������������)��%�

��	
���	�������$����	

����	����	���������������	�	������%�����������
��
��������H���������	���������0H��1���	�����

����#������9	�H�����H����<������%��������)���
���	���
������������������

!�������������

������������� � ������%����!!

8
7



������������������ 	������ �		��������� ������

>���� <������	��������	������������	��
��������	�

����	����������	������������	�	����������	���%����
���	�%������	
��������������������������

��A���	������������������
���������
���$������	��������������������������������������

	����

3����� ����������������
��)����������%�

,����%�#�GH�� �������������	��$5����)��	������$�������������

�������	������������������)��	�����������
���������
�
���������������)������������

	
����	

��������������)��	��%�����������������	������	�

����
����

��������������������������	�

,��������	����#G�H�- ,��������	�#�GH�-�-����������$����$���������
��
�������	�	�������������������	������

���	��%�)���������������������������
���%�
	�

���������$�	�������	��%����������������	���

���
�������������������	%	���	����	�����	����
�������$���
�����������
���	

���	��	����	����������$����)�����
������������	�
��	�����������������	������������	���
�		�$���

�
�����

������������	�������������
�����

,��������	����<��� ,������%����<��������	����	�-�%�����%���*�
����)���.�����	����	�����%���	

���	������	�	����%��	����������������������� ������������������������%����������������:����

,��������	����<��� ,��������	����<������������	����������	�����	�

��
�����	�	������$��)�������	�
����������
#��%9	�����������������	�������������������

!����������#���������������������	�	���������
�������	�������������	��	�������	�������
������%�
��
����%������	�����	�����#������9	�
����
������������)�������	��������	�$%�

��������������������������$���������������
	������	�����������	�����)������	�������

������		��%�������������������

!��������������

,��������	����#G�� ,��������	����#G����������������������$����

)������������������	�������������������	����
	�	�����$������������)�����������	�����

��������	���������	������
�$�	�	

���	�
������	����������������		����	�����

����������������	�����������

������������

.�.�� 8
���������������������	����	����� !���� ������������

,��������	����8G�� ,��������	����8G�����4����������������������
��%�����$��������	���

��
�������������	�*�

�	
������%�����������		��	��������)�������
��������������	�����

!�����������	�����������������������������������	�
��������%	��

��
�����*�����)���	����$%�	����

���	���������������$����)����������	����$����%���
���	��������	��$��	������

!��������������

������������� � �����������!!

8
8



������������������ 	������ �		��������� ������

,����%�,,�� !���������
���������)�����	���������

����	����������������������
��)��������	�
��%����
���	

����	����	����������������)�����������	��������

H���������	����������	������������������������
	��������������������������

!�������������

,������	����,��)����%�����������	���������	�

,��.������
����%������	
������H�����
����	��������

����	����	����������������#������9	�H�����H����

<������%�	��������)������	�
����%������

!��������������

����� ������	�����������������)�	����������		�����
��������	��
	

!�����������	���������	�����$������������ ��������������

����� ����������	����	���������������	���� !���� ���������������

����' ����'�=�����4�	������$������$������
����D��������

����	������$������
������	�����	�����)������
��	

!������������������	���������	�����$�������

�������

������������

,����%�#�GH�� ,����%�#�GH���
��
���%���	�����������


��
���%�

!�������?�	�������������� �������������

������������� � ������&����!!

8
9



������������������ 	������ �		��������� ������

���	��������������������!�������#�����(�

	������������)����������������B�)���������
G�����,�
���#?'�'����	�
�$��	�����������

"���Q����$%�����<�������%���<�����#��������
<
����������	�	�������	������������		���	�

����������<������%������������������������
�������������!�������#������B�)���������

G�����,�
���0!#BG,1��������	���	����������
���	��%���������������������
��������������

��
��)������������������������	�	��G������
���	�	�������������%���$�����	������������5���

������	����������������������������B������*�

$����������������������	�������������	*�
����������	�������	��)������������������

<<<�	�������	������������������������G������
����!#BG,������������������������	�����

���	����$�����	�������������
���$�����	���
��������������������$��������%��������$��*�

������$����	�����������������������	�����
������	
���	�������������	���������	��

��	�	*����
������������������������*���$���
����	��������������������	�����������
�	�	�

������	��	�	��G����)��������������������
����<������%��������������������!#BG,����������

�����������	������)���������	�	�����

	����	����	��	�������������%�$����
��)������
���������
����%���
��	�	��������G�����,�
����

H�������
����	�������������������������������
�����
������������������������!�������#������

G�����,�
�����������	�	��������	������������
��������������)�������B����	��G��������

H�����<�����(����	��	�����������	������
��������������	��%�#����		����������	���	�

����������	�
������	�����������<��������	�
�����$��������������������	�����������

?���������������	�����G��������#��������

�����	������	������%�����	��������������������
������������������	���:�������������	�����������

���	������	��������
�$�����
���	
���	�0�����
����������#�����	�3����'441*�������	*�

�������	�����������%���	��<���������
���
�����������	������������$�)������������

������������$���	�����������������������>�

����	����	����������������	������%����	����

����)��������	
�������	��������B�)���������
G�����,�
�����#����������������	�����$����

�����������	���������������������	������%�������
��������������������B����	��G��������H�����

<�������	���������������	������%���������
����������%����������������������������

���$�������������������	��	�����������)���
���	�	�$���)�	����������	����������44'�

<������%�������	�	��������������������
����	�����#����������������������������������

��	�����$��������������������������	��������

�����������	�$�����������������	�������$���
�������	���	�������������������������������

���������������������������)���
���
�	��
������	��	����������	������%���	�$����

�����
������������������	������%���������������
�����������������	�����$����������������@���

�����,��������G������������

������������

������������� � �����"�����!!

9
0



������������������ 	������ �		��������� ������

��$��������	������$�������������������:�������
���������������������������	��%�#����		����

�����������	����������������������������

��������%�����		���	�
��������
��������
�

��������������	�����%	��	�������	��������	��%�

#����		������)����������	���������
�����������
���	��	���

���
(++�������	��%���)���+��$	���+���	��%��	+
$%���:��+����.��'.�����������$�����
������

��)��	�������	�����������	������������#��%�
������	���������$���������������$������������

���	���	*����������
�����$��������	���������
�
���������	�	�����$����������������

��������*������������������������)���


�������$������
���������������������������
������	��������������������������	��		����

�$���������������������������$���	�)���	�
���������		���������
�)���%��H�)�������������

���������)����������	��	�*�	�����	�3�����6���
2�����������,�%��
������������*�$���	������%�

������������������	��	������	������������
���������������$�������	��	�	�������	�������

��:�����	
���������	���	����$����
����������
H������$�������������
��������	�������������
	���������	*�$��������%�$����������)����������
%��������������		�������
�$�����������	���

��	��	�������������������	���	*�	���������

�����������	������%�����������������������	���
����	������������������	�������������%�$��

���
�����������������	���������	������
��������������$�����
������	�	���	����
��)����

��������	�����������	�����������

����$����%�
��
����%��������H�)�����������	�����

,����$���������������)�����������$���	�������
	��������
������	������
�������

�%�������	��

�������	�9����%���������������@��������,�������
���
(++���$������
��������������)���+����������

�������	�����)����������������)��������������

�		�	���������������)��%���������,���������)���
����<������%��

���	�������������������������

��
�������������������������������
,����$�������2�	�������G��������������$������	�

���������%�����������%���������������	����
����%�

������������� � �����" ����!!

9
1



������������������ 	������ �		��������� ������

��������	���	�����	��	�����%�����	���	�
�		���������������)���)����%	*������
����	*�

��	��	�����
������	��3����
�����	�)��������

�����������������	����
��������������$%���

��5������������)��)�����������	��%�

#����		���*�����#��%�#�����������������

������	�������	�������	��	�����������������B�	��

��B��������
0���
(++�������	��%���)���+��	���������

������������1���������������"'��������	���G���
G����������$���������		�"-�	���	��������

,����$�������2�	�������6����	��	���	*�����
��5����%��������		�������������������	�A�������

	���	�����������%���	���$�����������������)���

!����������)���G������������������
�����$����	��������:����%�	���	�������������	�

��
�������������	��������������������������
�������	��������������������
��5��������	��������

���������	�������������������	������	��G���
����������	���,������%�C�$������%
������������

#��$�����	�����7�����@����)��	��%�3������,����
$����	�������	�$����	�$5������������%�


��		���	��������
�	���������������	����������
���	��
��		���	��������������������*�����	������
������	�����������)���
����*����������������
��������$��	�����������������*���)���

����������*����������
��)����������	���	��

G�������������������%����	�	��	�	��������
������	���
�����	�����$����������)���)����%	*����

�������	�����������$��	��������	*��������
����	������$��������
�������������������

������*�����$�	����	�����	�����	������

������	��
���
��%�������������������

���������,��5����6������<�����

�������
�		�		���������������*�������������������

���$��	�������
������	��
*�)�	����������	���
����������
��������������������������	���	��

?��%������	�������	����������������
�����

����������������������������������*�����������
	��������$�������������������������	���	��	�


��������	���������
���	��������$��������
��������������������	��%�#����		���9	�

B����	��G��������H�����<������0BGH<1��

������������� � �����"�����!!

9
2



������������������ 	������ �		��������� ������

<�����'��������	������������������	�$����
�����������,����$��������	�����	���������	�


��5���*������
�����������������������	���%�

$��
�		�$��������	������%�����	������)������	�
	
�������%
�����������������	�������
����%��	�

�����������	����������$��������������
��
������

��� <���������������	�	��������������������
���������$��������!�������#��������)���������

G�����,�
�����������"�<������%����B������9	�
����	*�����	��������	�	��	�$�������
�������

����	��%�
����%��	�$�������)������$%����
����
�������
������������������
����$�����������

	
�����������������	������%���%���������
�������������������	�����������������������%�$��

�������������
������������������������������

!����������	������$�����	����������
�$��������*�
�	��������������	������������������

!������������

����� ������������,��������	���������	��%�#����		����

�������������	��%�#����		�����G������������
)��%���������	�����������������������
�����

��������������*�����	���������������������
����	��	��������������	��	��)����������
�������

���������������������������������������������
�������	��	
����	��������)��������������


��)������������
�������������
������
������	�����������*�����	�������	��)����$������

����	���������������	�$��������������������
����
��	�����������	�������	��	����*��	�

����	�����)��
����������	���������

����	
������0<���G��������G������3

���	���
������������������������������1�

#����������������B�
����������������������

���
�������������������������	�$���������
������������������������)����������������

��������$����������	��)����	����$�����	�

�������������

��- ��-�,�	���)����
����������	���<���G��������

G������3

���	�������

!�������#����������	�������������������	� ��������������������������

��-�> �������������������
�����������	��������������

$����	���	�������	��������������
��������

����		�����	���:�����������������	��������	�

������������������������	������������
������������������	���������$���	�������

��������
��)�������
�$��������)���������	����
���	�:�����	�

!�������,������
����������� �������������

������������� � �����""����!!

9
3



������������������ 	������ �		��������� ������

��-�" �		�����������������������
���������������

�	��������	������������

!�������3��������������������� ���������������

��-��� #�����$����
��)���$%���������������$���
	�)���	*����$���������	�0��������1��������$���

	�:��	��������

#��$���������	�����������������	�������� ��������������

��-��� @���������������������:��������	�������

#�������#������3��������
��������	����
���������	�)�$����������������$������%�������

$���

��
������

���������������$���������	�����������������

	��������

��������������

� #��
�����������������I�	��������3��	��@�������

������������!#G,�����	�	�����$�%����������
������
��)������:�����%������	��������������

�����������)��EF���%���������$��
	���������������������������������D�������	�+���

���������������	%	���	�	��)���	����%�

��)���D��������%�������
��)������	����������

$����)��	��%���������	D����������%�)�������	�
����	��	��		��	*�	������%*���)�����������%�����

�����������%D�����������������������
$�	���		�	�����������������	�����
�		�$�%�

���������������������������
�
�%����������3�

�	���)��)�	������%���	����������������������
�������)��*����	���������	�����
�������������������

����	������,����$�������
��5���*��������
����������	�<������%��

���	����	������

�	����������������3���������������	�������
<������%�����������������	�

����)����������,�


��5���������������		������		��	��������
!#BG,������##���%���	��������	�������

7�����!������,������	��
��	�����������������
!#BG,�

<����	���������
��������	�����������

������������������������	�����,����$�������
������	�

�������������

-���� ���	�	���������

���	����$����$���
����������	D��	�����������������	�����������

������������	������$5����)�	�������#�������
���������%���)������������������������<������%�

����	�������������������������%�����#���������	�
�����������<������%������������
��������������

<������%�	������$���������������	�����
�$5����)�	�������#�������

!������������	����	��������

��
����������������
���	��$5����)��������������	����������������

#������9	�������	�������������������

!���������������

������������� � �����"#����!!

9
4



������������������ 	������ �		��������� ������

-���- ���	��������	���������	�����,����$�������$���

���	����	����������	������	�%��������������	��
���,����$��������	���
������	��
�
��5����

���
�����������)��������$5����)�	�������,##�
����	�����G���	�<������%�

������������������%� �������������

-���� ���	�����	���$��������������*����������
	����������	���������D�
������	��
	��������
�

	�

��������

��������*�$�������

���������
	����	������	����������*���������$%����

����)�����������������������
�

�����	����������������	�	�����������	�
����������������
������
����	��������������

�������������������������)����
������
��
�����������	������%

�������������

-���> ��������$�����	�$%�������	��������	�����
����)���������	�����#���������%������	����

���������

�%���������	�������������������	�
����
�		�$�%�B�3	���%�$������������	����

��	�	��������������	������%�����	����	�%�9�����
�����������������������
������	9��������	��

	���������	���$�����$�����	*���%����������

9�������������������	�������$���	���������
����9*�	�%�	��

!������������������	���������	�$�������������
���������%�

�������������

-���" -��"�����-��'���������
������
�����
�����

	������)��������������������������������

3���������������� �������������

-�� -���<����	����	������(�����������������

�

��
������	
����	��������������	��	������

!�������B������	���������������� �������������

� G�������������	���	���$���������������������

����	�����	����$����)�����

G����������������������������������������
<������%�0<�������.�>1�

�������������

����� 6$5����)��-�������$��	�����������������������
!�������#������B�)���������G�����,�
����	�

������	������������������
�����)�	������	���D����

��	��)������	�������������������)���


�		�$�������������������������/��������)���

�����	����	���������
�		�$������	���������	�
����������	�
����%�������������������	������		���

����	������	�$����
��������

!�����������������

������������� � �����"!����!!

9
5



������������������ 	������ �		��������� ������

����. �����%�$�����������������������
�����������

��������������	�	�������������	�����������
#�������#������3��R)S���	�	���������%�$�������

������	��������8N�������������	���������	��
��	����		���	�$%�'��
��������$%���>�*�����

#6��$%�������	���.�
��������$%�������������%�
�������	�	���������)��������������������$���

���		���	��������������������%����	��
�����
��������������	��������%��������%������

��)���
�����������$�������	�������)�������
������$��������%�	�����	������8N9	�������%�

$�������������������	�����>/��������%�����	�

����������$���	�����	�$%����������	�)���
����������	�����5�	�����%���	������8N�

������$���B����%�<������%�0Q��%����41�
	�

���	���	������������������������-�/���

����������%*���/��������������/�������	
����
�����%�����	�����������$��	���������������

���	�)�����	��������)�	���)��$�����	��$��	���(�
������$��	�6$��������*�������$�������	
����

�����$��������*������������	*�
����		�������
7�����3���������	����	��������������%��������H����

������������$���C�����������)�(�
���
(++�����������)���+��+�������+��	+����T�

�T��+��T	�

�%+�����%T���+������$��+
����%+�

������)�+�������)���	
�

,##�������	���)������$����������������������

	������������������%�

�������������

����� G���	��������������������������	���%�$�������
������	������		��������$�������*���������

����	����������	�%�����)�����$����B���������
����	��
���>�.��������$����������%*�

�:��)���������������#6���0����	����	�����1��
G�����	���		�������������	����������	��	���	�

	�:��	������������������������$�������
�����

��������	�����	��������	����
�������	��������
���$����������	�����,������������)�����������

	
����	�����������	�����	�	�������$����U���
�������������	�����������������������������

��$	�������
��D�
���
(++����������������������+����%�����������

����+�����������������V�����V������

!������<����	������������������
���� �������������

������������� � �����"$����!!

9
6



������������������ 	������ �		��������� ������

����- ?���������$����)��	��%�$���������$��������������

0������������&1����@3,����C3,	�������	�

#�����������������@����)��	��%���	�����$����

�������������������	������%������������
�����������������������������������	��������

����$����)��	��%�	������%�

�������������

����> ����	������������������	�	�����������������	��
���	���	�������$�*�������������$���	�������

��)��������������������������������
����
���������$��	�������������������������

)�����������	����������������������
�������
��������������������	����������

!�������<�������������������������������
�	������������������

�������������

����' ����'���������4���������
������
�� #�������� �������������

����� ��������� ��� ��	�������		��%������ #��������� �������������

����� ���	�
������
������	����$��������������������%�
���������	����������$�������	%	����	��)���	�����

����	����$����������������!�������#������
B�)���������G�����
�
���

!�������B������
������
��������������������� �������������

> ���������������$�������%	����)���������	�
���$�%���	����������	�	��
�������	��	���������

����	�	������D����	�����	���	����������	��
$����������%	�	�������	��

���
(++�������$�%���)���+�����+��)���������

�������+
�������+
�������	��)���+��$����������

+���������

!����������	���%�$�����	�������������������� !��������������

. ��������������	�����������
������	*����������

	����	���������
����%���)�������������������
��$���������	����$������������	�������	�

	������������
��������������������
��������������������	��	���������
���

���������������$������		��%��������������		�

!�������,�����
�	��������	��	��
������%�����

����������G�������������	����������������%�
����������

��������������	�

,��������	����#G�H�> ,��������	����#G�H>�>��������������������	��

��,����$������

<�����������������	�$��������������������	��

6�,����$�������������������������������������
!�������������������	����	�����������		��%�

�������������

������������� � �����"%����!!

9
7



������������������ 	������ �		��������� ������

.�>�- ������	��	�����������$����)��	����������������

�����������������
�����������	�������

���������	���������������������	���	�

0,3G<1���������	����������
����%������	�����
�����������������������
���������,3G<������

����)����������������
��������	����������������
���	�

3��������������
������������������� �������������

.�>�> ���	��	��������%������	����������������
�����������

!���� !��������������

.�.�� 7�	��	����������B����	�����������H�����

<������������	������$%���������	��%�
#����		����

!������������������ ���������������

.�' 6���������%������$��������	�������������������
�������������,3G	�����	�	���������	������	�

����������������	��	���		��	����������		�����

��)���������	
����	���������		���������

���������
�����)�	����������
���������������
	����������)�������	������������	��
����	����

�����������������������
�������	������������
�����%������������	��������8N�

������������
������������	���������

��)���������	�����$�����������B:����%�����

����������������������
�	��������	��	��
	������%���	�$�������������

�������������

,����%�,,�� !���	����������������������
����������������
��������	�����������)�����$%����,6�������*�

�������������������������������#���%���	��$��
��:������$����������������$������)�������

	������	�	���������)�����$%����,6������%�
��:�����
����		��������������������������%�����

�����������������

��������������������������	�����
���� �������������������

' 3
�������������
�����������������	����	�

	��������	�)��%������

!���� !�����������������

'���� G����%�������������	�

��������%��������

�����	����	����<,2&�G��	�

����������������

	�������<,2��	�
����������7�����
2�)���
�����2�������	�

��������������<,2��	����������%�������������
	�������"���������
����������)�������	������

����������	�������

��������������

������������� � �����"�����!!

9
8



������������������ 	������ �		��������� ������

'���. U�����%���������������������G���������������

3

���	���������������������	��������$�����	���
����	�G���	���������	������������$�������

�������������������������$	�������
����G����������������

!����� !���������������

'���" <����������	�����������BGH<��	���	������
������	������$%���������	��%�#����		��������	�

�������������	������

!���������������������� �������������

'�� ���	�	���������������	�����������������������
���$�������������	�������������$���)���������

���������	������)�������������)���

!�������������	�����������	�����������������
���	�	��������	�����������������$�������	��)����

#��������������������������$�������������
�	
�������	��	�����������������������������

	������%�

�������������

,����%�,��� ,����%�,����O�����#��������������	���������

����	�������������	�����
�������������
��)���
�� �����������������
������		��	�������

���
������������	�9��)���
��9���	���
����������
�������*��	� ��)���
����� ��	���������������

3��������	�����	���)���
����������	���9	�$���������
����
����%�������$�������
�������	�	�%������9���

��	�������9��)���
9�0�����$����������)��1�����
��������	��<������%*�����
����%��

���	����

�

�%������������	�������������	�����������%�
:�����������+����
����*����������%����������

�����	�������
���������������	O������

����	
��	�$�%�
���������%��������������%������%�
����$��
�		�$��������)�������$	����������������

�������������9��	���9�	������������	�������	�9��
��

����?�%$�����	������$����
���	������	�%�

 ����#������������	���������	�����������������	�
������������	����������
�	���)��������$������

���������)�������������
������������*�������
����		��%*�������������������������

������$������ 

!�������<����	������
��)�����	�����
���� �������������

��-�" G����9��$����%9��	�������%��	�������	������$��

��$���	�����*���$�����)��������	������$���
��)���
������	��

��
�������8�$����%�����	�

������������	�
��	���������

!������G������������)���������������� �������������

������������� � �����"&����!!

9
9



������������������ 	������ �		��������� ������

����� G����9��$����%9��	�������%��	�������	������$��

��$���	�����*���$�����)��������	������$���
��)���
������	��

��
�������8�$����%�����	�

������������	�
��	���������

!������G������������)���������������� �������������

����� ����
����%�����������	��%������
���������������
�����������	�:���������$������������������

��	�����������)������	���<����������	������
���������$�����������$%�)�����	�������������

���	���	�����%��)���������������������������
���	��%����#�	���������������������	��������

���������	������	�$	�:�����%����������		��%�

���������������
���������	��%��������	���	�
$���������

����#���������������������	�	���������������	�
���	��������

��
��������������������	�������

�������
��	��������������	������������

�������������

����. ������������	
��������	� ��	��� ��������	��� #��������� 3������������

-���� #��������	�������������	��%�#����		����$��
����������������������&�3�����������)��	������

$�����	��������	����	�	������%������$�����
�����
��������$�����%���	�

���	���	����	��������	�5�	����������
�����
����#��������������
���������������
���������

�������	�����	�

!���������������

-���> ��
��)����
�$��������		��	���	������		��� #������������������������ !���������������

����. ����.�=��������G�%��	�����������		��
�����

������������������	�����������������&�����
��	��������)������$����������<������
���	�


��������������������	������������������*�$�	���
���	��	
�������)��%*���������	������%�	������

�����������	�
�		�$����%

�����	������������������������������	�	�������

��	�
���������������������������	��

��
������

�������������

>���� >�����������	��������������������	����������

$��
��	�����������
����������������������

��
�	��	&

����	����	���������������	������$�������)���

����������)����������$%�����#��������	�
����������������	�������"������	�	������%���

B:����%�����	���
���������������������$%�
����
���������������������	����������

!���������������

>���� C�����:����������������	
������	�$�&�G����
��	������������$��������������������������������

Q����-�����������	
�����&

������:����%�����	
������	������$�����������
�����������#������9	��������	��?����������

<������%�

��	��<������%�������������������

������������� � �����#�����!!

1
0
0



������������������ 	������ �		��������� ������

.�"�- 3���������
����%��������
������������������)��

	
����	�������$���	�����!���)��	
����	����
����������	�$���	�������	���������)��	
����	�

�������)������	�����������������	������	��������	�

<����	��������������������� �������������

.�'�. �	��������	��
����%������)������	����������
����
���	&�#���
������	�$�������	�
��
���)����

	�����������������������%���)��
�������

<�����������	�����$��������)�������
��
���������������������������!�������

B�)���������H�����<�������,���������
����

������������

.�'�' �����	������.�����%�����	������������������

��	���	��$����
����	������!����$��������
#������	�

!��������2��������	���������.���	��		���������

����������	
������	���������.������	�������	�
���	�������$�%��������	��
��������	������%�

�����������������	������	���	������$�������

!������������������������������%�

��������������������	�����
�	���
��������

��������9�4��	9�����	������6)������������
	������%��	�����$���	��������������������	�

	�����������������)���������)�������������

������	�������������������������4"�	*�


��$�$�%�$����	���������������������������
	������������������������3	���
���	�������������

��)��$��������������%�����������������
	�

����������)������)���$%�,##�����������	�

�������
����)���������
�������������������	�
���8��������������������%��)�������

�������������������
	�����G�����������

3����
�	���)��$��������������	��)��
����

����������������������������������3����������
$������$�����	�$�������������	�����	����������

�����	������%������
����%�����)�������
�	
�������	����������

H��������������������������

3����������������(�����

���	�����������������

�����,����$�������	�������	�����	��������
��$�������	������*��������������
����	����������

����8�����%�3�������%����������	���$�����%�
	������$����������������������$%��	������$���

,����$����������	���������
��		���	�������

�

��
�����*������,����$�������������������
�������83������

����	�������������,����$��������

���	��������

�������������%������

#�����%�
��)�������������:������

������������� � �����# ����!!

1
0
1



������������������ 	������ �		��������� ������

��� ��	��������
���(�����-�����8N�!��������

B��	%	����3		�		�����02���*�����1*��	�����
��	������%	�	�������8N9	�����������)���������

�������	�������$�����	����
��)���	����	�����%�
����������������������������
��	
����%�����

�����	�����	��������������)�����%���$�����	���
��������������)�����������)�������$��������

����������$��������	���		�		�������
��)���
����	�$%�����
��������	%	��������

	���	������������%�)����	�����$���		������
������	��$�����	*��������������	���������

���������%�	������$��	��������	����������	�	�

����$�����	�����)���
�����
��
�	��	������
#������*����	����	�����	��	
�����������$��

9C������B�)���������#�
����9*�����
�	����	��
��������������	��������������%�����������G��

�������	�
������
����	�����	
�������	�������
���������%	�$������
�$��������	����������
����

�	�
�$��	�����G���������	������������������

����������
�$��������	�$����������������%����

����%	�������������������������$�	��
��������

����	�������������������������$�������������


������	�������

�%��������	������%���<����
�������������	������������	���	�$���������

���������������������������	���������
#��
������������$�	��
���������	������������	�

	�����������������������������������

�������������

����� ,����$�������	�����������9��$���

,����$������9����$����
����	�

!���������)����������
������
����������� �������������

��-�> ��-�>������9��$�����������	9����	���(�9���)�����	�

����	�����	�������
�������������$���

��)���
�����������������
��)�����)���������
������	���%������	��
����	*��������	�������

)����$���
���������������������9

3������������
���� �������������

����� �����	��������������� B������������������������������������� �������������

����� ��
������:�����%�������)��	��%�������:�����%*�

��)��	��%�����)����

3�������������
���� �������������

������������� � �����#�����!!

1
0
2



������������������ 	������ �		��������� ������

.���� .��������������������������(�����	��������

�����������#��%�#�����������$����������	�)���
�%
�	�������������0���	�����������	���������

�%
�	�����������������������������������$�����
�%
�	*������

��������)����
�����	����������	�

��������	������	�������������	*�$������%�	����
�	����%����������������)�����	���	�����


������	�1�8�����G�������	*�	��������
������������H����	����G����	����������(�

H����	����G���*���������������������	����
����7�����!��������	��)�����@������*��	����

���	����%�)����$���������������������%�

��	�������������������$��������������������
������
�����	��������������������
������������

��������)������������@����������������������
������)��������

!����������	����	����������������������	�

�������	�������5�	����������)�������
	����	�����������������������������	�


������
����	�����
����

�������������

.�>�� G�������������C������	�	
����%����$��

����������6��	�������$���	����������������	�����
�������	����%�	�������$���	�����$�	���	�$�	%�

����	����������������������������	���
�$����
����		�������	����$�������������������	�������

$���	�����������������������������������

����������������		

C������	������������	�����$����������������

������������������
�$��������		��	������*�
����)������	�������������$��������������������

�����������
���	�������������������������

�������������

.����� .��������	����������(�@������*�����������������

�����	�����������?������B	����*���	��������	�

���%�)����$���)����������	����
����-���%���	�
���*�����������
������	���������	��
��������	�

���������������������������	���	�

#���������	����	��������������
�����
��������������	�������

�������������

.���� �����������%���7������������	���������	��$��

���������.������	��������������%�����	���	�$�
�������%�����	���������3���	�

!������3������7������������	�	������$��

����������������	�������.�����

�������������	�

������������� � �����#"����!!

1
0
3



������������������ 	������ �		��������� ������

������%���������	�������!�������B����������

����,����$�����������	�����G��������
<������%*����%������������������>���?�%�������

G��	�

��������)�	���������$5����)�	������	�
	������%����
��)������	�	�����$������������

���������
�
�����������,����$��������������
��
����������������������������)�����������

����������	
������������������������������
����	����,����$��������G��������������

������������������	�����*��������������
��)���������������	����������	�����
��)����

��������������	��
������������%�$�����	*�

��
��)�������:�����%��������
��������
������������!�������B�������
����������%�

	�

���	������$5����)�����������%�����
��	��)��
����	��������������������������$�������

$����)��	��%���������������	�������������

��)����������������)����������������	�

��	��������������������������G����������
�������������������������������������������

�������������������	��
������������������

����%����
�������������������������


�
�������	*�����	��$��	������
�������	�����
��
�������	���������

��
�������	�	�

������

���������������
��
�	��	����������������

��
���	������
���	
���	���������������
�����������	���������	����
���������������

��������	��
���������������

���������	��
G������
���	������	�������������������������

)����$�������������������	��
����	������������
���������������������	�������$%�����#�������

��������
��
�	���������������������
�����������
���������������	�������
��	��)��

��������%�������	�����
�������	�����	��	���)�����
������%�����	�	�����$����%��G��
����������%�

��������
������	�#G������8G���������������

��������$����)��	��%*�������������������
�������������������
��)��
�$��������		����

��������	��������������	�������G��	�

����%����
��������%�
��
�	��	����
�����������	���������%�

)�����������
�		�$������������������������
������
��������������������������*��	����

�

��
������	
����	��G����	����������

!����������	������%���	�$��������������������

������������������������	���������
��)�������
�������������������������	�����������


���������	
����	�

��������������	����������

������������� � �����##����!!

1
0
4



������������������ 	������ �		��������� ������


������	�������	�������
�������
��)��������	�
������)���
������G��������������������

������������������,�������������������

���	����������������	��
����
��������
	����$����%���	
����	��G����������)�	�������

����)������	�	������$����������
��)�������
������
�		�$������������	��$����)��	��%*�

����	��
���������������)������G��������
����������
����%�������	���	����
��)����

��	���$��������
���������	
����	*�
����������%�
��	�����$���	�����$��	*��������

��
������

���������������������������������
�������	��
������%�����	��������	�	����������$��������������

�������$����$��������	��	������
��)�����������

+���	���$����*��������	������������		�		�����
	������$�������������$%���
���		������

�������	��$�����������	��������������<��)�%	�
	��������	��$������������������%�����	������%�

���	�

����$��	��3�����������	��	
����	�����
������	����	�������%�
���������*�����)����


������	�������	������	�	�����������	���
��������������
��%�������$�	��
��������

������	*���������������������
�������	�����

�������	�	��)�%	������
��%���������������	��
�������	��	�����,���	�����������	���������
�����������	������%�����	�������	��		���%���

���	�����������������

����- ����-���������
�������������������������	��������


���������	�	�����$��������=����������

�
������������������������%&

����������������#��%�������	���������������

������%�������������	�����	����	������������������
����	�
��%������)����$��������

!���������������

����� ������������������������	�	������$����)��)������
�,69	�����������$����)�	�)��

!��������G������

��
���������������	���������
��	�$�������������������		�	����������	���)�	�)��

��
���

�������������

>���� >�����������	���
�����������������	��
�������	��	�
�	��$��	�������)������	���������	
���	�=�

�������������%�$�����������<��������	�	�������
��)������	��������������	�=���
����%�	������

$��
������������������%����	�

!�����������	����	���������������	���������	�
���	��������	��
��������	������%�����)�������	�

��
��������������������������)�����%�������
#������9	������	�������	�$���������)�����������

�����
��)����������%���������	��
�

!�����������������

������������� � �����#!����!!

1
0
5



������������������ 	������ �		��������� ������

.���� .�����#��%�#�����������	��3�%���)�����%�	������

����������,���	��#���������
����	��������
�����	��
�������	����)������	��,#�	��������)��

����		����������������������$�	��������
�
�����������������	�

!�����������	�������������,���	����
��������$��

�		���������������������������)�����%�������
#������9	�������	�����

!�����������������

,����%�#�GH�> ,����%�#�GH�>���,##�	����������������
��������%���)��)������)���,���	��#��������	�

���%�������%���)��)��������������������	�

!����� !�����������������

,����%�I��� ,����%�I�������
��������������������,���	��
#������������%�����	���	�

!������G�����
�$�������	����������	�)����������
�	����	�������%������������������	�������-���

����	������%�

!�����������������

,����%�,��� ,����%�,����8	�����,69	�=�#��	��)������

3���	���,���	��#������	�	������$�����	������

��������������������

G������

��
���������	��	������������

���������������	���	�����$��������������������
	���������

�������������

������������� � �����#$����!!

1
0
6



������������������ 	������ �		��������� ������

������������������:��	����	���	�����������������


����	����������������,����$����������������
G��������<������%�

G������������$�	������	��	������)�����%�

������	
��	��$�	���������)������	������

�������������	
������	���������$%������

����	�$�	����
������	��������	&��2��$����
�������������	���&

G����63,+2�	�$������	�����	���)�������������

��������	������
��)����%����������������������

�<7�0#��		�N�%	1����������������	��������	�
���%���	����������$���������
����		���

	����������������������	+	���$	����	������

��$���+���	����&

���������	�����<7�������	���	����������		��%�

���������	�$��	���������+�������	��+
����$%�
�����<7����������%��������������������������	&

���������	����������	���������������	�����


��������������������������%���)�������
��
���%�
�������	��)���������������	���������	�

��������
�$����������%	����	���������������

���	�,##���)������
����	�������������
������������������������������		��%�����

�

��
�������������������������	���������	&

����	�����	���)�����������������
��
�����	���)��
�)������������	���������������������	�����	��

���%�	���� �������	����� ���������7�����
3�������%�����������������������)��������������

:��	����&��?�	����������	�$�������������������
����$������	�����	��	��&��������	+	���$	�����

����)����������$������	�����	%	���*��������	��

�����	����,��)����7�������	�$��
��	������&����
	�*��������	�����
��	�������	&

������������	��������	���
������%�	���������

	���������
��������+
����+����)���������
���	���������	�������$�����	����������������%�

�������������������������*������$���	*�����%�

3�	�
��������������	�	�����������#��	���������

��	��������:��	����	��	������������	
��	�	�

��)�������������������	������	(

W��������������������
�������)�������������
������
����	�������	������	�����	�������)��

����#����������������	�$�����	�������������
	%	�����������	�������������������������������

$�����	����(�������	����������%�$%�
����������������	�����	��������$�	�������

+������	�	���:��	�	����	��)���+�

��
������
����	%	�����������	��������������)�����������

�����
�����������

W���������	����������	�����
��
���%�����	�
	����	�����������������	��	��
��	������������

�������������������		�	������0	�$5�����������
����������������1��#��		�N�%	���)�����������

�������������������		�	���������������
������	������$����
��������������������	�

�		�		��������������	���������	�����
��
���%�
����#�������������	����	����������%���������

�������������
��������$���	���C�)����	
�����
�����#��		�N�%	���
��	������)������	�$����)���

����������
���	��������������%�����������
����)���������	
��	�$����%��	����%����	��������

��������6���������������	���	���������%�

	����������������$����������������������	������%�
��������%������$��������������

W��%
�����%�����C�����%�3�������%�������	��)��
�������������������+����
����������
��
���%���

����	������%��������%����������������%�����������
���������������������	
��	�$����%���)����������

�������������������������������3������������
���	�$�������������	��������������B:����%�����

������������������������������%����	�����

���������	����$��������������%�����������

W����%���	������	����������������������7�����

,��������3�������%�����������	�����������%�

�������������������,��	��)������6����*�

#������������������#��	��)������3�������
	�$5�������,��������#��������	�

W�G������%�$�����������������������������
��	�����	��	���
��)��������	�	���������


��	��������	������$���		��������������	�����

!�����������������

������������� � �����#%����!!

1
0
7



������������������ 	������ �		��������� ������

�������%�	��
�%����9��
�%�����������������	�
����	��)�	��������������	�����,##���	�������

������
���	��)������
��$���&���	���������

 ��	������� �������������������
����
	�����%�
�����
���������������	��������	&

�	���������%��%�������#���������	�������$��

����������������	*�$��������%����������*����
����	�����������)���		��	��������������

��	
����)��G���	&��<��	��

��������
��
�������	���G����#���������	��������������

���������������	*����%�����������)���*������
��	�����	��	������� G�����	���������& 

,����������������������$�����������	�������
$���������������
��	����������������?%���	��

��
��		���������������
����	�
�%�����9������
������������������
����9�������)������	�$�	���

�����	
�������������*�	���	���	��	�$���
�������������������������	�

	���$	�����������	�����$���	�$��������	��
?���������-�	��3���	������		�	��)�%������

��	�	���������	��$	������%����������������	�����

$���	���������
��	����
W�����	�����������������*�������������	���%�

������	������%������$��������������	�$�����$�����
�������	����������
��	����������	��������

���������������������������$��
��	�������
W�����,��������������������������
��	��������

����������G�����������#�����%	����3���
W���������$�%��������	�����		�	���������������

7�����3�������%���������������	������������	��
	��������	�

W��������������������
�������)�������������

	������������������#���������	����$����������
�����������������������������	�
�������������

�����������

H�������%�����)�������5����������	���������
������	�����������	�
������	�����
��������	�

�������$�����%�����	���D����%�����������
�	
����������
��������	�	���������)�����������

$����	��������
��)���	�)��	���*��������	�	��$%�
����������$�����*�����)������������$�����������

������
������������	��	���������%����
��
��)�����*�$�����	����	������	�	���	������

�������		����������������������3����������
������$�����	���)��$���������������$������	��

��)������$����	�$5�����������	������	��
�����
�	������������������������3	�����	�����������	�

	����������������$�������$����������������

��������������H�)����������	�����	����������
$����������������������������%��������

��������*�$������������������������������)��
��	�	�����������
������;

!����� !�������������������:������

����- ����-����������������������
�������������������

9�����9���
����������9����	����9

����
�������������	��������������������

	���������	�$�������������

�������������

������������� � �����#�����!!

1
0
8



������������������ 	������ �		��������� ������

����" ����"��������
����������&���
����������

	���������������"�	

����	����	�������������������	�����
���� �������������

����4 ����4�3$	����������		��%& B������	��������������������		�	��
��	��������� ������������

������ ����������	����$�����	�����	�����%�	�������� ����	����	��������	����$�����������	�
����
��������)�������	�����������	�

������������������%�

�������������

����� ����������������
����������	������������������

��	�����	���������:�����

?��������������������B������	���������������� �������������

����� ������<������	����������������������������	��	�
�����������������	���������%�������	�������

	�������������$��	������������������������
��������)�	&�G�����)������&

����	��������������)����������	�$	������������	�
�������	����)����$����������	������������	�������

��	����������

�������������

��-�� ��-����	������������%�������	�����������		& ����	�����#������9	��
��������������������	����
�������		�������$�����	�������	���	�$����

������������������������������������%���	�

!�����������������

��-�" ��-�"��������������������������������$��

�	���

����	����	�������������������������������

	���������)��	����	�	����	�����

!�����������������

��-�4 ��-�4�3���������������&&&&�?������������������
)�����
��)�����$%�����	

��������������%���	�$���������������������
����������������	������������������������)�����

�	�����������)��������	����	�������
������		��%�������������
�������	�	�������

�������������

����� ������������	�������(�9#���������	��������		��	�
���X9

,������������������	������������
����������
�������	���������	�����$�������������

�������������

����� ������3��������������	 !�������B������	���������������� �������������

����- ����-�2������& 3������ B������	����������������

����� ������2�������������	&������������������������

����
��������������	����

�����	����������������	�
������
����	�����

��:����������	�$	�:�����%������������	�������
����������

�������������

������������� � �����#&����!!

1
0
9



������������������ 	������ �		��������� ������

����. ����.����������$���	���������
�������	�	������%�

�	����������$����)�����������

��������
	���������	��

��
�����������	��������

	������$���	��?��%������������������������
���������������������	�������*������$%�

�
���������������������	����%��!��
��������
	����	������������������)��$����$�������!����

���	����	�������	������$������

3�������<���������������� �������������

����� ������?�	��$��	���������2������	�������9���X9 !�������3���������������� �������������

-���� -����������)�����������������		�������	�

	������%���������

!�����������	����������	����	�������

�

��
��������������	������������:���������
�������	������%�������������������#������9	�

�)����������	���������)�	����

!���������������

-���- -���-�����	����,����$��������	�����������������
�	��������

!����������������������������	�$����
����)�����������	������������������������

����������%�

�������������

-���" -���"�!���������	�����	���������������	; !������������	�����������������	���������������

$���������������������%��������������	�����	�

�������������

-���' -���'�B�������%�����	���������
� !�������#�����%����������	��������� �������������

����. ����.�!������������
��������������	��������
�

���������
��������������������

!������������	�����������������	���������:������

��
��	������������	���������������	����
�
����������������������

�������������

����" ����"�#���������	������;�!���	������)�������

�������������	�������

#�������������������������	�����������������

	���������:����������������

�������������

������ �������!�����������������	��	�	�%�����G��


��)���	�%�����	��������	�������$����
����)��������������������������	�����

���
����������
��
���������
��������������	�
	��	���)������������

����	�����������������	�	�����������	�����

��:�������������	����������������������

�������������

>���� >��������������������� 3����������������������	���:������ ��������������������������������������������

>���4 >���4����G���	�����������$����������
��������

�����	*�����	����������%�	������%

����	����������������	�	����������	�����

�

��
�����������������	������%��������	�
���������������������

�������������

������������� � �����!�����!!

1
1
0



������������������ 	������ �		��������� ������

.���� .�����3�����$�	���	��		�������
����:��	������


�������)�����������������	���������������
	������%

������
����������������$�	���	����%�����
����

������	���
���������������)��������
�������)��
�����������	%	�����	�����������������������

����
������
����	�$���������������������
������%�

������������

.���- .���-�2�)��	��%�����	����$��	
��������	������� ����	����	���������������	�����
��������
�����������)��	��%���	�$����������

�������������

.���� .��������	��	�
�������������	������% �����	����������������	�����������	�

���

��
�����������������	������%�

�����������������	����������������

.���. .���.�#��
�����	%	����	����	���$���

��
��	�)�*����
�����	�������$�	����		�	��&

!�����������	����	�����������������������

���������	���������%�����
��$������������
����$����%��������	%	�����	���

!��������������

,��������	����#G�H�- -���G�������	����	�����& ����
������%������	�����	���������������	���

������
��%����������	�������)������

�������)�������������������
��*������


��������	������$��	�������������������
���	���	�������
�		�$�������)��������	
����

��	�	*������������%�����
��)������	��	�)���	�

�����������������

.���- .���-�G�����������%���
Y	�	����������	�����
�)����������&&���������%���	&

3�����������
������
������������������� �������������

.���> .���>�,����%����	���������������9��������)���9 #�����������
���*�����)�������	����	�������
�

��
��������������������������	�����	�����

����%	��������������
����������

�������������

.�-�� .�-���������� !������,������
���������� �������������

,��������	�����3�� ��������
����%��������������	���������G�����

��
���������
���������	����

��
�����*�
�����
��������	�����$%

3��������������������	��������������	�

���	������������	��������

�������������

,��������	����,6<�� ��	����%����	�	������$������������%���	���������
������������

!��$��������������������	����	���������
�������������
����

�������������

.�>�� .�>���H���	��������C������	�����7!�	 !����������	�	�����������	������� �������������

.�>�- .�>�-�?�	����������	��������������*�)��%��������

�����������	����%

!�������H�������������%�
��)����������������

�������

�������������

������������� � �����! ����!!

1
1
1



������������������ 	������ �		��������� ������

.�>�� .�>���%
��������������� 3������ �������������

,��������	����#G�� .�>�.�����2�	��������������������	��������)����

C�����%���������	�����������	������
���
	
���	�����	�������)��

!�����������#�����������
������������	�����

�
���	
���	�������:�������������������������
���	������	�������������������	�������������	�

���@����)��	��%*��������	���	������$5����)��
�����������
����%�������	����	��������������

���$�������������	��
��������	������$���

�����
������������������������)������������������

#����������	�

�������������������������
���������������	��

,��������	����8G�� .�.�-�����#�)����	���
�������$��������%����������

$�����)��������������������)���������	�
�

��
�����������	��	���$���%�$�������

�

��
���������	��������	

���	��$	��)�������	���������������������������


����%�������������	���������	�������	
�������	�
�������

��
���������������������������)��

	��������

�������������

,����%�8G�� ,����%�8G��6��������������)����������
���	������
�������������	������

3��������������� ������������

,��������	����8G�� ����G�������*�9��	�����9�����9��	����9 !������#���������������� ������������

.�"�� .�"���G������������%������������$���

���������
%�	��������
���

3�����������	����������	������������������
	��������������	����������������

������������

.�"�� .�"������	�	����	��������%��	��������������$��

���%����	����

!�����������$	��)�������	�����������)�������

#����������������	��
������������	������������
����
������
��

!����������������

.�'�� .�'���7�����
������%��	�)��%�)����$��*�->��	����
����
��	���
��)�

���������	�������� �������������

.�'�� .�'���!����������H�����	����	��	�)���	�����$��
�����)���$%���������������������
����

������������������%� �������������

.�'�� .�'������	�
������
���	���

������������	�

���������

�������� �������������

.��� .����7������������	�!�������
���$����

�����������%�
������
�������������	�

!������2��������������������� �������������

������������� � �����!�����!!

1
1
2



������������������ 	������ �		��������� ������

3
�����	����������	�����������������������

$����$����
��$���	�5�	����������������������
���������
��������������	��������)���������

3��	�������	��������G�����������	��
��������%�
����������������)��������	������

Z����	���������5�$���������$�������
��������
��������$����������*����
���������	���������

�		����%������������%����������������	������
�����
���	
����
���������G����)����	����%�

����	��)�������%���	������������������$��
��)��)��������
���������������������������������

�������������
������,�
���	���������$)���	�


��$����������%�)������	��3�	������!�������	��
����
��	����������������)���
����������
����%�

����
��������
�����#���%���
���	�������������
�����%���	��		����%�����%�$�����������������

������

!�������<�

����������������,##���)��

�
�������	��		���	�����������������
���������
�������,���	��	�

����)�������!�������

B�)���������H�����<��������������
��������

!��������������

3

������-���	����	����������	�������$��$������

���������9�
�������������������	9��<���%�
����
����������	��	�������

<����	������������ �������������

������������� � �����!"����!!

1
1
3



������������������ 	������ �		��������� ������

,B�B�@�68HC�#�I�#�<6#�B�U�

,B�B�@6�68HC�#��U�#68!#�79	�2�3���
��BB<�=�G66273!2�<��3�BHU�������

#������9	�����	�����G��������	������%���	�
�		�����	������	���������������������-�	��

?�%������������������	���)�����$%������Q��%��
,����$�������#�)���<�����%���	����������

�����	���������	�����	���������������������
������	�����	�0	�����	�����G�����������	��

������������	��%�#����		���1�����������
������	�����	���������������!����,�������	�*�

,B#�*�
���	���������	*�,����$�������$�	���

���	�����		��������	�������5���������
���������	������	�������%����
�����	�)��

��������������������-.�
���	*��
�����������
#������9	��44'�	������%�����	���	���������

��������������	����������������	��������)��
������
������)�������
�	���-�%���	������������	�

�����$�������%��		��	�������������
��
�	������
��)�����%�������	
��	��$�	���������)��

����	������
�������������	
������	*���������
$%����������	�$�	����
������	��������	��3�

������������������������
���������������	�

��
�	�������)��������	�������������
����������

���

��
������	
����	�����������	������%�

�������	��������������������������������������
#������9	�
������	����������	��������������

��	������	�	�����$��*���������)����)���������
��������������C���)�������������	�����		��	�

�����������$��������������(�G�����	�����
��
���������	������������#������9	����������

�����������������������B����
��	��
,����$������&�������	���	����$�����

����������������������	�����������
������
�����
�������������	�����)�	��	�0�������
���

,����$�������2�)���
�����#��
��������

��)�	�����)������������������������
7�������
��,�����%�$�������	������$	������$%�

�����
������������������������������1��<����
���������������������)��)��	�����	�����

	������������������
������������������������
����	�������$�����
����3	�	�����	�����	�������

�������������������������
�������	����	*������

�������������������
��	������������������������

����������

W������������	�����$��������������������
�����������������������	������B����
��	��

,����$�������������	���
�����������)��%�������
	������%�

W�!�������3

����������<����#��	������	�����
��������	����������������	�����������
������


�����������)�	��	�
W�!�������<�������.�4�����������	�����

�

���������	������	�����	���������

�

���������	����������������������������$��
��)��)����������
��������������������������	��

����	�
W�!������������������	�$���������������	����

���������	������������������
�����������	��*�
	�����	���������������
�������	����	������$��

��:������������������������
�%����������

������	���������������������	�	������%��

W�7������������	�����������������������
	�������.���������<������%�

W�����
��
�	����������������	�����)���
��������<������%��	�����	���
������������

!����$��������#������	*������	�������
	�����

��������
���������	����������������	�����	��������	�
W�����	�����
��������������������������	���%�����

$��������������������	�����	������������
������������������������������������	���%�

�

�%����9��	�9����������	�
W�!����$��������#������	+�#��������	������$��

���	�������������

��
���������������)���
����
���	���������
��������$����������������$%�

B����
��	��,����$�������
W�!�����������������	�������������

,����$�������2�)���
�����#��
��������

W�#��	�����������������	�������������	���	�
$������������������������	
����	�	���������	�$�

	���������3

��������
W�#����������������	�����$����������������

�����	����@����	��<��������>'-"(����>�O����	�
���������������#��	�����������

��������������	[���#��
���������������	�

������������

������������� � �����!#����!!

1
1
4



������������������ 	������ �		��������� ������

	��
	�	������$�������������	�������������
	����������������	��������������	�<������%&�

����������	����������������������	�����������

$�����
���������������	�������<����
	����	���������������
�	�����*�������	��������

������������������
��
�	��������������
������$���	���������<������%�0
����"����1�

	����	���������%�����$������		���������
��)����
������	����������
��)���������	�9�������������

����������������	�����	��������
�%����
����������������	9�����	���%�����$������

��	���G���������	������!����$��������
#������	+#��������	���)���������	������%&�

C����������%����$�����	�����&�������������

���$�������������	��������2�)���
�����
#��
��������������%�$��$���������������������

,����$�������2�)���
�����#��
���������
�������	�����������������������	������������

<������%��
���������������������������������
���

��
�������		��������%�����	��	�	������

����	��������	���	����$��������	�����%�
���*�
�

�������
��������	��������$��������������


���	*���$�������	�������	��������<����%�����

�$������������������������������������&�
����������	����$��������������@����	��
<�����������		��������������������		����������

��������������	���	����,����$������������

����%���������������	�	�������$��	�������������
���������������
����
	���������������$������

������$���������)�������+��������	
������	�
����	������%�������������:�����%�����
���������

����	��<�������	�0���������������������

��	
����)�1����������������������������

	���	�5�	��	����������������������������
�����
������<������%����3������,�����	����$��������

�
��G�����������������������	�������	�,���&�
G�����

�������%������$����)���������	���������

�������3������,���&�6)���������������	������%�

�	���������������������,����$�������#�)���
<�����%������$��
���	�����������)������
%�������

����*����
����)��	���������<�����%�������$��
����������������)������
%����������
����

<������%������������	��

	������%�	��������	�����

��
������
���		����������������	
����	������������	��
����

��)���
���B�	����������	���������������)�������

��	��
������%��������������
W�6�����
����������	��������������	���
��������

����3������
���������$��
�������������������
����%�
��������������������%����

������������� � �����!!����!!

1
1
5



1
1
6

T
h
is

 p
a

g
e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



ENVIRONMENT CAPITAL SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 
 

Agenda Item No. 7 

22 MARCH 2012 
 

Public Report 

 

Report of the Executive Director of  Operations                                   
 
Contact Officer(s) – Peter Garnham, Highway Maintenance Manager 
Contact Details - 453458 
 

PETERBROUGH CITY COUNCIL - HIGHWAY MAINTENANCE PLAN 2011 - 16 
 
1. PURPOSE 

 
1.1 The report is being presented in order to seek approval to implement the Peterborough City 

Council Highway Maintenance Plan 2011 – 16. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 For the Scrutiny Committee to approve the Highway Maintenance Plan for use with immediate 
effect. 
 

3. LINKS TO THE SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY  
3.1  

 
Creating opportunities - tackling inequalities  

Improving health – so that everyone can enjoy 
a life expectancy of the national average or 
above and benefit from speedier access to high 
quality local health and social care services. 

Supporting vulnerable people – so that 
everyone can access support and care locally to 
enable them to maintain independence, should 
they be affected by disadvantage or disability at 
any point in their lives. 

Transport networks are an important part of any 
community in that they allow the free and easy 
movement of people and goods on a daily basis. 
Whether the use of Peterborough’s network is for a 
local journey by foot, bicycle and car or part of a 
longer journey the continued maintenance and 
availability of the asset is essential for the 
wellbeing of individuals and the economy as a 
whole. With many journeys beginning and ending 
on local networks the condition of local transport 
infrastructure is vitally important in order to ensure 
that vulnerable people particularly the elderly or 
disabled can feel safe and able to make short 
journeys to use local amenities at their 
convenience. Whilst roads are important it is hoped 
that by providing conditions conducive with the use 
of more sustainable modes of transport more 
people will choose to make short trips on foot or 
bicycle as an alternative to the car with the obvious 
health benefits. 

Creating strong and supportive communities  

Empowering local communities – so that all 
communities and individuals are engaged and 
empowered, and take their opportunities to 
shape the future of Peterborough. 
 

Building pride in Peterborough – so that we 
recognise, celebrate and take pride in 
Peterborough’s achievements, its diverse but 
shared culture and the exciting opportunities for 
leisure and relaxation. 

Through closer links via the Neighbourhood 
Committee’s local communities will be provided 
with the opportunity to have their say on what 
happens in their area. This may be particularly 
important where the needs within the community 
do not align with the maintenance need that is 
based rigidly on set engineering principles.  
Peterborough can boast a world class, extensive 
and well integrated road network and despite the 
City’s continued growth it still has one of the fastest 
peak and off-peak travel times for a City of it’s size 
in the country mainly due to its parkway network. 

117



Creating the UK’s environment capital  

Conserving natural resources – so that we 
reduce Peterborough’s overall consumption of 
the Earth’s natural resources. 

Increasing use of sustainable transport – so 
that Peterborough has the highest proportion of 
citizens using sustainable transport modes in the 
UK. 

Peterborough has an established network of 
independent footways and cycle ways that allow 
users in many cases to travel without having to use 
the road network, in many cases local journeys can 
be quicker on foot or bicycle than they are in a car. 
Through the focused maintenance of the footway 
and cycle way network more people will choose to 
walk or ride and leave the car at home.  
The annual slab replacement programme is 
completed with all waste slabs being crushed, 
graded and reused as sub-base material on other 
footway schemes.  
 

Delivering substantial and truly sustainable 
growth 

 

Creating a safe, vibrant city centre and 
sustainable neighbourhood centres – so that 
people have more diverse and improved places 
to visit and enjoy. 
 

Increasing economic prosperity – so that the 
people of Peterborough can work locally, 
benefiting from a strong local economy that is an 
attractive destination for business investment, 
particularly in higher skilled sectors. 

Creating better places to live – so that we 
provide better places to live for both new and 
existing communities, ensuring the highest 
environmental standards of new building 

Good transport is essential for a successful 
economy and society. It provides access to jobs, 
services and schools, gets goods to the shops 
and allows us to make the most of our free time. 
Local roads are at the heart of the transport 
network, and have a key role to play in ensuring 
that transport delivers the services people need or 
want. Peterborough has a proven track record of 
attracting business investment and much of this 
success is attributable to its strong transport links 
and quality road infrastructure. 
The promotion of sustainable transport modes such 
as walking and cycling will support the aim to build 
strong communities with residents feeling less 
isolated and more likely to use local networks to 
access nearby amenities. This can only improve 
community spirit and make the area feel a better 
place to live. 
Continued routine and planned maintenance of the 
‘highway’ asset as well as meeting safety and 
engineering needs offers significant visual benefit 
to neighbourhoods and communities and can 
engender pride in a street. 

 
The advice and procedures outlined in the report facilitate the reporting of network condition 
against set criteria for National Indicators (formerly BVPI’s): 
 

• NI 168 - Condition of Principal roads 

• NI 169 - Condition of Non-principal roads 

• BVPI 224b* – Condition of Unclassified roads 

• BVPI 187* – Condition of Footways (Hierarchy 1, 1a & 2)  
 
* Local Indicator 
 

4. BACKGROUND 
 

4.1 The Highway Maintenance Plan (HMP) seeks to update and replace the previous Highway 
Network Management Plan 2004/05 and whilst not of the same name it is broadly based on the 
earlier document. The HMP is intended to provide a reference to Councillors, officers and all 
those with an interest in how Peterborough’s highway network maintenance is managed and 
delivered. 
 
In line with national recommendations Peterborough City Council introduced its initial Highway 
Network Management Plan in 2004. Since that time advances in technology, maintenance 
techniques, legislation and environmental awareness have led to the need to update the format 
and amend the document to reflect the current practices as outlined in the national standard 

118



‘Well-maintained Highways’ – Code of Practice for Highway Maintenance Management 2005. 
 
The existence and adherence to a developed HMP better equips the authority for the future 
challenges in managing, maintaining and protecting the valuable highway asset for the benefit 
of the travelling public. 
 
The table below compares the old and new documents and highlights the updated elements of 
the latest document: - 
 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 

Highway Network 
Management Plan 

04/05 

Highway 
Maintenance Plan  

11-16 
Significant changes 

1 Highway Maintenance 
Strategy 

Highway Maintenance 
Strategy 

No significant changes just updated to 
reflect current Corporate aims and 
objectives 

2 Peterborough’s Highway 
Network 

Peterborough’s Highway 
Network 

No significant changes however a 
review of Peterborough’s carriageway 
network has been completed and 
appropriate hierarchies set that reflect 
the assets importance for usage: a 
footway hierarchy review is currently 
underway. 

3 Resources Resources No significant changes just updated to 
reflect current resources 

4 2002/03 Review Highway Inspections Significant changes – This section is 
now specific to the Highway 
Inspections process that previously 
took 2 pages in the old document 
compared to 9 in the new. Changes in 
National Guidance advise that Local 
Authorities are to take a risk based 
approach to highway defects and this 
has been reflected in the addition of a 
risk register to the plan. 

5 Operational Procedures Operational Procedures No significant changes – updated to 
reflect current national survey methods 
and scheme selection criteria. Annual 
SCRIM Survey process included as 
Appendix 3. For the carriageway 
scheme programme, the results from 
these surveys form the basis of the 
carriageway condition score, which is 
then factored by Hierarchy and Location 
uplifts 

6 Available maintenance 
methods 

Planned maintenance 
methods 

No significant changes 

7 Winter Service Winter Service Content reduced in latest document as it 
simply reproduced elements of the 
companion document the Winter Service 
Operational Plan  

 
 

5. KEY ISSUES 
 

5.1 The updated Highway Maintenance Plan reflects the key changes to the national Code of 
Practice ‘Well maintained Highways’. Whilst the recommendations of the Code are explicitly not 
mandatory authorities are recommended to adopt the principles of the Code, to adapt them as 
necessary based upon consideration of local circumstance and apply them consistently. 
 

119



There are three significant changes to the HMP when compared to the 2004/05 document that 
also align with recommendations made in the 2005 Code; these are: - 
 

1. the introduction of hierarchies that better reflect the importance for usage of individual 
assets  

2. the introduction of a risk based approach to Highway Safety/Condition inspections 
3. the addition of a Skidding Resistance Process  

 
Use of hierarchies 
 
A key recommendation of the 2005 Code was that authorities should develop a Maintenance 
Network Hierarchy for its highway assets.  

These maintenance designations are not directly matched to the existing network classifications 
such as A B C class roads and it was never intended that these hierarchies be the same 
because they cover different aspects of network traffic and purpose.  

The concept of a maintenance hierarchy is the foundation of a coherent, consistent and 
auditable maintenance strategy. This hierarchy should reflect the needs, priorities and actual 
use of each asset in the network and will be used as the main tool in determining policy 
priorities. Maintenance standards, targets and performance objectives will link to the hierarchy 
as will the process of establishing levels of service which is crucial to asset management. 
 
The process for defining the hierarchy for carriageways and footways has initially been based 
upon traffic flows for roads, and defined priorities for footways and cycle ways. In addition, a 
further assessment has been undertaken to consider the type of road, the role of the route in a 
local context, and a consideration of functional factors that may influence how the road is 
managed. 
 
The highway network in Peterborough consists of 882km of carriageway and 1,157km of 
footway and cycle way maintainable at public expense. In order to address the maintenance 
needs of the assets the overarching principle provided in Section 58 of the Highways Act is 
applied. This states that standards of maintenance should be “appropriate for a highway of that 
character and use by such traffic”.  
 
This report seeks approval of a common hierarchy to reflect the network management duty and 
the requirements for maintenance management based on highway functionality as 
recommended by the 2005 Code. 
 
Highway Inspection Regime 
 
The updated Highway Inspection process is the most significant change to the original 04/05 
document. 
 
The current method of managing highway defects is through the traditional method of 
prescribed levels of defect severity, based on the old superseded 2001 Code of Practice. 
Managing highway defects through risk management is now the accepted good practice, as 
recommended by the 2005 Code. Risk management is espoused by the Insurance Industry, in 
respect of third party highways liability claims and failure to meet these good practice guidelines 
could adversely affect the Council’s repudiation rates of these claims. 
 
The recommendations represent a policy change in the matter of dealing with the rectification of 
highway safety defects from prescribed standards to risk assessment. Risk management is the 
nationally approved methodology for responding to highway safety defects and is enshrined in 
the latest Code of Practice and supported by major Insurers. 
 
It will lead to a more efficient and effective inspection service and a systematic and consistent 
inspection regime will assist in the repudiation of third party highway liability claims. It should 
also assist in enhancing customer benefits, through the improved prioritisation of responding to 
highway defects. 

120



This report seeks approval of the proposed highway inspection regime and to the principle of 
determining response to highway defects by risk assessment, including endorsement of the 
proposed risk register of highway defects. 
 
 Skidding Resistance Policy 
 
The maintenance of adequate levels of skidding resistance on running surfaces is a most 
important aspect of highway maintenance and one that contributes significantly to network 
safety, particularly for riders of motorcycles. Annual SCRIM surveys (Sideway-force Coefficient 
Routine Investigation Machine) provide a method of measuring the wet skidding resistance of 
the surface of the road network.  
 
The 2005 Code recommends that authorities should have a strategy for the measurement, 
analysis and maintenance of the highway network in relation to skidding resistance. 
 
The inclusion of the ‘Annual SCRIM Survey Process (Appendix 3) provides a structured 
approach to measurement and monitoring of skidding resistance on the highway network. It 
allows for the collation of skid resistance measurements and accident data, and a method of 
scheme prioritisation that relates to accident risk. 
 

6. IMPLICATIONS 
 

6.1 There are no significant implications relating to the implementation of the Highway Maintenance 
Plan. Rather its approval and use will allow the Authority to continue to discharge its duty under 
the Highways Act 1980 “to maintain the highway network in a safe condition for all highway 
users” whilst also reflecting the recommendations made in the latest National Code of Practice. 
 

7. CONSULTATION 
 

7.1 Limited consultation was required for Section 4 ‘Inspections’ which has been completely 
rewritten as compared to the 2004/05 document. This informal consultation was restricted to 
internal parties affected directly by the safety inspections process with all feedback being 
considered and amendments made as appropriate. Those consulted were Andy Tatt, Network 
Group Manager [and former Highway Maintenance Manager], all Highway/Streetworks 
Inspectors and Sue Addison, Insurance Manager. 
 

8. NEXT STEPS 
 

8.1 Following consideration by the Committee the Highway Maintenance Plan will be referred to the 
Cabinet for a decision. 
 
 

9. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
 

9.1 Delivering Best Value in Highway Maintenance - Code of Practice for Maintenance 
Management July 2001 
 
Well-maintained Highways – Code of Practice for Highway Maintenance Management July 
2005 
 

10. APPENDICES 
 

10.1 Appendix A – Highway Maintenance Plan 2011 -16 
 

  

121



122

This page is intentionally left blank



Highway Maintenance Plan 2011-16 

 

Planning, Transport & Engineering Services        October 2011 

   

 

 
 
 

Peterborough City Council 
 

 
Highway Maintenance Plan 2011-16 

 

 
 

123



Highway Maintenance Plan 2011-16 

Planning, Transport & Engineering Services                       2 October 2011 
 

 

 

 

CONTENTS 

INTRODUCTION 4 

SECTION 1: HIGHWAY MAINTENANCE STRATEGY 8 

SECTION 2: PETERBOROUGH’S HIGHWAY NETWORK 14 

SECTION 3: RESOURCES 20 

SECTION 4: HIGHWAY INSPECTIONS 24 

SECTION 5: OPERATIONAL PROCEDURES 34 

SECTION 6: PLANNED MAINTENANCE METHODS 42 

SECTION 7: WINTER SERVICE 46 

 

APPENDICIES 

APPENDIX 1: HIGHWAY SURVEYS 48 

APPENDIX 2: FORWARD WORK PROGRAMMES   
(CARRIAGEWAY AND FOOTWAY) 50 

APPENDIX 3: ANNUAL SCRIM SURVEY PROCESS 55 

 

124



Highway Maintenance Plan 2011-16 

Planning, Transport & Engineering Services                       3 October 2011 
 

 

 
Figure 1 North Street before Resurfacing 

 
Figure 2 North Street during Resurfacing 

 
Figure 3 North Street after Resurfacing 

125



Highway Maintenance Plan 2011-16 

Planning, Transport & Engineering Services                       4 October 2011 
 

 

INTRODUCTION 
 

Everyone who lives in or travels through Peterborough will use the highway network, many on a 
daily basis. Those individuals will therefore have a very clear view on how the network meets their 
needs, whether this is in its design or how it is maintained. This will also have a significant impact 
on their view of Peterborough City Council who is responsible for the maintenance of the majority 
of the highway network within the Peterborough area.  
 

The Highway Maintenance Plan details the aims and objectives of the Highway Asset Group. 

These provide the necessary links to the Peterborough City Council’s Sustainable Community 
Strategy, Local Transport Plan (LTP) and Transport Asset Management Plan (TAMP).  This 
establishes a consistency between community aspirations and how the highway maintenance 
service is delivered, within financial constraints. 
 
The highway network represents an authority’s most valuable asset.  The value of this asset can 
be identified by more than just the actual cost of its physical replacement. There is value 
associated with serving the community’s need to travel (be this on foot, by bicycle, by public 
transport or by car) or by allowing the easy distribution of goods for commerce or industry. 
 
In common with other services provided by the Council, highway maintenance is carried out 
against a backdrop of increased expectations and limited resources.  It is therefore essential that 
the use of all available resources is carefully considered and directed to maximum effect.  The 

Highway Maintenance Plan promotes good practice and best value so as to deliver effective 
highway maintenance within the Peterborough area. 
 
As local highway authority, Peterborough City Council has an absolute duty under the Highways 
Act 1980 to “maintain the highway network in a safe condition for all highway users”.  Failure to 
comply with this duty could result in the death or injury of highway users, which may lead to both 

criminal and civil action being taken against the Council.  The intent of the Highway Maintenance 

Plan is to minimise the risk of any such injury or loss occurring within the constraints that the 
service operates under. 
 
The Highway Maintenance Plan is intended to provide a reference to Councillors, officers and all 
those with an interest in how Peterborough’s highway network maintenance is managed and 
effected. 

 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

126



Highway Maintenance Plan 2011-16 

Planning, Transport & Engineering Services                       5 October 2011 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 

Figure 4 Malborne Way prior to Resurfacing 

 

 
Figure 5 Malborne Way after Resurfacing 

 
 
 

127



Highway Maintenance Plan 2011-16 

Planning, Transport & Engineering Services                       6 October 2011 
 

   

The Highway Maintenance Plan’s Objectives: 

 

· To ensure that Peterborough City Council meets its statutory obligations as local highway 
authority under the Highways Act 1980. 

· To ensure that the provision of highway maintenance duly accords with Peterborough City 
Council’s Sustainable Community Strategy, Local Transport Plan and Transport Asset 
Management Plan aims. 

· To improve the general understanding of how highway maintenance is carried out within the 
Peterborough area. 

· To involve all those that have an interest in how the highway network is maintained in the 
Peterborough area. 

· To develop effective policies for the maintenance of the entire highway network within the 
Peterborough area based on good practice, updating these as and when necessary. 

· To maximise the benefit of any investment made in maintaining the highway network for all 
highway users and so promote Best Value in the provision of highway maintenance. 

· To seek improved means of procuring work and services. 

· To improve the condition of the highway network wherever possible. 
 
It seeks to meet the above objectives by: 
 

· Considering the current condition of the highway by using survey data and analysing and 
commenting on the information gained. 

· Identifying factors that are both currently and are anticipated to affect how the highway network 
will be maintained. 

· Reviewing the performance of Peterborough City Council in effectively maintaining the highway 
network in its area, so providing best value to all highway users in the Peterborough area. 

· Reviewing how the highway network is currently being maintained both in terms of policy and 
methodology. 

· Providing targets for the future maintenance of the highway network within the Peterborough 
area. 

· Identifying the resources allocated to the maintenance of the highway network. 

· Utilising the duties and powers that Peterborough City Council has in maintaining the highway 
network. 

· Relating how Peterborough City Council maintains its highway network to the guidance given in 
“Well-maintained Highways” The Code of Practice for in Highways Maintenance Management 
and the City Council’s own Transport Asset Management Plan (2010) identifying shortfalls and 
taking measures to address these. 

 
 

128



Highway Maintenance Plan 2011-16 

Planning, Transport & Engineering Services                       7 October 2011 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Figure 6 Footway in Church Street, Werrington before Maintenance 

 
This scheme was part of the ongoing Slab Replacement Programme 

 

 
Figure 7 Footway in Church Street, Werrington after Maintenance 

129



Highway Maintenance Plan 2011-16 

Planning, Transport & Engineering Services                       8 October 2011 
 

SECTION 1: HIGHWAY MAINTENANCE STRATEGY 
 
Context 
 
Peterborough is an area of contrasts. It is a long established city with a cathedral dating back to 
pre-Norman times and areas have developed naturally around this.  However, Peterborough was 
designated a ‘New Town’ in 1968 and the Peterborough Development Corporation was established 
to double the size of the population in close partnership with Peterborough City Council. 
 
The Corporation devised a master plan that would concentrate the new development in four new 
residential townships.  The last of these townships (Hampton) is currently being constructed to the 
south of the city and will consist of 5,000 houses and space for industrial and commercial 
development. 
 
In April 1998, Peterborough City Council achieved Unitary Status and became responsible for the 
wider Peterborough area including many rural village areas, sharing boundaries to the north with 
Lincolnshire, to the east and south with Cambridgeshire and to the west with Northamptonshire. 
 
The current population of Peterborough is 168,800, split between the Peterborough Urban area of 
149,090 and the surrounding villages and rural area of 19,710 and that this will grow with the 
continued development in the Hampton Township, Greater Haddon and Stanground South 
development areas. 
 
The highway network within the Peterborough area has developed to serve the needs of the 
growing community and throughout its history.  When the expansion of a community is slow, so is 
the increase in highway infrastructure. However, the rapid expansion linked to ‘New Town Status’ 
meant the extensive construction of new sections of highway network.  Peterborough, in common 
with other ‘New Town’ areas, now needs to consider how to react to large areas of the highway 
network concurrently reaching the end of their useful life.  This problem is not experienced where 
expansion of the community proceeds at a slower, more natural pace. 
 

 

 
Figure 8 Longthorpe Parkway 

 
 

130



Highway Maintenance Plan 2011-16 

Planning, Transport & Engineering Services                       9 October 2011 
 

SECTION 1: HIGHWAY MAINTENANCE STRATEGY (Cont’d) 
 
Aims and Objectives 
 
Peterborough City Council’s Vision is for a: 
 

· A bigger and better Peterborough, that grows the right way, and through truly sustainable 
development and growth; 

 

· Improves the quality of life of all its people and communities, and ensures that all 
communities benefit from growth and the opportunities it brings; 

 

· Creates a truly sustainable Peterborough, the urban centre of a thriving sub-regional 
community of villages and market towns, a healthy, safe and exciting place to live, work 
and visit, famous as the environment capital of the UK. 

 
The Council’s Sustainable Community Strategy outlines the council’s commitment to improve 
services and promote the economic, environmental and social well-being of the area. The four 
priorities identified within the strategy are to: 
 

· Creating opportunities – tackling inequalities 
 

· Creating strong and supportive communities 
 

· Creating the UK’s environment capital 
 

· Delivering substantial and truly sustainable growth. 
 
All of the above aims are underpinned by corporate objectives. 
 
The Council, through its Performance Management Framework, ensures that all services identify 
how they contribute to the achievement of the corporate aims and objectives.  Every service area 
generates its own service plan that directly links service objectives to corporate objectives and, 
thereby, to the implementation of the Sustainable Community Strategy.  Service objectives are set 
and monitored on a frequent basis and many correspond with National Indicators, reported on as 
part of the Framework monitoring process. 
 
The Highway Maintenance Strategy must have regard to the aims and objectives of the Corporate   
Performance Plan (which, in turn, links to the Sustainable Community Strategy).  By doing so, it 
seeks to share the “vision” for Peterborough and maximise the Highway Maintenance Service’s 
contribution to meeting the objectives. 
 
It seeks to do this by clearly identifying the aims and objectives of highway maintenance in 
Peterborough.  The Strategy also combines with other Council policies and plans (especially the 
LTP and TAMP) with the aim of maximising the benefits to the community by improving co-
operation between the Highway Asset Management Group and other services provided by the 
Council and other external stakeholders. 
 
 

131



Highway Maintenance Plan 2011-16 

Planning, Transport & Engineering Services                       10 October 2011 
 

SECTION 1: HIGHWAY MAINTENANCE STRATEGY (Cont’d) 
 
 
The Strategy recognises that the highway network is the authority’s largest and most valuable 
asset (although many may not perceive it as such). As part of the Council’s Performance 
Management Framework, the Highway Maintenance Strategy Plan identifies the aim “to maintain 
the Authority’s most valuable asset both efficiently and professionally whilst providing an 
accessible and responsive service to the population of the Peterborough area”. The following 
broad aims were identified (and hold true to this Strategy):  
 

· Provide effective routine maintenance of the highway network 

· Provide effective planned maintenance of the highway network 

· Provide a rational and reliable Winter Maintenance Service 

· Establish a regular inspection regime for highways 
 
These and other service Corporate Objectives that relate to the Highway Maintenance Service: 
 
 

Creating opportunities – tackling inequalities 
 

Improving health – so that everyone can enjoy a life 

expectancy of the national average or above and benefit 
from speedier access to high quality local health and social 

care services. 

Supporting vulnerable people - so that everyone can 

access support and care locally to enable them to maintain 
independence, should they be affected by disadvantage or 
disability at any point in their lives. 
Regenerating neighbourhoods – so that the most 

deprived communities can achieve their full potential and 
therefore contribute to and benefit from sustainable 
economic growth in the Peterborough area. 

Improving skills and education – so that the people of 

Peterborough have better skills and benefit from high 
quality education from cradle to grave, including through 

the new university. 

Creating strong and supportive communities 
 

Empowering local communities – so that all 

communities and individuals are engaged and empowered, 
and take their opportunities to shape the future of 
Peterborough. 

Making Peterborough safer – so that people of all ages 

and abilities can live, work and play in a prosperous and 
successful Peterborough without undue fear of crime. 

Building community cohesion – so that new 

communities are integrated into Peterborough and 
welcomed for the contribution they bring to our city and 
rural areas. 

Building pride in Peterborough – so that we recognise, 

celebrate and take pride in Peterborough’s achievements, 
its diverse but shared culture ad the exciting opportunities 
for leisure and relaxation. 

Creating the UK’s environment capital 
 

Making Peterborough cleaner and greener – so that we 

become the UK’s greenest city with attractive 
neighbourhoods, surrounded by beautiful countryside and 
thriving biodiversity. 

Conserving natural resources – so that we reduce 

Peterborough’s overall consumption of the Earth’s natural 
resources. 

Growing our environmental business sector – so 

Peterborough is the natural location for green businesses. 

Increasing use of sustainable transport – so that 

Peterborough has the highest proportion of citizens using 
sustainable transport modes in the UK. 

 
 

132



Highway Maintenance Plan 2011-16 

Planning, Transport & Engineering Services                       11 October 2011 
 

SECTION 1: HIGHWAY MAINTENANCE STRATEGY (Cont’d) 
 

Delivering substantial and truly sustainable 
growth 
 

Creating a safe, vibrant city centre and sustainable 
neighbourhood centres – so that people have more 

diverse and improved places to visit and enjoy. 

Increasing economic prosperity – so that the people of 

Peterborough can work locally, benefiting from a strong 
local economy that is an attractive destination for business 

investment, particularly in higher skilled sectors. 
Building the sustainable infrastructure of the future – 

so that we create the conditions for business, service and 
community prosperity and growth. 

Creating better places to live – so that we provide better 

places to live for both new and existing communities, 
ensuring the highest environmental standards of new 
building. 

 
Delivering these outcomes cannot be achieved by the Council alone, which is why partnership 
working is so important to realising the Sustainable Community Strategy’s ambition. We will 
continue to build on our successes with the Police, the Primary Care Trust, and many other key 
partners to make this ambition a reality for the City and its community. 
 
 

 
Figure 6 Resurfacing of Broadway 2009 

133



Highway Maintenance Plan 2011-16 

Planning, Transport & Engineering Services                       12 October 2011 
 

SECTION 1: HIGHWAY MAINTENANCE STRATEGY (Cont’d) 
 
 
Scope of Highway Maintenance 
 
Highway maintenance is a wide ranging service which includes the following activities: 
 

· Reactive maintenance responding to inspections, complaints or emergencies 
 

· Routine maintenance providing works or services to a regular consistent schedule 
generally for patching, repainting of faded road markings, investigating problems with 
highways drainage, and barrier and fencing repairs following an accident 

 

· Programmed maintenance providing larger schemes, primarily resurfacing, surface 
treatments or reconstruction of carriageways or footways to a planned schedule 

 

· Regulatory maintenance inspecting, regulating and enforcement activities of others, much 
of this work will be undertaken by the Traffic Manager and their team, under the statutory 
duty for network management 

 

· Winter Service providing salting and clearance of snow and ice 
 

· Emergency Response providing a planned emergency response for adverse weather 
conditions and other emergencies. 

 
Related activities 

 
There are a number of related functions which are not specifically dealt with in detail in this 
strategy, but which on occasion affect or be affected by highway maintenance activity. They also 
have the potential for value to be added on Peterborough through joint working, co-operation and 
co-ordination. These include: 
 

· Asset Management 

· Network management, including utility company activity 

· Highway development control 

· Highway Engineering Improvements 

· Street cleansing 

· Public transport providers 

· Town centre management, including use of public space 

· Maintenance of surface water drainage systems 

· Environmental management including trees, verges and soft landscaping. 
 
In Peterborough through regular co-ordination meetings and the positive reinforcement of 
collaborative and partnership working all activities on the highway are carefully planned and 
programmed to maximise value for money and minimise disruption to road users. 

134



Highway Maintenance Plan 2011-16 

Planning, Transport & Engineering Services                       13 October 2011 
 

 
 

 
Figure 7 Manor House Street before Resurfacing 

 

 
Figure 8 Manor Street after Resurfacing, kerb and 

drainage improvements 

 

135



Highway Maintenance Plan 2011-16 

Planning, Transport & Engineering Services                       14 October 2011 
 

SECTION 2: PETERBOROUGH’S HIGHWAY 
NETWORK 
 
The highway network within the Peterborough area has developed along with the community of 
Peterborough over many years.   This has led to an extensive and varied network that contains 
roads that were designed to the national standards of their time. The network includes the Parkway 
system (now some 30 years old), old urban residential streets, rural lanes (whose construction is 
largely minimal) and newer roads such as those at Hampton. 
 
Over time, responsibility for the maintenance of the network has changed on several occasions, as 
have the design standards of most roads. Equally, the use of a section of highway may vary 
through new local development or changes to strategic routes, thereby affecting the nature and 
volume of traffic using it. 
 
In order for the authority to be able to properly manage the highway network, it is important that it 
has accurate information of the extent and condition of relative asset elements. This information 
should contain the following: 
 

· Name     

· Location 

· Size 

· Classification/ Hierarchy 

· Status 

· Present condition 

· Anticipated remaining life 

· Value 
 
The above applies to all features contained within the adopted highway such as: 
 

· Carriageway 

· Footway / cycleway 

· Verge 

· Structures 

· Highway drainage 

· Signs 

· Street lighting 

· Trees 
 
Without the above information, a full and clear picture of the authority’s liabilities cannot be gained. 
The Highway Asset Management Group is therefore currently improving the level of information it 
holds through processes such as the Asset Inventory database / DVD survey and the various types 
of highway condition surveys being undertaken.  This awareness of the network (and the issues 
relating to it) will enable a more effective approach towards achieving “asset maintenance 
management”, a developing requirement of highway authorities. Such asset management 
approaches allow for better direction of resources to areas of need. 
 
Carriageway Hierarchy 
 
The roads within Peterborough, as nationally, are broken down into basic classifications, these 
being motorway, A (trunk), A (principal), B, C and unclassified.  The Highways Agency are 
responsible for the maintenance of motorways such the A1(M) and trunk roads such as the A1, 
A47(T) (east of the A1) and their maintenance is carried out by their supply chain partners. 
Peterborough City Council is responsible for the entire remaining adopted highway network 
including the principal A, B, C and unclassified roads.   
 

136



Highway Maintenance Plan 2011-16 

Planning, Transport & Engineering Services                       15 October 2011 
 

SECTION 2: PETERBOROUGH’S HIGHWAY NETWORK (Cont’d) 
 
 
However these classifications are historical and do not reflect the actual usage of the network. 
Therefore, the council has adopted a hierarchy based approach to asset management, where each 
route usage has been examined using criteria / guidance given in the “Well Maintained Highways” 
Code of Practice for Highways Maintenance Management (July 2005) and categorised as 
described in Table 1 below. 
 
All of the roads mentioned so far are adopted public highways – i.e. maintained at public expense.  
There are other roads in the Peterborough area that, although not adopted, may still be public 
rights of way. In these instances, the maintenance responsibility usually rests with the road 
frontagers. 
 
Peterborough City Council’s adopted highway network is broken down as follows:  
 

Table 1 – Physical Parameters of Peterborough’s  

Carriageways by Classification 

Length by Classification km’s 

A Roads 73.2 

B Roads 54.2 

C Roads 156.3 

U Roads 598.6 

Back Lanes (V) 0.7 * 

Total 882.3 

*Not included in hierarchy 

Table 2 – Physical Parameters of Peterborough’s  
Carriageways by Hierarchy 

Length by Hierarchy km’s 

Strategic (Cat 2) 87.752 

Main Distributor (Cat 3a) 54.204 

Secondary Distributor (Cat 3b) 118.644 

Link Road (Cat 4a) 86.469 

Local Access Road (Cat 4b) 534.947 

Total 882.016 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

137



Highway Maintenance Plan 2011-16 

Planning, Transport & Engineering Services                       16 October 2011 
 

SECTION 2: PETERBOROUGH’S HIGHWAY NETWORK (Cont’d) 
 

Table 3 – Physical Parameters of Peterborough’s Footway and Cycleway Network by Classification 

Length / Area by Classification 

Footway length (A Roads) 40.3 km’s 

Footway area (A Roads) 94,124 sq m 

% Slab / Modular 8.4% 

Footway length (B Roads) 27.27 km’s 

Footway area (B Roads) 48,910 sq m 

% Slab / Modular 0.0004% 

Footway length (C Roads) 65.37 km’s 

Footway area (C Roads) 129,484 sq m 

% Slab / Modular 9.9% 

Footway length (U Roads) 584.69 km’s 

Footway area (U Roads) 1,175,880 sq m 

% Slab / Modular 13.36% 

Primary Footway & Cycleway Network length 162.26 km’s 

Independent Footways length 276.82 km’s 

Total (km’s) 1,156.71 km’s 

 
Table 4 – Physical Parameters of Peterborough’s Footway and Cycleway Network by Hierarchy 

Length by Hierarchy km’s 

Prestige Walking Zones (Cat 1(a)) 2.392 

Primary Walking Routes (Cat 1) 5.132 

Secondary Walking Routes (Cat 2) 5.702 

Link Footways Routes (Cat 3) 
Full Footway hierarchy not 

completed 

Local Access Footways Routes (Cat 4) 
Full Footway hierarchy not 

completed 

 
The new A605 Stanground bypass and A1073 Crowland Rd should be adopted during the life of 
this plan and this will result in a length of approximately 8.5 kms (not included above) becoming a 
principal road, maintained by Peterborough City Council, both of these may be expected to fall into 
the Strategic route category.   
 
It is also anticipated that 3 approximately km of unclassified carriageway will be adopted each year 
from new development current taking place within Peterborough. It is anticipated that such 
adoptions       (e.g. new highway in Hampton) will continue at a similar rate over the next three-year 
period. 

138



Highway Maintenance Plan 2011-16 

Planning, Transport & Engineering Services                       17 October 2011 
 

SECTION 2: PETERBOROUGH’S HIGHWAY NETWORK (Cont’d) 
 
Carriageway Hierarchy 
 

Category   Hierarchy 
Description 

      Type of Road 
 General Description 

                          Detailed  
                       Description 

1 Motorway Limited access, 
motorway regulations 
apply 

Routes for fast moving long distance traffic.  
Fully grade separated and restrictions on use 

2 Strategic 
Route 

Trunk roads and 
some Principal “A” 
roads between 
Primary Destinations 

Routes for fast moving long distance traffic 
with little frontage access or pedestrian traffic.  
Speed limits are usually in excess of 40mph 
and there are few junctions.  Pedestrian 
crossings are either segregated or controlled 
and parked vehicles are generally prohibited 

3a Main 
Distributor 

Major Urban Network 
and Inter-Primary 
Links.  Short-medium 
distance traffic 

Routes between Strategic Routes and linking 
urban centres to the strategic network with 
limited frontage access.  In urban areas, 
speed limits are usually 40mph or less, 
parking is restricted at peak times and there 
are positive measures for pedestrian safety 

3b  Secondary 
Distributor 

Classified road (B and 
C class) and 
unclassified urban bus 
routes carrying local 
traffic with frontage 
access and frequent 
junctions 

In rural areas these roads link the larger 
villages and heavy goods vehicle (HGV) 
generators to the Strategic and Main 
Distributor Network.  In built-up areas, these 
roads have 30 mph speed limits and very high 
levels of pedestrian activity with some crossing 
facilities including zebra crossings.  On street 
parking is generally unrestricted, apart for 
safety reasons 

4a Link Road Roads linking the 
Main Distributor 
network to the 
Secondary Distributor 
network with frontage 
access and frequent 
junctions 

In rural areas these roads link the smaller 
villages to the distributor roads.  They vary in 
width and are not always capable of carrying 
two-way traffic.  In urban areas, they are 
residential or industrial inter-connecting roads 
with 30 mph speed limits, random pedestrian 
movements and uncontrolled parking 

4b Local 
Access 
Road 

Roads serving limited 
numbers of properties 
carrying only access 
traffic 

In rural areas these roads serve small 
settlements and provide access to individual 
properties and land.  They are often only 
single lane width and unsuitable for HGVs.  In 
urban areas they are often residential loop 
roads or culs-de-sacs. 

 

139



Highway Maintenance Plan 2011-16 

Planning, Transport & Engineering Services                       18 October 2011 
 

SECTION 2: PETERBOROUGH’S HIGHWAY NETWORK (Cont’d) 
 
 
Footways and Cycleways  
 
 
The Code of Practice for Highway Maintenance Management (July 2005) advises that the footway 
and cycleway networks should be broken down into alternative classifications that relate more to 
what use a particular section of the network is put to. This classification impacts directly on how a 
particular section of a network should be maintained and are identified in the Code as follows: 
 
Footway Hierarchy 
 

Category Name Description 

1(a) Prestige Walking 
zones 

Very busy areas of towns and cities with high public space 
and street scene contribution. 

1 Primary Walking 
Routes 

Busy urban shopping and business areas and main 
pedestrian routes. 

2 Secondary walking 
Routes 

Medium usage routes through local areas feeding into 
primary routes, local shopping centres etc. 

3 Link Footways Linking local access footways through urban areas and busy 
rural footways. 

4 Local Access 
Footways 

Footways associated with low usage, short estate road to 
main routes and culs-de-sacs. 

 
Cycle Route Hierarchy 
 

Category Description 

A Cycle lane forming part of the carriageway, commonly 1.5 metre strip adjacent to the 
near side kerb.  Cycle gaps at road closure point (no entries allowing cycle access) 

B Cycle track, a highway route for cyclists not contiguous with the public footway or 
carriageway. Shared cycle/pedestrian paths, either segregated by a white line or other 
physical segregation, or un-segregated 

C Cycle trails, leisure routes through open spaces.  These are not necessarily the 
responsibility of the highway authority, but may be maintained by an authority under 
other powers or duties. 

 
At present only the Footway Categories 1(a), 1 and 2 have been defined. This process was 
undertaken to produce the Best Value Performance Indicator BVPI 187 for the Department of 
Transport which the Council reported as part of its Performance Management Framework and LTP 
processes. This indicator is no longer required for the latest National Indicators but will continue to 
be collected to inform LTP3. The areas of footways considered for the hierarchy review for the 
BVPI 187 were based around the City Centre. 
 
A review of footway hierarchies is underway (2010/11) and due to be completed to coincide with 
the implementation of new Maintenance Management Software (Pitney Bowes, Confirm).

140



Highway Maintenance Plan 2011-16 

Planning, Transport & Engineering Services                       19 October 2011 
 

 
Figure 9 Footway in Church Street, Werrington before Slab Replacement 

 
This scheme was part of the ongoing Slab Replacement Programme 

 

 
Figure 10 Footway in Church Street, Werrington after Slab Replacement 

141



Highway Maintenance Plan 2011-16 

Planning, Transport & Engineering Services                       20 October 2011 
 

SECTION 3: RESOURCES 
 
This section seeks to identify and quantify the resources used for the purpose of highway 
maintenance within Peterborough.  This includes financial, human, contractual and equipment 
resources. 
 

Financial Resources 

 
Funding sources for highway maintenance within Peterborough are either of a capital or revenue 
nature.  Large schemes are primarily funded through the Local Transport Plan capital maintenance 
allocations. Medium to small-sized schemes progress through the Peterborough City Council’s 
capital and revenue budget allocations, the revenue budget also funds the routine maintenance 
works too (such as patching, gully cleansing and verge maintenance). Other new infrastructure 
schemes progressing through Local Transport Plan funding do result in indirect highway 
maintenance.  
 
Capital and revenue allocations vary on a year on year basis, dependent on performance (in 
capital expenditure terms) and changing priorities within the authority.  Fig. 3.1 shows the annual 
breakdown of expenditure for the previous 3 year period (excluding structures and street lighting) 
 

Figure 11 Highway Maintenance Scheme Funding 

£0

£500,000

£1,000,000

£1,500,000

£2,000,000

£2,500,000

£3,000,000

£3,500,000

07_08 08_09 09_10

Financial Year

Highway Maintenance Scheme Funding

PCC Capital (footway)

Revenue (schemes)

Capital (schemes)

LTP (schemes)

 
 
 
As can be seen from the above, the most significant aspect affecting the expenditure profile is the 
additional maintenance benefit accruing from Local Transport Plan (LTP) schemes, funding for the 
LTP comes from a grant from Central Government.   

142



Highway Maintenance Plan 2011-16 

Planning, Transport & Engineering Services                       21 October 2011 
 

SECTION 3: RESOURCES (Cont’d) 
 
A breakdown of the overall routine highway maintenance budget for the past three years can be 
seen in Figure 15 below: 

Figure 12 Routine Maintenance Spend Profile 

Routine Maintenance Spend Profile

£0

£50,000
£100,000

£150,000
£200,000

£250,000

£300,000
£350,000

£400,000

S
u
rf

a
c
e
 D

re
s
s
in

g

P
re

-P
a
tc

h
in

g

C
/W

a
y
 P

a
tc

h
in

g

D
ra

in
a
g
e

F
/W

a
y
 P

a
tc

h
in

g

G
u
lle

y
 E

m
p
ty

in
g

F
e
n
c
in

g

R
o
a
d
 M

a
rk

in
g
s

T
ra

ff
ic

 S
ig

n
s

Ill
u
m

 S
ig

n
s
 /
 B

o
lla

rd
s

S
ig

n
 C

le
a
n
in

g

W
in

te
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e

B
a
s
ic

 F
a
c
ili
ty

 

W
in

te
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 B

a
s
ic

 F
a
c
ili
ty

U
n
c
 P

e
s
t 
C

o
n
tr

o
l W

o
rk

s

U
n
c
 F

o
rm

e
r 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 H

a
rd

A
re

a
s

Activities

S
p

e
n

d

07_08

08_09

09_10

 

Human Resources 

 
The responsibility for highway maintenance work within Peterborough City Council lies with the 
Highway Asset Management Group within the Planning, Transport and Engineering Services 
Division of the Operations Directorate.  
 
The Highway Network Management Group, led by a Group Manager, is responsible for 
Asset/Highway Maintenance. The delivery teams under the direct control of the Group Manager 
are detailed below:  
 
Highway Maintenance Team  
 
Responsible for: 

· General routine maintenance 

· Structural maintenance schemes (carriageway and footways) 

· Safety inspections 

· Condition surveys 

· Serving of notices and enforcement of HA1980 (including skips and scaffolding) 

· Minor traffic management issues 

· Maintenance of Public Rights of Way (PRoW) 

· Winter Maintenance 

· Street works Inspections 

· Emergency out of hour’s service. 
 

143



Highway Maintenance Plan 2011-16 

Planning, Transport & Engineering Services                       22 October 2011 
 

SECTION 3: RESOURCES (Cont’d) 
 
Staff: 

· 11 Full time equivalents 
 

 
Bridges and Drainage Team 
 
Responsible for: 

· Bridge maintenance 

· Capital structures schemes  

· Land and Highway drainage 

· Non-highway infrastructure maintenance (on behalf of other departments) 
 
Staff: 

·   3 Full time equivalents 
 
 
Street Lighting Team (under the line management of another Group Manager) 
 
Responsible for: 

· Traffic signs (illuminated) 

· Street Lighting 

· Traffic bollards  (illuminated) 
 
Staff: 

· 3 Full time equivalents 
 

Figure 13: Asset Management Delivery – Team Structure 

 
 

144



Highway Maintenance Plan 2011-16 

Planning, Transport & Engineering Services                       23 October 2011 
 

SECTION 3: RESOURCES (Cont’d) 
 
 

Contracts & Agreements 
 
Peterborough City Council uses a number of contracts and other agreements for the purpose of 
highway maintenance.  The Council’s Standing Orders have historically dictated the format of 
these contracts. However, in order to secure “best value” and achieve less acrimonious working 
relationships with supply chain partners, a more flexible approach is needed. Environment, 
Transport and Engineering Services will continue to explore the scope to use alternative 
procurement techniques, as identified in the “Rethinking Construction” approach advocated in “the 
Egan report” (a progression of the earlier “Latham Report”).   
 
The details of contracts and agreements currently used by the authority for highway maintenance 
reasons are as follows: 
 

Description Type Start  Date Duration Value Contractor 

Highway Term Maintenance Contract , 
(including Routine Highway Maintenance, 
Safety Fencing Maintenance and Highway 
Schemes up to £150,000)   

PCC Contract 
Schedule of 

Rates 
01/08/2005 

5 years + 2 + 3 
year  extension 

£4,500k annum  
 

Ringway 
Infrastructure 

Services  

Road Marking & Road Stud 
PCC Contract 
Schedule of 

Rates 
01/06/2006 5 years (+1) £57k/annum Wilson & Scott 

Verge Cutting 
PCC Contract 
Performance 

  £750k 

Peterborough 
Contract 
Services/ 

Service Team 

 
Highway Consultancy (for Highway 
Maintenance section only) 
 

PCC Contract 2 / 4/2007 
5 years + 5 year 

optional 
extensions 

£236k/annum Atkins 

 
Gully Cleansing 
 

PCC Contract 
Schedule of 

Rates 
1 / 4 /2007 

5 year+ 2year 
extension  

£157k/annum 
ADC (East 
Anglia) Ltd 

 
Highway Maintenance and Structures work only 
 
In addition to the above, schemes for either individual or groups of schemes, may be procured via 
the Midland Highway Alliance route.  In recent years, these are of a limited number though, mainly 
structures strengthening /improvement schemes. 
 

 
 

145



Highway Maintenance Plan 2011-16 

Planning, Transport & Engineering Services                       24 October 2011 
 

SECTION 4: HIGHWAY INSPECTIONS 
 
Safety Inspections  
 
Safety inspections are used to identify defects likely to create a danger or cause serious 
inconvenience to users of the highway network or the general wider community and therefore 
require immediate or urgent attention.  Safety Inspections are carried out on the entire adopted 
highway network within the Peterborough area. 
 
The identification of defects takes place through: 

 

· Routine Safety inspections 

· Ad-hoc inspections identified whilst carrying out other duties on the network or 
following a third party report 

 
Risk Assessment 
 
In accordance with the recommendation in the 2005 Code of Practice the speed of response to 
identified defects has been developed from a process of risk assessment.  

 
A risk matrix is detailed in Table 1. 
 
The risk register for routine highway defects can be seen in Table 2.  
 
Although it is not possible to identify every risk, the risks identified in the Peterborough risk register 
for Highway Safety Defects cover a wide range of risks likely to be encountered, it is not 
prescriptive. On-site judgement will need to take into account the particular circumstances of any 
defect such as: 

· the extent of the defect 

· the location of the defect relative to other highway features such as junctions and 
bends 

· the position of the defect relative to the traffic (especially those of vulnerable users) 
such as in traffic lanes or wheel tracks 

· The nature and extent of interaction with other defects 

· Forecast weather conditions, especially potential for freezing of surface water 
 
Response 
 
Defect Categories 
 
The Code defines defects in two categories, which correspond with those adopted in England by 
the Highways Agency (HA) in respect of motorways and trunk roads: 
 

· Category 1 – those that require prompt attention because they represent an 
immediate or imminent hazard or because there is a risk of short-term structural 
deterioration. 

· Category 2 – all other defects 

146



Highway Maintenance Plan 2011-16 

Planning, Transport & Engineering Services                       25 October 2011 
 

 
SECTION 4: HIGHWAY INSPECTIONS (Cont’d) 
 
Category 1 
 
Wherever possible Category 1 defects should be made safe or repaired at the time of inspection: 
Where this is not possible Category 1 defects are to be made safe or repaired within 24 hours 
from the time of identification during inspection. Some may require immediate attention as 
described below. 
 
Where signing and guarding is required to make a defect safe, an arrangement for a system of 
regular inspection should be established to ensure that such signing and guarding is maintained in 
a proper condition. 
 
Very dangerous defects require a response time of 2 hours these are defects which due to their 
nature and location represent a particularly high risk. 
 
When a category 1 defect is identified within a larger area of deterioration, only that part of the area 
which meets the criteria for category 1 defects shall be treated as a category 1 defect with the 
remainder being treated as a category 2 defect unless it is impractical to do so. 
 
Some category 1 defects are associated with utility trenches/openings governed by the 
requirements of the New Roads and Streetworks Act (NRSWA). If the reinstatement is still within 
its guarantee period, is outside its specified tolerances and is within the category 1 criteria and the 
utility fail to act within the agreed timescale then the defect should be made safe and all costs 
recovered from the relevant utility.   
 
Category 2 
 
All defects identified during safety inspections that are not categorised a category 1 are 
automatically classified as category 2. 
 
These defects are not considered to represent an immediate or imminent hazard but may have 
safety implications, although of a far lesser significance than Category 1 defects. Such defects are 
more likely to have serviceability  or sustainability implications and whist they are not required to be 
urgently rectified are subject to monitor and review at the next inspection or repair during the next 
available programme. 
 
Category 2 defects have been further categorised according to priority, high (H) medium (M) and 
low (L). 
 
Category 2 response times are appropriate to the various categories of defect and are based on 
the risk probability and its likely impact. This takes into account the likelihood of further 
deterioration before the next scheduled inspection. 
 
The decision whether to record those defects which are considered low risk [Cat 2 (Low) – 
response E] and have no determined response time remains at the discretion of the Highway 
Inspector. 
 
The response for this lowest category could be in the form of submitting a recommendation for 
surface dressing or a structural maintenance proposal. 
 

 

147



Highway Maintenance Plan 2011-16 

Planning, Transport & Engineering Services                       26 October 2011 
 

SECTION 4: HIGHWAY INSPECTIONS (Cont’d) 

 
Timescales 
 
The response for each category and sub category of defect is detailed in the following table: 

 

Defect Response Timescale 

Cat 1 Response A 2 hours 

Cat 1 Response B 24 hours 

Cat 2 (High) Response C Up to 7 days 

Cat 2 (Medium) Response D Up to 28 days 

Cat 2 (Low) Response E More than 28 days - 
monitor and if necessary  
review condition at the 
next inspection or repair 
during the next available 
programme. 

 
The timescales represent the minimum expected response however those identifying defects are 
able to apply faster response times if they deem it necessary according to individual circumstances 
and location. 
 
A hazard initially treated as a Response A or B and ‘made safe’ may then require a longer term 
Response C, D or E to be used to follow up with a permanent repair. 
 
It is important for Inspectors to consider the availability of [contractor] resource when scheduling 
inspections in order to ensure response times are met. Inspections should not be programmed on 
Friday’s or before public holidays (Good Friday, Christmas Day). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

148



Highway Maintenance Plan 2011-16 

Planning, Transport & Engineering Services                       27 October 2011 
 

SECTION 4: HIGHWAY INSPECTIONS (Cont’d) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
R

O
B

A
B

IL
IT

Y
 

IMPACT 

 Very High 
(5) 

High  
(4) 

 

Medium 
 (3) 

 

Low 
(2) 

 

Very Low  
(1) 

 

 
Very Likely (5) 
 

25 20 15 10 5 

 
Likely (4)  
 

20 16 12 8 4 

 
Possible (3) 
 

15 12 9 6 3 

 
Unlikely (2)  
 

10 8 6 4 2 

 
Rare (1) 
 

5 4 3 2 1 

 
Risk Factor Defect Category Priority Response Priority Response Time 

25 1 A Up to 2 hours from inspection 

15-20 1 B Up to 24 hours from inspection 

9-12 2 C Up to 7 days from inspection 

5-8 2 D Up to 28 days from inspection 

1-4 2 E 
Defect low risk, monitor and if 

necessary review at next inspection or 
repair during next available programme. 

 
Table 1 – Highway Defect Risk Prioritisation Matrix

149



Highway Maintenance Plan 2011-16 

Planning, Transport & Engineering Services                       28 October 2011 
 

SECTION 4: HIGHWAY INSPECTIONS (Cont’d) 

 
Table 2 

 

Safety Inspection Intervention Levels 

Ref CARRIAGEWAYS 

1 

 
Defect Type 
 

Intervention Level 

Hierarchy (location) 
2, 3a, 3b 

Hierarchy (location) 
4a, 4b 

Response Response 

Pothole (>150mm in all horizontal directions) 
Raised or missing block/channel 
Ridge, hump or depression 
Gap / crack (>20mm wide) 

=> 75mm  A B 

40 – 74mm B B 

20 – 39mm D E 

Edge Damage - encroaching beyond the inner 
edge of an edge line marking or where no 
marking encroaches 150mm or more into the 
running surface 

As pothole 

Edge Damage - within the inner edge of an edge 
line marking or encroaches less than 150mm into 
the running surface 

=> 100mm D E 

Sunken cover or level difference within frame 

=> 75mm  A B 

40 – 74mm B B 

 20 – 39mm D E 

Missing cover All A A 

Polished cover All D D 

Drainage - Blocked drainage feature or system 
(gully silted above outlet) causing standing water 
1.5m or more from edge of carriageway 2 hours 
after cessation of rainfall  

Yes/No B C 

Flooding - Property inundation as a result of 
defective highway drainage 

Yes/No A A 

Flooding - substantial running water across 
carriageway 

Yes/No A B 

Footway intervention  limits are to be applied to areas of carriageway designated for pedestrian use such as pedestrian/zebra crossings, 
refuges with adjacent drop crossings and adjacent to tactile paved crossing points 

 
 

Safety Inspection Intervention Levels 

Ref VERGES 

2 

 
Defect Type 
 

Intervention Level 

Hierarchy (location)   
2, 3a, 3b 

Hierarchy (location) 
4a, 4b 

Response Response 

Sunken area edge adjacent and parallel to 
carriageway edge (rural area) 

> 100mm  C D 

75 – 99mm D E 

Sunken area adjacent to and running parallel 
with footway edge (urban area with kerbed 
carriageway) 

> 100mm  C C 

75 – 99mm C D 

40 – 74mm D E 

 
 

150



Highway Maintenance Plan 2011-16 

Planning, Transport & Engineering Services                       29 October 2011 
 

SECTION 4: HIGHWAY INSPECTIONS (Cont’d) 

 

Safety Inspection Intervention Levels 

Ref FOOTWAYS AND CYCLEWAYS 

3 

Defect Type Intervention Level 

Hierarchy (location) 
 1a, 1 

Hierarchy (location) 
 2, 3, 4 

Response Response 

Trip / Pothole 
 

=> 25mm B B 

20 – 24mm C C 

Trip / Rocking slab or modular paving 
(Inc Kerbs) 

+/- 20mm B B 

+/- 15 to 19mm D E 

Trip /Rocking kerb (adjacent to footway or other 
pedestrian area) 

+/- 20mm B D 

+/- 15 to 19mm D E 

Trip / Horizontal Gap 
 

More than (20mm wide x 
20mm deep) 

B C 

More than (20mm wide x 
10mm deep) less than (20mm 
wide x 20mm deep) 

D E 

   

Rapid change of profile  ( Crowning/depression) 

> 50mm extending in plan 
direction 500mm or less 

C D 

> 30mm and < 50mm in plan 
direction 500mm or less 

D E 

Sunken cover or level difference within frame 
> 30mm B B 

20 – 30 mm C D 

Missing cover All A A 

Polished cover All D D 

Drainage - Blocked drainage feature or system 
(gully silted above outlet) causing standing water 
2 hours after cessation of rainfall sufficient to 
prevent use 

Yes/No B B 

Flooding - Property inundation as a result of 
defective highway drainage 

Yes/No A A 

Flooding - substantial running water across 
footway/cycleway 

Yes/No C C 

 

151



Highway Maintenance Plan 2011-16 

Planning, Transport & Engineering Services                       30 October 2011 
 

SECTION 4: HIGHWAY INSPECTIONS (Cont’d) 

 

Safety Inspection Intervention Levels 

Ref GENERAL HIGHWAY FEATURES 

4 
 

 
Defect Type 
 

Hierarchy (location) 2, 3a, 3b, 4a, 4b 

Intervention Level Response 

Road markings 

70% loss of effective markings – Stop or solid centre line C 

70% loss of effective markings – Other D 

30% loss of effective markings – Stop or solid centre line D 

30% loss of effective markings – Other E 

Road studs 

Missing with hole left in c/way As pothole 

Displaced item on c/way A 

Defective or ineffective item/s E 

Fencing 

Damaged or misaligned Safety Fence B * 

Safety Fence out of specification E 

Damaged/misaligned Pedestrian Barrier B * 

Pedestrian barrier out of specification E 

* For fencing these response times are “to make the site safe “ 

Non-illuminated Signs 

Mandatory sign badly worn, missing or obscured B 

Warning or Regulatory sign badly worn, missing or 
obscured 

D 

Other sign badly worn, missing or obscured E 

Illuminated Signs/Bollards/Signals 
Any - badly worn, missing, obscured, failed, exposed 

wiring etc. 

Refer to Street 
Lighting or Traffic 

Signals Team 

Hedges and trees* 

Unstable tree or branch causing danger of collapse onto 
highway 

A 

Overhanging tree <2.1m high over footway 
Overhanging tree <2.4m high over cycleway 

Overhanging tree <5.1m high over carriageway 
D 

Oil / debris / mud / stones and gravel on a 
carriageway that are likely to cause a hazard 

Present on running surface of  ‘live lane’  
Refer to Street 

Cleansing Present on running surface not normally trafficked (e.g. 
adjacent to splitter island or off line on roundabout) 

Street furniture Damaged street furniture causing a significant hazard B 

* Inspectors are not qualified to complete detailed tree inspections rather they are expected only to take note of any encroachment or 
visibility obstruction and any obvious damage that could threaten the safety of highway users. Support should be sought from qualified 
arboriculture trained staff as and when necessary. Inspectors are not expected to complete condition surveys of trees. 

 

152



Highway Maintenance Plan 2011-16 

Planning, Transport & Engineering Services                       31 October 2011 
 

 

SECTION 4: HIGHWAY INSPECTIONS (Cont’d) 
 

Safety Inspection Frequency  

Safety inspections within the Peterborough area are and will continue to be carried out at the 
following frequencies. These have been derived from and compared against the recommended 
frequencies as given in the Code of Practice and can be seen in the following table: 

 

Feature Cat Description 
(As CoP Table 1& 2 Section 8) 

Code of 
Practice 

Recommended 
Frequency 

Peterborough 
City Council 
Frequency 

Inspection 
method 

      

Roads 2 Strategic Route 1 month 1 month Driven*² 

 3a Main Distributor 1 month 1 month Driven*² 

 3b Secondary Distributor 1 month 3 months*¹ Driven*² 

 4a Link Road 3 months 6 months*¹ Driven*² 

 4b Local Access 12 months 12 months Driven*² 

      

Footways 1a Prestige Area 1 month 1 month Walked 

 1 Primary Walking Route 1 month 1 month Walked 

 2 Secondary Walking 
Route 

3 months 3 months Walked 

 3 Link Footway 6 months 6 months Driven 

 4 Local Access Footway 12 months 12 months Driven 

      

Cycleway A Cycle Lane As for roads As for roads As for roads 

 B Cycle Track 6 months 6 months Walked/cycle 

 C Cycle Trails 12 months 12 months Walked/cycle 

*¹ Note: these inspection frequencies deviate from those defined in the Code of Practice for Highway Maintenance Management that 

does recognise the need for local authorities to interpret the guidance to suit their own local circumstances. This departure from the 
Code is necessary following consideration of the availability of resources within the Unitary Authority. 

*² Note: where adjacent footway inspections are designated as ‘walked’ these roads will be inspected on foot at the same time as the 

footway 

Driven Inspections 

Where two officers are required on an inspection the responsibility for the inspection will be taken 
by one person defined as the ‘Inspector’ with the second acting as an assistant. 

· Driven Inspections are to be undertaken from a slow moving vehicle with a dedicated driver 
and Inspector in a suitable vehicle appropriately liveried 

· The following maximum speeds have been defined for inspections carried out from a moving 
vehicle: 

o High Speed Roads 50mph and above (carriageway only) – 40mph 

o Urban Roads <50mph (carriageway , footway or joint) – 20mph 

· Notwithstanding the above the Inspector must use his discretion to determine a suitable 
speed having regard to all the circumstances including the prevailing weather and road 
conditions 

· Consideration must be given to the safety of the inspection team and other road user 
 during driven inspections 

· Where footways are inspected from a moving vehicle and exist on both sides of the road the 
road is to be driven in both directions in order to give a clear view of the footway from the 
passenger seat.  

153



Highway Maintenance Plan 2011-16 

Planning, Transport & Engineering Services                       32 October 2011 
 

 

SECTION 4: HIGHWAY INSPECTIONS (Cont’d) 
 

· Where an Inspector’s view of the footway is obscured by two or more cars parked in a row 
or other significant obstruction consideration should be made as to whether that section of 
footway should be inspected on foot. Inspectors are sufficiently experienced to judge 
whether a walked inspection is justified having regard to all the circumstances including the 
general age and condition of the footway either side of the obstruction   

· All slabbed footways are to be walked regardless of category or hierarchy. 
 

Walked Inspections 

When carrying out walked inspections the Inspector is required to walk both footways (either side 
of the road) and identify defects over the whole highway as appropriate. Further passes may be 
necessary in wide pedestrian areas or alternatively arrangements can be made to carry out walked 
inspections in pairs to increase efficiency. 

Routine Condition Surveys 

These surveys are carried out annually and coincide with a safety inspection.  They are undertaken 
by the Area Highway Inspector.  The survey is a basic assessment of the condition of a highway 
feature based on a 1 to 5 scale, with 1 representing a near perfect feature and 5 representing 
totally failed feature. 
 
These scores are recorded and used in the selection of sites for inclusion in planned maintenance 
programmes in following years. 
 
Where an Area Highway Inspector believes that it is not economically viable to restore a section of 
the network to a satisfactory condition with limited maintenance works, the Highway Maintenance 
Team Manager shall be informed this site will then be included on the Highway Maintenance 
Scheme proposal database.  It will then be surveyed and rated accordingly. 
 
Inspectors should have particular regard for surface treatments that may be appropriate for 
inclusion on future programmes – such as surface dressing, micro asphalt and slurry seal. 

154



Highway Maintenance Plan 2011-16 

Planning, Transport & Engineering Services                       33 October 2011 
 

SECTION 4: HIGHWAY INSPECTIONS (Cont’d) 
 

Recording of Inspections, Defects and Remedial Works 

 
It is vital that accurate and reliable records are maintained relating to the activities of the Council 
with regards to the highway maintenance activities undertaken.  This is especially true in the area 
of safety inspections. 
 
Currently records of highway maintenance activity are maintained on a highways management 
software package called SBS Confirm – Highways, as supplied by Pitney Bowes.  This system 
consists of a highway inventory identifying all adopted streets within the Peterborough area.  It 
maintains records of all safety and ad-hoc network inspections and relates the inspection to any 
defect found and any instruction for remedial action, if required. 
 
The records contained in the Pitney Bowes Confirm-Highways system are retrievable and help 
protect the Council should a claim be made relating to the condition of the highway network.  It is 
therefore imperative that anyone undertaking either safety inspections or issuing instructions for 
works ensures that an accurate record of their actions is entered onto the system.  This may either 
be done directly onto the main Confirm Highway System or, preferably onto the hand-held Field 
Booking Instruments (FBI), where provided. 
 
A brief outline of the functionality of this system is as follows: 

· Maintains a highway inventory containing all adopted streets in the Peterborough area. 

· Generates inspection routes for the Council’s Highway Inspectors 

· Records inspection details 

· Relates details of defects to identified from inspections 

· Relates instructions for remedial works to defects/inspections 

· Issues either electronic or hard copy instruction to contractor (dependent on contract) 

· Establishes the status of instruction 

· Records details of actual remedial work undertaken and submits a request for payment by 
contractor 

· Records and reports on financial matters 

· Reports on the highway maintenance aspect of a streets history 

· Reports on performance relating to highway inspections 

· Reports on performance relating to contractor performance 
 

Inspector Training 

 
If the council is to provide evidence that is to be used in court, it is essential to be able to 
demonstrate that the individuals who complete inspections are adequately trained. Inspectors are 
to receive formal ‘Highway Inspector’ training to ensure they are competent in the completion of 
inspections. 
 
Peterborough City Council’s Highway Inspector’s are to complete the Leicestershire LANTRA 
Award ‘Highway Inspector Training Scheme’ (or similar) prior to participating in safety inspections 
as the nominated ‘inspector’. This training is not required for the assistant role.  

155



Highway Maintenance Plan 2011-16 

Planning, Transport & Engineering Services                       34 October 2011 
 

SECTION 5: OPERATIONAL PROCEDURES  
 

Structural Condition Surveys 
 
The main purpose of these surveys is to collect data so it can effectively prioritise planned 
maintenance work. It is essential to build up a comprehensive picture of the condition of the asset. 
Priorities, timing and appropriate treatments can then be selected by using United Kingdom 
Pavement Management System (UKPMS) and local engineering judgement, to give optimum 
results in terms of maintenance costs against preservation of asset value. 
 
Structural condition surveys also support the following operational/reporting purposes: 
 

· To identify priorities for planned maintenance; 

· To support the Local Transport Plan and other funding bids; 

· To report network condition against criteria for National Indicators (NI formally BVPIs); 
 
The use of the UKPMS is mandatory in all cases where survey assessment are undertaken to 
provide National Indicators. The UKPMS also gives outputs regarding asset condition, treatments 
required and possible budgetary requirements. Before a software house can market a UKPMS 
they need to pass independent testing to confirm they comply with the national requirements. The 
systems on the market have all been developed to a national specification and incorporate rules 
and parameters which will enable the same condition scores and treatment recommendations to 
be output, irrespective of which system provider is used. Peterborough CC is in partnership with 
Cambridgeshire CC in using WDM Ltd UKPMS software, giving a vastly reduced procurement cost 
to both authorities. As well as the software being independently tested each type of survey have 
annual health checks and only accredited suppliers can undertake these road condition surveys. 
 
Peterborough City Council is part of an Eastern Region consortium which has procured Highway 
Condition Surveys (machine based surveys only) jointly via Eastern Shires Purchasing 
Organisation (ESPO). This contract runs from 1 April 2005 to 31 March 2011, extendable by two 
years. The present service provider is WDM Ltd. This consortium achieves economy of scale in 
providing road assessment surveys. 
 
 
The quantity and location of these surveys are reviewed on a regular basis after considering 
changes either in policy or to the highway network. The previous years survey coverage and NIs 
/BVPIs are detailed in Appendix 1. 

156



Highway Maintenance Plan 2011-16 

Planning, Transport & Engineering Services                       35 October 2011 
 

SECTION 5: OPERATIONAL PROCEDURES (Cont’d)  
 
Description of Survey Types 
 
Deflectograph Survey 

The deflectograph vehicle operates at approximately 2km/hour, taking measurements every 5m of 
the transient deflection of the carriageway surface under the passage of a heavy wheel load. This 
test establishes the strength of the road structure through applying a known load to a road surface.  
A measurement is taken of how much the road gives or “deflects” when the load is applied.  This 
data, along with details of the road construction, enables the long term structural performance of 
the road to be calculated and can then be used to predict the ‘residual life’ of the road.  The 
residual life enables future maintenance requirements to be identified before there are any visual 
surface defects and also helps ensure maintenance works are designed to improve the anticipated 
life span of the road. This test is currently used on Principal Roads.  If a road with 0 years residual 
life means that it has lost its strength and may be considered for reconstruction. 
 
Within Peterborough, a rolling 10-year programme results in 10% of the principal road network 
being surveyed each year.  The data produced from the survey is extremely useful in monitoring 
the changes in structural condition of the principal network in Peterborough and can contribute to 
forward works programme. 
 
Deflectograph surveys are not carried out on non-principal and unclassified roads within the 
Peterborough area. 
 
 

      
 

 
Figure 14 Deflectograph Survey Vehicle 

 

157



Highway Maintenance Plan 2011-16 

Planning, Transport & Engineering Services                       36 October 2011 
 

 

SECTION 5: OPERATIONAL PROCEDURES (Cont’d)  
 
Sideway-force Coefficient Routine Investigation Machine Survey (SCRIM) 

The maintenance of adequate skid resistance on running surfaces is an aspect of highway 
maintenance which contributes significantly to network safety. Measurement of skid resistance 
requires the use of specialist testing equipment. Roads carrying high traffic levels, particularly 
those with large numbers of heavy vehicles, are most prone to loss of skid resistance.  The SCRIM 
survey establishes the skid resistance of a road surface by using a specially adapted vehicle 
installed with an additional wheel offset by 20 degrees.  As the vehicle is driven at the test speed of 
50kph, a controlled flow of water is applied to the road surface ahead of the wheel.  A 
measurement is taken of the sideways force applied to the wheel which is then used to provide the 
SCRIM value.  The results of this test will draw attention to areas of the network that have poor 
skid resistance values and therefore pose a potential hazard for the highway user.  The Design 
Manual for Roads and Bridges provides details for the investigatory levels for skid resistance which 
will vary, depending on the character of the site.  

 
100% of the principal road network is surveyed annually, however, the timing of this survey is 
staggered each year, between Early, Mid and Late season, to allow a characteristic SCRIM co-
efficient value to be produced for each section of the network using the Annual Survey Method. 
This methodology is recommended by the Code of Practice for Highway Maintenance 
Management, as this reduces between-year variations of skid resistance. 
 
The survey data is used to target surface improvements to sites where casualty reduction can be 
expected. The annual SCRIM process is detailed in Appendix 3. 
 
No surveys are carried out on the non-principal and unclassified network. 
 

 
Figure 15 SCRIM Survey Vehicle 

158



Highway Maintenance Plan 2011-16 

Planning, Transport & Engineering Services                       37 October 2011 
 

SECTION 5: OPERATIONAL PROCEDURES (Cont’d)  
 
SCANNER survey 

The SCANNER survey has been introduced following national problems of inconsistency with 
UKPMS Coarse Visual Surveys (manual surveys) and as a replacement to the Deflectograph 
survey, as a network management tool. The SCANNER survey became mandatory in England in 
2004/05 for reporting of Best Valve Performance Indicators BVPI 223 (Principal Rds) and 224a (B 
& C roads), these indicators have now been replaced by National Indicators NI168 & NI 169 
respectively. 

The survey involves a specially adapted vehicle which is driven at normal traffic speed over the 
highway network to measure and record surface characteristics, such as: 

· Wheel path rutting 

· Cracking 

· Texture profile 

· longitudinal profiles 

· Survey speed 

· Road geometry 

· Spatial co-ordinates of sections and data 

These are fast surveys with real time processing of condition information that have been 
introduced with the aim of providing both reliable and repeatable information for the assessment of 
carriageway condition. 
 
The SCANNER survey is presently undertaken on A, B, C roads to report the National Indicators; 
the coverage is laid down in the guide lines for NI production. Also, this same information forms the 
basic condition information used to prioritise the forward works programme for carriageway 
resurfacing works. From 2010 the coverage of the SCANNER survey will be extend to Unclassified 
roads which have a hierarchy of Secondary Distributor or higher. This will allow the condition 
assessment and funding of the carriageway resurfacing refurbishment of the Strategic Route, Main 
and Secondary Distributors to be based on the same base condition data. 
 
 

 

 
Figure 16 SCANNER Survey Vehicles 

 

159



Highway Maintenance Plan 2011-16 

Planning, Transport & Engineering Services                       38 October 2011 
 

SECTION 5: OPERATIONAL PROCEDURES (Cont’d)  
 
 
UKPMS Coarse Visual Inspection Surveys (CVI) 
 
This survey is primarily a carriageway survey, but covers the full highway width including footways, 
verges and cycleways, it establishes road condition by visual (human) means and survey data is 
collected from a driven inspection of the network.  These surveys are carried out using parameters 
set within the UKPMS.  Visible defects (see below) across the full highway are recorded and 
classified within the criteria of UKPMS.   
 
Edge deterioration 
Cracking 
Rutting 
Wheel track cracking 
Settlement 
Surface deterioration 
Surface course deterioration 
Joint seal (concrete carriageways) 
 
This data is then processed using UKPMS compliant software from which a score is derived. This 
survey is only used on the Unclassified road network, a proportion of the unclassified network is 
surveyed annually, as well as locations which have been submitted for the carriageway resurfacing 
forward programme. The condition score is then used as the base condition data in assessing the 
merit of the scheme against other scheme similarly submitted for consideration for the forward 
works programme for carriageway resurfacing.  
 
 
Detailed Visual Inspection Surveys (DVI) 
 
This survey establishes footway or road condition by visual means and survey data is collected 
from a walked inspection of the network.  These surveys are carried out using parameters set 
within the United Kingdom Pavement Management system (UKPMS) in order to achieve consistent 
results nationally.   Visible defects (see below) are recorded and classified within the criteria of 
UKPMS.   
 
Cracking 
Settlement 
Longitudinal trips 
Spot defects 
Fretting 
Damaged blocks/flags 
 
This data is then processed using UKPMS compliant software from which a score is derived. Over 
the recent years DVI surveys have been undertaken on the footways within Peterborough with a 
hierarchy of 1(a), 1 and 2, to produce BVP Indicator 187.  BVPI 187 is no longer a mandatory 
survey and these resources may be used to assess the footway locations submitted for 
consideration to go onto the Footway forward works programme.  
 
 
Currently, CVI and DVI surveys are carried out by the consultant Atkins, via their consultancy 
contract with the authority. 
 

160



Highway Maintenance Plan 2011-16 

Planning, Transport & Engineering Services                       39 October 2011 
 

SECTION 5: OPERATIONAL PROCEDURES (Cont’d)  
 

Scheme Selection Criteria 
 
It is unlikely that sufficient resources will ever be available to undertake all of the necessary 
highway maintenance schemes required at any one time.  Therefore, it is important to establish a 
clear and sound means of prioritising sites that require major works. The Highway Maintenance 
team, within the Asset Management Group, have adopted a more rigorous use of Asset 
Management data when prioritising maintenance scheme bids into a works programme. Further 
data is being captured that will facilitate the development of provisional rolling five year core 
maintenance programmes, ensuring that maintenance budgets are allocated to achieve maximum 
return on the investment . This rolling five year maintenance programme will also create greater 
opportunities for co-ordinating and programming maintenance work with other programme areas, 
such as traffic management/engineering schemes to reduce scheme costs.  
 
The government has encouraged local highway authorities to adopt the UKPMS methodology so 
that maintenance needs can be consistently assessed at a national level.  This may be done using 
either the Course Visual Inspection (CVI) or SCANNER survey. 
 
Peterborough does not undertake either of the above surveys over the whole of the highway 
network as can be seen in Appendix 1. This shows both the current survey regime in Peterborough 
and the recommended national survey regimes as given in the Code of Practice 
 
Where UKPMS data is available, it is used as a means of prioritising the forward works programme 
for carriageway resurfacing/reconstruction schemes on the road network.  However, on all other 
elements of the network, a local methodology is currently employed to determine scheme selection 
 
Structural Maintenance Assessment Procedure. 
 
Carriageway Schemes 
 
Engineers interrogate the SCANNER Road condition data for parts of the network which have a 
Road Condition Index (RCI) of over 40 (amber). The condition data is overlaid onto plans of the 
network and where clusters of scores >40 occur a possible scheme is highlighted. The total RCI 
score for a highlighted scheme location is then divided by the proposed scheme length to give a 
basic score.  
 
Unclassified roads are not surveyed by the SCANNER method and their assessment for schemes 
are based on CVI surveys, with up to 25% of the Unclassified Network being surveyed each year 
including locations which are identified for consideration on recommendation from Area Highway 
Inspectors and other members of the Highway Asset Management Group. The CVI survey also 
gives a Road Condition score, but it cannot be compared to the SCANNER RCI.  
 
These basic scores are then factored a further two times, as detailed below:- 
 

Hierarchy Factor Location Factor 

Hierarchy Score  Location Score  

Strategic Route 1.5 Urban/industrial/commercial 1.3 

Main Distributor 1.4 Sub-urban (parkways and 
schemes which have both rural 
and urban sections) 

 
1.2 

Secondary Distributor 1.3 rural 1.1 

Link Road 1.2   

Local Access Road 1.1   

 
 

161



Highway Maintenance Plan 2011-16 

Planning, Transport & Engineering Services                       40 October 2011 
 

SECTION 5: OPERATIONAL PROCEDURES (Cont’d)  
 
There is also an Engineer’s veto/enhancement which takes into consideration factors like location 
of schools, mosques and the like. The veto may be used because of future major developments or 
the condition basic score does not warrant the location to resurfaced or treated. When this occurs 
the Engineer will record in writing the reason for the decision. 
 
As there is no direct link between SCANNER and CVI scores, possible future schemes are split 
into two categories:- 
 
Category One; contains all proposed resurfacing and surface treatment schemes on the Strategic, 
Main and Secondary Distributor Hierarchies, which is funded by the Local Transport Plan (LTP) 
settlement from Central Government. All these routes are routinely surveyed by the SCANNER 
survey machine. 
 
Category Two; contains all proposed resurfacing and surface treatment schemes on the Link and 
Local Road Hierarchies, which is funded by a proportion of the Peterborough City Council Capital 
budget.  
 
Footway Schemes 
 
The Local Transport Plan consultation process identified a clear public preference for replacing 
slab footways with bituminous footways. Therefore, a slab replacement footway programme has 
been undertaken over recent years with a policy of bituminous refurbishment as a construction 
treatment (unless the site is within a conservation area).  
 
Area Highway Inspectors mainly identify potential sites for structural footway / cycleway 
maintenance works.  However, other members of the Highway Asset Management Group do also 
identify sites for consideration.   
 
Any potential site is entered onto a scheme database and a site survey request report is produced.  
All such sites are then surveyed and assessed jointly by the Area Highway Inspector and the 
Highway Inspection and Works Team Senior Engineer and a “Condition Level” is applied, based on 
the definitions contained within Table 1.  This is purely an assessment of the structural condition 
and the level of possible public liability claims.  The results from this survey are then entered into 
the database. 
 

Condition 
Level 

Definition 

1 As new no defects 

2 Good condition requiring little local remedial work. No public liability defects 

3 Average condition containing numerous defects (some possibly public 
liability) requiring local remedial action. This level may indicate preventative 
maintenance required 

4 Below average condition with many defects (high number of public liability 
defects).  This level indicates a condition where resurfacing may be required 

5 Severely deteriorated condition requiring reconstruction 
 

Table 1: Condition Factor 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

162



Highway Maintenance Plan 2011-16 

Planning, Transport & Engineering Services                       41 October 2011 
 

SECTION 5: OPERATIONAL PROCEDURES (Cont’d)  
 
Following this, a number of other factors are applied to prioritise footway / cycleway schemes.  It is 
important to direct resources to areas of the network that are used more heavily so a “hierarchy 
factor” is applied.  As can be seen in Table 2, higher values apply to heavily used sections of the 
footway / cycleway network 
 

Cycleway Footway 

High use cycleway 4 City centre  5 

Medium use cycleway 3 Busy urban 4 

Low use cycleway 2 Urban or busy rural 3 

  Rural 2 
Table 2: Heirachy Factor 

 
Consideration also needs to be given to the cost implication if structural footway / cycleway 
maintenance works are not carried out.  If a section of the footway / cycleway network is allowed to 
deteriorate, it may mean that either a higher level of remedial works, such as patching, will be 
required to ensure that the public are not put at risk or that a more expensive method of 
maintenance will be required.   Table 3 illustrates the factors applied to take this aspect into 
account. 
 
 
 

Description Factor 

Little additional cost incurred by deferring scheme 1 

Moderate additional cost incurred by deferring scheme mainly due to the cost of 
remedial works required to ensure that the site is safe 

2 

High level of additional cost incurred by deferring scheme due to remedial works 
required to ensure that the site remains safe or where delay would result in more 
expensive treatment at a later date 

3 

Very high level of additional cost incurred by deferring scheme leading to 
substantially more expensive treatment being required at a latter date 

4 

Table 3: Cost Factor 
 
 
 

Parish / Ward Location Section Type Treatment 
Condition 

Score 
Hierarchy 

Factor 
Cost 

Factor 
Total 
Score 

Orton 
Southgate 

Bakewell Road 
Entire length 

Footway Reconstruct 3 3 2 18 

City - 
Stanground 

Brodsworth 
Road 

Entire length 
Foot / 
cycleway 

Resurface 4 3 2 24 
 

Tabl e 

Table 4: Footway Re-surfacing 2011-12 

 
Having established the applicable factors to the surveyed site, the factors are multiplied together 
and accordingly ranked against each other (with a maximum value of 100).  The results are then 
analysed and other factors, which cannot be so simplistically applied (e.g. such as conflict with 
other works) are considered.  Judgement is then used to decide on which schemes should go 
forward for inclusion in the structural footway / cycleway maintenance programme 
. 

163



Highway Maintenance Plan 2011-16 

Planning, Transport & Engineering Services                       42 October 2011 
 

SECTION 6: PLANNED MAINTENANCE METHODS 
 

CARRIAGEWAY Life Cost per 
 sq m 

Reconstruction 
 
Sometimes the condition of the road structure will deteriorate to a 
point where the only appropriate action left is to excavate the old 
road to a significant depth and totally rebuild the road to the required 
standard.  Wherever possible, this event should be avoided by the 
timely use of other less extensive and expensive methods.  
Reconstruction of urban roads will undoubtedly involve conflict with 
underground mains and supplies, which also complicate and add to 
the cost of any scheme. This method should restore a full design life 
to the road subject to adequate future maintenance. 

 
 
 
 
 

20-30 years 
 

 
 
 
 
 
£ 65.00 

Full Depth Recycling 
 
This process seeks to reconstruct a road that has become weakened 
and lost its shape.  Its use will restore strength and return the road 
back to an acceptable surface regularity.  The process involves the 
controlled breaking up of the existing road surface which then can 
either by recycled on site (using specialized equipment) or 
transported off site (to recycling plants that are able to recycle the 
material for transport) and returned back to site and re-laid.  A new 
surface course is, however, always applied to a recycled road.  The 
technique is still developing as an environmentally friendly means of 
maintaining certain roads. Certain sites may have too many 
constraints for the process to be practical 

 
 
 
 
 
 
15-20 years 

 
 
 
 
 
 
£ 85.00 

Resurfacing  
 
There are two options available when resurfacing a road - overlay or 
inlay. The option used will be dependent on the site.  The aim of 
resurfacing is to restore the surface course of a road. 
 
Both processes generally use new materials.  Materials used may 
include hot rolled asphalt (HRA), thin surface course (TSC) and 
asphaltic concrete. The choice of material and depth to which it is 
laid will be dependent on the site. Any necessary remedial work to 
the underlying road structure is carried out prior to the laying of the  
binder or surface course 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Overlay usually involves the laying of a new surface course (40 – 
50mm thick) over the existing road. As the constructed road depth is 
effectively being increased, there is a notional increase in road 
strength as well.  Not all sites are suitable for overlay. This is 
especially true in urban areas where the increase in road level would 
have implications relating to kerb face and effects on adjacent 
properties.  

 

 
 
 
7-15 years 

 
 
 
£21.00 

Inlay involves the removal of the existing road surface and 
sometimes all or parts of the binder course and it is replaced with 
new material.  Therefore, the final surface level will be the same as 
the original albeit with improved surface regularity.  As the overall 
construction depth is not increased, there is no real increase in road 
structure strength. Inlay is used where site constraints mean that an 
overlay is not possible. 

 
 
7-15 years 

 
 
£ 21.00 

 
 
 
 

164



Highway Maintenance Plan 2011-16 

Planning, Transport & Engineering Services                       43 October 2011 
 

SECTION 6: PLANNED MAINTENANCE METHODS (Cont’d)  
 

CARRIAGEWAY Life Cost per 
 sq m 

Retread  
 
This process typically recycles the top 75mm of road surface by 
scarifying the surface down to that depth, restoring the surface 
regularity by harrowing and adding additional aggregate where 
required before mixing with a bitumen emulsion binder.  This is then 
compacted and surface dressed immediately.  The advantage of the 
process is that it is environmentally friendly by reducing the 
quantities of primary aggregate used and it does not add to the load 
imposed on the underlying sub-grade.  However, the result is not as 
strong as a newly resurfaced road and its use is currently restricted 
in Peterborough to fenland areas where the lack of additional loading 
to the weak underlying soil is important. Also the following year a 
retread scheme should be surface dressed, to ensure the council 
gets the maximum life from this process. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

7-10 years 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
£18.75 

Micro Asphalt 
 
Although this process has been around for several years, it is still 
being developed by specialist contractors.  The material is a mixture 
of bitumen emulsion and small aggregate applied to the road 
surface, usually in 2 layers to a depth of 10 to 15mm.  Its main use is 
to cover a surface course that is beginning to fail whilst having the 
ability to smooth out minor undulations.  The process does not add 
any strength to the road.  Any significant defects require attention 
through patching prior to the application of micro asphalt. 

 
 
 
 
 
7-10 years 

 
 
 
 
 
£ 4.60 

Surface Dressing 
 
This process has been used to as a preventative means of 
maintenance for many years.  The aim is to seal an existing road by 
applying a controlled rate of bitumen emulsion and then restore 
surface texture.  Although the process sometimes has a negative 
image with the public due to loose chippings (present for a short time 
after the works), it is a very cost effective way of maintaining the 
integrity of a road structure, especially for rural routes.  It significantly 
extends the life of the road before resurfacing or reconstruction 
works are required.  The process does not add strength to a road nor 
does it remove any surface irregularity. Any significant defects 
require attention through patching works prior to the application of 
the surface dressing. 

 
 
 
 
 
7-10 years 

 
 
 
 
 
£ 2.75 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

165



Highway Maintenance Plan 2011-16 

Planning, Transport & Engineering Services                       44 October 2011 
 

SECTION 6: PLANNED MAINTENANCE METHODS (Cont’d) 

  
FOOTWAYS / CYCLEWAYS Life Cost per 

 sq m 
Reconstruction  
 
This means the existing footway structure is removed and a totally 
new footway constructed.  This technique will be generally used 
where the existing footway structure did not meet current standards 
or where a slabbed footway is being replaced with asphaltic 
concrete.  Usually, construction depth for a new footway is 170 mm 

 
 
 

25 years 
 

 
 
 
£38.00 

Resurfacing 
 
This method has traditionally been the most commonly used.  It 
involves the removal of the existing surfacing material, usually to a 
depth of 70mm and resurfacing with new materials. 

 
 

25 years 

 
 
£ 27.00 

Overlay 
 
On suitable sites, it is possible to overlay the surface of an existing 
footway with a new surface course.  This method uses the existing 
structure for strength whilst restoring the surface regularity and visual 
appearance of the footway. 

 
 

15 years 

 
 
£ 9.50 

Slurry Sealing 
 
This method is effective in sealing an existing footway where the 
surface course is beginning to fail.  It involves the application of a 
thin layer of bitumen emulsion and fine aggregate.  In addition to 
extending the life of a footway by preventing water ingress, it also 
provides a consistent colour and texture. If significant defects are 
present, they should be dealt with prior to the application of the slurry 
seal. 

 
 
 
 

6 years 

 
 
 
 
£ 4.10 

Surface Dressing  
 
This is a similar process as surface dressing for carriageways.  
However, there is the possibility of using resin based binders that 
allow more control over the appearance of the final work.  The 
process is not suited to urban footway use. 

 
 

5 years 

 
 
£ 5.10 

 

166



Highway Maintenance Plan 2011-16 

Planning, Transport & Engineering Services                       45 October 2011 
 

SECTION 6: PLANNED MAINTENANCE METHODS (Cont’d)  

 

Figure 17 Church Street Werrington before Slab Replacement Scheme 

 
This scheme was part of the ongoing Slab Replacement Programme 

 

 
Figure 18 Church Street Werrington after Slab Replacement Scheme 

 
 
 
 
 
 

167



Highway Maintenance Plan 2011-16 

Planning, Transport & Engineering Services                       46 October 2011 
 

SECTION 7: WINTER SERVICE   
 
 
As the highway authority for the Peterborough area, Peterborough City Council has a duty under 
Section 41 of the Highways Act to “ensure so far as is reasonable practicable, that safe passage 
along a highway is not endangered by snow or ice”. There is also an additional duty under Section 
150 of the act to remove from the highway. 
 
Winter Service may be divided into two main types: 
 

· Precautionary:  This describes action taken by the authority to prevent the formation of a 
 hazard such as frost or ice. 

· Reactive:  This describes action taken to remove a hazard that has already formed  
 such as accumulations of snow or ice that have formed on the network. 

 
The Council is responsible for over 882 km of highway.  It is not practicable to treat the whole 
network; therefore, the council has adopted a reasoned policy to determine what streets will be 
treated. 
 
The selection criteria for determining what sections of the network receive precautionary treatment 
are as follows: 
 

· Principal roads ( A roads that are not Trunk Roads); 

· Roads carrying the heaviest commuter traffic; 

· Roads linking centres of population; 

· “B” and “C” class roads; 

· Roads that link to treated routes within adjacent authorities; 

· Heavily trafficked city centre pedestrian areas and footways; 

· Pedestrian/Cycle routes passing over/under bridges/subways with sleep inclines; 

· Bus routes with a service interval 10 minutes or less 
 
Full details of the Winter Service provided by the council, can be found in its Winter Service 
Operational Plan, which is held and reviewed annually by the Highway Asset Management Group. 

 

 
Figure 19 Clearing snow from the Highway Network 

168



Highway Maintenance Plan 2011-16 

Planning, Transport & Engineering Services                       47 October 2011 
 

 
 

169



Highway Maintenance Plan 2011-16 

Planning, Transport & Engineering Services                       48 October 2011 
 

 
 
 
 

Appendix 1: Highway Surveys

170



HIGHWAY SURVEYS

Notes

BVPI

PCC Survey Strategy/Network 

Coverage DfT Guidance (minimum survey coverage)

PCC Survey strategy equivalent or 

better than DfT guidance

Year of 

Survey Report date Figure Rule set Merge Method Criteria Comments

96 Principal Roads / 100% 2000_2001

96 Principal Roads / 100% 2001_2002

96 Principal Roads / 100% 2002_2003

96 Principal Roads / 100% 100% coverage annually ü 2003_2004 06/11/2003 3.64% RP3.0.2 Variable CVI Survey

96 Principal Roads / 100% 100% coverage annually ü 2004_2005 05/05/2005 5.85% RP5.01P1 Variable CVI Survey

96

Principal Roads / 100% in 

both direction annually ü 2004_2005 07/04/2005 21.32% RP5.01P1 Variable TTS First year of mechanical surveys on this category of road

223

Principal Roads / 100% in 

both direction annually

100% coverage in one direction or 50% in both directions 

annually - reported over two years to give 100% coverage ü 2005_2006 14/03/2006 8.00% RP6.01 Variable SCANNER Rule set change dramatically affected figure

223

Principal Roads / 100% in 

both direction annually

100% coverage in one direction or 50% in both directions 

annually - reported over two years to give 100% coverage ü 2006_2007 5.00% RP7.01 Variable SCANNER

223

Principal Roads / 100% in 

both direction annually

100% coverage in one direction or 50% in both directions 

annually - reported over two years to give 100% coverage ü 2007_2008 18/02/2008 1.00% RP8 Variable SCANNER Rule set change dramatically affected figure

NI168

Principal Roads / 100% in 

both direction annually 100% coverage in both directions reported over two years ü 2008_2009 28/03/2009 2.00% RP8.01 Variable SCANNER BV 223 replaced by NI168

NI168

Principal Roads / 100% in 

both direction annually 100% coverage in both directions reported over two years ü 2009_2010 29/06/2010 2.00% RP9.01 Variable SCANNER

NI168

Principal Roads / 100% in 

both direction annually 100% coverage in both directions reported over two years ü 2010_2011 09/05/2011 2.00% RP10.01 Variable SCANNER

Notes

BVPI

PCC Survey Strategy/Network 

Coverage DfT Guidance (minimum survey coverage)

Year of 

Survey Report date Figure Rule set Merge Method Criteria Comments

97

Non Principal (Classified) / 

100% 2000_2001

97

Non Principal (Classified) / 

100% 2001_2002

97a

Non Principal (Classified) / 

100% 2002_2003

97a

Non Principal (Classified) / 

100% 2003_2004 06/11/2003 27.60% RP3.0.2 Variable CVI Survey

97a

Non Principal (Classified) / 

100% 2004_2005 05/05/2005 14.04% RP5.01P1 Variable CVI Survey Rule set change dramatically affected figure

97a

Non Principal (Classified) / 

100% 2005_2006 26/06/2006 17.27% RP6.01 Variable CVI Survey 100% survey using CVI for historical comparison

224a

Non Principal (Classified) / 

100% in both directions for B 

roads and one direction for C 

Roads

100% coverage in one directions for B roads and at least 

10% in one direction for C Roads - reported annually ü 2005_2006 16.00% RP7.01 Variable SCANNER First year of mechanical surveys on this category of road

224a

Non Principal (Classified) / 

100% in both directions for B 

roads and one direction for C 

Roads

100% coverage in one direction for B roads and 50% in one 

direction for C Roads  - reported over two years ü 2006_2007 19/04/2007 10.00% RP7.01 Variable SCANNER

224a

Non Principal (Classified) / 

100% in both directions for B 

roads and one direction for C 

Roads

100% coverage in one direction for B roads and 50% in one 

direction for C Roads  - reported over two years ü 2007_2008 18/02/2008 4.00% RP8 Variable SCANNER

NI169

Non Principal (Classified) / 

100% in both directions for B 

roads and one direction for C 

Roads

100% coverage in both directions for B roads and in one 

direction for C Roads reported over two years ü 2008_2009 28/03/2009 5.00% RP8.01 Variable SCANNER BV224a replaced by NI168

NI169

Non Principal (Classified) / 

100% in both directions for B 

roads and one direction for C 

Roads

100% coverage in both directions for B roads and in one 

direction for C Roads reported over two years ü 2009_2010 29/06/2010 6.00% RP9.01 Variable SCANNER

NI169

Non Principal (Classified) / 

100% in both directions for B 

roads and one direction for C 

Roads

100% coverage in both directions for B roads and in one 

direction for C Roads reported over two years ü 2010_2011 09/05/2011 7.00% RP10.01 Variable SCANNER

Notes

BVPI

PCC Survey Strategy/Network 

Coverage DfT Guidance (minimum survey coverage)

Year of 

Survey Report date Figure Rule set Merge Method Criteria Comments

97b

Non Principal (Unclassified) / 

50% annually 25% annually - reported on current years data set only ü 2002_2003 25/04/2003 22.96% RP3.0.2 Variable CVI Survey

97b

Non Principal (Unclassified) / 

50% annually 25% annually - reported on current years data set only ü 2003_2004 03/12/2003 16.73% RP3.0.2 Variable CVI Survey

97b

Non Principal (Unclassified) / 

100% anually 25% annually - reported on current years data set only ü 2004_2005 05/05/2005 15.44% PR5.01P1 Variable CVI Survey

224b

Non Principal (Unclassified) / 

50% annually 25% annually - reported on current years data set only ü 2005_2006 26/06/2006 17.67% RP6.01 Variable CVI Survey

New BVPI number and Rule Set this year. Data collection 

and reporting remain the same as previous years

224b

Non Principal (Unclassified) / 

50% 25% annually reported over 4 years to give 100% coverage ü 2006_2007 10/04/2007 21.00% RP7.01 Variable CVI Survey First year of 4 year reporting

224b

Non Principal (Unclassified) / 

50% annually 25% annually reported over 4 years to give 100% coverage ü 2007_2008 05/02/2008 19.00% RP8 Variable CVI Survey 4 year reporting

224b

Non Principal (Unclassified) / 

50% annually 25% annually reported over 4 years to give 100% coverage ü 2008_2009 10/03/2009 19.00% RP8.01 Variable CVI Survey

224b

Non Principal (Unclassified) / 

50% annually 25% annually reported over 4 years to give 100% coverage ü 2009_2010 29/06/2010 19.00% RP9.01 Variable CVI Survey

224b

Non Principal (Unclassified) / 

50% annually 25% annually reported over 4 years to give 100% coverage ü 2010_2011 09/05/2011 19.00% RP10.01 Variable CVI Survey

Notes

BVPI

PCC Survey Strategy/Network 

Coverage DfT Guidance (minimum survey coverage)

Year of 

Survey Report date Figure Rule set Merge Method Criteria Comments

187 Footways / 100% Annually 50% annually alternating each year ü 2002_2003 29/09/2003 40.03% RP3.0.2 Variable DVI Survey

187 Footways / 100% Annually 50% annually alternating each year ü 2003_2004 23/02/2004 37.95% RP4 Variable DVI Survey

187 Footways / 100% Annually 50% annually alternating each year ü 2004_2005 05/05/2005 18.11% RP5.01P1 Variable DVI Survey

187 Footways / 100% Annually 50% annually alternating each year ü 2005_2006 24/03/2006 18.81% RP6.01 Variable DVI Survey

187 Footways / 100% Annually 50% annually reported over 2 years to give 100% coverage ü 2006_2007 24/04/2007 19.12% RP7.01 Variable DVI Survey

187 Footways / 100% Annually 50% annually reported over 2 years to give 100% coverage ü 2007_2008 18/02/2008 24.00% RP8 Variable DVI Survey

187 Footways / 100% Annually 50% annually reported over 2 years to give 100% coverage ü 2008_2009 10/03/2009 27.00% RP8.01 Variable DVI Survey

187 Footways / 100% Annually 50% annually reported over 2 years to give 100% coverage ü 2009_2010 02/07/2010 34.00% RP9.01 Variable DVI Survey

187 Footways / 100% Annually 50% annually reported over 2 years to give 100% coverage ü 2010_2011 13/06/2011 15.00% RP10.01 Variable DVI Survey

A new network and changes in the data 

collection guidance have seen a dramatic 

fall in the BVPI value. Subsequent surveys 

will determine the overall condition of the 

network.

Footway Based BVPI's

Unclassified Road BVPI's

Non Principal-Classified Road BVPI's

Principal Road BVPI's

50% of the network is nominally sampled 

each year.

The BVPI figure has steadily fallen, although 

it should be noted that the figures cannot be 

compared on a like for like basis due to the 

survey techniques used and rule sets 

applied. The network condition seems to 

have plateaud at around 9%. The SCANNER 

figure has dramatically reduced due to the 

changes in the way the defects are 

weighted and the thresholds used to 

calculate the figures. In 2004/05 the figures 

were high nationally becasuse these 

thresholds were set too low and minor 

defects triggered them. A review was 

undertaken and a new set of  weightings 

and thresholds has subsequently been 

adopted.

APPENDIX 1 

1
7
1



Highway Maintenance Plan 2011-16 

Planning, Transport & Engineering Services                       50 October 2011 
 

 

 
 
 
 

Appendix 2: Forward Work Programmes 
 (Carriageway and Footway) 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

172



TABLE 1

Location From To Description

A1139 Fletton Pkwy Junction 2 Junction 1(west bound lane 1) Resurface Carriageway

Willow Hall Lane O/S  bungalow Reshape c/w to remove dangerous dip

A15 Glinton By-pass Glinton R/B Railway Bridge Place to Place Surfacing

A1073 A47 Lincs C C bounary Place to Place Surfacing

Guntons Road School Road No. 51 Resurface Carriageway

Ivatt Way Hartwell Way Gresley Way +R/B Resurface Carriageway

Fulbridge Road Marlow Grove Paston Lane Place to Place Surfacing

Bus route Oundle Road Pauls Grove Resurface Carriageway

Eyebury Road High Street 30mph boundary Resurface Carriageway

Lincoln Road Mountsteven Ave Marne Road Resurface Carriageway

B1443 Thorney Rd White Post Road Peterborough Road Place to Place Surfacing

Taverners Road Bourges Boulevard Lincoln Road Resurface Carriageway

A605 Oundle Road Sugar Way Shrewsbury Avenue Resurface Carriageway

B1443 Bukehorn Road B1040 The Reaches Place to Place Surfacing

Bretton Way Junction 58 Junction 17 Resurface Carriageway

Edgerley Drain Rd Oxney Road R/B Empson Road Resurface Carriageway

Bakewell Road Southgate Way Milnyard Square Resurface Carriageway

Southgate Way Junction 17 (A1M) Finmere Park Resurface Carriageway

A1139 Fletton Pkwy Junction 1 West bound slip off Resurface Carriageway

Amberley Slope Corfe Avenue The Steynings Resurface Carriageway

Reeves Way Ph 2 Norman Road North for 320m Resurface Carriageway

Alexandra Rd Ph 1 Waterloo Road Oxford Road Resurface Carriageway

Windmill Street Entire length Resurface Carriageway

Ledbury Road Audley Gate Wilton Drive Resurface Carriageway

Alma Road Entire length Reserve Resurface Carriageway

Lime Tree Avenue Entire length Reserve Resurface Carriageway

2011 / 12 Works

Carriageway

APPENDIX 2

1
7
3



TABLE 2

Location From To Description

B1040 Entire Length Surface Dressing

Lincoln Road Entire Length Surface Dressing

Helpston Road Entire Length Surface Dressing

Peakirk Road Entire Length Surface Dressing

Werrington Bridge Road Entire Length Surface Dressing

Wrights Drove Entire Length Surface Dressing

Maxey Road Entire Length Surface Dressing

Tallington Road Entire Length Surface Dressing

Walcott Road Entire Length Surface Dressing

Main Street Entire Length Surface Dressing

Peterborough Road Entire Length Surface Dressing

Yarwell Road Entire Length Surface Dressing

Princes Gardens Entire Length Micro Asphalt

Park Crescent Entire Length Micro Asphalt

Garton End Road Entire Length Micro Asphalt

Chestnut Drive Entire Length Micro Asphalt

Copper Beech Way Entire Length Micro Asphalt

Storrington Way Entire Length Micro Asphalt

Canterbury Road Entire Length Micro Asphalt

Carriageway 

Surface 

Treatments

2011 / 12  Works

APPENDIX 2

1
7
4



TABLE 3

Location From To Description

Helpston Road Entire Length Footway slurry seal

Welmore Road Entire Length Footway slurry seal

Ashburn Close Entire Length Footway slurry seal

Vergette Road Entire Length Footway slurry seal

Walker Road Entire Length Footway slurry seal

Scotts Road Entire Length Footway slurry seal

Holmes Road Entire Length Footway slurry seal

Neaverson Road Entire Length Footway slurry seal

Grimshaw Road Entire Length Footway slurry seal

Sallows Road Entire Length Footway slurry seal

Chain Close Entire Length Footway slurry seal

Little Close Entire Length Footway slurry seal

The Crescent Entire Length Footway slurry seal

New Road Entire Length Footway slurry seal

Burmer Road Entire Length Footway slurry seal

Belham Road Entire Length Footway slurry seal

Thistlemoor Road Entire Length Footway slurry seal

Stumpacre Entire Length Footway slurry seal

Kirkmeadow Entire Length Footway slurry seal

Footway Slurry 

Seal

2011 / 12 Works

APPENDIX 2

1
7
5



TABLE 4

Location From To Description

Clarence Road Entire Length Resurface Footway

Occupation Road Entire Length Resurface Footway

Craig Street Entire Length Resurface Footway

St Marks Street Entire Length Resurface Footway

Church Walk Entire Length Resurface Footway

Reeves Way Eastfield Road

Hill Close  

Broad Close Entire length

Bishops Close Entire length

Chapel Street Conneygree Road No.48 Footway Slab Replacement

Sherwood Avenue Entire length Footway Slab Replacement

Stanford Walk

Lyme Walk

Kirby Walk

Denham Walk

Cranford Drive Atherstone Avenue Bretton Gate Footway Slab Replacement

Dudley Avenue

Rockingham Grove

Chestnut Avenue Eastern Ave Previous schemme Footway Slab Replacement

Chestnut Avenue Cerris Roadt Western Avenue Footway Slab Replacement

Arbury Close Entire length Footway Slab Replacement

Walcott Walk Entire length Footway Slab Replacement

Eastern Avenue Newark Avenue Eastern Close. (Eastside) Footway Slab Replacement

Entire length Footway Slab Replacement

2011 / 12  Works

Footway Re-

Surfacing

Bishops Cl / Broad Cl Footway Slab Replacement

Entire length Footway Slab Replacement

APPENDIX 2

1
7
6



Highway Maintenance Plan 2011-16 

Planning, Transport & Engineering Services                       55 October 2011 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Appendix 3: Annual SCRIM Survey Process 

177



APPENDIX 3 

Annual SCRIM Survey Process 
 

Programme of Survey Identification and Works 
 

Task Annual Timescale Responsibility 
Survey Data 
 
Order Survey 
 

March/April PCC/ATKINS 

Contractor carry out early 
survey 

May to Mid June 

WDM (Survey contractor) 

Contractor carry out middle 
survey 

Mid June to mid August 

Contractor carry out late survey 
Mid August to end of 

September 

Survey data supplied to 
ATKINS 

End of October 

Process data and supply 
NRMCS figures 

End of November 

ATKINS  
Display overlay plans for PCC 
 

December 

Identification 
Identify all sections 

· Those that are at or 
below, IL with three or 
more, wet skid 
accidents in the 
previous three years 

January   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PCC Engineer (Asset Management)/ 
ATKINS 

 
 
 
 
 

Identify all sections already 
addresses in the next season’s 

programme 

Feb -March 

Consult Safety & Traffic 
Management Team as 
necessary to determine other 
minor safety improvements 
required 

Feb -March 

Assess risk based on type and 
frequency of incident on any 
section or series of sections 

Feb -March 

Include in  Forward Works 
Programme   

March  - April 

Works 
Carry out temporary signing 
works 

April – July 

PCC/ATKINS 
Carry out High Friction 
surfacing / surface treatment 
works if funding permits 

May - Oct 

Carry out surfacing works if 
funding permits 

April  - March 

 

178



ENVIRONMENT CAPITAL SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 
 

Agenda Item No. 8 

22 MARCH 2012 
 

Public Report 

 

Report of the Solicitor to the Council 
 
Report Author – Paulina Ford, Senior Governance Officer, Scrutiny 
Contact Details – 01733 452508 or email paulina.ford@peterborough.gov.uk 
 

FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS 
 
1. PURPOSE 

 
1.1 This is a regular report to the Environment Capital Scrutiny Committee outlining the content of 

the Council’s Forward Plan. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 That the Committee identifies any relevant items for inclusion within their work programme. 
 

3. BACKGROUND 
 

3.1 The latest version of the Forward Plan is attached at Appendix 1.  The Plan contains those key 
decisions, which the Leader of the Council believes that the Cabinet or individual Cabinet 
Member(s) will be making over the next four months. 
 

3.2 The information in the Forward Plan provides the Committee with the opportunity of considering 
whether it wishes to seek to influence any of these key decisions, or to request further 
information. 
 

3.3 If the Committee wished to examine any of the key decisions, consideration would need to be 
given as to how this could be accommodated within the work programme. 
 

3.4 A new version of the Forward Plan will be issued on 16 March and copies will be tabled at the 
meeting. 
 

4. CONSULTATION 
 

4.1 Details of any consultation on individual decisions are contained within the Forward Plan. 
 

5. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 

 
 None 

 
6. APPENDICES 

 
 Appendix 1 – Forward Plan of Executive Decisions 
 
 

179



180

This page is intentionally left blank



   
P
E
T
E
R
B
O
R
O
U
G
H
 C
IT
Y
  

C
O
U
N
C
IL
’S
 F
O
R
W
A
R
D
 P
L
A
N
 

1
 M
A
R
C
H
 2
0
1
2
 T
O
 3
0
 J
U
N
E
 2
0
1
2

 
 

APPENDIX 1 

181



 F
O
R
W
A
R
D
 P
L
A
N
 O
F
 K
E
Y
 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
S
 -
 1
 M

A
R
C
H
 2
0
1
2
 T
O
 3
0
 J
U
N
E
 2
0
1
2
 

A
B

 
 D
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
 f
ro
m
 1
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
2
 T
o
 3
0
 J
u
n
e
 2
0
1
2
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 C
it
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 i
n
te
n
d
s
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 'k
e
y
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
' o
n
 t
h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 

b
e
lo
w
. 
 K
e
y
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 r
e
la
te
 t
o
 t
h
o
s
e
 e
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
s
p
e
n
d
in
g
 o
r 
s
a
v
in
g
 m
o
n
e
y
 i
n
 e
x
c
e
s
s
 o
f 
£
5
0
0
,0
0
0
 a
n
d
/o
r 

h
a
v
e
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
w
o
 o
r 
m
o
re
 w
a
rd
s
 i
n
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
. 

 T
h
is
 F
o
rw
a
rd
 P
la
n
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 s
e
e
n
 a
s
 a
n
 o
u
tl
in
e
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 a
n
d
 i
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 u
p
d
a
te
d
 o
n
 a
 m
o
n
th
ly
 b
a
s
is
. 
 T
h
e
 d
a
te
s
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 P
la
n
 

a
re
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
o
s
e
 i
te
m
s
 a
m
e
n
d
e
d
 o
r 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 f
o
r 
d
e
c
is
io
n
 m
o
re
 t
h
a
n
 o
n
e
 m
o
n
th
 i
n
 a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
v
e
r 
to
 f
o
rt
h
c
o
m
in
g
 p
la
n
s
. 
 

E
a
c
h
 n
e
w
 p
la
n
 s
u
p
e
rs
e
d
e
s
 t
h
e
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 p
la
n
. 
 A
n
y
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 o
n
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 P
la
n
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm
 w
h
ic
h
 a
p
p
e
a
rs
 a
t 

th
e
 b
a
c
k
 o
f 
th
e
 P
la
n
 a
n
d
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 A
le
x
 D
a
y
n
e
s
, 
S
e
n
io
r 
G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 O
ff
ic
e
r,
 C
h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
’s
 D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t,
 T
o
w
n
 H
a
ll,
 B
ri
d
g
e
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 P
E
1
 1
H
G
 (
fa
x
 

0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
2
4
8
3
).
 A
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
ly
, 
y
o
u
 c
a
n
 s
u
b
m
it
 y
o
u
r 
v
ie
w
s
 v
ia
 e
-m
a
il 
to
 a
le
x
a
n
d
e
r.
d
a
y
n
e
s
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 o
r 
b
y
 t
e
le
p
h
o
n
e
 o
n
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
2
4
4
7
. 

 T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
in
v
it
e
s
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 p
u
b
lic
 t
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
 a
n
y
 o
f 
th
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a
t 
w
h
ic
h
 t
h
e
s
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 d
is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 p
a
p
e
rs
 l
is
te
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 P
la
n
 c
a
n
 

b
e
 v
ie
w
e
d
 f
re
e
 o
f 
c
h
a
rg
e
 a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
 p
o
s
ta
g
e
 a
n
d
 p
h
o
to
c
o
p
y
in
g
 c
h
a
rg
e
 f
o
r 
a
n
y
 c
o
p
ie
s
 m
a
d
e
. 
A
ll 
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 p
o
s
te
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 

w
e
b
s
it
e
: 
w
w
w
.p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
. 
  
If
 y
o
u
 w
is
h
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 o
r 
re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 'k
e
y
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
' o
u
tl
in
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
is
 P
la
n
, 
p
le
a
s
e
 s
u
b
m
it
 

th
e
m
 t
o
 t
h
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
u
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm
 a
tt
a
c
h
e
d
. 
 F
o
r 
y
o
u
r 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
, 
th
e
 c
o
n
ta
c
t 
d
e
ta
ils
 f
o
r 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 v
a
ri
o
u
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 

a
re
 i
n
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
d
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
is
 p
la
n
. 

 N
E
W
 I
T
E
M
S
 T
H
IS
 M
O
N
T
H
: 

 A
w
a
rd
 o
f 
a
 F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 f
o
r 
T
e
m
p
o
ra
ry
 S
ta
ff
 f
o
r 
C
h
il
d
re
n
's
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 K
E
Y
/0
4
M
A
R
/1
2
 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 7
5
 A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h
 N
H
S
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 f
o
r 
D
ru
g
s
 a
n
d
 A
lc
o
h
o
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 K
E
Y
/0
5
M
A
R
/1
2
 

A
w
a
rd
 o
f 
F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 f
o
r 
S
u
p
p
ly
 o
f 
U
ti
li
ti
e
s
 -
 K
E
Y
/0
6
M
A
R
/1
2
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 -
 S
p
e
c
if
ic
 G
ra
n
t 
A
g
re
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
A
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 B
a
s
e
d
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 R
e
la
te
d
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 -
 K
E
Y
/0
7
M
A
R
/1
2
 

E
x
te
n
s
io
n
 t
o
 v
a
ri
o
u
s
 H
ig
h
w
a
y
s
 R
e
la
te
d
 C
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 t
o
 J
u
ly
 2
0
1
3
 -
 K
E
Y
/0
8
M
A
R
/1
2
 

O
rg
a
n
ic
 a
n
d
 F
o
o
d
 W

a
s
te
 T
re
a
tm

e
n
t 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
- 
K
E
Y
/0
1
M
A
Y
/1
2
 

    

182



   

M
A
R
C
H
 

 K
E
Y
 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

R
E
Q
U
IR
E
D
 

D
A
T
E
 O
F
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 M

A
K
E
R
 

R
E
L
E
V
A
N
T
  

S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 

C
O
M
M
IT
T
E
E
 

C
O
N
S
U
L
T
A
T
IO
N
 
C
O
N
T
A
C
T
 D
E
T
A
IL
S
 /
 

R
E
P
O
R
T
 A
U
T
H
O
R
S
 

R
E
P
O
R
T
S
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
's
 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
R
e
c
e
ip
t 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 

S
a
le
 o
f 
L
a
n
d
 a
n
d
 

B
u
il
d
in
g
s
 -
 V
a
w
s
e
r 
L
o
d
g
e
 

T
h
o
rp
e
 R
o
a
d
 -
 

K
E
Y
/0
4
D
E
C
/1
0
 

T
o
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
 t
h
e
 C
h
ie
f 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
, 
in
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 

th
e
 S
o
lic
it
o
r 
to
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il,
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 
–
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
, 
th
e
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

P
ro
p
e
rt
y
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
, 

to
 n
e
g
o
ti
a
te
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
c
lu
d
e
 t
h
e
 

s
a
le
 o
f 
V
a
w
s
e
r 
L
o
d
g
e
 

 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
2
 

 
C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 

ta
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 w
it
h
 

th
e
 C
a
b
in
e
t 

M
e
m
b
e
r,
 W
a
rd
 

c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
, 

re
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 &
 

e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
s
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 

  

A
n
d
re
w
 E
d
w
a
rd
s
 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 

D
e
liv
e
ry
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
2
3
0
3
 

a
n
d
re
w
.e
d
w
a
rd
s
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u

g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

A
 p
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

w
ill
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 

g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

te
a
m
 o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 

b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

ta
k
e
n
 

 

E
n
e
rg
y
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

C
o
m
p
a
n
y
 -
 K
E
Y
/0
3
J
U
L
/1
1
 

T
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fu
tu
re
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 
e
n
e
rg
y
 

re
la
te
d
 p
ro
d
u
c
ts
. 

 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
2
 

 
C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l,
 C
a
b
in
e
t 

M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

In
te
rn
a
l 
a
n
d
 

E
x
te
rn
a
l 

S
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 

  

J
o
h
n
 H
a
rr
is
o
n
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 D
ir
e
c
to
r-
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
2
3
9
8
 

jo
h
n
.h
a
rr
is
o
n
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.

g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

A
 p
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

w
ill
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

T
e
a
m
 o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 

b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

ta
k
e
n
. 

 

183



 S
a
le
 o
f 
s
u
rp
lu
s
 f
o
rm

e
r 

re
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
c
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 -
 

E
y
e
 -
 K
E
Y
/0
1
O
C
T
/1
1
 

T
o
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
 t
h
e
 C
h
ie
f 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
, 
in
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 

th
e
 S
o
lic
it
o
r 
to
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il,
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 
–
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
, 
th
e
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

P
ro
p
e
rt
y
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
, 
to
 n
e
g
o
ti
a
te
 a
n
d
 

c
o
n
c
lu
d
e
 t
h
e
 s
a
le
 o
f 
a
 f
o
rm
e
r 

c
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 n
o
w
 s
u
rp
lu
s
 t
o
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
t 
-T
h
e
 C
ro
ft
, 
E
y
e
. 

 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
2
 

 
C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 

ta
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r,
 &
 

W
a
rd
 c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
, 

a
s
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 

  

S
im
o
n
 W
e
b
b
e
r 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
R
e
c
e
ip
ts
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 3
8
4
5
4
5
 

s
im
o
n
.w
e
b
b
e
r@

p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h

.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

A
 p
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

w
ill
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

te
a
m
 o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 

b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

ta
k
e
n
. 

 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 7
5
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 

w
it
h
 C
a
m
b
ri
d
g
e
 a
n
d
 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

T
ru
s
t 
- 
K
E
Y
/0
3
O
C
T
/1
1
 

T
o
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 7
5
 

a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h
 C
P
F
T
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
2
 

 
C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 

 

H
e
a
lt
h
 I
s
s
u
e
s
 

In
te
rn
a
l 
a
n
d
 

e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
s
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
. 

  

T
e
rr
y
 R
ic
h
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 
A
d
u
lt
 

S
o
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 (
in
te
ri
m
) 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 7
5
8
4
4
4
 

te
rr
y
.r
ic
h
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
p
c
t.
n

h
s
.u
k
 

 

A
 p
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

w
ill
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

T
e
a
m
 o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 

b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

ta
k
e
n
. 

 

H
a
m
p
to
n
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
- 
K
E
Y
/0
7
O
C
T
/1
1
 

T
o
 v
a
ry
 t
h
e
 O
rm
is
to
n
 

B
u
s
h
fi
e
ld
 A
c
a
d
e
m
y
 (
O
B
A
) 

D
e
s
ig
n
 a
n
d
 B
u
ild
 C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

w
it
h
 K
ie
r 
E
a
s
te
rn
 t
o
 a
llo
w
 f
o
r 

th
e
 d
e
s
ig
n
 a
n
d
 b
u
ild
 o
f 

H
a
m
p
to
n
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
c
h
o
o
l.
 

 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
2
 

 
C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
S
k
il
ls
 

a
n
d
 U
n
iv
e
rs
it
y
, 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

 

C
re
a
ti
n
g
 

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

T
a
c
k
lin
g
 

In
e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

P
u
b
lic
, 
w
a
rd
 

c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 a
n
d
 

in
te
rn
a
l 

d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 

  

B
ri
a
n
 H
o
w
a
rd
 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
- 

S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
9
7
6
 

b
ri
a
n
.h
o
w
a
rd
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.

g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

A
 p
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

w
ill
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

T
e
a
m
 o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 

b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

ta
k
e
n
 

 

184



 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
’s
 T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 P
o
li
c
y
 f
o
r 

p
u
p
il
s
 a
g
e
d
 4
-1
6
 y
e
a
rs
 -
 

K
E
Y
/0
1
N
O
V
/1
1
 

T
o
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 n
e
w
 p
o
lic
y
 f
o
r 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
. 

 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
2
 

 
C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
S
k
il
ls
 

a
n
d
 U
n
iv
e
rs
it
y
 

 

C
re
a
ti
n
g
 

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

T
a
c
k
lin
g
 

In
e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

In
te
rn
a
l 
a
n
d
 p
u
b
lic
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

  

Is
a
b
e
l 
C
la
rk
 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
A
s
s
e
ts
 a
n
d
 S
c
h
o
o
l 

P
la
c
e
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
9
1
4
 

is
a
b
e
l.
c
la
rk
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o

v
.u
k
 

 

A
 p
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

w
ill
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

te
a
m
 o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 

b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

ta
k
e
n
. 

 

C
h
il
d
re
n
's
 C
e
n
tr
e
s
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 -
 

K
E
Y
0
4
/N
O
V
/1
1
 

T
o
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 a
w
a
rd
 o
f 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 f
o
r 
th
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
1
2
 C
h
ild
re
n
 

C
e
n
tr
e
s
 i
n
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
. 

 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
2
 

 
C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

C
h
il
d
re
n
's
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

 

C
re
a
ti
n
g
 

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

T
a
c
k
lin
g
 

In
e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

P
ro
v
id
e
rs
, 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
, 
S
ta
ff
, 
 

   

P
a
m
 S
e
tt
e
rf
ie
ld
 

A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 
H
e
a
d
 o
f 
C
h
ild
re
n
 &
 

F
a
m
ili
e
s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 (
0
-1
3
) 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
8
9
7
 

p
a
m
.s
e
tt
e
rf
ie
ld
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g

h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

A
 p
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

w
ill
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

T
e
a
m
 o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 

b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

ta
k
e
n
. 

 

T
ra
ff
ic
 S
ig
n
a
ls
 L
E
D
 

P
ro
je
c
t 
- 
a
w
a
rd
 o
f 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
- 
K
E
Y
/0
3
S
E
P
/1
1
 

C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
to
 r
e
p
la
c
e
 a
ll 
tr
a
ff
ic
 

s
ig
n
a
l 
h
e
a
d
 l
a
m
p
s
 i
n
 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 w
it
h
 L
E
D
 

H
e
a
d
s
. 

 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
2
 

 
C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

H
o
u
s
in
g
, 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 

a
n
d
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

In
te
rn
a
l 
a
n
d
 

e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
s
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 

  

A
m
y
 W
a
rd
e
ll 

T
e
a
m
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
- 
P
a
s
s
e
n
g
e
r 

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 P
ro
je
c
ts
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 3
1
7
4
8
1
 

a
m
y
.w
a
rd
e
ll@

p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g

o
v
.u
k
 

 

A
 p
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

w
ill
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

T
e
a
m
 o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 

b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

ta
k
e
n
. 

 

185



 C
it
y
 o
f 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 

A
c
a
d
e
m
y
 –
 F
re
e
 S
c
h
o
o
l 

A
c
a
d
e
m
y
 a
n
d
 f
re
e
 s
p
e
c
ia
l 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
- 
K
E
Y
/0
3
J
A
N
/1
2
 

T
o
 p
ro
c
u
re
 a
 d
e
s
ig
n
 a
n
d
 b
u
ild
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
r 
to
 c
a
rr
y
 o
u
t 

re
m
o
d
e
lli
n
g
 a
n
d
 r
e
fu
rb
is
h
m
e
n
t 

w
o
rk
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 s
c
h
o
o
l 

b
u
ild
in
g
s
 a
n
d
 d
e
s
ig
n
 a
n
d
 b
u
ild
 

a
 n
e
w
 s
p
e
c
ia
l 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
b
u
ild
in
g
 

a
t 
th
e
 f
o
rm
e
r 
H
e
re
w
a
rd
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 C
o
lle
g
e
 s
it
e
, 

R
e
e
v
e
s
 W
a
y
 

 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
2
 

 
C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
S
k
il
ls
 

a
n
d
 U
n
iv
e
rs
it
y
, 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

 

C
re
a
ti
n
g
 

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

T
a
c
k
lin
g
 

In
e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

W
a
rd
 C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 

a
n
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
. 

  

B
ri
a
n
 H
o
w
a
rd
 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
- 

S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
9
7
6
 

b
ri
a
n
.h
o
w
a
rd
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.

g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

A
 p
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

w
ill
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

T
e
a
m
 o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 

b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

ta
k
e
n
. 

 

C
o
w
g
a
te
 E
n
h
a
n
c
e
m
e
n
t 

S
c
h
e
m
e
 -
 K
E
Y
/0
5
J
A
N
/1
2
 

T
o
 a
w
a
rd
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
to
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 e
n
g
in
e
e
ri
n
g
 w
o
rk
s
 

a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
w
g
a
te
 

E
n
h
a
n
c
e
m
e
n
t 
S
c
h
e
m
e
. 

 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
2
 

 
L
e
a
d
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 a
n
d
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

G
ro
w
th
, 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

P
la
n
n
in
g
, 
E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 /
 S
tr
o
n
g
 

a
n
d
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
iv
e
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 

  

S
tu
a
rt
 M
o
u
n
fi
e
ld
 

S
e
n
io
r 
E
n
g
in
e
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
3
5
9
8
 

s
tu
a
rt
.m
o
u
n
fi
e
ld
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u

g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

A
 p
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

w
ill
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

T
e
a
m
 o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 

b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

ta
k
e
n
. 

 

L
o
c
a
l 
B
ro
a
d
b
a
n
d
 P
la
n
 -
 

K
E
Y
/0
6
J
A
N
/1
2
 

T
o
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 L
o
c
a
l 

B
ro
a
d
b
a
n
d
 P
la
n
 f
o
r 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 a
n
d
 

C
a
m
b
ri
d
g
e
s
h
ir
e
 t
o
 r
e
le
a
s
e
 

fu
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
S
u
p
e
rf
a
s
t 

B
ro
a
d
b
a
n
d
. 

 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
2
 

 
C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 

  

H
e
a
th
e
r 
D
a
rw
in
 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
2
4
9
5
 

h
e
a
th
e
r.
d
a
rw
in
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g

h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

A
 p
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

w
ill
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

T
e
a
m
 o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 

b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

ta
k
e
n
. 

 

186



 E
y
e
 C
 o
f 
E
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
E
x
te
n
s
io
n
 -
 

K
E
Y
/0
2
F
E
B
/1
2
 

A
w
a
rd
 o
f 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 
3
 

a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
c
la
s
s
ro
o
m
s
 a
n
d
 a
n
 

a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
s
ta
ff
ro
o
m
 w
it
h
 

re
fu
rb
is
h
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
re
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 

a
re
a
. 

 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
2
 

 
C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
S
k
il
ls
 

a
n
d
 U
n
iv
e
rs
it
y
 

 

C
re
a
ti
n
g
 

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

T
a
c
k
lin
g
 

In
e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
In
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 E
x
te
rn
a
l 

S
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 

  

S
h
a
ro
n
 B
is
h
o
p
 

A
s
s
e
ts
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
9
9
7
 

s
h
a
ro
n
.b
is
h
o
p
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h

.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

A
 p
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

w
ill
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

T
e
a
m
 o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 

b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

ta
k
e
n
. 

 

A
ll
 S
a
in
ts
 J
u
n
io
r 
S
c
h
o
o
l 
- 

E
x
te
n
s
io
n
 o
f 
A
g
e
 R
a
n
g
e
 -
 

K
E
Y
/0
3
F
E
B
/1
2
 

T
o
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 a
 n
e
w
 a
ll 

th
ro
u
g
h
 V
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 A
id
e
d
 

P
ri
m
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
to
 e
n
a
b
le
 t
h
e
 

e
x
te
n
s
io
n
 o
f 
th
e
 a
g
e
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 

A
ll 
S
a
in
ts
 J
u
n
io
r 
S
c
h
o
o
l.
 

 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
2
 

 
C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
S
k
il
ls
 

a
n
d
 U
n
iv
e
rs
it
y
 

 

C
re
a
ti
n
g
 

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

T
a
c
k
lin
g
 

In
e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
s
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
. 

  

A
lis
o
n
 C
h
a
m
b
e
rs
 

P
ri
n
c
ip
a
l 
A
s
s
e
ts
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

(S
c
h
o
o
ls
) 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
9
7
5
 

a
lis
o
n
.c
h
a
m
b
e
rs
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u

g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

A
 p
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

w
ill
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

te
a
m
 o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 

b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

ta
k
e
n
. 

 

S
in
g
le
 E
q
u
a
li
ty
 S
c
h
e
m
e
 -
 

K
E
Y
/0
2
S
E
P
/1
1
 

T
o
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 S
in
g
le
 

E
q
u
a
lit
y
 S
c
h
e
m
e
. 

  

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
2
 

 
C
a
b
in
e
t 

 
C
re
a
ti
n
g
 

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

T
a
c
k
lin
g
 

In
e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
. 

P
u
b
lic
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

v
ia
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 

a
n
d
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
. 

  

P
a
u
l 
P
h
ill
ip
s
o
n
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 
O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
3
4
5
5
 

p
a
u
l.
p
h
ill
ip
s
o
n
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h

.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

A
 p
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

w
ill
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 

g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

te
a
m
 o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 

b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

ta
k
e
n
. 

 

187



 L
o
c
a
l 
T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 P
la
n
 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 

W
o
rk
s
 (
C
P
W
) 
2
0
1
2
/1
3
 -
 

K
E
Y
/0
1
M
A
R
/1
2
 

T
o
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 C
a
p
it
a
l 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 
W
o
rk
s
 f
o
r 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
r 
2
0
1
2
/1
3
. 

 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
2
 

 
C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

H
o
u
s
in
g
, 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 

a
n
d
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
s
, 

in
te
rn
a
l 
a
n
d
 

e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 

  

M
ic
h
a
e
l 
S
te
v
e
n
s
o
n
 

P
ro
je
c
t 
E
n
g
in
e
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 3
1
7
4
7
3
 

m
ic
h
a
e
l.
s
te
v
e
n
s
o
n
@
p
e
te
rb
o
r

o
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

A
 p
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

w
ill
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

T
e
a
m
 o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 

b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

ta
k
e
n
. 

 

S
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

In
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
(i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

g
u
id
a
n
c
e
) 
- 
d
ra
ft
 -
 

K
E
Y
/0
2
M
A
R
/1
2
 

T
o
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 d
ra
ft
 

S
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

In
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
(i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

g
u
id
a
n
c
e
) 
fo
r 
p
u
b
lic
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 

 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
2
 

 
C
a
b
in
e
t 

 
S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 

In
te
rn
a
l 
a
n
d
 

e
x
te
rn
a
l 
a
s
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
. 

  

R
ic
h
a
rd
 K
a
y
 

P
o
lic
y
 a
n
d
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

 ri
c
h
a
rd
.k
a
y
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o

v
.u
k
 

 

A
 p
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

w
ill
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

T
e
a
m
 o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 

b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

ta
k
e
n
. 

 

A
w
a
rd
 o
f 
a
 F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 f
o
r 

T
e
m
p
o
ra
ry
 S
ta
ff
 f
o
r 

C
h
il
d
re
n
's
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 

K
E
Y
/0
4
M
A
R
/1
2
 

T
o
 e
x
p
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 

fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
 f
o
r 
te
m
p
o
ra
ry
 s
ta
ff
 

to
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
fo
llo
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 

o
fs
te
d
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
. 

 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
2
 

 
C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

C
o
h
e
s
io
n
 a
n
d
 

S
a
fe
ty
 

 

C
re
a
ti
n
g
 

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

T
a
c
k
lin
g
 

In
e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

In
te
rn
a
l 
a
n
d
 

e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
s
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 s
o
c
ia
l 

c
a
re
 s
ta
ff
. 

  

O
liv
e
r 
H
a
y
w
a
rd
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
- 

A
im
in
g
 H
ig
h
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
9
1
0
 

o
liv
e
r.
h
a
y
w
a
rd
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g

h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

A
 p
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

w
ill
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

T
e
a
m
 o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 

b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

ta
k
e
n
. 

 

188



 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 7
5
 A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 

w
it
h
 N
H
S
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 

fo
r 
D
ru
g
s
 a
n
d
 A
lc
o
h
o
l 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 K
E
Y
/0
5
M
A
R
/1
2
 

T
o
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 7
5
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 

w
it
h
 N
H
S
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 f
o
r 

th
e
 t
ra
n
s
fe
r 
o
f 
fu
n
d
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
A
d
u
lt
 d
ru
g
s
 a
n
d
 

a
lc
o
h
o
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
2
 

 
C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

C
o
h
e
s
io
n
 a
n
d
 

S
a
fe
ty
 

 

H
e
a
lt
h
 I
s
s
u
e
s
 

In
te
rn
a
l 
a
n
d
 

e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
s
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
. 

  

A
d
ri
a
n
 C
h
a
p
m
a
n
 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
8
8
7
 

a
d
ri
a
n
.c
h
a
p
m
a
n
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u

g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

A
 p
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

w
ill
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

T
e
a
m
 o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 

b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

ta
k
e
n
. 

 

A
w
a
rd
 o
f 
F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 f
o
r 

S
u
p
p
ly
 o
f 
U
ti
li
ti
e
s
 -
 

K
E
Y
/0
6
M
A
R
/1
2
 

E
n
te
r 
in
to
 a
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 

a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h
 G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 

P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

s
u
p
p
ly
 o
f 
u
ti
lit
ie
s
 t
o
 c
o
u
n
c
il 

p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
. 

 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
2
 

 
C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 

In
te
rn
a
l 
a
n
d
 

e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 

  

A
n
d
re
w
 C
o
x
 

S
e
n
io
r 
C
a
te
g
o
ry
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

 a
n
d
y
.c
o
x
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.

u
k
 

 

A
 p
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

w
ill
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

T
e
a
m
 o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 

b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

ta
k
e
n
. 

 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 -
 

S
p
e
c
if
ic
 G
ra
n
t 

A
g
re
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 

A
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 B
a
s
e
d
 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 R
e
la
te
d
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

- 
K
E
Y
/0
7
M
A
R
/1
2
 

A
w
a
rd
 o
f 
s
p
e
c
if
ic
 g
ra
n
t 

a
g
re
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
th
e
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 

b
a
s
e
d
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 r
e
la
te
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

fu
n
d
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 

P
e
o
p
le
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
. 

 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
2
 

 
C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

H
o
u
s
in
g
, 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 

a
n
d
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

 

S
tr
o
n
g
 a
n
d
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
iv
e
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

In
te
rn
a
l 
a
n
d
 

e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
s
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
. 

  

S
h
a
ro
n
 M
a
lia
 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
7
6
4
 

s
h
a
ro
n
.m
a
lia
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.

g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

A
 p
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

w
ill
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

T
e
a
m
 o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 

b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

ta
k
e
n
. 

 

189



 E
x
te
n
s
io
n
 t
o
 v
a
ri
o
u
s
 

H
ig
h
w
a
y
s
 R
e
la
te
d
 

C
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 t
o
 J
u
ly
 2
0
1
3
 -
 

K
E
Y
/0
8
M
A
R
/1
2
 

T
o
 e
x
te
n
d
 t
h
e
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 

H
ig
h
w
a
y
s
 M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
, 

P
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
S
tr
e
e
t 

L
ig
h
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 G
u
lly
 C
le
a
n
s
in
g
 

C
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 u
n
ti
l 
J
u
ly
 2
0
1
3
 

p
e
n
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 

a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
. 

 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
2
 

 
C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 

s
e
n
io
r 
o
ff
ic
e
rs
 h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

T
ra
n
s
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
. 

  

S
im
o
n
 M
a
c
h
e
n
 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
P
la
n
n
in
g
, 
T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 

a
n
d
 E
n
g
in
e
e
ri
n
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
3
4
7
5
 

s
im
o
n
.m
a
c
h
e
n
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g

h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

A
 p
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

w
ill
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

T
e
a
m
 o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 

b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

ta
k
e
n
. 

 

  

A
P
R
IL
 

 K
E
Y
 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

R
E
Q
U
IR
E
D
 

D
A
T
E
 O
F
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 M

A
K
E
R
 

R
E
L
E
V
A
N
T
  

S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 

C
O
M
M
IT
T
E
E
 

C
O
N
S
U
L
T
A
T
IO
N
 
C
O
N
T
A
C
T
 D
E
T
A
IL
S
 /
 

R
E
P
O
R
T
 A
U
T
H
O
R
S
 

R
E
P
O
R
T
S
 

A
w
a
rd
 o
f 
C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
- 
B
u
s
 

S
h
e
lt
e
r 
P
ro
v
is
io
n
 a
n
d
 

M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 -
 

K
E
Y
/0
1
A
P
R
/1
2
 

A
w
a
rd
 o
f 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
, 
in
s
ta
lla
ti
o
n
, 

c
le
a
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 

o
f 
B
u
s
 S
h
e
lt
e
rs
. 

 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
2
 

 
C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

H
o
u
s
in
g
, 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 

a
n
d
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 

In
te
rn
a
l 
a
n
d
 

e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
s
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
. 

  

D
a
rr
e
n
 D
e
a
d
m
a
n
 

T
ra
v
e
l 
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 3
1
7
4
6
4
 

d
a
rr
e
n
.d
e
a
d
m
a
n
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u

g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

A
 p
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

w
ill
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

T
e
a
m
 o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 

b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

ta
k
e
n
. 

 

190



 A
w
a
rd
 o
f 
T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 

C
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 -
 

K
E
Y
/0
2
A
P
R
/1
2
 

T
o
 a
w
a
rd
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 f
o
r 

M
a
in
s
tr
e
a
m
, 
S
p
e
c
ia
l 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
N
e
e
d
s
, 
C
h
ild
re
n
 

in
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 a
n
d
 P
u
b
lic
 

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
. 

 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
2
 

 
C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
S
k
il
ls
 

a
n
d
 U
n
iv
e
rs
it
y
, 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

H
o
u
s
in
g
, 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 

a
n
d
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 

In
te
rn
a
l 

d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 a
s
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
. 

  

C
a
th
y
 S
u
m
m
e
rs
 

T
e
a
m
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
- 
P
a
s
s
e
n
g
e
r 

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 C
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 a
n
d
 

P
la
n
n
in
g
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 3
1
7
4
6
3
 

c
a
th
y
.s
u
m
m
e
rs
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g

h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

A
 p
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

w
ill
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

T
e
a
m
 o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 

b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

ta
k
e
n
. 

 

 

191



  

M
A
Y
 

 K
E
Y
 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

R
E
Q
U
IR
E
D
 

D
A
T
E
 O
F
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 M

A
K
E
R
 

R
E
L
E
V
A
N
T
  

S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 

C
O
M
M
IT
T
E
E
 

C
O
N
S
U
L
T
A
T
IO
N
 
C
O
N
T
A
C
T
 D
E
T
A
IL
S
 /
 

R
E
P
O
R
T
 A
U
T
H
O
R
S
 

R
E
P
O
R
T
S
 

O
rg
a
n
ic
 a
n
d
 F
o
o
d
 W

a
s
te
 

T
re
a
tm

e
n
t 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
- 
K
E
Y
/0
1
M
A
Y
/1
2
 

T
o
 A
w
a
rd
 a
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 

O
rg
a
n
ic
 a
n
d
 F
o
o
d
 W
a
s
te
 

T
re
a
tm
e
n
t 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

 

M
a
y
 2
0
1
2
 

 
D
e
p
u
ty
 L
e
a
d
e
r 
a
n
d
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

C
u
lt
u
re
, 
R
e
c
re
a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 

In
te
rn
a
l 
a
n
d
 

e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
s
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
. 

  

A
m
y
 N
e
b
e
l 

R
e
c
y
c
lin
g
 C
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
4
7
2
7
 

a
m
y
.n
e
b
e
l@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o

v
.u
k
 

 

A
 p
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

w
ill
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

T
e
a
m
 o
n
 w
e
e
k
 

b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

ta
k
e
n
. 

 

 

J
U
N
E
 

 T
h
e
re
 a
re
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 n
o
 K
e
y
 D
e
c
is
io
n
s
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 f
o
r 
J
u
n
e
. 

192



 C
H
IE
F
 E
X
E
C
U
T
IV
E
'S
 D
E
P
A
R
T
M
E
N
T
  
T
o
w
n
 H
a
ll
, 
B
ri
d
g
e
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
, 
P
E
1
 1
H
G
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

L
e
g
a
l 
a
n
d
 D
e
m
o
c
ra
ti
c
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

P
o
lic
y
 a
n
d
 R
e
s
e
a
rc
h
 

E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

H
R
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 R
e
la
ti
o
n
s
, 
T
ra
in
in
g
 &
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t,
 O
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 &
 R
e
w
a
rd
 &
 P
o
lic
y
 

 S
T
R
A
T
E
G
IC
 R
E
S
O
U
R
C
E
S
 D
E
P
A
R
T
M
E
N
T
  
D
ir
e
c
to
r'
s
 O
ff
ic
e
 a
t 
T
o
w
n
 H
a
ll
, 
B
ri
d
g
e
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
, 
P
E
1
 1
H
G
 

F
in
a
n
c
e
 

In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
  

In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 T
e
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
 (
IC
T
) 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 T
ra
n
s
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
ro
p
e
rt
y
  

W
a
s
te
 

C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

S
h
a
re
d
 T
ra
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
a
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

C
u
lt
u
ra
l 
T
ru
s
t 
C
lie
n
t 

 C
H
IL
D
R
E
N
S
’ 
S
E
R
V
IC
E
S
 D
E
P
A
R
T
M
E
N
T
  
B
a
y
a
rd
 P
la
c
e
, 
B
ro
a
d
w
a
y
, 
P
E
1
 1
F
B
 

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
, 
F
a
m
ily
 &
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 &
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 H
e
a
lt
h
 

  O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
S
 D
E
P
A
R
T
M
E
N
T
  
B
ri
d
g
e
 H
o
u
s
e
, 
T
o
w
n
 B
ri
d
g
e
, 
P
E
1
 1
H
B
 

 

193



 P
la
n
n
in
g
 T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 &
 E
n
g
in
e
e
ri
n
g
 (
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t,
 C
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 &
 C
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
, 
In
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 &
 D
e
liv
e
ry
, 
N
e
tw
o
rk
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t)
  
 

C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 (
R
e
s
ili
e
n
c
e
, 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
a
rk
in
g
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
C
C
T
V
, 
C
it
y
 C
e
n
tr
e
, 
M
a
rk
e
ts
 &
 C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
T
ra
d
in
g
, 
P
a
s
s
e
n
g
e
r 
T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
) 
 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 (
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 R
e
g
u
la
to
ry
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
S
a
fe
r 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
, 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 H
o
u
s
in
g
, 
C
o
h
e
s
io
n
, 
S
o
c
ia
l 
In
c
lu
s
io
n
) 

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 (
F
in
a
n
c
e
) 
 

P
la
n
n
in
g
 T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 &
 E
n
g
in
e
e
ri
n
g
 (
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t,
 C
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 &
 C
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
, 
In
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 &
 D
e
liv
e
ry
, 
N
e
tw
o
rk
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t)
  
 

 

194


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of Meeting Held on 19 January 2012
	5 The Delivery of Renewable Energy
	6 Trees and Woodlands Strategy
	120312 - EC - Appendix A Trees and Woodland Strategy Master
	120312 - EC - Appendix B Table of strategy impacts 23 08 11
	120312 - EC - Appendix C - Consultation Responses.v2

	7 Highway Maintenance Plan
	120322 - EC - PCC_HM_2011_16_FINAL_Appendix

	8 Forward Plan of Key Decisions
	120322 - EC - Forward Plan March to June 2012 Appendix


